PARTICLE PRODUCTION IN STRONG INTERACTIONS

by

R. C. KING

A thesis presented for the degree of Doctor of Philosophy of the University of London and the Diploma of Imperial College.

London, 1st September, 1964.

Department of Physics Imperial College of Science and Technology.

ABSTRACT

The work contained in this thesis is clearly divided into two distinct parts.

In Part I the production and decay of arbitrary spin and parity resonant states are discussed within the context of a peripheral or onemeson exchange model. General results are obtained for the production angular distribution and the decay angular correlations of the resonant states assuming that the overall process is a quasi two body inelastic scattering process, mediated by the exchange of either a spin zero or a spin one meson, followed by the free decay of the resonant state or states. A field theoretic formalism is used to determine the propagators involving arbitrary spin particles and the results are expressed in terms of the most general possible three-particle couplings involving arbitrary coupling constants and their associated form factors. The usefulness of the model as a means of calculating coupling constants and form factors and of carrying out spin determinations is also discussed.

In Part II a model to describe the production of \subseteq particles in p collisions is set up in which the pole contributions of the \bigwedge and \succeq particles and the contributions of two-particle intermediate states are considered. These latter states are approximated by Υ resonances in the s and u channels and by a D-particle resonance, a boson of strangeness 2, in the t channel. The two alternatives of spin 1/2 and spin 3/2 \boxdot are considered. A comparison with experimental data indicates that the spin

of the \equiv is not 3/2 and that the production process is mediated by fermion exchange. The data can best be fitted by the parity combinations P(AZ) even, P(KAN) odd and P(KAE) odd.

...

CONTENTS

Page

ABSTRACT	1
CONTENTS	3
PREFACE	5

PART	I	6
------	---	---

The peripheral model of the production and subsequent decay of resonances having arbitrary spin.

1.	INTRODUCTION	7	
2.	KINEMATICS	13	
3.	PHASE SPACE	18	
4.	FIELD THEORETIC FORMALISM AND THE PROPAGATORS FOR		
	ARBITRARY SPIN PARTICLES	32	
5.	VERTEX FUNCTIONS INVOLVING PARTICLES OF ARBITRARY		
	SPIN AND PARITY	40	
6.	THE DECAY PARTIAL WIDTHS OF ARBITRARY SPIN AND PARITY		
	RESONANCES	50	
7.	BOSON RESONANCES DECAYING INTO TWO PSEUDOSCALAR PARTICLES		
	(i) Pseudoscalar particle exchange	58	
	(ii) Vector particle exchange	62	
	(iii) Pseudovector particle exchange	67	

0	D		Page		
Ö.	BOSON RESONANCE	S DECAYING INTO A VECTOR PARTICLE AND A			
	PSEUDOSCALAR PARTICLE				
	(a) Normal Par	rity	,		
	(i)	Pseudoscalar particle exchange	73		
	(ii)	Vector particle exchange	78		
	(iii)	Pseudovector particle exchange	84		
	(b) Abnormal I	Parity			
	(i)	Scalar particle exchange	92		
	(ii)	Vector particle exchange	97		
	(iii)	Pseudovector particle exchange	107		
9.	FERMION RESONAL	NCES DECAYING INTO A SPIN-HALF PARTICLE			
	AND A PSEUDOSCALAR PARTICLE				
	(i)	Scalar particle exchange	115		
	(ii)	Vector particle exchange	119		
10.	SIMULTANEOUS P	RODUCTION OF A BOSON RESONANCE AND A			
	FERMION RESONANCE				
	(i)	Pseudoscalar particle exchange	130		
	(ii)	Vector particle exchange	132		
	(iii)	Pseudovector particle exchange	144		
11.	RESULTS FOR SPECIFIC SPIN AND PARITY RESONANCES				
12.	DISCUSSION AND	CONCLUSIONS	185		
1.	APPENDIX		200		

PART II Production of cascade particles. 215

PREFACE

The work described in this thesis was developed in the Department of Physics, Imperial College of Science and Technology, University of London between October 1961 and September 1964 under the supervision of Professor P.T. Matthews.

Except where otherwise stated the material contained in this thesis is original and has not been previously presented for a degree in this or any other university.

The author wishes to thank Professor Matthews for his guidance, encouragement and advice during the pursuit of this work. The author would also like to express his gratitude to many other members of the department who have contributed so much to this work through helpful discussions.

A N.A.T.A./D.S.I.R. studentship for the years 1961-1964 is gratefully acknowledged.

The peripheral model of the production and subsequent decay of resonances having arbitrary spin.

٠

1. INTRODUCTION

Experiments in which beams of high energy mesons collide with nucleons have resulted in the discovery of a large number of resonant states. These resonances are often produced together with other particles and their subsequent decays lead to multiparticle final states. However in many cases it is possible to describe the overall process as a two body inelastic collision followed by the free decay of the unstable states. It has been found that the production process favours events with small This has led to the consideration of a peripheral or momentum transfer. one-meson exchange model involving either pseudoscalar⁽¹⁻⁵⁾ or vector meson⁽⁶⁻¹⁰⁾ exchanges. In general such a model does not account for the extreme peripheralism observed in experiment without the introduction of very severe form factors to allow for the off-mass-shell nature of the exchanged particle.^(11,12) These form factors are Ompirical functions but a prediction of the model is that they are functions only of the square of the 4-momentum transfer. This must be verified experimentally but until any energy dependence is exhibited the model provides a useful phenomenological basis for the description of the production process.

If the resonant states decay as free particles of well defined spin the decay angular distributions are determined by the spin alignment of the resonance and this alignment is itself determined by the production mechanism. In general for a resonance of any particular spin the peripheral model provides some restriction in the decay distribution and in

certain cases the distribution may be uniquely defined. Examination of the decay distributions may therefore be used both to test the validity of the peripheral model (13-15) and to determine the spin of the resonance. It should be emphasised that such a spin determination is model dependent but it may nevertheless be a useful guide in cases where more rigorous tests (16-27) are rendered inconclusive by the insufficiency of experimental data.

The purpose of this paper is to present in a systematic manner the predictions of the peripheral model for the production and subsequent decay of resonances of arbitrary spin produced in quasi-two body collisions of pseudoscalar particles with nucleons. To this end it is assumed that the resonances **each** have a unique spin and a narrow width. Cross sections and decay distributions will be presented in terms of arbitrary coupling constants and all possible couplings will be included.

Throughout this paper the resonances are assumed to decay through strong interactions and a state is said to be stable if it does not decay strongly.

If resonances are classified by their decay products five distinct types have been observed to date. These are denoted by F, B_1 , B_2 , B_3 and B_4 . Their characteristic decay modes are as follows:

$$F \rightarrow N + P$$
 (1.1)

$$B_{a} \rightarrow P + P \qquad (1.2)$$

$$B_{2} \rightarrow P + P + P \qquad (1.3)$$

$$B_3 \rightarrow P + V_1 \tag{1.4a}$$

$$V_1 \rightarrow P + P$$
 (1.4b)

$$B_4 \rightarrow P + V_2$$
 (1.5a)

$$V_{p} \rightarrow P + P + P$$
 (1.5b)

where N denotes a stable spin-half particle, P denotes a stable pseudoscalar particle, V_1 and V_2 denote unstable vector particles which decay into two and three stable pseudoscalar particles respectively. In this paper those resonances are discussed whose decay mechanisms involve only three point functions and which thus have decay widths completely determined by coupling constants. Thus only the fermion resonance F, and the boson resonances B_1 and B_3 are discussed.

The following are the general quasi two body production processes considered:

$$P + N \rightarrow N + B_1 \qquad (1.6)$$

 $P + N \rightarrow N + B_3$ (1.7)

 $P + N \rightarrow F + P$ (1.8)

 $P + N \longrightarrow F + B_{1}$ (1.9)

The one-meson exchange diagrams used as the basis of the calculation of the production cross-sections and decay distributions for the above processes are shown in Fig. 1. The exchange meson E may be any one of four spin-parity types: scalar (0+), pseudo-scalar (0 -), vector (1-), or pseudovector (1+).

The resonances of arbitrary spin are described in terms of a field theoretic formalism involving the usual tensor representation of a field with integral spin j, i.e. the (j/2, j/2) representation, and the Rarita-Schwinger $(2^{2}, 2^{2})$ spinor-tensor representation of a field with half integral spin J, i.e. the $[(\frac{1}{2}, 0) \oplus (0, \frac{1}{2})] \oplus$ $(\frac{2J-1}{4}, \frac{2J-1}{4})$ representation. As the resonances are assumed to have unique spin certain subsidiary conditions are needed to reduce the number of independent field components to (2j + 1) and (2J + 1)for integral and half-integral spin respectively. It should be noted that when these subsidiary conditions are included the general results are independent of the particular representation used even though the form of the interactions depends on the choice of representation. Choosing different representations merely leads to parametrisation in terms of different couplings each with its associated form factors.

In section 2 the notation for the kenematics is established. The phase space factors involved in the calculation of the production cross sections and decay distributions for the processes shown in Fig. 1 are evaluated in section 3. In section 4 a summary is given of the field theoretic formalism used for dealing with arbitrary spin resonances and the propagators for such states are discussed. The vertex functions are determined in section 5 for the most general possible couplings of arbitrary spin and parity resonances with the appropriate incoming and exchange particles and with the appropriate decay products. In section 6 the partial widths corresponding to the decay modes (1.1), (1.2) and (1.4) for the arbitrary spin resonances are calculated in terms of the coupling constants defined in section 5. The results for the production cross sections and decay correlations of the reactions (1.6), (1.7), (1.8) and (1.9) are given in sections 7, 8, 9 and 10 respectively and each of these sections has subdivisions in which a particular spin and parity combination for the exchange meson is considered. In section 11 the analysis of all the previous sections is used to tabulate results for the production cross sections and decay correlations of resonances having specific spins and specific In section 12 the results are discussed in the context parities. of testing the peripheral model and of carrying out spin, parity and coupling constant determinations.

The Appendix A, contains a summary of the relationships involving the arbitrary spin projection operators which are used to perform the calculations of sections 6 - 10.

FIG.1

Feynman diagrams for the peripheral production of boson and fermion resonances and their subsequent decay.





(c)

(b)



(a)

KINEMATICS

For each of the two body reactions (1.6) - (1.9) the 4-momenta of the incident pseudoscalar particle and the target nucleon are denoted by q_1 and p_1 and the 4-momenta of the outgoing boson and fermion are denoted by q_2 and p_2 respectively. For the subsequent decay processes the notation is established by the equations:

$$B_{1}(q_{2}) \rightarrow P(q_{3}) + P(q_{4})$$
(2.1)

$$B_{3}(q_{2}) \longrightarrow P(q_{3}) + V_{1}(q_{4}) \qquad (2.2)$$

$$v_1(q_4) \rightarrow P(q_5) + P(q_6)$$
 (2.3)

$$F(p_2) \rightarrow N(p_3) + P(q_4)$$
(2.4)

where the 4-momentum of each particle has been inserted in brackets immediately following the symbol for that particle. This notation is exhibited in the four diagrams of Fig. 1.

It is necessary to consider several coordinate systems and the following notation⁽³⁰⁾ is used: $p_i = (\epsilon_i, \underline{p}_i)$ and $q_i = (\omega_i, \underline{q}_i)$ stand for the 4-momenta of the particles indicated by the subscripts i. When all these particles are on the mass shell the 4-momenta satisfy the invariant relations

14.

$$p_{i}^{2} = \epsilon_{i}^{2} - p_{i}^{2} = m_{i}^{2}$$
 (2.5a)

$$q_{i}^{2} = \omega_{i}^{2} - q_{i}^{2} = \mu_{i}^{2}$$
 (2.5b)

where m_{i} and μ_{i} are the masses of the appropriate fermion and boson respectively.

The components of any 4-momentum vector in a particular coordinate system are designated with upper-case subscripts. The subscripts L , B, V, W and X refer to the laboratory system $(\underline{p}_{1 \text{ L}} = 0)$, the overall barycentric system $(\underline{p}_{1\text{ B}} + \underline{q}_{1\text{ B}} = 0)$, the centre of mass system for the outgoing boson $(\underline{q}_{2\text{ V}} = 0)$, the centre of mass system for the outgoing fermion $(\underline{p}_{2\text{ W}} = 0)$ and the centre of mass system for the decay product vector meson V_1 $(\underline{q}_{4\text{ X}} = 0)$. For any frame of reference K we use the notation $p = (\underline{e}_K, \underline{p}_K)$ and $q = (\underline{e}_K, \underline{q}_K)$ and the magnitude of the 3-momenta in the frame K are given by $\underline{p}_K = |\underline{p}_K|$ and $\underline{q}_K = |\underline{q}_K|$.

For the production process the usual Mandelstam variables

are given by:

$$s = (p_1 + q_1)^2 = (p_2 + q_2)^2$$
 (2.6a)

$$t = (p_1 - p_2)^2 = (q_1 - q_2)^2$$
 (2.6b)

$$u = (p_1 - q_2)^2 = (q_1 - p_2)^2$$
 (2.6c)

In addition the following invariants are defined:

$$v = q_2^2 = (q_3 + q_4)^2$$
 (2.6d)

$$w = p_2^2 = (p_3 + p_4)^2$$
 (2.6e)

$$x = q_4^2 = (q_5 + q_6)^2$$
 (2.6f)

The total energy of the complete system in the overall barycentric system is E_B where $s = E_B^2$. Defining the 4-momentum $k = (p_1 - p_2) = (q_2 - q_1)$, the square of the 4-momentum transfer for the production process is given by $t = k^2$. The energies of the boson and fermion resonances in their own centre of mass systems are V and W respectively where $v = V^2$ and $w = W^2$.

If the resonances are on the mass shell, that is $v = \frac{\mu_2^2}{2}$ and $w = \frac{m_2^2}{2}$, it is possible to define a number of useful quantities as follows. In the two body processes (1.6) - (1.9) the magnitudes of the 3-momenta of the initial and final state particles in the frame of reference B are given by:

$$p_{B}^{2} = p_{1B}^{2} = q_{1B}^{2} = [s - (m_{1} + \mu_{1})^{2}] [s - (m_{1} - \mu_{1})^{2}] / 4 s (2.7a)$$
$$q_{B}^{2} = p_{2B}^{2} = q_{2B}^{2} = [s - (m_{2} + \mu_{2})^{2}] [s - (m_{2} - \mu_{2})^{2}] / 4 s (2.7b)$$

the corresponding energies are given by:

$$\epsilon_{1B} = (E_B^2 + m_1^2 - \mu_1^2) / 2E_B \qquad \epsilon_{2B} = (E_B^2 + m_2^2 - \mu_2^2) / 2E_B \quad (2.7c)$$

$$\omega_{1B} = (E_B^2 + \mu_1^2 - m_1^2) / 2E_B \qquad \omega_{2B} = (E_B^2 + \mu_2^2 - m_2^2) / 2E_B \quad (2.7d)$$

In the frames V and W the relevant 3-momenta are given by:

$$k_V^2 = q_{1V}^2 = [-t + (\mu_1 + \mu_2)^2] [-t + (\mu_1 - \mu_2)^2] / 4\mu_2^2$$
 (2.8a)

$$q_{V}^{2} = q_{3V}^{2} = q_{4V}^{2} = \left[\mu_{2}^{2} - (\mu_{3} + \mu_{4})^{2} \right] \left[\mu_{2}^{2} - (\mu_{3} - \mu_{4})^{2} \right] / 4\mu_{2}^{2} (2.8b)$$

$$k_W^2 = p_{1W}^2 = [-t + (m_1 + m_2)^2] [-t + (m_1 - m_2)^2] / 4m_2^2$$
 (2.9a)

$$p_W^2 = p_{3W}^2 = p_{4W}^2 = [m_2^2 - (m_3 + m_4)^2] [m_2^2 - (m_3 - m_4)^2] /4m_2^2 (2.9b)$$

In the frame B the scattering angle $\theta_{\rm B}$ is defined to be the angle between the incoming and outgoing bosons which is of course the same as the angle between the incoming and outgoing fermions. An azimuthal angle $\phi_{\rm B}$ may be formally defined but it is a feature of the quasi two body reactions that $\phi_{\rm B}$ is indeterminate since the reaction is confined to a plane, the production plane. It is to be noted that the direction of the normal to the production plane is an invariant under all Lorentz transformations between the frames of reference L, B, V and W.

In terms of $\theta_{\rm B}$

$$t = m_1^2 + m_2^2 - 2\epsilon_{1B} \epsilon_{2B} + 2p_{1B} p_{2B} \cos\theta_{B}$$
(2.10a)

$$= \mu_{1}^{2} + \mu_{2}^{2} - 2\omega_{1B}\omega_{2B} + 2q_{1B}q_{2B}\cos\theta_{B}$$
(2.10b)

The above definitions may be generalised to cover the situation in which the resonances are off the mass shell by replacing μ_2 by V and m_2 by W in all the formulae of this section. The only off mass shell quantities which arise in this paper are those involved in the calculation of phase space factors. These quantities are designated in the same way as the corresponding on-mass shell quantities but it is understood that the above replacements are made in their definitions.

3. PHASE SPACE

Quite apart from the particular mechanism which leads to the production of resonances in collisions of pseudoscalar mesons with nucleons it is necessary to discuss the variables which are appropriate to the complete description of the production process and the subsequent decays. The choice of variables is not unique but it will be shown that the variables used in the following to describe phase space are particularly suited to the peripheral model.

The differential cross-sections for the processes described by the diagrams (a), (b), (c) and (d) of Fig. 1 are given by d_{σ} (a), d_{σ} (b), d_{σ} (c) and d_{σ} (d) as follows:

$$d^{\sigma}(a) = \frac{1}{4E_{B}p_{B}} (2\pi)^{4} \delta^{4}(p_{1} + q_{1} - p_{2} - q_{3} - q_{4}) \frac{1}{[2(2\pi)^{3}]^{3}}$$

$$\mathbf{x} \quad \frac{d^{3}p_{2}}{\epsilon_{2}} \quad \frac{d^{3}q_{3}}{\omega_{3}} \quad \frac{d^{3}q_{4}}{\omega_{4}} \quad | < p_{2}q_{3}q_{4} | \mathbf{T} | p_{2}q_{1} > |^{2}_{AV} \quad (3.1)$$

$$d_{\sigma}(b) = \frac{1}{4E_{B}p_{B}} (2\pi)^{4} \delta^{4}(p_{1} + q_{1} - p_{2} - q_{3} - q_{5} - q_{6}) \frac{1}{[2(2\pi)^{3}]^{4}}$$

$$\mathbf{x} \quad \frac{d^{3}p_{2}}{\epsilon_{2}} \quad \frac{d^{3}q_{3}}{\omega_{3}} \quad \frac{d^{3}q_{5}}{\omega_{5}} \quad \frac{d^{3}q_{6}}{\omega_{6}} \mid < p_{2}q_{3}q_{5}q_{6} \mid \mathbf{T} \mid p_{1}q_{1} > \mid^{2}_{AV} \quad (3.2)$$

$$d^{\sigma}(c) = \frac{1}{4E_{B}p_{B}} (2\pi)^{4} \delta^{4}(p_{1} + q_{1} - p_{3} - p_{4} - q_{2}) \frac{1}{[2(2\pi)^{3}]^{3}}$$

÷

$$x \frac{d^{3}p_{3}}{\epsilon_{3}} \frac{d^{3}p_{4}}{\epsilon_{4}} \frac{d^{3}q_{2}}{\omega_{2}} |< p_{3}p_{4}q_{2} | T | p_{1}q_{1} >|^{2}$$
(3.3)

$$d_{\sigma}(d) = \frac{1}{4E_{B}p_{B}} (2\pi)^{4} \delta^{4}(p_{1} + q_{1} - p_{3} - p_{4} - q_{3} - q_{4}) \frac{1}{[2(2\pi)^{3}]^{4}}$$

$$x \frac{d^{3}p_{3}}{\epsilon_{3}} \frac{d^{3}p_{4}}{\epsilon_{4}} \frac{d^{3}q_{3}}{\omega_{3}} \frac{d^{3}q_{4}}{\omega_{4}} | < p_{3}p_{4}q_{3}q_{4} | T | p_{1}q_{1} > | ^{2}_{AV}$$
(3.4)

where $|< \cdots |T| p_1 q_1 > |_{AV}^2$ represents the average over initial spin states and the sum over final spin states of the product of the appropriate scattering amplitude with its hermition conjugate. The factor $4E_B p_B$ is the invariant flux of the incoming particles evaluated in the frame B. This quantity is equal to $4m_1 q_1 L$ when evaluated in the laboratory frame . The remaining factor in each expression is called the phase space factor.

In case (a) the phase space factor reduces, apart from numerical factors, to the product of two Lorentz invariant factors as follows:

$$\left(\frac{d^{3}p_{2}}{\epsilon_{2}}\right)\left[\delta^{\circ}(\epsilon_{1}+\omega_{1}-\epsilon_{2}-\omega_{3}-\omega_{4})\frac{d^{3}q_{3}}{\omega_{3}}\right]$$
(3.5)

The first factor evaluated in the frame B gives:

$$\frac{q_{\rm B}}{2E_{\rm B}} \, \mathrm{d}\mathbf{v} \, \mathrm{d}\cos^{\theta} \, \mathrm{B} \, \mathrm{d}\phi_{\rm B} \tag{3.6}$$

where θ_B is the scattering angle between \underline{p}_1 and \underline{p}_2 in the frame B and ϕ_B is an azimuthal angle which merely serves to define the production plane. The second invariant factor is evaluated in the frame V and after integration over dq_{3V} to remove the delta function yields:

$$\frac{q_V}{V} d \cos\theta _{3V} d\phi _{3V}$$
(3.7)

where θ_{3V} is the angle between \underline{q}_3 and some polar axis in the frame V and ϕ_{3V} is an azimuthal angle. It is convenient to choose the direction of the incident meson as the polar axis since this is the natural axis of quantisation to use when describing the collision of this incident meson and the virtual meson exchanged in the peripheral model. This follows from the fact that the component of angular momentum of the resonant state along this axis must be the same as the spin component of the exchanged particle in the same direction. In particular for spin zero exchange the component of

the spin of the resonant state along this polar axis is zero and in the distribution of the decay products there is rotational symmetry about this axis. This is in accordance with the Trieman-Yang⁽¹³⁾ test. The quasi two body inelastic collision process defines a production plane and the azimuthal angle ϕ_{3V} may be defined in terms of the direction of the normal to this production plane. The angle ϕ_{3V} is then the complement of the usual Trieman-Yang angle. The notation used is shown in Fig. 2a where <u>I</u>, the polar axis, and <u>N</u>, the normal to the production plane, are given by:

$$\underline{I} = \underline{q}_{1V} / k_V \tag{3.8}$$

$$\underline{\mathbf{N}} = (\underline{\mathbf{p}}_{1\mathbf{V}}, \underline{\mathbf{p}}_{2\mathbf{V}}) / |\underline{\mathbf{p}}_{1\mathbf{V}}, \underline{\mathbf{p}}_{2\mathbf{V}}|$$
(3.9)

The angular variables in (3.7) are then uniquely defined as follows:

$$\underline{I} \cdot \underline{q}_{3V} = q_V \cos\theta_{3V} \tag{3.10}$$

$$\underline{N} \cdot \underline{q}_{3V} = q_V \sin\theta_{3V} \cos\phi_{3V} \qquad (3.11)$$

With these definitions substitution of (3.6) and (3.7) in (3.1) gives:

$$d \sigma(a) = \frac{1}{(4\pi)^4} \frac{q_B}{4E^2_B p_B} \frac{q_V}{2\pi V} | \langle p_2 q_3 q_4 | T | p_1 q_1 \rangle |_{AV}^2$$

$$x dv d \cos \theta_B d\phi_B d \cos \theta_{3V} d \phi_{3V} \qquad (3.12)$$

In case (b) the phase space factor reduces as in case (a) to the product of two Lorentz invariant factors as follows:

$$\left(\frac{a^{3}p_{2}}{\epsilon^{2}}\right) \begin{bmatrix} \delta^{\circ}(\epsilon_{1}+\omega_{1}-\epsilon_{2}-\omega_{3}-\omega_{5}-\omega_{6}) & \frac{a^{3}q_{3}}{\omega\omega_{3}\omega_{5}\omega_{6}}\end{bmatrix}$$
(3.13)

The first factor evaluated in the frame \mathbf{P} , gives as before (3.6). The second invariant factor may be evaluated in the frame V and gives:

$$\delta^{\circ} (V - \omega_{3V} - \omega_{5V} - \omega_{6V}) = \frac{q^2_{3V} dq_{3V} d\Omega_{3V} q^2_{5V} dq_{5V} d\Omega_{5V}}{\omega_{3V} \omega_{5V\omega} 6V} (3.14)$$

where $d\Omega_{3V} = d \cos \theta_{3V} d\phi_{3V}$ and $d\Omega_{5V} = d \cos \theta_{5V} d\phi_{5V}$ and θ_{3V} and θ_{5V} are the angles \underline{q}_{3V} and \underline{q}_{5V} make with some polar axis in the frame V and ϕ_{3V} and ϕ_{5V} are the corresponding azimuthal angles.

All the final state particles are on the mass shell and thus $\omega_{3V} d \omega_{3V} = q_{3V} dq_{3V}$ etc. By the conservation of momentum $q_{3V} + q_{5V} + q_{6V} = q_{2V} = 0$ and hence:

$$\omega_{6V}^{2} - \mu_{6}^{2} = q_{3V}^{2} + q_{5V}^{2} + 2q_{3V}q_{5V} \cos \theta_{35V}$$
(3.15)

where θ_{35V} is the angle between \underline{q}_{3V} and \underline{q}_{5V} . This angle is completely determined by Ω_{3V} and Ω_{5V} and for fixed ω_{3V} and ω_{5V} it follows that:

$$^{\omega}6v \stackrel{d}{}^{\omega}6v = q_{3v} q_{5v} \stackrel{d}{}^{\cos\theta} 35v$$
 (3.16)

thus the invariant (3,14) can be rewritten as:

$$d^{\omega}_{3V} d^{\omega}_{5V} d^{\omega}_{6V} \delta^{\circ}(V - \omega_{3V} - \omega_{5V} - \omega_{6V}) d^{\alpha} \Omega_{3V} d^{\alpha}_{5V} / d^{\alpha}_{5V} d^{\alpha}_{5V}$$

Integration over ω_{6V} then removes the delta function and yields:

$$d_{3V} d_{45V} \left[d \cos\theta_{3V} d_{5V} d \cos\theta_{5V} d_{5V} \right] (3.17)$$

It is advantageous to exhibit directly the two stage nature of the decay process by using the variables x, $\cos\theta_{3V}$ and ϕ_{3V} where as before the angular variables are defined with respect to the axes <u>I</u> and <u>N</u> by equations (3.8) - (3.11). The variable $x = q_4^2$ is related to ω_{3V} by the expression

$$x = v + \mu_{3}^{2} - 2v \omega_{3v}$$
(3.18)

and therefore:

$$d \omega_{3V} = -dx / (2V)$$
 (3.19)

To remove the denominator from (3.17) it is necessary to transform the differential variable $d\Omega_{5V}$ into the product of d cos θ_{35V} and some other differential variable dependent on the direction of \underline{q}_{5V} in the frame V. The choice of this phase space variable must be such that the Jacobian of the transformation is not a complicated function of the variables x, $\cos \phi_{3V}$ and ϕ_{3V} . This ensures that the behaviour of the scattering amplitude as a function of these variables may be readily determined from experimental data. It should be noted that, in the same way, although the variable ω_{5V} is related to the angle ϕ_{35V} the transformation from one to the other introduces unnecessary complications. Moreover it is shown in section 8 that it is the variable ω_{5V} which appears in the scattering amplitude so that it is convenient to treat this as an independent phase space variable.

In the frame V the resonant state B₃ decays into three particles all moving in the same plane. The normal to this decay plane can be defined by:

$$\underline{M} = (\underline{q}_{3V} \times \underline{q}_{5V}) / |\underline{q}_{3V} \times \underline{q}_{5V}|$$
(3.20)

and the angle between I and M is denoted by β_V and the corresponding azimuthal angle measures with respect to N by β_V . Thus:

$$\underline{I} \cdot \underline{M} = \cos \beta_{\mathrm{V}} \tag{3.21}$$

$$\underline{\mathbf{N}} \cdot \underline{\mathbf{M}} = \sin \beta_{\mathbf{V}} \cos \phi_{\mathbf{\beta} \mathbf{V}}$$
(3.22)

With this notation it is easily shown that:

$$d\Omega_{5V} = d \cos \Theta_{5V} d \cos \Theta_{35V} / \sin \Theta_{35V} \cos \beta_{V}$$
(3.23)

where $(\sin\Theta_{35V} \cos\beta_V)^2 = 1 - \cos^2\Theta_{3V} - \cos^2\Theta_{5V} - \cos^2\Theta_{35V} +$

$$2\cos \varepsilon_{3V}\cos \varepsilon_{5V}\cos \varepsilon_{35V} \qquad (3.24)$$

the complicated dependence of the denominator on \cos_{3V} and \cos_{5V} clearly precludes the choice of d $\cos \Theta_{5V}$ as a differential variable. Calculation of the transformation from the variable $\cos \Theta_{5V}$ to the variable $\cos \beta_{V}$ then yields the result:

$$d\Omega_{5V} = d \cos\beta_V d \cos\beta_{5V} / (\sin^2\beta_{3V} - \cos^2\beta_V)^{\frac{1}{2}}$$
(3.25)

Once again there is a complicated dependence of the denominator on $\cos \Theta_{3V}$. However it is clear from (3.25) that

$$d\Omega_{5V} = d \psi_{3V} d \cos \Theta_{35V}$$
(3.26)

where the angle $\frac{\psi}{3V}$ is defined by:

$$\cos \theta_{\rm V} = -\sin \theta_{\rm 3V} \cos \psi_{\rm 3V} \qquad (3.27a)$$

The equation (3.27a) does not furnish a unique definition of ψ_{3V} but it may be defined by noting that successive rotations through the Euler angles $(31) + \phi_{3V}$, $-\epsilon_{3V}$ and $+ \psi_{3V}$ align two of the initial set of axes I and N with the directions of \underline{q}_{3V} and M respectively as shown in Fig. 2b. It can then be shown using (3.21) and (3.22) that:

$$\sin\beta_{V}\cos\phi_{3V} = \cos\psi_{3V}\cos\Theta_{3V}\cos\phi_{3V} - \sin\psi_{3V}\sin\phi_{3V} \quad (3.27b)$$
$$\sin\beta_{V}\sin\phi_{\beta V} = \cos\psi_{3V}\cos\Theta_{3V}\sin\phi_{3V} + \sin\psi_{3V}\cos\phi_{3V} \quad (3.27c)$$

.

It may also be shown from the definitions of this section that:

$$\cos \Theta_{5V} = \cos \Theta_{35V} \cos \Theta_{3V} + \sin \Theta_{35V} \sin \Theta_{3V} \sin \frac{1}{3V} \qquad (3.28a)$$
$$\sin \Theta_{5V} \cos \phi_{5V} = \cos \Theta_{35V} \sin \Theta_{3V} \cos \phi_{3V} + \sin \Theta_{35V} \ast$$

$$\times (\cos \psi_{3V} \sin \phi_{3V} - \sin \psi_{3V} \cos \Theta_{3V} \cos \phi_{3V}) \qquad (3.28b)$$

$$\sin \Theta_{5V} \sin \phi_{5V} = \cos \Theta_{35V} \sin \Theta_{3V} \sin \phi_{3V} + \sin \Theta_{35V} \times (\cos \phi_{3V} \cos \phi_{3V} - \sin \phi_{3V} \cos \Theta_{3V} \sin \phi_{3V})$$
(3.28c)

Thus using (3.6), (3.17) and (3.26) it follows that (3.2) gives the result⁽³²⁾:

$$d\sigma(b) = \frac{1}{(4\pi)^6} \frac{q_B}{4E_B^2 p_B} \frac{1}{4\pi^2 v} |\langle p_2 q_3 q_5 q_6 | T | p_1 q_1 \rangle|^2_{AV}$$

x dv dx duy d
$$\cos \Theta_{\rm B}$$
 d $\phi_{\rm B}$ d $\cos \Theta_{\rm 3V}$ d $\phi_{\rm 3V}$ d $\psi_{\rm 3V}$ (3.29)

Case (c) is exactly analogous to case (d). In the frame W the natural axis of quantisation to use when describing the

collision of the target nucleon and the virtual meson exchanged in the peripheral model is the direction of the target nucleon. Once again the normal to the production plane is used to define the azimuthal angle. The notation used is shown in Fig. 2c. Where \underline{I} , the polar axis, and \underline{N} , the normal to the production plane, are given by:

$$\underline{\mathbf{I}} = \underline{\mathbf{p}}_{\mathsf{TW}} / \mathbf{k}_{\mathsf{W}}$$
(3.30)

$$\underline{N} = (\underline{a}_{1W} \wedge \underline{a}_{2W}) / |\underline{a}_{1W} \wedge \underline{a}_{2W}|$$
(3.31)

The angular variables used are then defined by:

$$\underline{I} \cdot \underline{p}_{4W} = p_W \cos \Theta_{4W}$$
(3.32)

$$\underline{N} \cdot \underline{p}_{4W} = p_W \sin \Theta_{4W} \cos \phi_{4W}$$
(3.33)

With the above definitions it follows as before that (3.3) gives:

$$d\sigma(c) = \frac{1}{(4\pi)^4} \frac{q_B}{4E^2_B p_B} \frac{p_W}{2\pi W} \left[\langle p_3 p_4 q_2 | T | p_1 q_1 \rangle \right]_{AV}^2$$

$$dw \ d \ \cos \Theta_B \ d\phi_B \ d \ \cos \Theta_{4W} \ d\phi_{4W} \qquad (3.34)$$

In case (d) the phase space factor can once again be written as the product of two Lorentz invariant factors:

$$\begin{bmatrix} \frac{d^{3}p_{3}}{\epsilon_{3}} & \frac{d^{3}p_{4}}{\epsilon_{4}} \end{bmatrix} \begin{bmatrix} \delta^{\circ}(\epsilon_{1} + \omega_{1} - \epsilon_{3} - \epsilon_{4} - \omega_{3} - \omega_{4}) & \frac{d^{3}q_{3}}{\omega_{3} - \omega_{4}} \end{bmatrix}$$
(3.35)

The first factor may be transformed into

$$\frac{d^3 p_2}{\epsilon_2} = \frac{d^3 p_4}{\epsilon_4} = \frac{\epsilon_2}{\epsilon_3}$$
(3.36)

and evaluating in the frame B the invariant d^3p_2 / ϵ_2 gives the factor (3.6) whilst it may be shown that the remaining terms in (3.36), when transformed to the frame W give ⁽⁴⁾:

$$\frac{\mathbf{p}}{2W} \quad d\mathbf{w} \quad d\cos\Theta_4 \quad d\phi_4 \cdot \mathbf{y} \tag{3.37}$$

where Θ_{4W} and ϕ_{4W} are defined by equations (3.30) - (3.33). The second factor in (3.35) is evaluated in the frame V and after integration over dq_{3V} to remove the delta function yields the expression (3.7).

Thus substituting (3.6), (3.7) and (3.37) into (3.4) gives (33):

$$d \sigma (d) = \frac{1}{(4\pi)^6} \frac{q_B}{4E_B^2 p_B} \frac{q_V}{2\pi V} \frac{p_W}{2\pi W} \left| \langle p_3 p_4 q_3 q_4 | T | p_1 q_1 \rangle \right|^2_{AV}$$

 $dv dw d \cos \Phi_B d\phi_B d \cos \Theta_{3V} d\phi_{3V} d \cos \Theta_{4W} d\phi_{4W}$ (3.38)

FIG.2

Decay angular distribution variables.



(a)

1.



The axes \underline{I} and \underline{N} are aligned with the directions of \underline{P}_{3V} and \underline{M} by successive rotations through the angles ϕ_{3V} , $-\Theta_{3V}$ and ψ_{3V} about the axes \underline{I} , \underline{Q} and \widehat{q}_{3V} respectively.



4. FIELD THEORETIC FORMALISM AND THE PROPAGATORS FOR ARBITRARY SPIN PARTICLES

Using the usual tensor representation (34,35) a free boson field of spin j, mass μ and 4-momentum q may be described in momentum space by means of a wave function $\begin{pmatrix} \chi \\ \chi \end{pmatrix}_{2...\lambda_n}$ where $\lambda \not \lambda_{2...\lambda_n}$

j = n. This wave function satisfies the wave equation:

$$(q^2 - \mu^2) \chi (q) = 0$$
 (4.1)
 $\lambda 1^{\lambda_2} \dots \lambda_n$

and the subsidiary conditions:

for i, j = 1, 2, ... n and

$$g_{\lambda} \chi_{2}^{\chi} \chi_{12}^{\chi} \chi_{1$$

$$\sum_{\lambda} \chi_{\lambda} (q) = 0$$
 (4.4)

Consider the operator
$$\phi$$
 (q,n) which is $\lambda_1 \lambda_2 \dots \lambda_n \beta_1 \beta_2 \dots \beta_n$

symmetric and traceless with respect to any pair of the indices λ λ λ λ so that: 1, 2,... n

$$\phi_{\lambda} (q,n) = \phi (q,n)$$

$$1 \dots \lambda^{\lambda} j \dots \lambda^{n} p p^{2} \dots p^{n}$$

$$= \phi (q,n)$$

$$\lambda^{1} \dots \lambda^{n} p 1 p^{2} \dots p^{n}$$

$$(4.5)$$

for $i, j = 1, 2, \ldots n$ and

$$G_{1_{2}} = 0 \qquad (4.6)$$

and which satisfies

$$q_{\lambda_{1}} = 0 \qquad (4.7)$$

and

Such an operator is clearly a projection operator for the spin n component of any field with n tensor indices. For a pure spin state wave function it can be shown that:

$$\sum_{\substack{\lambda \in Q \\ \lambda \in Q}} \chi_{(q)} \chi_{\rho}^{+}(q) = (-1)^{n} \frac{\phi_{(q,n)}}{\lambda + 2 \cdots + n} \chi_{\rho}^{-1} \chi_{\rho}^{$$

where denotes a hermitian conjugate and the summation has been carried out over all polarisation states. Furthermore $\phi(q,n)$ is uniquely defined by the conditions (4.5) - (4.8). In particular for n = 1 it is easy to show that the spin one projection operator is given by:

In terms of this operator it can be shown that:

$$\phi(q,n)$$

$$\lambda_{1}\lambda_{2}\dots\lambda_{n}p_{1}p_{2}\dotsp_{n}$$

$$= \frac{1}{(n!)^{2}} \sum_{r=0}^{n'} \left\{ a_{r}^{n} \frac{r=1}{\prod} \phi(q) \prod_{k=1}^{r-1} \phi(q) \prod_{k=1}^{n} \phi(q) \right\}$$

$$F(\lambda) \left[\sum_{r=0}^{n'} \left\{ a_{r}^{n} \prod_{k=1}^{r-1} \phi(q) \prod_{k=1}^{n-1} \phi(q) \prod_{k=1}^{n} \phi(q) \right\} \right]$$

$$F(\lambda) \left[\sum_{r=0}^{n} \left\{ a_{r}^{n} \prod_{k=1}^{r-1} \phi(q) \prod_{k=1}^{n-1} \phi(q) \prod_{k=1}^{n} \phi(q) \prod_{k=1}$$

where

$$a_{r}^{n} = (-1)^{r} \frac{n!}{r!(n-r)!} \frac{(2n-2r)!}{(n-2r)! n!} \frac{n! n!}{(2n)!}$$
(4.12)

and n' = n/2 for n even and n' = (n-1)/2 for n odd and where the first summation is carried out over all permutations of both sets of indices $\lambda_1, \lambda_2, \dots, \lambda_n$ and $\rho_1, \rho_2, \dots, \rho_n$ fermion field of spin J, mass m and 4-momentum p may be described in momentum space by means of a wave function u (p) where $\lambda_1 \lambda_2 \dots \lambda_n$

 $J = n + \frac{1}{2}$ and to each tensor index λ_i corresponds a Dirac 4component spinor. The wave function satisfies the generalised Dirac wave equation:

$$(p - m) \quad u_{1}(p) = 0 \qquad (4.14)$$

and the subsidiary conditions:

$$u(p) = u(p) \qquad (4.15)$$

$$\lambda_{1...} \lambda_{j...} \lambda_{n} \qquad (4.15)$$

for $i, j = 1, 2 \dots n$ and

$${}^{g_{\lambda_{1}}}_{\lambda_{2}} {}^{u_{\lambda_{1}}}_{12} {}^{\lambda_{2}}_{12} {}^{\lambda_{n}}_{n} = 0$$
 (4.16)

$$p \quad u(p) = 0 \quad (4.17)$$

$$\lambda_1 \quad \lambda_1 \lambda_2 \dots \lambda_n$$

$$Y_{\lambda} \quad u(p) = 0 \quad (4.18)$$

$$1 \quad \lambda_1 \lambda_2 \dots \lambda_n$$

Consider the operator $\begin{array}{c} \theta & (p,n) \\ \lambda_1 \lambda_2 \ldots \lambda_n \rho \, 1 \rho \, 2 \ldots \rho_n \end{array}$ which is

symmetric and traceless with respect to any pair of the indices
for
$$i, j = 1, 2 \dots n$$
 and

and which satisfies

$${}^{p}\lambda_{1} \stackrel{\theta}{}^{\lambda_{1}} \lambda_{1} \stackrel{\lambda_{2}}{}^{\lambda_{2}} \dots \stackrel{\lambda_{n}}{}^{\rho_{1}} \stackrel{\rho_{2}}{}^{\rho_{2}} \dots \stackrel{\rho_{n}}{}^{\rho_{n}} \qquad (4.21)$$

$$Y_{\lambda_1} \stackrel{\theta_{\lambda_1}(\mathbf{p},\mathbf{n})}{\lambda_1 \lambda_2 \dots \lambda_n} \stackrel{=}{\overset{}}{\overset{}} 0 \qquad (4.22)$$

and

$$\begin{array}{l} \theta(\mathbf{p},\mathbf{n}) & \theta(\mathbf{p},\mathbf{n}) \\ \lambda_1 \lambda_2 \dots \lambda_n \rho_1 \rho_2 \dots \rho_n & \rho_1 \rho_2 \dots \rho_n \sigma \\ \end{array} \\ = & \theta_{\lambda} \begin{pmatrix} (\mathbf{p},\mathbf{n}) \\ 1^{\lambda_2} \dots \lambda_n \sigma_1 \sigma_2 \dots \sigma_n \end{pmatrix}$$
(4.23)

Such an operator is clearly a projection operator for the spin J (J = $n + \frac{1}{2}$) component of any spinor-tensor field with n tensor indices to each of which corresponds a 4-spinor. For a pure spin state wave function it can be shown that:

36.

where $\overline{u}(p) = u^{+}(p)_{\gamma_{0}}$ and the summation is carried out over all polarisation states.

Once again Θ (p,n) is uniquely defined by the conditions (4.19) - (4.23) and this operator can be expressed in terms of the integral spin projection operator ϕ (p,n + 1) as follows:

$$\theta (p,n) = \frac{(2J+1)}{4(J+1)} \gamma_{\lambda} \gamma_{\rho} \phi_{\lambda} (p,n+1)$$
(4.25)
$$\lambda \gamma^{\lambda} 2... \lambda n^{\rho} 1 \mathcal{R} ... \rho_{n}$$

where $J = n + \frac{1}{2}$.

Strictly speaking all the above considerations apply only to free, stable particles. However with the assumption that the resonances produced peripherally decay freely it is appropriate in the description of these resonant states to use the above projection operators $\oint (q,n)$ and $\theta (p,n)$ in conjunction with the usual Breit-Wigner modification to the stable particle propagators. Thus for the spin j boson resonances B_1 and B_3 of mass μ_2 , width Γ_V and 4-momentum q_2 the corresponding propagators are given by:

$$(-1)^{n} \phi (q_{2},n) / [(v - u_{2}^{2}) + i u_{2}^{r}]$$

$$(4.26)$$

$$\lambda_{1} \lambda_{2} \dots n^{n} 1^{p_{2}} \dots n^{n}$$

where j = n.

The special case of j = 1 then yields for the spin one resonance V_1 of mass μ_4 , width Γ_x and 4-momentum q_4 a propagator given by:

$$(-1) \left[g_{\sigma\tau} - q_{4\sigma} q_{4\tau} / q_{4}^{2}\right] / \left[(x - \mu_{4}^{2}) + i\mu_{4} r_{x}\right]$$
(4.27)

For the spin J fermion resonance F of mass m_2 , width $\begin{bmatrix} \Gamma \\ W \end{bmatrix}$ and 4-momentum p_2 the propagator is given by:

$$(-1)^{n} \theta (p,n) \qquad (\not p+m_2) / [(w-m_2^2) + im_2^T] \qquad (4.28)$$

$$\lambda_1 \lambda_2 \dots \lambda_n \rho_1 \rho_2 \dots \rho_n$$

where $J = n + \frac{1}{2}$.

In contrast to this the exchanged particles E(k) in the diagrams of Fig. 1 are not on the mass shell and even if these particles are unstable it is a good approximation to use the unmodified propagators appropriate to the description of stable particles. The propagators for a spin zero particle and a spin one particle both of mass μ and with 4-momentum k are given by:

$$1/(k^2 - \mu^2)$$
 (4.29)

38.

 and

$$(-1) \left[g_{\alpha\beta} - k_{\alpha} k_{\beta} / \mu^{2} \right] / (k^{2} - \mu^{2})$$
(4.30)

respectively. By rewriting the latter propagator as:

$$(-1) \left[\begin{array}{c} g \\ \alpha\beta \end{array} \right]^{-k} \left[\begin{array}{c} k \\ \alpha \end{array} \right]^{-k} \left[\begin{array}[\begin{array}{c} k \\ \alpha \end{array} \right]^{-k} \left[\begin{array}[\\[\\ \alpha \end{array} \right]^{-k} \left[\begin{array}[\\ \\ \alpha \end{array} \right]^{-k} \left[\begin{array}[\\ \alpha \end{array} \right]^{-k} \left[\begin{array}[\\ \\ \alpha \end{array} \right]^{-k} \left[\begin{array}[\\ \\ \end{array}]^{-k} \left[\begin{array}[\\ \alpha \end{array} \right]^{-k} \left[\begin{array}[\\ \\ \alpha \end{array} \right]^{-k} \left[\begin{array}[\\ \alpha \end{array} \right]^{-k} \left[\begin{array}[\\ \\ \alpha \end{array} \right]^{-k} \left[\begin{array}[\\ \\ \end{array}]^{-k} \left[\begin{array}[\\ \alpha \end{array} \right]^{-k} \left[\begin{array}[\\ \\ \end{array}]^{-k} \left[\begin{array}[\\ \alpha \end{array} \right]^{-k} \left[\begin{array}[\\ \\ \end{array}]^{-k} \left[\begin{array}[\\ \\ \end{array}]^{-k} \left[\begin{array}[$$

it can be seen that the off-mass shell spin one particle corresponds to a mixed state of spin zero and spin one since the first term contains the spin one projection operator and the second term the spin zero projection operator appropriate to a tensor field with just one index. It should be noted however that only the spin one term has a pole at $k^2 = \mu^2$. It is this fact, when generalised to higher spin, which permits the above description of the resonant states to be used.

It is convenient at this stage to simplify the notation by writing

and

$$\begin{array}{l} \theta (\mathbf{p}, \mathbf{n}) &= & \theta (\mathbf{p}, \mathbf{n}) \\ \lambda_1 \lambda_2 \dots \lambda_n \rho_1 \rho_2 \dots \rho_n & & \lambda \rho \end{array}$$
 (4.33)

where λ and ρ stand for the two sets of indices $\lambda_1 \lambda_2 \dots \lambda_n$ and $\beta_1 \beta_2 \dots \beta_n$ respectively.

5. VERTEX FUNCTIONS INVOLVING PARTICLES OF ARBITRARY SPIN AND PARITY.

To evaluate the peripheral diagrams of Fig. 1 it is necessary to consider the possible couplings of various combinations of three particles any one of which may have arbitrary spin and parity. As baryon number is conserved there are only two types of three particle coupling namely the coupling of three bosons (boson coupling) and the coupling of two fermions with one boson (fermion coupling). Since only strong interactions are considered, the vertex functions and the associated particle wave functions must together form a scalar which is invariant under Lorentz transformations and the parity transformation.

In the coupling of three bosons, as shown in Fig. 3, with 4-momenta p, q and r such that $p^2 = x$, $q^2 = y$ and $r^2 = z$ the most general Lorentz invariant is an arbitrary function of x, y and z only since energy and momentum are conserved at the vertex. If any one of the particles is on the mass shell say $p^2 = \text{constant}$, then the vertex function is a function of two invariants y and z. If any two of the particles are on the mass shell say $p^2 = \text{constant}$ and $q^2 = \text{constant}$ then the vertex function is a function of a single invariant z.

40.

Similar results hold in the case of fermion coupling except that there may be an additional dependence of the vertex functions on any two of the three linearly dependent Lorentz invariant p', q and p'. It is convenient to choose p' and q' if p and q are the 4-momenta of the two fermions. Since p' p' = x and q' q = y the vertex function is at most linear in each of the matrix quantities p' and q'. If any one of the fermions is on the mass shell say $p^2 = \text{constant}$ then by virtue of equation (4.4) p' = constant and the vertex function is a function only of the three invariants y, z and q'. If both fermions are on the mass shell then the vertex function is a function of a single invariant z.

The tensor quantities with which the vertex functions are constructed consist of the metric tensor $g_{\mu\nu}$, the completely antisymmetric pseudotensor $\epsilon_{\mu\nu}$, and any two independent 4momentum tensors which are linear combinations of p_{μ} , q_{μ} and r_{μ} . In the case of fermion couplings the matrices χ_{μ} may also be used.

In general a tensor with nindiceshas parity $(-1)^n$. Thus for a particle whose wave function has n tensor indices it is convenient to say that the intrinsic parity of the particle is normal if it has parity $(-1)^n$ and abnormal if it has parity $(-1)^{n+1}$. If all three particles coupled together have normal parity or if one has normal parity and the other two have abnormal parity then it can be said that the coupling has normal parity since no pseudotensors need to be included in the construction of a scalar vertex function. On the other hand if all three particles have abnormal parity or if one has abnormal parity and the other two have normal parity then the coupling is said to have abnormal parity since a pseudotensor must in this case be included if the interaction is to be invariant under parity transformations. It should be noted that the most general pseudotensor is linear in $\epsilon_{\mu\nu\lambda\rho}$ since the product of two antisymmetric pseudotensors can be written as a sum of products of the metric tensor $g_{\mu\nu}$ by means of the identity

$$\begin{aligned} \varepsilon_{\mu\nu\nu} \varepsilon_{\mu\nu'} \varepsilon_{\mu\nu'} \varepsilon_{\mu\nu'} \varepsilon_{\mu\nu'} \varepsilon_{\mu'\nu'} \varepsilon_{$$

In the case of abnormal parity boson coupling no spinors are involved in the **in**teraction and the indices of the pseudotensor must be contracted with either 4-momentum indices or wave function indices. However in the case of abnormal parity ferrion coupling spinors are involved and the indices of the pseudotensor may be contracted with χ - matrix, 4-momentum or wave function indices. A particularly useful pseudotensor quantity is the invariant matrix χ_5 which may be written as:

$$85 = \frac{1}{4!} \epsilon_{\mu\nu\lambda\rho} \delta_{\mu} \delta_{\nu} \delta_{\lambda} \delta_{\rho} \qquad (5.2)$$

All abnormal fermion couplings may be obtained from the most general normal fermion couplings by the inclusion of a factor χ_5 . This factor is, for convenience, always inserted next to the spinor wave function of the spin half particle involved in the coupling which is on the mass shell.

To evaluate the diagrams of Fig. 1 for spin zero and spin one exchange it is necessary to consider the vertices shown in the diagrams (a), (b), (c) and (d) of Fig. 4. The subsidiary conditions (4.2) - (4.4) and (4.15) - (4.18) greatly restrict the allowed couplings involving arbitrary but pure spin states even if these states are not on the mass shell. The most general possible couplings are given in Table 1 for both normal and abnormal parity couplings. The notation used is such that the quantities g, g_1 , g_2 , g_3 , g_0 , f, f_1 , f_2 , f_3 , f_4 and f_5 are dimensionless coupling constants and the quantities G, G_1 , G_2 , G_3 , G_0 , F, F_1 , F_2 , F_3 , F_4 and F_5 are the corresponding form factors which all reduce to unity when all three coupled states are on the shell, that is when $\mathbf{v} = \mathbf{p}_2^2$, $\mathbf{w} = \mathbf{m}_2^2$, $\mathbf{p}_2 = \mathbf{m}_2$ and $\mathbf{t} = \mathbf{p}^2$. where \mathbf{p} is the mass of the exchanged particle. A mass characteristic of the three interacting particles should be chosen for the arbitrary quantities \mathbf{m}_x where x is the appropriate coupling constant.

By making full use of the relationships (5.1) and (5.2) and of the useful identity

it is easy to show that the most general normal fermion coupling can be expressed in a form which contans no pseudotensors. Thus the terms of the fermion couplings involving f_5 are really superfluous since they can be written as a sum of terms involving only f_1 , f_2 , f_3 and f_4 . However the particular form of the couplings involving f_5 is of particular physical significance, as will be shown in later sections, so it is included here in Table 1.

It should be noted that the couplings involving g_3 and f_4 contain a factor k, and this factor removes the pole term in the exchange diagrams of Fig. 1 because of the form of the propagator for a spin one particle as given in equation (4.31).

Using the couplings defined in Table 1 it is possible to write down all the vertex functions appearing in the diagrams of Fig. 1. In general all particles in these diagrams may be different and in this paper the notation used is such that the coupling constants e, f, g h and i, with subscripts where appropriate, are associated with the vertices at which the three coupled particles have 4-momenta given by: (p_2, p_3, p_4) , (p_1, p_2, k) , (q_1, q_2, k) , (q_2, q_3, q_4) and (q_4, q_5, q_6) respectively.

At the two vertices involving the fermion resonance F the alternative parity cases may be considered simultaneously by inserting the factors \mathbf{X}_{e} and \mathbf{X}_{f} at the vertices with associated coupling constants e and f respectively. These quantities are both defined to be the unit matrix I in the case of normal parity coupling and to be the matrix \mathbf{X}_{5} in the case of abnormal parity coupling.

With the assumption that the resonances produced peripherally have propagators containing a Breit-Wigner resonance term it is shown in the sections which follow that the only arbitrary functional dependence of the form factors appearing in the final expression for the various differential cross sections is a dependence upon t, the square of the 4-momentum transfer. It is thus convenient to introduce the notation:

$$\overline{\overline{x}} = \frac{x X(t)}{\binom{n}{x}}$$
(5.4)

where $n_x = (j-1)$, (j-2), j, j, j, $(J-\frac{1}{2})$, (J-3/2), $(J-\frac{1}{2})$, $(J+\frac{1}{2})$, $(J+\frac{1}{2})$ and $(J+\frac{1}{2})$ for x = g, g_1 , g_2 , g_3 , g_0 , f, f₁, f₂, f₃, f₄ and f_5 respectively and where j is the spin of the boson resonance and J is the spin of the fermion resonance.

It is also convenient to introduce a great simplification in the notation for the tensor factors constructed from the 4momentum k, in the vertex functions of Table 1 by writing:

This notation is readily generalised so that any product of identical 4-momentum tensors with consecutive indices may be written in a shortened manner.

46.



FIG.4

Vertex diagrams involving the coupling of one arbitrary spin particle.



47.

TABLE 1

The general form of the vertex functions for the diagrams (a),(b),(c) and (d) of Fig 4.

48.

(4a) Coupling of particles of spin (0,0,j) where j= n Normal parity couplings.:

 $g \frac{G(t,v)}{(m_{\alpha})^{\alpha-1}} k_{\lambda_1} k_{\lambda_2} \cdots k_{\lambda_n}$

Abnormal parity coupling:

COUPLING FORBIDDEN

(4b) Coupling of particles of spin (0,1,j) where j=n Normal parity coupling:

 $\left[\frac{g_{1}G_{1}(t,v)}{(m_{g_{1}})^{n-2}}g_{\mu\lambda_{1}}+\frac{g_{2}G_{2}(t,v)}{(m_{g_{2}})^{n}}g_{2\mu}k_{\lambda_{1}}+\frac{g_{3}G_{3}(t,v)}{(m_{g_{2}})^{n}}k_{\mu}k_{\lambda_{1}}\right]^{n}$

 $k_{\lambda_2} k_{\lambda_2} \cdots k_{\lambda_n}$

Abnormal parity coupling:

 $\frac{g_0 \sigma_0(c,v)}{(m_q)^n} \in \mu \alpha \beta \lambda_1 \quad k \alpha q_{2\beta} \quad k \lambda_2 \quad k \lambda_3 \cdots k \lambda_n$

(4c) Coupling of particles of spin (0, $\frac{1}{2}$,J) where $J = n + \frac{1}{2}$

 $\frac{\beta F(t,w,F_{2})}{(m_{p})^{n}} \delta_{\beta} k_{\lambda_{1}} k_{\lambda_{2}} \cdots k_{\lambda_{n}}$

Normal parity coupling: $\delta_{\xi} = I$ Abnormal parity coupling: $\delta_{\xi} = \delta_{s}$

(4d) Coupling of particles of spin $(1,\frac{1}{2},J)$ where $J=n+\frac{1}{2}$

 $\frac{\int_{0}^{1} F_{1}(t,w,F_{2})}{(m_{\ell_{1}})^{n-1}} g_{\mu}\lambda_{1} + \frac{\int_{2}^{1} F_{2}(t,w,F_{2})}{(m_{\ell_{1}})^{n}} g_{\mu}k_{\lambda_{1}} + \frac{\int_{3}^{1} F_{3}(t,w,F_{2})}{(m_{\ell_{1}})^{n+1}} h_{2\mu}k_{\lambda_{1}} + \frac{\int_{3}^{1} F_{3}(t,w,F_{2})}{(m_{\ell_{1}})^$ $\frac{\int_{4}^{k} F_{4}(t,w,F_{2})}{(m_{2})^{n+1}} k_{\mu}k_{\lambda} + \frac{\int_{5}^{k} F_{5}(t,w,F_{2})}{(m_{2})^{n+1}} \in \mu\alpha\beta\lambda_{1}^{k}k_{\alpha}F_{2}\beta\delta_{5} \times$

× kx kx ··· kx

Normal parity coupling: $\chi_{\beta} = I$ Abnormal parity coupling: $\chi_{\xi} = \chi_{\epsilon}$

THE DECAY PARTIAL WIDTHS OF ARBITRARY SPIN AND PARITY RESONANCES.

The differential cross sections for the processes described by the diagrams of Fig. 1 are all proportional to the decay probability of the arbitrary spin and parity resonances. This is explicitly shown in the sections which follow and it is useful to determine these decay probalities as functions of the coupling constants defined in section 5. The decay processes (2.1) - (2.4) are each considered in turn.

(i) From the discussion of section 5 and the results expressed in Table I it is clear that a boson resonance which decays into two pseudoscalar particles must necessarily have normal parity. The partial width corresponding to the decay of such a boson resonance $B_1(q_2)$ into two pseudoscalar particles P (q_3) and P (q_4) when all these particles are on the mass shell is denoted by Γ_V $(2 \rightarrow 3, 4)$ and is given by:

$$d \Gamma_{V} (2 \rightarrow 3, 4) = \frac{1}{2\mu_{2}} (2\pi)^{4} \delta^{4} (q_{2} - q_{3} - q_{4}) \frac{1}{[2(2\pi)^{3}]^{2}}$$

$$x \frac{d^{3}q_{3}}{\omega_{3}} \frac{d^{3}q_{4}}{\omega_{4}} | \langle q_{3} q_{4} | T | q_{2} \rangle \Big|_{AV}^{2} (6.1)$$

The invariant phase space factor reduces, after

integration over d^3q_{4} and dq_{3V} to remove the delta function, to:

$$\frac{d_V}{\mu_2} d \cos \Theta_{3V} d \phi_{3V}$$
(6.2)

and the decay amplitude for the spin j resonance in the notation of sections 4 and 5 is given by:

$$\langle q_3 q_4 | T | q_2 \rangle = \frac{h}{(m_h)^{n-1}} (q_4 \lambda)^n \chi (q_2)$$
 (6.3)

where j = n. Thus from equation (4.9) it follows that:

$$| < q_{3}q_{4} | 1 | q_{2} \rangle |_{AV}^{2} = \frac{1}{(2j+1)} \frac{h^{2}}{(m_{h})^{2n-2}} (-1)^{n} (q_{4})^{n}$$

$$(6.4)$$

Using the result (A.14) of the appendix and integrating over the redundant variables $\cos \Theta_{3V}$ and σ_{3V} the partial width can be written as:

$$\Gamma_{V}(2 \rightarrow 3, 4) = \frac{h^{2}}{4\pi} \frac{q_{V}^{2j+1}}{q_{V}^{2}(m_{h})^{2j-2}} \left[\frac{2^{j} j! j!}{(2j)!} \right] \frac{1}{(2j+1)}$$
(6.5)

(ii) A boson resonance which decays into a vector particle and a pseudoscalar particle may have either normal or abnormal parity. In both cases the partial width corresponding to the decay of the boson resonance $B_3(q_2)$ into a pseudoscalar particle P (q_3) and a vector particle $V_1(q_4)$ when all these particles are on the mass shell is again denoted by $\Gamma_V(2 \rightarrow 3, 4)$ and is given by (6.1). The phase space factor is again given by (6.2) but the decay amplitude for the spin j resonance now depends upon the parity of the resonance. The alternatives (a) normal parity and (b) abnormal parity are considered as follows:

(a) The decay amplitude for the spin j, parity $(-1)^{j}$ resonance is given by:

$$\langle q_{3} q_{4} | T | q_{2} \rangle = \frac{n_{0}}{(m_{h_{0}})^{n}} (q_{4} \lambda)^{n-1} \epsilon \lambda_{1} \mu \nu \sigma^{q_{4}} q_{3} \nu$$

$$\chi^{+}_{\sigma} (q_{4}) \chi_{1} (q_{2}) \qquad (6.6)$$

where j = n. Thus from equations (4.9) and (4.10) it follows that:

$$|\langle q_{3}q_{4}|T|q_{2}\rangle|_{AV}^{2} = \frac{1}{(2j+1)} \frac{h_{0}^{2}}{(m_{h_{0}})^{2n}}$$

$$\left[g_{\tau} - \frac{q_{4}}{p_{4}^{2}}\right]^{(-1)^{n+1}} (q_{4})^{n-1} \rho_{\lambda}^{(q_{2},n)} (q_{4})^{n-1} (6.7)$$

Using the result (A.15) and integrating over the redundant variables $\cos \Theta_{3V}$, the partial width can be written as:

$$\mathbf{\hat{f}}_{v}(2\rightarrow3,4) = \frac{h^{2}_{o}}{4\pi} \quad \frac{q_{v}^{2j+1}}{(m_{h_{o}})^{2}j} \quad \frac{2^{j}j!j!}{(2j)!} \quad \frac{(j+1)}{2j(2j+1)} \quad (6.8)$$

(b) The decay amplitude for the spin j, parity $(-1)^{j+1}$ resonance is given by:

$$\langle q_{3}q_{4}|T|q_{2} \rangle = \left[\frac{h_{1}}{(m_{h_{1}})^{n-2}}g_{\sigma}\lambda_{1} + \frac{h_{2}}{(m_{h_{2}})^{n}}q_{\sigma}q_{4}\lambda_{1} + \frac{h_{3}}{(m_{h_{3}})}q_{4}\sigma q_{4}\lambda_{1}\right]$$

$$(q_{4}\rho)^{n-1}\chi_{\sigma}^{+}(q_{4})\chi_{\sigma}^{+}(q_{2})\chi_{1}\lambda_{2} \dots \lambda_{n} \qquad (6.9)$$

where j = n. Thus from equations (4.9) and (4.10) it follows that:

Using the result (A.15) and integrating over the redundant variables $\cos \Theta_{3V}$ and \oint_{3V} the partial width can be written as:

$$\Gamma_{V}(2 \rightarrow 3, 4) = \frac{1}{4\pi} \frac{q_{V}^{2 - 1}}{2 + 2} \frac{2^{j} j! j!}{(2j)!} \frac{1}{j(2j + 1)} \times$$

$$\begin{bmatrix} \frac{h^{2}_{1}}{(m_{h_{1}})^{2j-4}} & (j+1) + \left\{ \frac{h_{1}}{(m_{h_{1}})^{j-2}} & \frac{\mu_{4}}{\mu_{4}} + \frac{h_{2}}{\mu_{4}} \right\}^{2} \\ \frac{h_{2}}{(m_{h_{2}})^{j}} & \frac{\mu_{2}q^{2}_{V}}{\mu_{4}} \end{bmatrix}^{2} j \end{bmatrix}$$
(6.11)

(iii) The partial width corresponding to the decay of the vector meson $V_1(q_1)$ into two pseudoscalar particles $P(q_5)$ and $P(q_6)$ when all these particles are on the mass shell is denoted by Γ_X (4 \rightarrow 56) and is given, by analogy with the special case of j = 1 in equation (6.5), by

$$\Gamma_{\chi} (4 \rightarrow 5, 6) = \frac{1^2}{4\pi} - \frac{q^2 5}{2\mu^2} - \frac{1}{3}$$
(6.12)

(iv) A fermion resonance which decays into a spin half particle and a pseudoscalar particle may have either normal or abnormal parity. These two cases may be dealt with simultaneously by making use of the factor $\mathbf{\tilde{y}}_e$ defined in section 5. In both cases the partial width corresponding to the decay of the fermion resonance $F(p_2)$ into a spin half particle $N(p_3)$ and a pseudoscalar particle $P(p_4)$ when all these particles are on the mass shell is denoted by $\mathbf{\tilde{y}}_W$ (2-3,4) and is given by:

$$a\Gamma_{W}(2 \rightarrow 3, 4) = \frac{1}{2m_{2}}(2\pi)^{4} \left\{ \left(p_{2} - p_{3} - p_{4} \right) \frac{1}{\left[2(2\pi)^{3} \right]^{2}} \right\}$$

$$x \frac{d^{2}p_{3}}{\epsilon_{3}} \frac{d^{2}p_{4}}{\epsilon_{4}} | \langle p_{3} p_{4} | T | p_{2} \rangle |^{2}$$

$$(6.13)$$

The invariant phase space factor reduces to:

$$\frac{\mathbf{p}_{W}}{\mathbf{m}_{2}} \quad \mathrm{d} \cos \boldsymbol{\Theta}_{4W} \quad \mathrm{d} \boldsymbol{\phi}_{4W} \tag{6.14}$$

and the decay amplitude for the spin J resonance in the notation of sections 4 and 5 is given by:

$$\langle p_{3} p_{4} | T | p_{2} \rangle = \overline{u} (p_{3}) \overset{\bullet}{}_{e} \frac{e}{(m_{e})^{n-1}} (p_{4})^{n-1} u (p_{2}) (6.15)$$

where $J = (n - \frac{1}{2})$. In order to deal with both parity cases simultaneously it is convenient to define m'_3 such that:

$$m'_3 = + m_3 \text{ if } \bigvee_e = I$$
 (6.16a)

$$m_{3}^{*} = -m_{3}^{*}$$
 if $\chi_{e}^{*} = \chi_{5}^{*}$ (6.16b)

Thus from equations (4.24) and (4.25) it follows that:

$$| < p_{3} p_{4} | T | p_{2} > |^{2}_{AV} = \frac{1}{(2J+1)} \frac{e^{2}}{(m_{e})^{2n-2}} \times$$

$$2(p_{2} p_{3} + m_{2} m'_{3}) \frac{2n}{(2n+1)} g_{p_{1}\lambda_{1}} \times$$

$$(-1)^{n+1} (p_{4\lambda})^{n-1} \not \sim p^{(p_{2},n)} (p_{4\mu})^{n-1} \qquad (6.17)$$

Using the result (A.15) of the appendix and integrating over the redundant variables $\cos \Theta_{4W}$ and ϕ_{4W} the partial width may be written as:

$$\Gamma_{W} (2 \rightarrow 3, 4) = \frac{e^{2}}{4\pi} \frac{p_{W}^{2n-1}}{2m_{2}^{2}(m_{e})^{2n-2}} 2(p_{2} p_{3} + m_{2} m_{3}^{*}) x$$

$$\frac{2^{n} n! n!}{(2n)!} \qquad \frac{1}{n} \qquad (6.18)$$

where $J = (n - \frac{1}{2})$. It should be noted that as the particle P (p_4) is a pseudoscalar and as the only stable spin half particles, $N(p_3)$, observed to date appear to have positive parity the decay width of a spin J resonance into such particles is given by (6.18) with $m_3^2 = -m_3$ for a normal parity resonance and $m_3^2 = +m_3$ for an abnormal parity resonance.

7. EOSON RESONANCES DECAYING INTO TWO PSEUDOSCALAR PARTICLES

As pointed out in section 6 a boson resonance which decays into two pseudoscalar particles must necessarily have In the peripheral production of such a resonance normal parity. the exchanged particle can be a pseudoscalar, a vector or a pseudovector particle but not a scalar particle. For each of these three allowed possibilities the differential cross section is calculated for the process described by Fig. 1 (a) in which the resonance B, has spin j and normal parity $(-1)^{j}$. This is done by constructing the appropriate invariant matrix element from the vertex functions of Table 1.and the propagators of section 4. In particular the propagator for the spin j resonance is given by (4.26) where j = n. The resulting expression for the matrix element is then substituted in the formula (3.12) for d σ (a).

(i) Pseudoscalar particle exchange.

The invariant matrix element is given by:

$$< p_2 q_3 q_4 | T | p_1 q_1 > = \overline{u} (p_2) f F (t) \bigvee_f u (p_1) \frac{1}{(t-\mu^2)} x$$

$$x (-1)^{n} \frac{g G(t,v)}{(m_{g})^{n-1}} (k_{\lambda})^{n} \not (q_{2},n) \frac{1}{(v-\mu_{2}^{2}) + i \mu_{2}^{*} v}$$

x
$$\frac{h H(v)}{(m_{h})^{n-1}} (q_{4}\rho)^{n}$$
 (7.1)

Averaging over the initial spin states and summing over final spin states:

$$|\langle p_{2}q_{3}q_{4} | T | p_{1}q_{1} \rangle|^{2}_{AV} = \left| \frac{f F(t) g G(t,v) h H(v)}{(m_{g})^{n-1} (m_{h})^{n}} \right|^{2} x$$

$$\frac{\left[-t + (m_{1}^{*} + m_{2}^{*})^{2} \right]}{(t-y^{2})^{2}} \frac{1}{(v-y^{2})^{2} + y^{2}} \frac{1}{2 \sqrt{v}} x$$

$$\left[(k_{\lambda})^{n} \phi_{\lambda \rho}^{(q_{2},n)} (q_{4}\rho)^{n} \right]^{2} \qquad (7.2)$$

where

$$m'_1 = +m_1 \text{ if } X_f = I$$
 (7.3a)

$$m'_1 = -m_1 \quad \text{if} \quad \bigvee_f = \bigvee_5$$
 (7.3b)

Assuming that the resonance has a narrow width i.e. $\Gamma_{\rm V}$ << μ_2 then:

$$\frac{1}{(v-\mu^2)^2 + \mu^2 2 \Gamma_v^2} \sim \frac{\pi}{\mu^2 2 \Gamma_v} \left(v - \mu^2 \right)$$
(7.4)

59.

With this approximation and the result (A.8) given in the appendix, substitution of (7.2) in the expression (3.12) for $d \bullet$ (a) and integration over dv gives the result:

$$d\sigma(a) = \frac{f^2}{4\pi} \frac{g^2}{4\pi} \left| \frac{F(t) G(t)}{(m_g)^{j-1}} \right|^2 \frac{q_B}{4E_B^2 p_B} x$$

$$x \frac{\left[\frac{-t + (m_{1}^{\prime} + m_{2})^{2}}{(t - \mu^{2})^{2}}\right]}{(t - \mu^{2})^{2}} \frac{2^{j} j j j j}{(2j) j} k_{V}^{2j} d \cos \Theta_{B} d \phi_{B} }{x \frac{\Gamma_{V} (2 - 3, 4)}{\Gamma_{V}}} x \frac{(2j + 1)}{4\pi} \left[P_{j} (\cos \Theta_{3V})\right]^{2} d \cos \Theta_{3V} d \phi_{3V}$$
(7.5)

where (6.5) has been used to separate out the factor $\Gamma_V(2-3,4)/\Gamma_V$ where $\Gamma_V(2-3,4)$ is the partial width and Γ_V is the total width of the resonance. This factor is thus the branching ratio of the decay process (1.2) relative to all other possible decay modes of B_1 .

The first factor in the expression (7.5), made up of all terms preceding the branching ratio factor, is in fact the spin averaged differential cross section for the production of a spin j, parity (-1)^j, resonance in the quasi two body process (1.6) either assuming that the resonance does not decay or equivalently summing over all possible decay modes. The final factor in (7.5) gives the distribution of the decay products and is normalised so that integration over $\cos 2_{3V}$ and ϕ_{3V} gives unity. It should be noted that the distribution is independent of ϕ_{3V} and there is thus rotational symmetry of the decay products about the polar axis <u>I</u> in the frame V.⁽¹³⁾ Furthermore the decay distribution as a function of $\cos 2_{3V}$ is independent of the production process variables. In particular this distribution is independent of the arbitrary form factors F(t) and G(t).

The spin averaged differential cross section for the production of a spin j, parity $(-1)^{j}$ resonance in a process mediated by pseudoscalar particle exchange is obtained from (7.5) by integrating over $\cos \Theta_{3V}$ and ϕ_{3V} and putting $\Gamma_{V}(2-3,4) = \Gamma_{V}$. The result obtained, which confirms the statement made above concerning the first factor of (7.5) is:

$$d\sigma(a) = \frac{f^2}{4\pi} \frac{g^2}{4\pi} \left| \frac{T(t) G(t)}{(m_g)^{j-1}} \right|^2 \frac{q_B}{4E_B^2 P_B}$$

$$x \frac{\left[-t + (m'_1 + m_2)^2 \right]}{(t - \mu^2)^2} \frac{2^j j j j j}{(2j)_1} k_V^{2j} d \cos \Theta_B d \phi_B \quad (7.6)$$

It should be noted that this result is completely independent of the decay mode of the boson resonance which might for instance decay into three pseudoscalar mesons or into a pseudoscalar meson and a vector meson rather than into two pseudoscalar mesons. Thus (7.6) applies to the general process:

$$P + N \rightarrow N + B$$
(7.7)

where B is any boson having spin j and normal parity provided that this production process (7.7) is mediated by the exchange of a pseudoscalar meson.

(ii) Vector particle exchange

The invariant matrix element is given by:

$$< p_2 q_3 q_4 | T | p_1 q_1 > = \overline{u} (p_2) \left[f_2 F_2(t) \right] +$$

$$\frac{f_{3}F_{3}(t)}{(mf_{3})} p_{2\mu} + \frac{f_{4}F_{4}(t)}{(mf_{4})} k_{\mu} \int f^{u}(p_{1}) x$$
$$x (-1) \left[g_{\mu\nu} - \frac{k_{\mu}k_{\nu}}{2} \right] \frac{1}{2} \frac{g_{0}G_{0}(t,v)}{m} x$$

$$x (-1) \left[g_{\mu\nu} - \frac{1}{\mu^2} \right] \frac{1}{(t-\mu^2)} \frac{1}{(m_g)^n}$$

$$\mathbf{x} \boldsymbol{\varepsilon}_{\boldsymbol{\nu} \boldsymbol{\sigma} \boldsymbol{\tau} \boldsymbol{\lambda}_{1}} \overset{k}{\boldsymbol{\sigma}} \boldsymbol{q}_{2 \boldsymbol{\tau}} \overset{(k)}{\boldsymbol{\lambda}^{n-1}} \overset{(-1)^{n}}{\boldsymbol{\sigma}} \overset{(q_{2}, n)}{\boldsymbol{\lambda}^{n}} \mathbf{x}$$

$$x \frac{1}{(v-\mu^{2})^{2} + i\mu_{2} v} (q_{\mu})^{n} \frac{h H(v)}{(m_{h})^{n-1}}$$
(7.8)

Making full use of the antisymmetric nature of the pseudotensor in this expression, substituting (7.8) in (3.12), averaging over initial spin states, summing over final spin states and integrating over dv gives, with the notation of (7.3) and the approximation (7.4), the result:

$$d\sigma(a) = \frac{1}{(4\pi)^3} \frac{q_B}{4E_B^2 p_B} \frac{1}{(t-\mu^2)^2} \frac{h^2}{4\pi} \frac{q_V}{2\mu^2 (m_h)^{2j-2}} \frac{1}{V_V} x$$

$$x \left[M_{p_2 p_2}^{(t)}(t) (p_2 r) (p_2 r^{+}) - M (t) (r \cdot r^{+}) \right] d \cos \Theta_B d \phi_B$$

$$d \cos \Theta_{3V} d \phi_{3V}$$

$$(7.9)$$

where

$$\mathbf{r}_{\mu} = \overline{\mathbf{g}}_{0} \boldsymbol{\epsilon}_{\mu \sigma \tau} \boldsymbol{\lambda}_{1} \quad \mathbf{k}_{\sigma} \mathbf{q}_{2\tau} \quad (-1)^{j+1} \quad (\mathbf{k}_{\lambda})^{j-1} \boldsymbol{\phi}_{\lambda \rho} \quad (\mathbf{q}_{2}, j) \quad (\mathbf{q}_{4\rho})^{j} \quad (7.10)$$

and

$$M_{p_{2}p_{2}}(t) = \left\{ \left| \overline{f}_{2} \right|^{2} 4 + 2 \operatorname{Re} \left(\overline{f}_{2}\overline{f}_{3}^{+} \right) 2(m'_{1} + m_{2}) + \left| \overline{f}_{3} \right|^{2} \left[-t + (m'_{1} + m_{2})^{2} \right] \right\}$$
(7.11a)
$$M(t) = \left\{ \left| \overline{f}_{2} \right|^{2} \left[-t + (m'_{1} - m_{2})^{2} \right] \right\}$$
(7.11b)

It follows from (A.9) that:

$$P_{2}r = \overline{g}_{0} \left[\frac{2^{j} j! j!}{(2j)!} \frac{1}{j} (E_{B} P_{B} q_{B} \sin \Theta_{B}) \times \frac{1}{v} \left(\cos \phi_{3v} \right) \right]$$

$$(7.12)$$

where use has been made of the fact that the angle between \underline{p}_{2V} and \underline{q}_{1V} , denoted by $\boldsymbol{\epsilon}_{V}$ as shown in Fig. 2(a), satisfies the relationship:

$$p_2 p_{2V} k_V \sin \epsilon_V = E_B p_B q_B \sin \Theta_B$$
 (7.13)

Similarly it may be shown that:

-

$$\mathbf{r} \cdot \mathbf{r}^{+} = - \left\{ \overline{g}_{0} \right\}^{2} \frac{2^{j} j j j j}{(2j) j} \frac{1}{j} \left(\int_{2}^{\infty} k_{V} \right) k_{V}^{j-1} q_{V}^{j} P_{j}^{1} \left(\cos \Theta_{3V} \right)^{2}$$
(7.14)

Substituting (7.12) and (7.14) into the expression (7.9) for $d\mathbf{G}$ (a) gives:

$$d\mathbf{\sigma}(a) = \frac{1}{(4\pi)^2} |\vec{e}_0|^2 \frac{q_B}{4E_B^2 P_B} \frac{1}{(t-p^2)^2} \frac{2^j j! j!}{(2j)!} x$$

$$\frac{(j+1)}{j} k_V^{2j-2} \left[M_{P_2 P_2}(t) \left(E_B P_B q_B \sin \Theta_B \right)^2 \cos^2 \phi_{3V} + M(t) \left(p_2 k_V \right)^2 \right] d\cos \Theta_B d\phi_B \frac{\Gamma_V(2-3,4)}{\Gamma_V} x$$

65.

$$\frac{(2j+1)}{2j(j+1)} \left[P_j^1 \left(\cos \Theta_{3V} \right) \right]^2 d \cos \Theta_{3V} \frac{1}{2\pi} d \frac{1}{9} 3V \quad (7.15)$$

where (6.5) has again been used to separate out the factor $\Gamma_V(2-3,4)$ / Γ_V which, as explained above, is the branching ratio for the decay process (1.2) relative to all other possible decay modes of the resonance B₁.

The distribution of the decay products as a function of $\cos \Theta_{3V}$ is clearly independent of the production process variables and is given by:

$$\frac{(2j+1)}{2j(j+1)} \left[P_j^1 \left(\cos \Theta_{3V} \right) \right]^2 d \cos \Theta_{3V}$$
(7.16)

On the other hand the decay distribution as a function of ϕ_{3V} depends not only on the production process variables but also on the ratio of the coupling constants f_2 and f_3 and their associated form factors. The distribution is of the general form:

$$\frac{1}{2\pi} \left[A(s,t) + B(s,t) \cos^2 \phi_{3V} \right] d\phi_{3V}$$
(7.17)

where A(s,t) and B(s,t) are specific functions of s but arbitrary functions of t. For the situation in which $\sin \Theta_{\rm B} = 0$, that is the case of forward and backward production of the resonance in the process (1.6), the decay distribution is of course independent of ϕ_{3V} since this angle is then indeterminate. It should be noted that the number of events in the forward direction gives a measure of the coupling constant f_2 independent of f_3 .

The spin averaged differential cross section for the two body production process (1.6), independent of the decay of the resonance, is found by putting Γ_V (2 - 3,4) = Γ_V in (7.15) and integrating over cos Θ_{3V} and ϕ_{3V} . The result is:

$$d\sigma(a) = \frac{g_0^2}{4\pi} \left| \frac{G_0(t)}{(m_{g_0})^j} \right|^2 \frac{q_B}{4E_B^2 p_B} \frac{1}{(t-\gamma^2)^2} x$$

x
$$\frac{2^{j} j! j!}{(2j)!} \frac{(j+1)}{j} k_{V}^{2j-2} \left[\left\{ \begin{array}{c} \frac{f_{2}^{2}}{4\pi} | F_{2}(t) \right|^{2} 4 + \right] \right]$$

$$\frac{f_2 f_3}{4\pi} \quad \frac{F_2(t) F_3^+(t) + F_3(t) F_2^+(t)}{\binom{m}{f_3}} \quad 2(m_1^1 + m_2^2) +$$

$$\frac{f_3^2}{4\pi} \frac{|F_3(t)|^2}{(m_{f_3})^2} \left[-t + (m_1 + m_2)^2 \right] \left[(E_B p_B q_B \sin \Theta_B)^2 \right]_{\frac{1}{2}}$$

+
$$\left\{ \frac{f_2^2}{4\pi} |F_2(t)|^2 [-t + (m_1 - m_2)^2] \right\} (\mu_2 k_V) d \cos \Theta_B d \phi_B$$

(7.18)

Once again this result is completely independent of the decay mode of the boson resonance. Thus (7.18) applies to the general process (7.7) provided that this process is mediated by the exchange of a vector meson.

(iii) Pseudovector particle exchange.

The invariant matrix element is given by:

$$x (k_{\lambda})^{n-1} (-1)^{n} \phi_{\lambda \rho}^{(q_{2},n)} (q_{4})^{n} \frac{1}{\left[(v-p_{2}^{2}) + i \mu_{2} v \right]} \frac{h H(v)}{(m_{h})^{n-1}} (7.19)$$

Substituting (7.19) in (3.12), averaging over initial spin states, summing over final spin states and integrating over dv gives with the notation of (7.3) and the approximation (7.4) the result:

$$d\sigma(a) = \frac{1}{(4\pi)^3} \frac{q_B}{4E_B^2 p_B} \frac{1}{(t-\mu^2)^2} \frac{h^2}{4\pi} x$$

$$\frac{q_{V}}{2p_{2}^{2}(m_{h})^{2j-2}\Gamma_{V}} \left[M_{p_{2}p_{2}}^{M}(t)(p_{2},r)(p_{2},r^{\dagger}) + M_{p_{2}k}^{M}(t)(p_{2}r)(k,r^{\dagger}) + M_{p_{2}k}^{M}(t)(p_{2}r)(k,r^{$$

$$M_{kp_{2}}^{(t)}(k \cdot r)(p_{2} \cdot r^{+}) + M_{kk}^{(t)}(k \cdot r)(k \cdot r^{+}) - M(t)(r \cdot r^{+}) \right] \times d \cos \Theta_{B} d \phi_{B} d \cos \Theta_{3V} d \phi_{3V}$$
(7.20)

where

$$\mathbf{r}_{\mu} = \begin{bmatrix} \mathbf{g}_{\mu\nu} - \frac{\mathbf{k}_{\mu\nu}\mathbf{k}_{\nu}}{\mu^{2}} \end{bmatrix} \begin{bmatrix} \overline{\mathbf{g}}_{1} & \mathbf{g}_{\nu\lambda_{1}} + \overline{\mathbf{g}}_{2} & \mathbf{q}_{2\nu}\mathbf{k}_{\lambda_{1}} + \overline{\mathbf{g}}_{3} & \mathbf{k}_{\nu}\mathbf{k}_{\lambda_{1}} \end{bmatrix} \mathbf{x}$$

$$\mathbf{x} (-1)^{\mathbf{j}+1} & (\mathbf{k}_{\lambda})^{\mathbf{j}-1} \boldsymbol{\phi}_{\lambda\rho} (\mathbf{q}_{2}, \mathbf{j}) & (\mathbf{q}_{\mu\rho})^{\mathbf{j}} \qquad (7.21)$$

and

.

$$M_{p_{2}p_{2}}(t) = |\bar{f}_{2}|^{2} 4 + 2 \operatorname{Re}(\bar{f}_{2}\bar{f}_{3}^{+}) 2 (m_{1}^{*} + m_{2}) + |\bar{f}_{3}|^{2} x$$

$$x \left[-t + (m_{1}^{*} + m_{2})^{2}\right]$$
(7.22a)
$$M_{p_{2}k}(t) = |\bar{f}_{2}|^{2} 2 + (\bar{f}_{2}\bar{f}_{3}^{+}) 2m_{2} + (\bar{f}_{2}\bar{f}_{4}^{+}) 2 (m_{1}^{*} + m_{2}) + (\bar{f}_{3}\bar{f}_{4}^{+}) \left[-t + (m_{1}^{*} + m_{2})^{2}\right]$$
(7.22b)

68.

.

$$M_{kp_2}(t) = M_{p_2k}^{+}(t)$$
 (7.22c)

$$M_{kk}(t) = 2 \operatorname{Re} \left(\overline{f}_{2}\overline{f}_{4}^{+}\right) 2m_{2} + |f_{4}|^{2} \left[-t + (m_{1}^{\prime} + m_{2}^{\prime})^{2}\right]$$
(7.22d)

$$M(t) = |\bar{f}_2|^2 \left[-t + (m_1 + m_2)^2 \right]$$
(7.22e)

Denoting the variable $\cos \Theta_{3V}$ by C_V it follows from the definitions (7.21) and the result (A.8) that:

$$k \cdot r = -\left[\frac{2^{j}j!j!}{(2j)!} \frac{1}{j} k_{V}^{j-2} q_{V}^{j}\right] \overline{e}_{k} k_{V}^{2} j P_{j}^{0} (C_{V})$$
(7.23)

and from $(A_{\bullet}8)$ and $(A_{\bullet}9)$

$$p_{2}\mathbf{r} = -\left[\frac{2^{j}\mathbf{j}\mathbf{j}\mathbf{j}\mathbf{j}}{(2\mathbf{j})\mathbf{j}\mathbf{l}} \frac{1}{\mathbf{j}} \mathbf{k}_{V}^{\mathbf{j}-2} \mathbf{q}_{V}^{\mathbf{j}}\right] \left[\overline{\mathbf{g}}_{p_{2}} \mathbf{k}_{V}^{2} \mathbf{j} \mathbf{P}_{\mathbf{j}}^{0} (\mathbf{C}_{V}) - \overline{\mathbf{g}}_{1} \mathbf{p}_{2V} \mathbf{k}_{V} \left\{\cos \mathbf{\epsilon}_{V} \mathbf{j} \mathbf{P}_{\mathbf{j}}^{0} (\mathbf{C}_{V}) + \sin \mathbf{\epsilon}_{V} \sin \mathbf{\phi}_{3V} \mathbf{P}_{\mathbf{j}}^{1} (\mathbf{C}_{V})\right\}\right]$$
(7.24)

and

$$\mathbf{r} \cdot \mathbf{r}^{+} = \left[\frac{2^{j} \mathbf{j} \mathbf{j} \mathbf{j}}{(2j)!} \frac{1}{\mathbf{j}} \mathbf{k}_{V}^{j-2} \mathbf{q}_{V}^{j} \right]^{2} \left[\left| \mathbf{\bar{g}}_{\mathbf{r}} \right|^{2} \mathbf{k}_{V}^{4} \left\{ \mathbf{j} \mathbf{P}_{\mathbf{j}}^{0} \left(\mathbf{C}_{V} \right) \right\}^{2} - \left| \mathbf{\bar{g}}_{\mathbf{j}} \right|^{2} \mathbf{k}_{V}^{2} \left\{ \left[\mathbf{j} \mathbf{P}_{\mathbf{j}}^{0} \left(\mathbf{C}_{V} \right) \right]^{2} + \left[\mathbf{P}_{\mathbf{j}}^{1} \left(\mathbf{C}_{V} \right) \right]^{2} \right\} \right]$$
(7.25)

where

$$\overline{g}_{k} = (1 - \frac{k^{2}}{r^{2}}) \left[\overline{g}_{1} + \overline{g}_{2} k g_{2} + \overline{g}_{3} k^{2} \right]$$
 (7.26a)

$$\vec{g}_{p_2} = \left[-\vec{g}_1 \frac{p_2 k}{2} + \vec{g}_2 (p_2 \cdot q_2 - \frac{p_2 \cdot k k \cdot q_2}{\mu^2}) + \vec{g}_3 p_2 \cdot k (1 - \frac{k^2}{\mu^2}) \right] (7.26b)$$

$$|\vec{g}_p|^2 = |\vec{g}_2|^2 p_2^2 + 2 \operatorname{Re} \left\{ (\vec{g}_1 + \vec{g}_2 k \cdot q_2) \right\} \times \left[-\vec{g}_1^+ \frac{1}{\mu^2} - \vec{g}_2^+ \frac{k \cdot q_2}{\mu^2} + \vec{g}_3^+ (1 - \frac{k^2}{\mu^2}) \right] \right\}$$

$$+ \left[-\vec{g}_1 \frac{1}{\mu^2} - \vec{g}_2 \frac{k \cdot q_2}{\mu^2} + \vec{g}_3 (1 - \frac{k^2}{\mu^2}) \right]^2 k^2 \quad (7.26d)$$

70.

and where the angle ϵ_v is given by (7.13). In fact

$$P_{2V} k_{V} \sin \epsilon_{V} = E_{B} p_{B} q_{B} \sin \epsilon_{B}$$
(7.27a)

$$P_{2V} k_{V} \cos \epsilon_{V} = - \left[(s - m_{2}^{2} - p_{2}^{2}) (-t + p_{1}^{2} - p_{2}^{2}) + 2p_{2}^{2} (-t + m_{1}^{2} - m_{2}^{2}) \right] / 4p_{2}^{2}$$
(7.27b)

Substitution of (7.23) - (7.25) in (7.20) gives:

$$d \sigma (a) = \frac{1}{(4\pi)^2} \frac{q_B}{4E_B^2 p_B} \frac{1}{(t-p^2)^2} \frac{2^j j! j!}{(2j)!} k_V^{2j-4}$$

$$x \left[\frac{\overline{M}}{p_2 p_2} p_{2V}^2 k_V^2 \left\{ \cos \epsilon_V j P_j^0 (C_V) + \sin \epsilon_V \sin \phi_{3V} P_j^1 (C_V) \right\}^2 \right]$$

+ 2 Re
$$(\overline{\Gamma}_{P_{2}k}) p_{2V} k_{V}^{3} (\cos k_{V} j P_{j}^{0} (C_{V}) + \sin k_{V} \sin k_{3V} P_{j}^{1} (C_{V})$$

x $j P_{j}^{0} (C_{V}) + \overline{M}_{kk} k_{V}^{4} (j P_{j}^{0} (C_{V}))^{2} + \overline{M} (j P_{j}^{0} (C_{V}))^{2} + [P_{j}^{1} (C_{V})]^{2}$
x $d \cos \Theta_{B} d \phi_{B} \frac{\Gamma_{V} (2-3,4)}{\Gamma_{V}} x \frac{(2j+1)}{2j^{2}} d C_{V} \frac{1}{2\pi} d \phi_{3V}$ (7.28)

71.

where the various \overline{M} depend in a complicated way on the coupling constants and their associated form factors. Because of this complexity it is unlikely that measurements of the decay distributions will furnish any information on the couplings involved in the production process.

Integration over ϕ_{3V} gives the decay distribution as a function of $\cos \Theta_{3V}$:

$$\frac{(2j+1)}{2j^{2}} \left[A(s,t) \left\{ j P_{j}^{0} (\cos \Theta_{3V}) \right\}^{2} + B(s,t) \left\{ P_{j}^{1} (\cos \Theta_{3V}) \right\}^{2} \right] d \cos \Theta_{3V}$$
(7.29)

and integration over $\cos \Theta_{3V}$ gives the decay distribution as a function of ϕ_{3V} :

$$\frac{1}{2} \left[C(s,t) + D(s,t) \sin^2 \phi_{3V} \right] d\phi_{3V}$$
(7.30)

where A, B, C and D depend on the coupling constants and their associated form factors which are in turn arbitrary functions of t.
These distributions are the most general distributions for the decay of a resonance of spin j produced by a peripheral mechanism involving the exchange of a spin one particle.

The spin averaged differential cross section for the quasi two body production process (1.6) independent of the decay mode of the resonance is found by putting Γ_V (2-3,4) = Γ_V in (7.28) and integrating over the physical region of C_V and ρ_{3V} . The result obtained is:

$$d\sigma(b) = \frac{1}{(4\pi)^2} \frac{q_B}{4E_B^2} \frac{1}{p_B} \frac{1}{(t-\mu^2)^2} \frac{2^J j l j l}{(2j)!} k_V^{2j-4} x$$

$$x \left[\overline{M}_{p_2 p_2} p_{2V}^2 k_V^2 \frac{1}{2} \cos^2 \frac{1}{2} v + \sin^2 \frac{1}{2} v \frac{(j+1)}{2j} \right] + \frac{1}{2} \frac{1}{2$$

2 Re
$$(\overline{M}_{p_2k}) p_{2V}k_V^3 \cos \epsilon_V + \overline{M}_{kk} k_V^4 + \overline{M} \frac{(2j+1)}{j} d \cos \theta_B d \phi_B$$
 (7.31)

This result is again completely independent of the decay mode of the boson resonance and thus applies to the general process (7.7) provided that this process is mediated by the exchange of a pseudovector meson.

8. BOSON RESONANCES DECAYING INTO A VECTOR PARTICLE AND A PSEUDOSCALAR PARTICLE.

A boson resonance of spin j which decays into a vector particle and a pseudoscalar particle may have either normal or abnormal parity, that is parity $(-1)^{j}$ or $(-1)^{j+1}$ respectively. These cases are considered in turn:

a) Normal parity

In the peripheral production of such a resonance the exchanged particle may be a pseudoscalar, a vector or a pseudovector particle. The differential cross section for the process described by Fig. 1(b) is calculated for each of these three possibilities as follows:

(i) Pseudoscalar particle exchange.

The invariant matrix element is given by:

$$x (-1)^{n} g \frac{G (t,v)}{(m_{g})^{n-1}} (k_{\lambda})^{n} \phi (q_{2},n) \frac{1}{(v-\mu_{2}^{2}) + i\mu_{2} \Gamma_{V}} x$$

$$x \frac{h_{o}H_{o}(v_{x})}{(m_{h_{o}})^{n}} (q_{4})^{n-1} \epsilon_{p_{1}} \mu \nu \sigma^{q_{4}} q_{3} \nu \left[g_{\sigma\tau} - \frac{q_{4}\sigma^{q_{4}}}{\mu_{4}^{2}} \right] x$$

$$\frac{1}{(x-\mu_4^2) + i\mu_4 \Gamma_x} \quad i I(x) q_5 q_5 q_6$$
(8.1)

Averaging over the initial spin states and summing over final spin states gives:

$$< p_2 q_3 q_5 q_6 | T | p_1 q_1 > |_{AV}^2 = \frac{fF(t) g G(t,v) h_0 H_0(v,x) i I(x)}{(m_g)^{n-1} (m_{h_0})^n} |_{O}^2 x$$

$$x \frac{\left[-t + (m_1^{i} + m_2)^2 \right]}{(t - \mu^2)^2} \frac{1}{(v - \mu_2^2)^2} + \mu_2^2 \Gamma_V^2} \frac{1}{(x - \mu_4^2)^2} + \mu_4^2 \Gamma_X^2$$

$$\times \left[{}^{(k_{\lambda})^{n}} \phi_{\lambda \rho}^{(q_{2},n)} {}^{(q_{4})^{n-1}} \epsilon_{q_{4}} \mu^{q_{3}} \sigma^{q_{4}} \rho^{q_{5}} \sigma^{q_{5}} \right]^{2}$$
(8.2)

where the notation of (7.3) has been used.

Assuming that the resonances B_3 and V_1 both have narrow widths i.e. $\Gamma_V \ll \mu_2$ and $\Gamma_x \ll \mu_4$ then:

$$\frac{1}{(v_{-}\mu_{2}^{2})^{2} + \mu_{2}^{2}\Gamma_{v}^{2}} \approx \frac{\pi}{\mu_{2}r_{v}} \delta(v_{-}\mu_{2}^{2}) \qquad (8.3a)$$

$$\frac{1}{(x-\mu_{4}^{2})^{2}+\mu_{4}^{2}\Gamma_{X}^{2}} \approx \frac{\pi}{\mu_{4}\Gamma_{X}} \delta(x-\mu_{4}^{2}) \qquad (8.3b)$$

With these approximations and the result (A.10) substitution of (8.2) in the expression (3.29) for d**G** (b) and integration over d v and d x yields the result:

$$d\sigma(b) = \frac{f^2}{4\pi} \frac{g^2}{4\pi} \left| \frac{F(t) G(t)}{(m_g)^{j-1}} \right|^2 \frac{q_B}{4E_B^2 p_B} x$$

$$x \frac{\left[-t + \left(m_1 + m_2\right)^2\right]}{\left(t - \mu^2\right)^2} \frac{2^{j} j j j j}{(2j)!} k_V^{2j} d \cos \Theta_B d \phi_B$$

$$x \frac{\int_{V} (2-3,4)}{\int_{V}} x \frac{(2j+1)}{2j(j+1)} \left[P_{j}^{1} (\cos \Theta_{3V}) \right]^{2} d \cos \Theta_{3V} x \frac{1}{2\pi} d \phi_{3V}$$

$$x \frac{\int (4-5,6)}{\int_{X}} x \frac{1}{\pi} \cos^{2} \psi_{3V} d\psi_{3V} x \frac{3}{4} \frac{\psi_{4}}{q_{3V}^{3}} x \frac{1}{4} \frac{\psi_{4}}{q_{3V}^{3}} \frac{\psi_{4}}{\chi} \frac{1}{q_{3V}^{3}} \frac{1}{\chi} \frac{1}{\chi} \frac{1}{q_{3V}^{3}} \frac{\psi_{4}}{\chi} \frac{1}{\chi} \frac{1}{q_{3V}^{3}} \frac{1}{\chi} \frac{1}$$

$$x q_{3V}^2 q_{5V}^2 \sin^2 \Theta_{35V} d\omega_{5V}$$
 (8.4)

where (6.8) and (6.12) have been used to separate out the factors Γ_{V} (2-3,4) $/\Gamma_{V}$ and Γ_{X} (4-5,6) $/\Gamma_{X}$. These factors are the branching ratios of the decay process (1.4a) relative to all possible decay modes of B_{3} and of the decay process (1.4b) relative to all possible decay modes of V_{1} respectively.

The first factor in the expression (8.4) is identical with that appearing in (7.5) and is in fact the spin averaged differencial cross section for the production of a spin j,

parity $(-1)^{j}$ resonance in the process (7.7) mediated by pseudoscalar particle exchange.

The remaining factors in (8.4) give the distributions of the decay products as functions of the variables $\cos \Theta_{3V}$, ϕ_{3V} , ϕ_{3V} , ϕ_{3V} and ω_{5V} . Each of these distribution terms is normalised so that integration over the complete physical region appropriate to each variable gives unity. The distribution of the decay products as functions of these variables are all independent of each other and of the production process variables. In particular the distributions are independent of the arbitrary form factors F(t) and G(t). This makes comparison of the model with experimental data relatively easy.

Despite the fact that the factor $\sin^2\Theta_{35V}$ arises in thesquare of the matrix element it is not convenient to measure the distribution with respect to the variable Θ_{35V} because of the complicated nature of the relationship between Θ_{35V} and the variable ω_{5V} which appeared naturally in the phase space factor evaluated in section 3. The relationship is such that:

$$a_{3V}^{2} a_{5V}^{2} \sin^{2}\Theta_{35V} = \left[\mu_{4}^{2} \mu_{5}^{2} - \mu_{5}^{2} (\mu_{2}^{2} + \mu_{4}^{2} - \mu_{3}^{2})^{2} / 4\mu_{2}^{2} (\mu_{4}^{2} + \mu_{5}^{2} - \mu_{6}^{2})^{2} / 4\mu_{5}^{2} (\mu_{4}^{2} + \mu_{5}^{2} - \mu_{6}^{2})^{2} / 4\mu_{2}^{2} (\mu_{4}^{2} - \mu_{5}^{2})^{2} / 4\mu_{5}^{2} (\mu_{4}^{2} + \mu_{5}^{2} - \mu_{6}^{2})^{2} / 4\mu_{5}^{2} (\mu_{4}^{2} - \mu_{5}^{2})^{2} / 4\mu_{5}^{2} (\mu_{5}^{2} - \mu_{5}^{2} - \mu_{5}^{2})^{2} / 4\mu_{5}^{2} (\mu_{5}^{2} - \mu_{5}^{2} - \mu_{5}^{2})^{2}$$

where of course q_{3V}^2 is given by (2.8b) and $q_{5V}^2 = \omega_{5V}^2 - \gamma_5^2$. The distribution of the decay products as a function of the usual Dalitz plot variable ω_{5V} is thus of the above form. By carrying out the integration over ω_{5V} and making use of the fact that the limits of the physical region are defined by $\sin \Theta_{35V} = 0$ it is possible to show that the final term in (8.4) reduces to unity as required.

The spin-averaged differential cross section for the production of a spin j, parity $(-1)^{j}$, resonance and the decay of this state into a pseudoscalar meson and a vector meson is obtained from (8.4) by integrating over $d\psi_{3V}$ and $d\omega_{5V}$ and assuming $\int_{X} (4-5,6) = \int_{X}$. The result obtained is then:

$$d\sigma(b) = \frac{f^2}{4\pi} \frac{g^2}{4\pi} \left| \frac{F(t) G(t)}{(m_g)^{j-1}} \right|^2 \frac{q_B}{4E_B^2 p_B}$$

$$x \frac{\left[-t + \left(m_{1} + m_{2}\right)^{2}\right]}{\left(t - \mu^{2}\right)^{2}} \frac{2^{j}jjj}{(2j)j} k_{V}^{2j} d\cos \Theta_{B} d\phi_{B}$$

$$x \frac{\int_{V}^{(2-3,4)}}{\Gamma_{V}} x \frac{(2j+1)}{2j(j+1)} \left[P_{j}^{1} (\cos \Theta_{3V}) \right]^{2} d \cos \Theta_{3V} \frac{1}{2\pi} d \phi_{3V}$$
(8.6)

It should be noted that this result is completely independent of the decay mode of the vector particle which might for instance decay into three pseudoscalar particles rather than into two such particles. Thus (8.6) applies to both of the following two stage processes:

$$P + N \rightarrow N + B_3$$
 (8.7a)

$$B_3 \rightarrow P + V_1 \tag{8.7b}$$

and

$$P + N \rightarrow N + B_{\mu}$$
 (8.8a)

$$B_{\mu} \rightarrow P + V_{2} \qquad (8.8b)$$

provided the boson resonances have normal parity and the production processes are mediated by pseudoscalar particle exchange.

(ii) Vector particle exchange.

The invariant matrix element is given by:

$$\langle P_2 q_3 q_5 q_6 | T | P_1 q_1 \rangle = \overline{u} (P_2) \left[f_2 F_2(t) \rangle_{\mu} + \frac{f_3 F_3(t)}{(m_{f_3})} P_{2\mu} + \frac{f_3 F_3(t)}{(m_{f_3})} \right]$$

$$\frac{f_{4}F_{4}(t)}{\binom{m}{f_{4}}} \quad k_{\mu} \left[\begin{array}{c} \chi & f^{\mu} & (p_{1}) \\ \chi & f^{\mu} & (p_{1}) \end{array} \right] \times (-1) \left[\begin{array}{c} g_{\mu\nu} & -\frac{k_{\mu\nu} & k_{\nu\nu}}{p^{2}} \end{array} \right]$$

$$\frac{1}{(t-\mu)^{2}} \frac{g_{0}G_{0}(t,v)}{(m_{0})^{n}} \in v \neq \beta \lambda_{1} \quad k_{\alpha}q_{2}\beta \quad (k_{\lambda})^{n-1} \times (-1)^{n} \oint_{\lambda} (q_{2},n) \qquad (q_{2},n)$$

$$\frac{1}{(v-\mu_{2}^{2}) + i\mu_{2}\Gamma_{V}} \quad (q_{4})^{n-1} \quad \frac{h_{0}H_{0}(v,x)}{(m_{h_{0}})^{n}} \in p_{1}\chi_{0} \quad q_{4}\chi \quad q_{3}\chi \quad x$$

$$x \left[g_{\sigma-\tau} - \frac{q_{4}\sigma q_{4}\tau}{\mu_{4}^{2}}\right] \quad \frac{1}{(x-\mu_{4}^{2}) + i\mu_{4}\Gamma_{X}} \quad i \quad I(x) \quad q_{5}\tau \qquad (8.9)$$

79.

Substituting (8.9)in (3.29), making use of the antisymmetric nature of the pseudotensors, averaging over initial spin states, summing over final spin states and integrating over d v and d x gives, with the notation of (7.3) and the approximations (8.3), the result:

$$d\sigma(b) = \frac{1}{(4\pi)^4} \frac{q_B}{4E_B^2 p_B} \frac{1}{(t-p^2)^2} \frac{h^2}{4\pi} \frac{1}{2p_2^2 (m_{h_0})^2 j \Gamma_V} x$$

$$x \frac{i^{2}}{4\pi} \frac{1}{2\mu_{4}} \int_{X}^{\infty} x \left[M_{p_{2}p_{2}}(t) (p_{2}r) (p_{2}r^{+}) - M(t) (r.r^{+}) \right] x$$

$$\mathbf{x} \quad \mathrm{d} \cos \boldsymbol{\Theta}_{\mathrm{B}} \quad \mathrm{d} \boldsymbol{\phi}_{\mathrm{B}} \quad \mathrm{d} \cos \boldsymbol{\Theta}_{\mathrm{3V}} \quad \mathrm{d} \boldsymbol{\phi}_{\mathrm{3V}} \quad \mathrm{d} \boldsymbol{\psi}_{\mathrm{3V}} \quad \mathrm{d} \boldsymbol{\omega}_{\mathrm{5V}} \tag{8.10}$$

where

$$x^{k} = \overline{e}_{0} \epsilon_{\mu \propto \beta} \lambda_{1} k_{\alpha} q_{2\beta} \epsilon_{\rho} 18 \delta \tau^{q_{4}} \delta^{q_{3}} \delta^{q_{5}} \tau^{(-1)^{j+1}} x$$

$$x^{(k} \lambda)^{j-1} \phi^{(q_{2},j)} (q_{4})^{j-1} \qquad (8.11)$$

and M (t) and M(t) are given by (7.9). p_2p_2

Denoting $\cos \Theta_{3V}$ by C_V and $\sin \Theta_{3V}$ by S_V it follows from (A.11) and the definitions (3.27) that:

$$p_{2} \cdot r = -\overline{g}_{0} \left[\frac{2^{j} j j j j}{(2j) l} \frac{1}{j^{2}} (E_{B} p_{B} q_{B} \sin \Theta_{B}) \mu_{2} k_{V}^{j-1} q_{V}^{j-1} \right] x$$

$$q_{3V} q_{5V} \sin \Theta_{35V}$$
 x $\cos \phi_{3V} \cos \phi_{3V} \int j(j+1) P_j^{o}(C_V) -$

$$\frac{c_{V}}{s_{V}} P_{j}^{1}(c_{V}) - \sin \psi_{3V} \sin \phi_{3V} \left\{ \frac{1}{s_{V}} P_{j}^{1}(c_{V}) \right\}$$

$$(8.12)$$

where use has been made of the fact that the angle between p_{2V} and q_{1V} , denoted by \mathbf{E}_{V} as shown in Fig. 2(b), satisfies equation (7.11).

Similarly it may be shown that:

$$\mathbf{r} \cdot \mathbf{r}^{+} = -\left| \overline{\mathbf{g}}_{0} \right|^{2} \left[\frac{2^{j} j j j j}{(2j) l} \frac{1}{j^{2}} \left(\psi_{2} \mathbf{k}_{V} \right) \psi_{2} \mathbf{k}_{V}^{j-1} \mathbf{q}_{V}^{j-1} \mathbf{q}_{3V} \mathbf{q}_{5V} \sin \Theta_{35V} \right]^{2} \mathbf{x}$$

$$x \left[\cos^2 \psi_{3V} \left\{ j(j+1) P_j^{\circ}(C_V) - \frac{C_V}{s_V} P_j^{\dagger}(C_V) \right\}^2 \right]$$

81.

$$+\sin^{2}\psi_{3V}\left\{\frac{1}{s_{V}}P_{j}^{1}(c_{V})\right\}^{2}\right]$$
(8.13)

Substituting (8.12) and (8.13) into the expression (8.10) for $d\sigma(b)$ gives:

$$d\sigma(b) = \frac{1}{(4\pi)^2} |g_0|^2 \frac{q_B}{4E_B^2 p_B} \frac{1}{(t-y^2)^2} \frac{2^j j j j j}{(2j)} x$$

$$\frac{(j+1)}{j} k_{V}^{2j-2} \left[M_{p_{2}p_{2}}^{(t)} \left(E_{B}p_{B}q_{B} \sin \Theta_{B} \right)^{2} \left\{ \cos \psi_{3V} \cos \phi_{3V} \right\} \right]$$

$$x \left[j(j+1) P_{j}^{o}(C_{V}) - \frac{C_{V}}{S_{V}} P_{j}^{1}(C_{V}) \right] - \sin \psi_{3V} \sin \phi_{3V} \left[\frac{1}{S_{V}} P_{j}^{1}(C_{V}) \right] \right\}^{2}$$

+ M(t)
$$\left(\frac{1}{2} k_{V} \right)^{2} \left\{ \cos^{2} \psi_{3V} \left[j(j+1) P_{j}^{\circ}(C_{V}) - \frac{C_{V}}{S_{V}} P_{j}^{1}(C_{V}) \right]^{2} \right\}$$

$$+\sin^{2}\psi_{3V}\left[\frac{1}{S_{V}}P_{j}^{1}(C_{V})\right]^{2}\right] d\cos\Theta_{B}d\phi_{B} \times \frac{\int_{V}(2-3,4)}{\int_{V}} \times$$

$$x \frac{(2j+1)}{2j^{2}(j+1)^{2}} d c_{v} \frac{1}{2\pi} d \phi_{3v} x \frac{\Gamma_{x}(4-5,6)}{\Gamma_{x}} x \frac{1}{\pi} d \psi_{3v} x$$

•

$$\frac{3}{4} \frac{\mu_{4}}{q_{5X}^{3} q_{3V}^{3}} q_{3V}^{2} q_{5V}^{2} \sin^{2} \Theta_{35V} dw_{5V}$$
(8.14)

where use has been made of (6.8) and (6.12) to separate out the branching ratio factors.

To determine the decay distribution as a function of any of the variables $\cos \Theta_{3V}$, ϕ_{3V} or ψ_{3V} it is necessary to integrate over the other variables. These decay distributions are of the form:

$$\frac{(2j+1)}{(2j^2)^2(j+1)^2} \left[\left\{ j(j+1) P_j^0(\cos\Theta_{3V}) - \frac{\cos\Theta_{3V}}{\sin\Theta_{3V}} P_j^1(\cos\Theta_{3V}) \right\}^2 + \frac{(2j+1)^2}{(\cos\Theta_{3V})^2} \left[\left\{ j(j+1) P_j^0(\cos\Theta_{3V}) - \frac{\cos\Theta_{3V}}{\sin\Theta_{3V}} P_j^1(\cos\Theta_{3V}) \right\}^2 \right] \right]$$

+
$$\left(\frac{1}{\sin\Theta_{3V}} P_j^1 (\cos\Theta_{3V})\right)^2 d \cos\Theta_{3V}$$
 (8.15)

$$\frac{1}{2\pi} \left[A(s,t) + B(s,t) \frac{1}{2j(j+1)} \left\{ (2j+1) + (j^2 - j - 1) 2 \cos^2 \phi_{3V} \right\} \right] d\phi_{3V}$$
(8.16)

$$\frac{1}{2\pi} \left[\frac{1}{j(j+1)} \left\{ (2j+1) + (j^2 - j - 1) 2 \cos^2 \psi_{3V} \right\} \right] d\psi_{3V}$$
(8.17)

where A(s,t) and B(s,t) are specific functions of s but arbitrary functions of t. The distribution of the decay products as a function of $\cos \Theta_{3V}$ and as a function of Ψ_{3V} are both independent of the production process variables whereas the distribution as a function of ϕ_{3V} depends not only on the production process variables but also on the ratio of the coupling constants f_2 and f_3 and their associated form factors.

The distribution of the decay products as a function of 5V is independent of all the other variables and is given by (8.5) as in the case of pseudoscalar particle exchange.

Integrating over $d\psi_{3V}$ and $d\omega_{5V}$ and assuming $\Gamma_X (4-5,6) = \Gamma_X$ gives the spin averaged differential cross section for the production of a spin j, normal parity resonance and the decay of this state into a pseudoscalar meson and a vector meson. The result obtained is then:

$$d\sigma(b) = \frac{g_{0}^{2}}{4\pi} \left| \frac{G_{0}(t)}{(m_{g_{0}})^{j}} \right|^{2} \frac{q_{B}}{4E_{B}^{2} p_{B}} \frac{1}{(t-\mu^{2})^{2}} \frac{2^{j}jjj}{(2j)^{j}} x$$

$$x \frac{(j+1)}{j} k_{V}^{2j-2} x \left[\left\{ \frac{f_{2}^{2}}{4\pi} \right| F_{2}(t) \right]^{2} 4 + \frac{f_{2}f_{3}}{4\pi} x \right]$$

$$\frac{2\text{Re}\left[F_{2}(t) F_{3}^{+}(t)\right]}{\binom{m_{f_{3}}}{2}} = 2\binom{m_{1}^{+} + m_{2}}{2} + \frac{f^{2}_{3}}{4\pi} = \frac{\left|F_{3}(t)\right|^{2}}{\binom{m_{f_{3}}}{2}} \left[-t + \binom{m_{1}^{+} + m_{2}}{2}\right] x$$

$$= \left(E_{B} P_{B} q_{B} \sin \Theta_{B} \right)^{2} \left(\cos^{2} \phi_{3V} \left[j(j+1) P_{j}^{\circ}(C_{V}) - \frac{C_{V}}{S_{V}} P_{j}^{1}(C_{V}) \right]^{2} + \right)$$

$$+ \sin^{2} \phi_{3V} \left[\frac{1}{S_{V}} P_{j}^{1} (C_{V}) \right]^{2} + \left\{ \frac{f^{2}}{4\pi} |F_{2}(t)|^{2} \left[-t + (m_{1}^{\prime} - m_{2})^{2} \right] x \right] \left[\frac{f^{2}}{2} |F_{2}(t)|^{2} \left[-t + (m_{1}^{\prime} - m_{2})^{2} \right] x + \left[\frac{1}{S_{V}} P_{j}^{1} (C_{V}) \right]^{2} + \left[\frac{1}{S_{V}} P_{j}^{1} (C_{V}) \right]^{2} \right] d \cos \theta_{B} d \phi_{B} x$$

$$x \frac{\Gamma_{V}(2 - 3, 4)}{\Gamma_{V}} \frac{(2j+1)}{2j^{2}(j+1)} d C_{V} \frac{1}{2\pi} d \phi_{3V} \qquad (8.18)$$

84.

As for (8.6) this result is completely independent of the decay mode of the vector meson. Thus (8.18) applies to both (8.7) and (8.8) provided the boson resonance of spin j has normal parity and the production processes are mediated by vector particle exchange.

The spin averaged differential cross section for the general two body production process (7.7) mediated by vector meson exchange is found by putting $\Gamma_V (2-3.4) = \Gamma_V \text{ in (8.18)}$ and integrating over C_V and ϕ_{3V} . The result is of course given by (7.18)

(iii) Pseudovector particle exchange. The invariant matrix element is given by:

$$\langle P_2 q_3 q_5 q_6 | T | P_1 q_1 \rangle = \overline{u} (P_2) \left[f_2 F_2(t) \partial_{\mu} + \frac{f_3 F_3(t)}{(m_{f_3})} P_2 \right] +$$

$$\frac{\mathbf{f}_{4}\mathbf{F}_{4}(\mathbf{t})}{\binom{m}{\mathbf{f}_{4}}} \quad \mathbf{k}_{p} \left[\mathbf{X}_{\mathbf{f}} \quad \mathbf{u} \left(\mathbf{p}_{1} \right) \times (-1) \left[\mathbf{g}_{p} \mathbf{v} - \frac{\mathbf{k}_{p} \mathbf{k}_{v}}{\mathbf{p}^{2}} \right] \frac{1}{(\mathbf{t} - \mathbf{p}^{2})} \right] \times \mathbf{x}$$

$$\left[\frac{g_{1}G_{1}(t,v)}{(m_{g_{1}})^{n-2}}g_{\nu}\lambda_{1} + \frac{g_{2}G_{2}(t,v)}{(m_{g_{2}})^{n}}q_{2\nu}\lambda_{1} + \frac{g_{3}G_{3}(t,v)}{(m_{g_{3}})^{n}}k_{\nu}k_{1}\right]$$

$$x (k_{\lambda})^{n-1} (-1)^{n} \phi_{\lambda \rho}^{(q_{2},n)} \frac{1}{(v-\mu_{2}^{2}) + i\mu_{2}\Gamma_{V}} \frac{h_{o}H_{o}(v,x)}{(m_{h_{o}})^{n}} (q_{4}\rho)^{n-1} x$$

$$x \epsilon_{p_{4}} s \delta \sigma_{4} \gamma_{4} \gamma_{3} \delta \left[\varepsilon_{\sigma \tau}^{e_{4}} - \frac{q_{4} \sigma^{q_{4}} \tau}{p_{4}^{2}} \right] \frac{1}{(x - p_{4}^{2}) + i p_{4} \Gamma_{X}} i I(x) q_{5\tau}$$

$$(8.19)$$

Substituting (8.19) in (3.29), averaging over initial spin states, summing over final spin states and integrating over dv and dx gives, with the notation of (7.3) and the approximations (8.3), the result:

$$d \bullet (b) = \frac{1}{(4\pi)^4} \frac{q_B}{4E_B^2 p_B} \frac{1}{(t-p^2)^2} \frac{h_o^2}{4\pi} \frac{1}{2p_2^2 (m_h_o)^2 j \Gamma_V} x$$

85.

$$\frac{i^{2}}{4\pi} = \frac{1}{274 \sqrt{x}} \times \int_{p_{2}p_{2}}^{M} (t) (p_{2} \cdot r) (p_{2} \cdot r^{+}) + M_{p_{2}k}(t) (p_{2} \cdot r) (kr^{+}) (kr^{+}) + M_{p_{2}k}(t) (p_{2} \cdot r) (kr^{+}) (kr^{+}) + M_{p_{2}k}(t) (p_{2} \cdot r) (kr^{+}) (kr^{+}) + M_{p_{2}k}(t) (kr^{+}) (kr^{+}) (kr^{+}) (kr^{+}) + M_{p_{2}k}(t) (kr^{+}) (kr^{$$

$$M_{kp_2}(t) (k_{\bullet}r) (p_2 \cdot r^+) + M_{kk}(t) (k_{\bullet}r) (k_{\bullet}r^+) - M(t)(r_{\bullet}r^+)$$

$$d \cos \Theta_{B} d \phi_{B} d \cos \Theta_{3V} d \phi_{3V} d \psi_{3V} d \omega_{5V}$$
(8.20)

where

$$\mathbf{r}_{\mu} = \left[\mathbf{g}_{\mu\nu} - \frac{\mathbf{k}_{\mu}\mathbf{k}_{\nu}}{\mu^{2}} \right] \left[\overline{\mathbf{g}}_{1} \mathbf{g}_{\nu\lambda 1} + \overline{\mathbf{g}}_{2} \mathbf{q}_{2\nu}\mathbf{k}_{\lambda 1} + \overline{\mathbf{g}}_{3}\mathbf{k}_{\nu}\mathbf{k}_{\lambda 1} \right] \mathbf{x}$$

$$= 1^{4} \beta \delta^{q_{2}} a^{q_{3}} \beta^{q_{5}} \delta^{x_{(-1)}^{j+1}} (k_{\lambda})^{j-1} \phi^{(q_{2},j)} (q_{4})^{j-1}$$
(8.21)

and the various $M_{\bullet}(t)$ are given by (7.22).

Denoting the variable $\cos \Theta_{3V}$ by C_V it follows from (A.10) and (3.27) that, with the notation of (7.26)

$$k \cdot r = - \left[\begin{array}{c} \frac{2^{j} j j j j j}{(2j) j} & \frac{1}{j^{2}} & k_{V}^{j-2} q_{V}^{j-1} \not\models_{2} q_{3V} q_{5V} \sin \theta_{35V} \end{array} \right] \qquad x$$

$$\begin{bmatrix} \overline{g}_{k} k_{V}^{2} \cos \psi_{3V} \quad j \quad P_{j}^{1} (C_{V}) \end{bmatrix}$$
(8.22)

86.

and from (A.10) and (A.11) it follows that:

$$p_{2} \cdot r = -\left[\frac{2^{j}j_{1}j_{1}}{(2j)_{1}} \frac{1}{j^{2}} k_{V}^{j-2} q_{V}^{j-1} \not _{2}q_{3V}q_{5V} \sin \Theta_{35V}\right] \times$$

$$\times \left[\overline{g}_{p_{2}} k_{V}^{2} \cos \psi_{3V} j F_{j}^{1} (C_{V}) - \overline{g}_{1} P_{2V}k_{V} \left(\cos \xi_{V} \cos \psi_{3V} j F_{j}^{1} (C_{V}) - \overline{g}_{1} P_{2V}k_{V}\right)\right]$$

$$-\sin \epsilon_{v} \left[\cos \phi_{3v} \sin \phi_{3v} \left\{ j(j+1) P_{j}^{o}(C_{v}) - \frac{C_{v}}{S_{v}} P_{j}^{1}(C_{v}) \right\} + \sin \phi_{3v} \cos \phi_{3v} \left\{ \frac{1}{S_{v}} P_{j}^{1}(C_{v}) \right\} \right] \right]$$

$$(8.23)$$

and

$$\mathbf{r} \cdot \mathbf{r}^{+} = \left[\frac{2^{j} \mathbf{i} \mathbf{j} \mathbf{j}}{(2j)\mathbf{i}} \frac{1}{\mathbf{j}^{2}} \mathbf{k}_{V}^{j-2} \mathbf{q}_{V}^{j-1} \mathbf{\mu}_{2} \mathbf{q}_{3V} \mathbf{q}_{5V} \sin \Theta_{35V} \right]^{2} \\ \left[\left| \overline{\mathbf{g}}_{\mathbf{r}} \right|^{2} \mathbf{k}_{V}^{4} \cos^{2} \mathbf{\psi}_{3V} \left\{ \mathbf{j} \mathbf{P}_{\mathbf{j}}^{1} (\mathbf{c}_{V}) \right\}^{2} - \left| \overline{\mathbf{g}}_{\mathbf{1}} \right|^{2} \mathbf{k}_{V}^{2} \left\{ \cos^{2} \mathbf{\psi}_{3V} \times \mathbf{x} \right\} \\ \mathbf{x} \left[\mathbf{j} \mathbf{P}_{\mathbf{j}}^{1} (\mathbf{c}_{V}) \right]^{2} + \cos^{2} \mathbf{\psi}_{3V} \left[\mathbf{j} (\mathbf{j}+1) \mathbf{P}_{\mathbf{j}}^{0} (\mathbf{c}_{V}) - \frac{\mathbf{c}_{V}}{\mathbf{v}} \mathbf{P}_{\mathbf{j}}^{1} (\mathbf{c}_{V}) \right]^{2} \\ + \sin^{2} \mathbf{\psi}_{3V} \left[\frac{1}{\mathbf{S}_{V}} \mathbf{P}_{\mathbf{j}}^{1} (\mathbf{c}_{V}) \right]^{2} \right\} \right]$$

$$(8.24)$$

where the angle ϵ_{v} satisfies the relationships (7.27). Substitution of (8.22) - (8.25) in (8.20) gives

$$d\sigma(b) = \frac{1}{(4\pi)^2} \frac{q_B}{4E_B^2 p_B} \frac{1}{(t-p^2)^2} \frac{2^j j j j}{(2j)} k_V^2 x$$

$$x \left[\frac{\overline{M}}{p_2 p_2} p_2^2 k_v^2 \right] \cos \varepsilon_v \cos \psi_{3v} j P_j^1(C_v) - \sin \varepsilon_v \qquad x$$

$$\left[\cos\psi_{3V} \sin\phi_{3V} \left\{ j(j+1) P_{j}^{o}(C_{V}) - \frac{C_{V}}{S_{V}} P_{j}^{1}(C_{V}) \right\} + \sin\psi_{3V}\cos\phi_{3V} \right]$$

$$\left\{\frac{1}{S_{V}} P_{j}^{1}(C_{V})\right\}\right\}^{2} + 2Re\left(\overline{M}_{p_{2}k}\right) P_{2V} k_{V}^{3} \left\{\cos\psi_{3V} j P_{j}^{1}(C_{V})\right\} x$$

$$\begin{cases} \cos \epsilon_{v} \cos \psi_{3v} j P_{j}^{1} (C_{v}) - \sin \epsilon_{v} \left[\cos \psi_{3v} \sin \phi_{3v} \right] x \end{cases}$$

$$\left\{ j(j+1) P_{j}^{o}(C_{V}) - \frac{C_{V}}{S_{V}} P_{j}^{1}(C_{V}) \right\} + \sin \psi_{3V} \cos \phi_{3V} \left\{ \frac{1}{S_{V}} P_{j}^{1}(C_{V}) \right\} \right\}$$

+
$$\overline{M}_{kk} k_V^4 \left\{ \cos \psi_{3V} j P_j^1 (C_V) \right\}^2 + \overline{M} \left\{ \cos^2 \psi_{3V} \left[j P_j^1 (C_V) \right]^2 \right\}$$

$$+\cos^{2}\psi_{3V}\left[j(j+1)P_{j}^{o}(C_{V})-\frac{C_{V}}{S_{V}}P_{j}^{1}(C_{V})\right]^{2}+\sin^{2}\psi_{3V} \qquad x$$

$$\left[\frac{1}{S_{V}} P_{j}^{1}(C_{V})\right]^{2} d \cos \Theta_{B} d \phi_{B} \times \frac{V_{V}^{(2-3,4)}}{V} \frac{(2j+1)}{2j^{3}(j+1)} \times$$

$$d C_V = \frac{1}{2\pi} d\phi_{3V} = \frac{\Gamma_X^{(4-5,6)}}{\Gamma_X} \times \frac{1}{\pi} d\psi_{3V} \times \frac{3}{4} = \frac{\mu_4}{q_{5_X}^3 q_{3V}^3} \times \frac{1}{q_{5_X}^3 q_{3V}^3}$$

$$q_{3V}^2 q_{5V}^2 \sin^2 \Theta_{35V} d \omega_{5V}$$
 (8.25)

where the various $\overline{M}_{\bullet,\bullet}$ are the functions appearing in (7.28) which depend in a complicated way on the coupling constants and their associated form factors.

The decay distribution as a function of any one of the variables $\cos \Theta_{3V}$, ϕ_{3V} or ψ_{3V} is obtained by integration over the other two variables. The results are as follows:

$$\frac{(2j+1)}{2j^{3}(j+1)} \left[A(s,t) \left\{ j P_{j}^{1} (\cos \Theta_{3V}) \right\}^{2} + B(s,t) \left[j(j+1) P_{j}^{0} (\cos \Theta_{3V}) - \frac{1}{2} \right] \right]$$

$$-\frac{\cos\Theta_{3V}}{\sin\Theta_{3V}}P_{j}^{1}(\cos\Theta_{3V})\right]^{2} + \left[\frac{1}{\sin\Theta_{3V}}P_{j}^{1}(\cos\Theta_{3V})\right]^{2}\right]d\cos\Theta_{3V}$$
(8.26)

89.

90.

$$\frac{1}{2\pi} \left[C(s,t) + D(s,t) \sin^2 \phi_{3V} \right] d\phi_{3V}$$
(8.27)

$$\frac{1}{\pi} \left[E(s,t) + F(s,t) \sin^2 \psi_{3V} \right] d\psi_{3V}$$
(8.28)

where A, B, C, D, E and F depend on the coupling constants and their associated form factors which are of course arbitrary functions of t.

The distribution of the decay products as a function of 5V is independent of all other variables and is once again given by (8.5).

The spin averaged differential cross section for the production of a spin j, normal parity resonance and the decay of this state into a pseudoscalar meson and a vector meson is obtained from (8.25) by integrating over $d\psi_{3V}$ and $d\psi_{5V}$ and putting $\Gamma_{\chi}(4-5,6) = \Gamma_{\chi}$. The result obtained is then:

$$d\sigma(b) = \frac{1}{(4\pi)^2} \frac{q_B}{4E_B^2} \frac{1}{p_B} \frac{1}{(t-p^2)^2} \frac{2^j j j j j}{(2j)j} k_V^{2j-4} x$$

$$x \left[\frac{\overline{M}}{p_2 p_2} p_{2V}^2 k_V^2 \right] \left[\cos \varepsilon_V j P_j^1 (C_V) - \sin \varepsilon_V \sin \phi_{3V} \right] x$$

$$\left\{ j(j+1) P_{j}^{o}(C_{V}) - \frac{C_{V}}{S_{V}} P_{j}^{1}(C_{V}) \right\}^{2} + \sin^{2} \epsilon_{V} \cos^{2} \phi_{3V} \qquad x$$

$$\left\{ \frac{1}{S_{V}} P_{j}^{1} (C_{V}) \right\}^{2} + 2 \operatorname{Re} \left(\overline{M}_{P_{2}k} \right) P_{2V} k_{V}^{3} \left\{ j P_{j}^{1} (C_{V}) \right\} \times \left\{ \cos \varepsilon_{V} j P_{j}^{1} (C_{V}) - \sin \varepsilon_{V} \sin \phi_{3V} \left[j (j+1) P_{j}^{0} (C_{V}) - \frac{C_{V}}{S_{V}} P_{j}^{1} (C_{V}) \right] \right\}$$

$$+ \overline{M}_{kk} k_{V}^{4} \left\{ j P_{j}^{1} (C_{V}) \right\}^{2} + \overline{M} \left\{ \left[j P_{j}^{1} (C_{V}) \right]^{2} \right\}$$

$$+ \left[j (j+1) P_{j}^{0} (C_{V}) - \frac{C_{V}}{S_{V}} P_{j}^{1} (C_{V}) \right]^{2} + \left[\frac{1}{S_{V}} P_{j}^{1} (C_{V}) \right]^{2} \right] d \cos \Theta_{B} d\phi_{B} \times$$

$$\times \frac{\Gamma_{V}^{(2-3,4)}}{\Gamma_{V}} \times \frac{(2j+1)}{2j^{3}(j+1)} d C_{V} \times \frac{1}{2\pi} d\phi_{3V} \qquad (8.29)$$

As for (8.6) and (8.18) this result is once again independent of the decay mode of the vector meson and thus applies to both (8.7) and (8.8) provided the boson resonance of spin j has normal parity and the production processes are mediated by pseudovector particle exchange.

The spin averaged differential cross section for the general two body production process (7.7) mediated by pseudovector meson exchange is found by putting $\Gamma_V(2-3,4) = \Gamma_V$ in (8.29) and integrating over C_V and ϕ_{3V} . The result is of course given by (7.31).

b) Abnormal parity

In the peripheral production of such a resonance the exchanged particle may be a scalar, a vector or a pseudovector particle. The differential cross section for the process described by Fig. 1(b) is calculated for each of these three possibilities as follows:

(i) Scalar particle exchange.

The invariant matrix element is given by:

$$\langle P_2 q_3 q_5 q_6 | T | P_1 q_1 \rangle = \overline{u} (P_2) f F(t) \chi_f u (P_1) \frac{1}{(t-\mu^2)} x$$

$$x (-1) \frac{g G(t,v)}{{\binom{m}{g}}^{n-1}} {\binom{k}{\lambda}}^n \phi_{\lambda \rho} {\binom{q_2,n}{p}} {\binom{q_4}{p}}^{n-1} \frac{1}{\left[{\binom{v-y^2}{2}} + \frac{iy_2}{p} \Gamma_V \right]}$$

$$* \left[\frac{h_1 H_1(v_1 x)}{(m_{h_1})^{n-2}} g_{\sigma p_1} + \frac{h_2 H_2(v_1 x)}{(m_{h_2})^n} g_2 \sigma^{q_4} p_1 + \frac{h_3 H_3(v_1 x)}{(m_{h_3})^n} g_4 \sigma^{q_4} p_1 \right]$$

$$x (-1) \left[{}^{g} \varepsilon \tau - \frac{{}^{q}_{4} \sigma {}^{q}_{4} \tau}{{}^{2}_{4}} \right] \frac{1}{\left[(x - \mu_{4}^{2}) + i \mu_{4} \Gamma_{X} \right]} i I(x) {}^{q}_{5} \tau$$

$$(8.30)$$

Substituting (8.30) in the expression (3.29) for d σ (b), averaging over initial spin states and summing over final spin states and integrating over dv and dx gives, with the notation of (7.3) and the approximations (8.3), the result:

$$d\sigma(b) = \frac{1}{(4\pi)^{6}} \frac{q_{B}}{4E_{B}^{2} p_{B}} \int \frac{f F(t) g G(t) i}{(m_{g})^{j-1}} \int^{2} \frac{[-t + (m_{1}^{j} + m_{2})^{2}]}{(t-\mu^{2})^{2}}$$

$$x \frac{1}{2\mu_{2}^{2}} \frac{1}{V} \frac{1}{2\mu_{4}} \frac{1}{\Gamma_{X}} \left[(-1)^{j+1} (k_{\lambda})^{j} \phi_{\lambda} \rho^{(q_{2}, j)} (q_{\mu})^{j-1} \right]$$

$$x \left\{ \frac{h_{1}}{(m_{h_{1}})^{j-2}} \left(q_{5}\rho_{1} - \frac{q_{4} q_{5}}{\mu_{4}^{2}} q_{4}\rho_{1} \right) + \frac{h_{2}}{(m_{h_{2}})^{j}} x \right\}$$

$$x \left\{ q_{2}q_{5} - \frac{q_{2} q_{4} q_{4} q_{5}}{\mu_{4}^{2}} q_{4}\rho_{1} \right\}^{2} d \cos \Theta_{B} d \phi_{B} d \cos \Theta_{3V} x$$

$$x \left\{ q_{3V} d \psi_{3V} d \psi_{5V} d \omega_{5V} \right\}$$
(8.31)

Using the relationships (3.28), (A.8) and (A.10) the above result may be written as:

$$d\sigma(b) = \frac{f^2}{4\pi} \frac{g^2}{4\pi} \left| \frac{F(t) G(t)}{(m_g)^{j-1}} \right|^2 \frac{q_B}{4E_B^2 p_B}$$

$$x \frac{\left[-t + (m_{1} + m_{2})^{2}\right]}{(t-\mu^{2})^{2}} \frac{2^{j} j j j j}{(2j) j} \qquad k_{V}^{2j} \ d \cos \Theta_{B} \ d \phi_{B}$$

$$x \frac{\left[\frac{V(2-3,4)}{V}\right]}{V} \left[(\bar{h}_{1})^{2} (j+1) + (\bar{h}_{2}) j \right]^{-1} x \frac{\left[\frac{V(4-5,6)}{X}\right]}{X} \qquad x$$

$$x \left[(\bar{h}_{1}) \ Q_{1} \ (\omega_{5V}) \ \sin \psi_{3V} \ P_{j}^{1} \ (\cos \Theta_{3V}) + (\bar{h}_{2}) \ Q_{2} \ (\omega_{5V}) \ j \ P_{j}^{0} (\cos \Theta_{3V}) \right]^{2}$$

94.

$$x \frac{(2j+1)}{4\pi^{2} j} d \cos \Theta_{3V} d \phi_{3V} d \psi_{3V} \frac{3}{4} \frac{\frac{7}{4}}{q_{3V}^{3} q_{5X}^{3}} d\omega_{5V}$$
(8.32)

where

$$\bar{h}_{1} = \frac{h_{1}}{(m_{h_{1}})^{j-2}}$$
(8.33a)

$$\bar{h}_{2} = \frac{h_{1}}{(m_{h_{1}})^{j-2}} \frac{\omega_{4V}}{\mu_{4}} + \frac{h_{2}}{(m_{h_{2}})^{j}} \frac{\mu_{2} q_{V}^{2}}{\mu_{4}}$$
(8.33b)

and

$$Q_1(\boldsymbol{\omega}_{5V}) = q_{3V} q_{5V} \sin \Theta_{35V} \qquad (8.34a)$$

$$Q_2(w_{5V}) = (w_{5X}w_{4V} - \mu_4 w_{5V})$$
 (8.34b)

and where (6.11) and (6.12) have been used to separate out the branching ratio factors.

The first factor in the expression (8.32) is identical with that appearing in (7.5) and is in fact the spin averaged differential cross section for the production of a spin j, abnormal parity resonance in the process (7.7) mediated by scalar meson exchange.

The remaining factors in (8.32) give the distributions of the decay products as functions of the variables $\cos \Theta_{3V}$, ϕ_{3V} , ψ_{3V} , and ω_{5V} , normalised so that integration over all these variables gives unity. The decay distributions as a functions of a single variable are given by:

$$\left[(\bar{h}_{1})^{2} (j+1) + (\bar{h}_{2})^{2} j \right]^{-1} \frac{(2j+1)}{2j} \left[(\bar{h}_{1})^{2} \left\{ P_{j}^{1} (\cos \Theta_{3V}) \right\}^{2} + \frac{1}{2} \left\{ P_{j}^{1} (\cos \Theta_{3V}) \right\}^{2} \right\}$$

+
$$(\tilde{h}_2)^2 \left\{ j P^0 (\cos \Theta_{3V}) \right\}^2 \right] d \cos \Theta_{3V}$$
 (8.35)

$$\frac{1}{2\pi} \quad d \phi_{3V} \tag{8.36}$$

$$\left[(h_{1})^{2} (j+1) + (h_{2})^{2} j \right]^{-\frac{1}{\eta}} \overline{(n_{1})^{2} (j+1)} \sin^{2} \Psi_{3V} + (h_{2})^{2} \frac{1}{2} j d \Psi_{3V}$$

$$(8.37)$$

$$\left[(h_1)^2 (j+1) + (h_2)^2 j \right]^{-1} \left[(h_1)^2 (j+1) (q_{3V} q_{5V} \sin \Theta_{35V})^2 + \right]^{-1}$$

+
$$(\tilde{h}_2)^2 2j (\omega_{5X}\omega_{4V} - \mu_{4}\omega_{5V})^2 \int \frac{3}{4} \frac{\mu_4}{q_{3V}^3 q_{5X}^3} d\omega_{5V}$$
 (8.38)

Apart from the distribution as a function of \oint_{3V} , which is isotropic in accordance with the Trieman-Yang test, these distributions depend upon the ratio of h_1 and h_2 . This limits to a certain extent the use of these distributions as a test of the spin and parity of the resonance. However the distributions of the decay products as functions of the above variables are all independent of the production process variables and of the arbitrary form factors. This makes a test of the model comparatively easy.

Integrating over $d\Psi_{3V}$ and dW_{5V} and putting $\Gamma_{\chi}(4-5,6) = \Gamma_{\chi}$ gives the spin averaged differential cross section for the production of a spin j, abnormal parity resonance and the decay of this state into a pseudoscalar particle and a vector particle. The result is:

d
$$\sigma$$
 (b) = $\frac{f^2}{4\pi} \frac{g^2}{4\pi} \left| \frac{F(t) G(t)}{(m_g)^{j-1}} \right|^2 \frac{q_B}{4E_B^2 p_B}$

96.

$$x \frac{\left[\frac{-t + (m_{1} + m_{2})^{2}}{(t - \gamma^{2})^{2}} - \frac{2^{j} j j j j}{(2j) j} + k_{V}^{2j} d \cos \theta_{B} d \phi_{B} \right]$$

$$x \frac{\Gamma_{V} (2 - 3, 4)}{\Gamma_{V}} - \frac{1}{\left[(\bar{n}_{1})^{2} (j + 1) + (\bar{n}_{2})^{2} j\right]}$$

$$x \left[(\bar{n}_{1})^{2} \left\{ P_{j}^{1} (\cos \theta_{3V}) \right\}^{2} + (\bar{n}_{2})^{2} \left\{ j P_{j}^{0} (\cos \theta_{3V}) \right\}^{2} \right]$$

$$x \frac{(2j + 1)}{2j} d \cos \theta_{3V} \frac{1}{2\pi} d \phi_{3V}$$

$$(8.39)$$

97.

Once again this result is independent of the decay mode of the vector meson and thus applies to both (8.7) and (8.8) provided that the boson resonance of spin j has abnormal parity and the production processes are mediated by scalar meson exchange.

The spin averaged differential cross section for the general two body production process (7.7) mediated by scalar meson exchange is found by putting $\Gamma_{V}(2-3,4) = \Gamma_{V}$ in (8.39) and integrating over $\cos \Theta_{3V}$ and ϕ_{3V} . The result is of course given by (7.6). (ii) Vector particle exchange.

The invariant matrix element is given by:

$$\langle P_2 q_3 q_5 q_6 | T | P_1 q_1 \rangle = \overline{u} (P_2) \left[f_2 F_2 (t) \right] + \frac{f_3 F_3(t)}{(m_f_3)} + \frac{P_2 p_1 + P_2}{(m_f_3)} \right]$$

$$\frac{f_{4}F_{4}(t)}{\binom{m}{f_{4}}} \stackrel{k}{\not } \stackrel{k}{ }$$

$$x \left[\frac{g_1^{G_1(t,v)}}{\binom{m}{g_1}^{n-2}} g_{\nu\lambda_1} + \frac{g_2^{G_2(t,v)}}{\binom{m}{g_2}^{n}} q_{2\nu}^{k} \lambda_1 + \frac{g_3^{G_3(t,v)}}{\binom{m}{g_3}^{n}} k_{\nu}^{k} \lambda_1 \right]$$

$$x (k_{\lambda})^{n-1} (-1)^{n} \phi_{\lambda} (q_{2}, n) \frac{1}{\left[(v - \gamma_{2}^{2}) + i \gamma_{2} \Gamma_{V} \right]} (q_{.4})^{n-1} p^{n-1}$$

$$x \left[\frac{h_{1}H_{1}(v,x)}{(m_{h_{1}})^{n-2}} g_{\sigma,\rho_{1}} + \frac{h_{2}H_{2}(v,x)}{(m_{h_{2}})^{n}} q_{2}\sigma^{q_{4}}\rho_{1} + \frac{h_{2}H_{2}(v,x)}{(m_{h_{2}})^{n}} q_{2}\sigma^{q_{4}}\rho_{1} \right]$$

$$\frac{h_{3}H_{3}(v_{1}x)}{(m_{h_{3}})^{n}} q_{4}\sigma q_{4}\rho_{1} x (-1) \left[g_{\sigma\tau} - \frac{q_{4}\sigma q_{4}}{\gamma_{4}^{2}}\right] x$$

$$x \frac{1}{(x-y_{4}^{2}) + iy_{4}\Gamma_{X}} \quad i I (x) q_{5\tau}$$
(8.40)

Substituting (8.40) in the expression (3.29) for d**e**(b), averaging over initial spin states, summing over final spin states

98.

and integrating over dv and d_X gives, with the notation of (7.3) and the approximations (8.3) the result:

$$d\sigma^{*}(b) = \frac{1}{(4\pi)^{5}} \frac{q_{B}}{4E_{B}^{2} p_{B}} \frac{1}{(t-\mu^{2})^{2}} \frac{1}{2\mu_{2}^{2}} \frac{1}{\Gamma_{V}} \frac{1}{4\pi} \frac{1}{2\mu_{4}} \frac{1}{\Gamma_{X}} x$$

$$x \left[M_{p_{2}p_{2}}(t) (p_{2},r) (p_{2},r^{+}) + M_{p_{2}k_{2}}(t) (p_{2},r) (k,r^{+}) + M_{kp_{2}}(t) (k,r) (p_{2},r^{+}) \right]$$

$$+ M_{kk}(t) (k,r) (k,r^{+}) - M (t) (r,r^{+}) d \cos\theta_{B} d\phi_{B} d \cos\theta_{3V} x$$

$$a\phi_{3V} a\psi_{3V} a\omega_{5V}$$
 (8.41)

where

$${}^{r}\mu = \left[{}^{g}_{\mu\nu} - \frac{{}^{k}\mu^{k}\nu}{\mu^{2}} \right] \left[{}^{\overline{g}_{1}} {}^{g}_{\nu}\lambda_{1} + {}^{\overline{g}_{2}} {}^{q}_{2\nu}{}^{k}\lambda_{1} + {}^{\overline{g}_{3}} {}^{k}\nu^{k}\lambda_{1} \right]$$

$$x (-1)^{j} (k_{\lambda})^{j-1} \oint_{\lambda \rho} (q_{2} j) (q_{4} \rho)^{j-1} \left[\frac{h_{1}}{(m_{h_{1}})^{j-2}} (q_{5\rho_{1}} - \frac{q_{4} \cdot q_{5}}{\mu_{4}^{2}} q_{4\rho_{1}}) \right]$$

$$+ \frac{h_2}{(m_{h_2})^j} (q_2 \cdot q_5 - \frac{q_2 \cdot \frac{q_4 \cdot q_4 \cdot q_5}{\mu_4^2}}{\mu_4^2}) q_{4p_1}$$
(8.42)

and the various M(t) are given by (7.22).

Denoting $\cos\Theta_{3V}$ by C_V and $\sin\Theta_{3V}$ by S_V and with the notation of (7.26), (8.33) and (8.34) it follows from (A.8) and (A.10) that:

$$k_{\bullet}r = -\left[\frac{2^{j}jjj}{(2j)}, \frac{1}{j}k_{V}^{j-2}q_{V}^{j-2}\right]\overline{g}_{k}k_{V}^{2} x$$

$$x \left[(\tilde{h}_{1}) \quad Q_{1}(\omega_{5V}) \sin \psi_{3V} P_{j}^{1} (C_{V}) + (\tilde{h}_{2}) Q_{2} (\omega_{5V}) j P_{j}^{0} (C_{V}) \right] (8.43)$$

and from (A.8) - (A.11) it may be shown that:

$$p_2 \cdot r = -\left[\frac{2^j j j j j j}{(2j)!} \frac{1}{j} k_V^{j-2} q_V^{j-2}\right]$$

$$\left\{ \overline{g}_{p_2} k_V^2 \left[\overline{h}_1 q_1(\omega_{5V}) \sin \psi_{3V} P_j^1(C_V) + \overline{h}_2 q_2(\omega_{5V}) j P_j^0(C_V) \right] \right\}$$

$$-\overline{g}_{1} p_{2V} k_{V} \left[h_{1} Q_{1} (w_{5V}) \right] \cos \varepsilon_{V} \sin \psi_{3V} P_{j}^{1} (C_{V}) + \sin \varepsilon_{V} \frac{1}{j}$$

$$\left[\cos\psi_{3V}\cos\phi_{3V}\frac{1}{\delta_{V}} P_{j}^{1}(C_{V}) - \sin\psi_{3V}\sin\phi_{3V}\left\{j(j+1) P_{j}^{0}(C_{V}) - \right\}\right]$$

4

$$\frac{c_{v}}{s_{v}} p_{j}^{1} (c_{v}) \Big\} \Big\} + \tilde{h}_{2} \varphi_{2}(\omega_{5}v) \Big\{ \cos \varepsilon_{v} j p_{j}^{o} (c_{v}) + \\ \sin \varepsilon_{v} \sin \phi_{3v} p_{j}^{1} (c_{v}) \Big\} \Big\}$$

$$(8.44)$$
and
$$\mathbf{r} \cdot \mathbf{r}^{+} = - \left[\frac{2^{j} j j j 1}{(2_{j})^{1}} \frac{1}{j} k_{v}^{j-2} q_{v}^{j-2} \right]^{2} \left\{ \sqrt{s_{v}} \sqrt{s_{v}} k_{v}^{4} \right\}$$

$$x \left[\tilde{h}_{1} \varphi_{1}(\omega_{5}v) \sin \psi_{3v} p_{j}^{1}(c_{v}) + \tilde{h}_{2} \varphi_{2}(\omega_{5}v) j p_{j}^{o} (c_{v}) \right]^{2}$$

$$- \sqrt{s_{1}} \sqrt{s_{v}} \left[\left\{ \tilde{h}_{1} \varphi_{1}(\omega_{5}v) \right\}^{2} \left\{ \frac{1}{j^{2}} \left[\frac{1}{s_{v}} p_{j}^{1} (c_{v}) \right]^{2} + \right] \right]$$

$$sin^{2} \psi_{3v} \frac{(j^{2}-1)}{j^{2}} \left[\left\{ p_{j}^{1} (c_{v}) \right\}^{2} - \frac{j}{(j-1)} p_{j}^{o} (c_{v}) p_{j}^{2} (c_{v}) \right] \Big\}$$

$$- 2 \left\{ \tilde{h}_{1} \varphi_{1}(\omega_{5}v) \right\} \left\{ \tilde{h}_{2} \varphi_{2}(\omega_{5}v) \right\} sin \psi_{3v} \frac{1}{j} p_{j}^{1} (c_{v}) \left\{ j p_{j}^{o} (c_{v}) - \frac{c_{v}}{s_{v}} p_{j}^{1} (c_{v}) \right\} + \left\{ \tilde{h}_{2} \varphi_{2}(\omega_{5}v) \right\}^{2} \left\{ \left[j p_{j}^{o} (c_{v}) \right]^{2} + \left[p_{j}^{1} (c_{v}) \right]^{2} \right\} \right\} (8.45)$$

where the angle ϵ_{V} satisfies the relationships (7.27). Substitution of (8.43) - (8.45) into (8.41) gives:

$$d\sigma(b) = \frac{1}{(4\pi)^2} \frac{q_B}{4E_B^2} \frac{1}{(t-p^2)^2} \frac{2^{j}jjj}{(2j)!} k_V^{2j-4} x$$

$$x \left[\frac{\overline{M}}{p_2 p_2} p_{2V}^2 k_V^2 \left\{ \overline{h}_1 Q_1(w_{5V}) \left[\cos \varepsilon_V \sin \psi_{3V} P_j^1(C_V) + \right. \right. \right] \right]$$

$$\sin \epsilon_{v} \frac{1}{j} \left\{ \cos \psi_{3v} \cos \phi_{3v} S_{v}^{1} P_{j}^{1} (C_{v}) - \sin \psi_{3v} \sin \phi_{3v} \right\}$$

$$\left[j(j+1) P_{j}^{\circ}(C_{V}) - \frac{C_{V}}{S_{V}} P_{j}^{1}(C_{V}) \right] \right\} + \bar{h}_{2}Q_{2}(\omega_{5V}) \left[\cos \varepsilon_{V} j P_{j}^{\circ}(C_{V}) + \right]$$

$$\sin \mathbf{\epsilon}_{\mathrm{V}} \sin \mathbf{\phi}_{3\mathrm{V}} P_{\mathrm{j}}^{1}(C_{\mathrm{V}}) \bigg|_{2}^{2} + 2 \operatorname{Re} \left(\overline{\mathrm{M}}_{\mathrm{p}_{2}\mathrm{k}} \right) P_{2\mathrm{V}} k_{\mathrm{V}}^{3} \qquad \mathbf{x}$$

$$x \left\{ \bar{h}_{1} Q_{1}(\boldsymbol{\omega}_{5V}) \sin \boldsymbol{\psi}_{3V} P_{j}^{1}(C_{V}) + \bar{h}_{2} Q_{2}(\boldsymbol{\omega}_{5V}) j P_{j}^{0}(C_{V}) \right\}$$

$$x \left\{ \bar{h}_{1} Q_{1}(w_{5V}) \left[\cos \varepsilon_{V} \sin \psi_{3V} P_{j}^{1}(C_{V}) + \sin \varepsilon_{V} \frac{1}{j} \right] x \right\}$$

$$103.$$

$$\left\{\cos \psi_{3V} \cos \phi_{3V} \frac{1}{S_{V}} P_{J}^{1} (C_{V}) - \sin \psi_{3V} \sin \phi_{3V} [j(j+1) P_{J}^{0} (C_{V}) - \frac{C_{V}}{S_{V}} P_{J}^{1} (C_{V})] \right\} + \bar{h}_{2} \varphi_{2} (\omega_{5V}) [\cos \varepsilon_{V} J P_{J}^{0} (C_{V}) + \sin \varepsilon_{V} \sin \phi_{5V} x$$

$$x P_{J}^{1} (C_{V})] + \bar{h}_{Kk} k_{V}^{4} \left\{ \bar{h}_{1} \varphi_{1} (\omega_{5V}) \sin \psi_{3V} P_{J}^{1} (C_{V}) + \frac{1}{h_{2}} \varphi_{2} (\omega_{5V}) \right\}^{2} + \bar{h}_{Kk} k_{V}^{4} \left\{ \bar{h}_{1} \varphi_{1} (\omega_{5V}) \sin \psi_{3V} P_{J}^{1} (C_{V}) + \frac{1}{h_{2}} \varphi_{2} (\omega_{5V}) \right\}^{2} + \bar{h}_{V} \left\{ [\bar{h}_{1} \varphi_{1} (\omega_{5V})]^{2} [\sin^{2} \psi_{3V} x + \frac{1}{h_{2}} \varphi_{2} (\omega_{5V}) \right\}^{2} + \frac{1}{J^{2}} \left\{ \cos^{2} \psi_{3V} [\frac{1}{S_{V}} P_{J}^{1} (C_{V})]^{2} + \sin^{2} \psi_{3V} x + \frac{1}{J} [j(j+1) P_{J}^{0} (C_{V}) - \frac{C_{V}}{S_{V}} P_{J}^{1} (C_{V})]^{2} + \sin^{2} \psi_{3V} x + \frac{1}{J} [j(j+1) P_{J}^{0} (C_{V}) - \frac{C_{V}}{S_{V}} P_{J}^{1} (C_{V})]^{2} + 2 \left[\bar{h}_{2} \varphi_{2} (\omega_{5V}) - \bar{h}_{2} \varphi_{2} (\omega_{5V}) \right] x \\ \sin \psi_{3V} \frac{1}{3} P_{J}^{1} (C_{V}) \left[J P_{J}^{0} (C_{V}) - \frac{C_{V}}{S_{V}} P_{J}^{1} (C_{V}) \right] + \left[\bar{h}_{2} \varphi_{2} (\omega_{5V}) \right]^{2} \\ x \left[\left\{ j P_{J}^{0} (C_{V}) \right\}^{2} + \left\{ P_{J}^{1} (C_{V}) \right\}^{2} \right\} \right] d \cos \Theta_{B} d\phi_{B}$$

$$\frac{\Gamma_{V}(2-3,4)}{\Gamma_{V}} = \frac{1}{\left[(\tilde{h}_{1})^{2}(j+1) + (\tilde{h}_{2})^{2}j\right]} = \frac{(2j+1)}{2j} d C_{V} \frac{1}{2\pi} d\phi_{3V}$$

$$\frac{\Gamma_{X} (4-5,6)}{\Gamma_{X}} \frac{1}{\pi} d\Psi_{3V} \times \frac{3}{4} \frac{\mu_{4}}{q_{3V}^{3} q_{5X}^{3}} dW_{5V} \qquad (8.46)$$

where the various \overline{M} , are the functions appearing in (7.28) which depend in a complicated way on the coupling constants and their associated form factors.

The decay distribution as a function of any one of the variables $\cos \Theta_{3V}$, ϕ_{3V} , ψ_{3V} or ω_{5V} is obtained by integration over the other three variables. The results are as follows:

$$\left[(\bar{h}_{1})^{2} (j+1) + (\bar{h}_{2})^{2} j \right]^{-1} \frac{(2j+1)}{2j} \left[A(s,t) \left\{ (\bar{h}_{1})^{2} \right\} \right]^{-1} x$$

$$\left[P_{j}^{1} \left(\cos \Theta_{3V} \right) \right]^{2} + \left(\tilde{h}_{2} \right)^{2} \left[j P_{j}^{0} \left(\cos \Theta_{3V} \right) \right]^{2} + B(s,t)$$
 x

$$\left\{ (\tilde{h}_{1})^{2} \frac{1}{j^{2}} \left[\left\{ \frac{1}{s_{V}} P_{j}^{1} (c_{V}) \right\}^{2} + \left\{ j(j+1) P_{j}^{o} (c_{V}) - \frac{c_{V}}{s_{V}} P_{j}^{1} (c_{V}) \right\}^{2} \right] \right.$$

$$+ (\tilde{h}_{2})^{2} \left[P_{j}^{1} (\cos \Theta_{3V}) \right]^{2} \left] d \cos \Theta_{3V} \qquad (8.47)$$

$$\frac{1}{2\pi} \left[C(s,t) + D(s,t) \sin^2 \phi_{3V} \right] d\phi_{3V}$$
(8.48)

$$\frac{1}{\pi} \left[\mathbb{E}(s,t) + \mathbb{F}(s,t) \sin^2 \psi_{3V} \right] d\psi_{3V} \qquad (8.49)$$

$$\left[(\bar{h}_{1})^{2} (j+1) + (\bar{h}_{2})^{2} j \right]^{-1} \left[(\bar{h}_{1})^{2} (j+1) (q_{3} q_{5V} \sin \Theta_{35V})^{2} + \right]$$

+
$$(\overline{h}_2)^2 2j(\omega_{5X}\omega_{4V} - \mu_{4}\omega_{5V})^2 \frac{3}{4} \frac{4}{9} \frac{3}{3} \frac{3}{9} \frac{3}{5} \frac{d\omega}{5} \sqrt{(8.50)}$$

Where A, B, C, D, E, and F depend in a complicated way upon the coupling constants and their associated form factors which are themselves arbitrary functions of t.

The distribution of the decay products as a function of w_{5V} depends only on the ratio of h_1 and h_2 and is once again given by (8.38).

The spin averaged differential cross section for the production of a spin j, abnormal parity resonance and the decay of this state into a pseudoscalar meson and a vector meson is obtained from (8.46) by integrating over $d\psi_{3V}$ and $d\omega_{5V}$ and putting $\Gamma_X(4\rightarrow 5,6) = \Gamma_X$. The result obtained is

$$d \, \mathbf{\sigma} \, (b) = \frac{1}{(4\pi)^2} \, \frac{q_B}{4E_B^2 p_B} \, \frac{1}{(t - \mu^2)^2} \left[\frac{2^j j! j!}{(2^j)!} \right]^{k_V^2 j - 4} \, \mathbf{x}$$

$$\left[M_{P_2 P_2} p_{2V}^2 k_V^2 \left\{ (\tilde{h}_1)^2 \left[\left\{ \cos \epsilon_v \, p_j^1 (C_V) - \sin \epsilon_v \, \sin \phi_{3V} \right\} \right]^{k_V^2 j - 4} \right] \right] \, \mathbf{x} \,$$

105

.....

$$\begin{split} & \times \frac{1}{3} \Big[J(J_{+1}) \ \mathbb{P}_{0}^{0}(\mathbb{C}_{V}) - \frac{\mathbb{O}_{V}}{-\mathbb{S}_{V}} \ \mathbb{P}_{1}^{1}(\mathbb{C}_{V}) \Big]^{2} \Big]^{-1} \left(\frac{\mathbb{Z}_{1}}{\mathbb{Z}_{1}} \ \mathbb{P}_{1}^{1}(\mathbb{C}_{V}) \Big]^{2} \Big]^{-1} \left(\frac{\mathbb{Z}_{1}}{\mathbb{Z}_{1}} \ \mathbb{P}_{1}^{1}(\mathbb{C}_{V}) \Big]^{2} \Big]^{-1} \left(\frac{\mathbb{Z}_{1}}{\mathbb{P}_{1}} \ \mathbb{P}_{1}^{1}(\mathbb{C}_{V}) \Big]^{2} \Big]^{-1} \left(\mathbb{P}_{1}^{2}(\mathbb{C}_{V}) \Big]^{2} \Big]^{-1} \left(\mathbb{P}_{2}^{2}(\mathbb{C}_{V}) \Big]^{2} \Big]^{-1} \left(\mathbb{P}_{2}^{2}(\mathbb{P}_{1}^{2}(\mathbb{C}_{V}) \Big]^{2} \Big]^{-1} \left(\mathbb{P}_{2}^{2}(\mathbb{P}_{1}^{2}(\mathbb{P}_{1}^{2}(\mathbb{P}_{1}^{2}) \Big]^{2} \Big]^{-1} \left(\mathbb{P}_{2}^{2}(\mathbb{P}_{1}^{2}(\mathbb{P}_{1}^{2}) \Big]^{2} \Big]^{-1} \left(\mathbb{P}_{2}^{2}(\mathbb{P}_{1}^{2}(\mathbb{P}_{1}^{2}) \Big]^{2} \Big]^{-1} \left(\mathbb{P}_{2}^{2}(\mathbb{P}_{1}^{2}) \Big]^{2} \Big]^{-1} \left(\mathbb{P}_{2}^{2}(\mathbb{P}_{1}^{2}) \Big]^{2} \Big]^{-1} \left(\mathbb{P}_{2}^{2}(\mathbb{P}_{1}^{2}) \Big]^{2} \Big]^{-1} \left(\mathbb{P}_{2}^{2}(\mathbb{P}_{1}^{2}) \Big]^{2} \Big]^{2} \Big]^{2} \Big]^{2} \Big]^{2} \Big]^{2}$$

·90L

As for (8.39) this result is independent of the decay mode of the vector meson and thus applies to both (8.7) and (8.8) provided the boson resonance of spin j has abnormal parity and the production processes are mediated by vector particle exchange.

The spin averaged differential cross section for the general two body production process (7.7) mediated by vector particle exchange is found by putting $\Gamma_{\rm V}(2 - -3, 4.) = \Gamma_{\rm V}$ in (8.51) and integrating over $C_{\rm V}$ and $\phi_{\rm 3V}$. The result is of course given by (7.31)

(iii) Pseudovector particle exchange. The invariant matrix element is given by:

$$< p_{2}q_{3}q_{5}q_{6} | T | p_{1}q_{1} > = \overline{u}(p_{2}) \left[f_{2}F_{2}(t) \aleph_{\mu} + \frac{f_{3}F_{3}(t)}{(m_{f_{3}})} p_{2}\mu + \frac{f_{4}F_{4}(t)}{(m_{f_{4}})} \aleph_{\mu} \right] \aleph_{f} u(p_{1}) (-1) \left[g_{\mu\nu} - \frac{k_{\mu}k_{\nu}}{\mu^{2}} \right]$$

$$= \frac{1}{(t - \mu^{2})} \frac{g_{0}G_{0}(t, v) \epsilon_{\nu} \propto \beta \lambda_{1} k_{\alpha}q_{2}\beta}{(m_{g_{0}})^{n}} (k_{\lambda})^{n-1} (-1)^{n} x$$

$$\phi_{\lambda \rho}^{(q_2,n)} \frac{1}{\left[(v - \mu_2^2) + i \mu_2 \Gamma_V \right]}^{(q_4 \rho)^{n-1}} \left[\frac{h_1 H_1(v,x)}{(m_{h_1})^{n-2}} \right]^{(q_4 \rho)^{$$

$$\frac{h_{2}H_{2}(\mathbf{v},\mathbf{x})}{(m_{h_{2}})} \stackrel{q_{2}\sigma^{q_{4}}}{\longrightarrow} 1^{+} \frac{h_{3}H_{3}(\mathbf{v},\mathbf{x})}{(m_{h_{3}})} \stackrel{q_{4}\sigma^{q_{4}}}{\longrightarrow} 1^{-} \frac{1}{2}$$
$$x (-1) \left[g_{\sigma\tau} - \frac{q_{4\sigma} q_{4\tau}}{\mu_{4}^{2}} \right] \frac{1}{[x - \mu_{4}^{2}] + i\mu_{4}\Gamma_{X}} i I(x) q_{5\tau}$$
(8.52)

Substituting (8.52) in the expression (3.29) for $d \, \mathbf{G}$ (b), averaging over initial spin states, summing over final spin states and integrating over dv and dx gives, with the notation of (7.3) and the approximations (8.3) the result:

$$d\sigma(b) = \frac{1}{(4\pi)^5} \frac{q}{4E_B^{p}} \frac{1}{(t-p')^2} \frac{1}{2p_2^2} \frac{1}{p_2^2} \frac{1}{2p_2^2} \frac{1}{2p_4^2} \frac{1}{2p_4^2} \frac{1}{2p_4^2} \frac{1}{2p_4^2} \frac{1}{2p_4^2} \frac{1}{2p_4^2} \frac{1}{p_4^2} \frac{1}{$$

where

$$r_{\mu} = \overline{g}_{0} \left[\frac{e_{\mu \alpha \beta \lambda_{1}^{k} \alpha^{q} 2\beta}}{(m_{h_{1}})^{j-2}} \left(\frac{q_{5}}{p_{1}} - \frac{q_{4} \cdot q_{5}}{p_{4}^{2}} \right)^{(q_{1})^{j-1}} \right] \times \left[\frac{h_{1}}{(m_{h_{1}})^{j-2}} \left(\frac{q_{5}}{p_{1}} - \frac{q_{4} \cdot q_{5}}{p_{4}^{2}} \right)^{(q_{4})} \right]$$

$$+ \frac{h_{2}}{(m_{h_{2}})^{j}} \left(\frac{q_{2} \cdot q_{5}}{p_{4}^{2}} - \frac{q_{2} \cdot q_{4}}{p_{4}^{2}} \right)^{(q_{4})} \right] \qquad (8.54)$$

and $M_{p_2p_2}(t)$ and M(t) are given by (7.9)

Denoting $\cos \Theta_{3V}$ by C_V and $\sin \Theta_{3V}$ by S_V it follows from (A.9) and (A 11) that, with the notation of (8.33) and (8.34),

$$p_{2} \cdot \mathbf{r} = \overline{g}_{0} \left[\frac{2^{j} j! j!}{(2j)!} \frac{1}{j^{2}} \left(E_{B} p_{B} q_{B} \sin \Theta_{B} \right) k_{V}^{j-1} q_{V}^{j-2} \right] \times \left[\overline{h}_{1} Q_{1} \left(\omega_{5V} \right) \left\{ \cos \psi_{3V} \sin \phi_{3V} \frac{1}{y_{V}} P_{j}^{1} \left(C_{V} \right) - \frac{1}{y_{V}} \sum_{V} P_{j}^{1} \left(C_{V} \right) \right] + \frac{1}{y_{V}} \left[j \left(j + 1 \right) P_{j}^{0} \left(C_{V} \right) - \frac{C_{V}}{S_{V}} P_{j}^{1} \left(C_{V} \right) \right] \right\} + \frac{1}{y_{V}} \left[\overline{h}_{2} \left(\omega_{5V} \right) \cos \phi_{3V} \left[j P_{j}^{1} \left(C_{V} \right) \right] \right]$$

$$(8.55)$$

and

$$\begin{aligned} \mathbf{r} \cdot \mathbf{r}^{+} &= -\left| \overline{\mathbf{g}}_{0} \right|^{2} \left[\frac{2^{j} \mathbf{j} \mathbf{j} \mathbf{j} \mathbf{j}}{(2^{j})^{j}} + \frac{1}{\mathbf{j}^{2}} \left(\mathbf{p} \ 2^{k_{\mathrm{V}}} \right)^{2_{k_{\mathrm{V}}} \mathbf{j} - 1} \mathbf{q}_{\mathrm{V}}^{j-2} \right]^{2} \mathbf{x} \\ \mathbf{x} \left[\left\{ \overline{\mathbf{h}}_{1} \mathbf{Q}_{1} \left(\mathbf{w} \ 5_{\mathrm{V}} \right) \right\}^{2} \left\{ \cos^{2} \mathbf{\Psi}_{3\mathrm{V}} \left[\frac{1}{\mathbf{S}_{\mathrm{V}}} \mathbf{P}_{\mathbf{j}}^{1} \left(\mathbf{C}_{\mathrm{V}} \right) \right]^{2} + \right. \\ &+ \sin^{2} \mathbf{\Psi}_{3\mathrm{V}} \left[\mathbf{j} \left(\mathbf{j} + 1 \right) \mathbf{P}_{\mathbf{j}}^{0} \left(\mathbf{C}_{\mathrm{V}} \right) - \frac{\mathbf{C}_{\mathrm{V}}}{\mathbf{S}_{\mathrm{V}}} \mathbf{P}_{\mathbf{j}}^{1} \left(\mathbf{C}_{\mathrm{V}} \right) \right]^{2} - \\ &- 4 \sin \mathbf{\Psi}_{3\mathrm{V}} \cos \mathbf{\Psi}_{3\mathrm{V}} \sin \mathbf{\Phi}_{3\mathrm{V}} \cos \mathbf{\Phi}_{3\mathrm{V}} \frac{1}{\mathbf{S}_{\mathrm{V}}} \mathbf{P}_{\mathbf{j}}^{1} \left(\mathbf{C}_{\mathrm{V}} \right) \mathbf{x} \\ \mathbf{x} \left[\mathbf{j} \left(\mathbf{j} + 1 \right) \mathbf{P}_{\mathbf{j}}^{0} \left(\mathbf{C}_{\mathrm{V}} \right) - \frac{\mathbf{C}_{\mathrm{V}}}{\mathbf{S}_{\mathrm{V}}} \mathbf{P}_{\mathbf{j}}^{1} \left(\mathbf{C}_{\mathrm{V}} \right) \right] \right\} + 2 \left\{ \overline{\mathbf{h}}_{1} \mathbf{Q}_{1} \left(\mathbf{w} \ 5_{\mathrm{V}} \right) \mathbf{h}_{2} \mathbf{Q}_{2} \left(\mathbf{w} \ 5_{\mathrm{V}} \right) \right\} \mathbf{x} \end{aligned}$$

$$x j P_{j}^{1}(C_{V}) \left\{ sin \Psi_{3V} \left[j(j+1) P_{j}^{0}(C_{V}) - \frac{C_{V}}{S_{V}} P_{j}^{1}(C_{V}) \right] + \right.$$

$$+ \cos \Psi_{3V} sin \phi_{3V} \cos \phi_{3V} \frac{1}{S_{V}} P_{j}^{1}(C_{V}) \left\} + \left. \left. \left. \frac{h_{2}Q_{2}(\omega_{5V})}{S_{V}} \right\} \right|^{2} x$$

$$x \left\{ j P_{j}^{1}(C_{V}) \right\}^{2} \right\}$$

$$(8.56)$$

•••

110.

gubstituting(8.55) and (8.56) into the expression (8.53) gives:

$$\begin{split} d\sigma (b) &= \frac{1}{(4\pi)^2} |\vec{z}_0|^2 \frac{q_B}{(4E_B^2 p_B)} \frac{1}{(t-p^2)^2} \frac{2^j j! j!}{(2j)!} \frac{(j+1)}{j} \\ & \times k_V^{2j-2} \left[M_{p_2 p_2}(t) \left\{ E_B p_B q_B \sin \Theta_B \right\}^2 \left\{ E_1 Q_1(\boldsymbol{w}_{5V}) \times \left\{ \cos \Psi_{3V} \sin \phi_{3V} \frac{1}{S_V} P_j^1(C_V) - \sin \Psi_{3V} \cos \phi_{3V} \times \left\{ j(j+1) P_j^0 (C_V) - \frac{C_V}{S_V} P_j^1(C_V) \right\} \right\} + E_2 Q_2(\boldsymbol{w}_{5V}) \cos \phi_{3V} j P_j^1(C_V) \right\} \\ &+ M(t) \left\{ \mu_{2^k V} \right\}^2 \left\{ \left[E_1 Q_1(\boldsymbol{w}_{5V}) \right]^2 \left[\cos^2 \Psi_{3V} \left\{ \frac{1}{S_V} P_j^1(C_V) \right\} \right]^2 \\ &- 4 \sin \psi_{3V} \cos \psi_{3V} \sin \phi_{3V} \cos \phi_{3V} \frac{1}{S_V} P_j^1(C_V) \right\} + \\ & \times \left\{ j(j+1) P_j^0 (C_V) - \frac{C_V}{S_V} P_j^1(C_V) \right\} + \end{split}$$

$$+ \sin^{2} \psi_{3V} \left\{ j(j+1) P_{j}^{o}(C_{V}) - \frac{C_{V}}{S_{V}} P_{j}^{1}(C_{V}) \right\}^{2} + \\ + 2 \left[\overline{E}_{1}Q_{1}(\omega_{5V}) \overline{E}_{2}Q_{2}(\omega_{5V}) \right] jP_{j}^{1}(C_{V}) \left\{ \sin \psi_{3V} \times \left\{ j(j+1)P_{j}^{o}(C_{V}) - \frac{C_{V}}{S_{V}} P_{j}^{1}(C_{V}) \right\} + \cos \psi_{3V} \sin \phi_{3V} \cos \phi_{3V} \\ \times \left\{ j(j+1)P_{j}^{o}(C_{V}) - \frac{C_{V}}{S_{V}} P_{j}^{1}(C_{V}) \right\} + \left[\cos \psi_{3V} \sin \phi_{3V} \cos \phi_{3V} \right] \\ \times \frac{1}{S_{V}} P_{j}^{1}(C_{V}) \right] + \left[\overline{E}_{2}Q_{2}(\omega_{5V}) \right]^{2} \left[jP_{j}^{i}(C_{V}) \right]^{2} \right] \times \\ \times d \cos \Theta_{B} d\phi_{B} \frac{\Gamma_{V}(2-3,4)}{\Gamma_{V}} \left[(\overline{E}_{1})^{2}(j+1) + (\overline{E}_{2})^{2}j \right]^{-1}$$

$$\begin{array}{c} x \quad \underline{(2j+1)} \\ 2j^{2}(j+1) \end{array} \stackrel{\text{a } \mathcal{C}_{V}}{=} \frac{1}{2\pi} \stackrel{\text{a } \phi}{=} \frac{3V}{\Gamma_{X}} \qquad \frac{1}{\Gamma_{X}} \stackrel{\text{a } \psi}{=} \frac{1}{\pi} \stackrel{\text{a } \psi}{=} \frac{4\Psi_{3V}}{\Gamma_{X}} \qquad x \\ \end{array}$$

$$\mathbf{x} \stackrel{3}{=} \frac{\mathbf{1}^{\prime} 4}{q_{3V}^{3} q_{5X}^{3}} \stackrel{a \, \omega}{=} _{5V} \tag{8.57}$$

where use has been made of (6.11) and (6.12) to separate out the branching ratio factors.

To determine the decay distribution as a function of any one of the variables $\cos \Theta_{3V}, \phi_{3V}, \psi_{3V}$, or ω_{5V} it is necessary to integrate over the other three variables. The results are as follows:

$$\left[(\mathbb{E}_{1})^{2} (\mathfrak{j}+1) + (\mathbb{E}_{2})^{2} \mathfrak{j} \right]^{-1} \left[(\mathbb{E}_{1})^{2} \left\{ \left[\frac{1}{\mathfrak{s}^{1} n \Theta_{3V}} P_{\mathfrak{j}}^{1} (\cos \Theta_{3V}) \right]^{2} + \left[\mathfrak{j}(\mathfrak{j}+1) P_{\mathfrak{j}}^{0} (\cos \Theta_{3V}) - \frac{\cos \Theta_{3V}}{\mathfrak{s}^{1} n \Theta_{3V}} P_{\mathfrak{j}}^{1} (\cos \Theta_{3V}) \right]^{2} \right]^{+} \right]$$

$$+ \left(\mathbb{E}_{2} \right)^{2} \left\{ \left[\mathfrak{j} P_{\mathfrak{j}}^{1} (\cos \Theta_{3V}) \right]^{2} \right\} \left[\frac{2\mathfrak{j}+1}{2\mathfrak{j}^{2} (\mathfrak{j}+1)} - \mathfrak{a} \cos \Theta_{3V} \right]^{2} \right\}$$

$$+ \left(\mathbb{E}_{2} \right)^{2} \left\{ \left[\mathfrak{j} P_{\mathfrak{j}}^{1} (\cos \Theta_{3V}) \right]^{2} \right\} \left[\frac{2\mathfrak{j}+1}{2\mathfrak{j}^{2} (\mathfrak{j}+1)} - \mathfrak{a} \cos \Theta_{3V} \right]^{2} \right\}$$

$$+ \left(\mathbb{E}_{2} \right)^{2} \left\{ \left[\mathfrak{j} \mathbb{E}_{\mathfrak{j}}^{1} (2\mathfrak{j}+1) + (\mathfrak{j}^{2} - \mathfrak{j}-1) 2 \cos^{2} \varphi_{3V} \right]^{2} \right\}$$

$$+ \left(\mathbb{E}_{2} \right)^{2} \left\{ \mathfrak{j} \cos^{2} \varphi_{3V} \right\} \left] \mathfrak{a} \varphi_{3V}$$

$$+ \left(\mathbb{E}_{2} \right)^{2} \left[\mathfrak{j} \cos^{2} \varphi_{3V} \right]^{2} \right\} \left[\mathfrak{a} \varphi_{3V}$$

$$+ \left(\mathfrak{j}^{2} - \mathfrak{j} - 1 \right)^{2} \sin^{2} \psi_{3V} \right] + \left(\mathbb{E}_{2} \right)^{2} \mathfrak{j} \right]^{-1} \left[\left(\mathbb{E}_{1} \right)^{2} \mathfrak{j} \left\{ (2\mathfrak{j}+1) + \right]^{2} \left\{ \mathfrak{s} - \mathfrak{s}^{2} + \left(\mathfrak{s}^{2} \right)^{2} \right\} \right]$$

$$+ \left(\mathbb{E}_{2} \right)^{2} \mathfrak{j} \left[\mathfrak{s} \sin^{2} \psi_{3V} \right] + \left(\mathbb{E}_{2} \right)^{2} \mathfrak{j} \right]^{-1} \left[\left(\mathbb{E}_{1} \right)^{2} \mathfrak{j} \left\{ \mathfrak{s}^{2} \mathfrak{s}^{2} + \left(\mathfrak{s}^{2} \right)^{2} \right]^{2} + \left(\mathbb{E}_{2} \right)^{2} \mathfrak{s}^{2} \mathfrak{s}^{2} \right]$$

$$+ \left(\mathbb{E}_{2} \right)^{2} \mathfrak{s} \left[\mathfrak{s}^{2} \mathfrak{s}^{2} \mathfrak{s}^{2} \mathfrak{s}^{2} \mathfrak{s}^{2} \mathfrak{s}^{2} \right]^{-1} \left[\left(\mathbb{E}_{1} \right)^{2} \mathfrak{s}^{2} \mathfrak{s}^{2} \mathfrak{s}^{2} \mathfrak{s}^{2} \right]^{2} + \left(\mathbb{E}_{2} \right)^{2} \mathfrak{s}^{2} \mathfrak{s}^{2} \right]$$

$$+ \left(\mathbb{E}_{2} \right)^{2} \mathfrak{s} \left[\mathfrak{s}^{2} \mathfrak{s}^{2} \mathfrak{s}^{2} \mathfrak{s}^{2} \mathfrak{s}^{2} \mathfrak{s}^{2} \mathfrak{s}^{2} \right]^{-1} \left[\left(\mathbb{E}_{1} \right)^{2} \mathfrak{s}^{2} \mathfrak{s}^$$

where A(s,t) and B(s,t) are the functions appearing in (7.17) and (8.16). It is to be noted that these distributions all depend upon the ratio of \overline{h}_1 and \overline{h}_2 .

The spin averaged differential cross section for the production of a spin j, abnormal parity resonance and the decay of this state into a pseudoscalar meson and a vector meson is obtained from (8.57) by integrating over $d \psi_{3V}$ and $d \omega_{5V}$ and putting $\Gamma_{\chi}(4-5,6) = \Gamma_{\chi}$. The result obtained is:

$$d\sigma(b) = \frac{g_0^2}{4\pi} \left| \frac{G_0(t)}{(m_{g_0})^j} \right|^2 \frac{q_B}{4E_B^2 p_B} \frac{1}{(t-\mu^2)^2} \frac{2^{j}j!j!}{(2j)!} x$$

$$x \quad (j+1) \quad k_{V}^{j-2} \left[\left\{ \frac{f_{2}^{2}}{4\pi} \mid F_{2}(t) \mid^{2} 4 + \frac{f_{2}f_{3}}{4\pi} \frac{2 \operatorname{Re} \left[F_{2}(t) F_{3}^{+}(t) \right]}{(m_{f_{3}})} \right] x$$

$$x 2(m_{1}^{2} + m_{2}) + \frac{f_{3}^{2}}{4\pi} \frac{|F_{3}(t)|^{2}}{(m_{1})^{2}} - t + (m_{1}^{2} + m_{2})^{2}]$$

$$x \left\{ E_{B} P_{B} q_{B} \sin \Theta_{B} \right\}^{2} \left\{ (\overline{h}_{1})^{2} \left[\cos^{2} \phi_{3V} \left\{ j(j+1) P_{j}^{0}(C_{V}) - \frac{C_{V}}{S_{V}} P_{j}^{1}(C_{V}) \right\}^{2} + \sin^{2} \phi_{3V} \left\{ \frac{1}{S_{V}} P_{j}^{1}(C_{V}) \right\}^{2} \right\} + \left(\overline{h}_{2} \right)^{2} \left[\cos^{2} \phi_{3V} \left\{ j P_{j}^{1}(C_{V}) \right\}^{2} \right] + \left\{ \frac{f_{2}^{2}}{4\pi} |F_{2}(t)|^{2} \right\}$$

$$x \left[-t + (m_{1}'+m_{2})^{2} \right] \left\{ \mu_{2} k_{V} \right\}^{2} \left\{ (\overline{h}_{1})^{2} \left[\left\{ j(j+1) P_{j}^{0}(C_{V}) - \frac{C_{V}}{S_{V}} P_{j}^{1}(C_{V}) \right\}^{2} + \left\{ \frac{1}{S_{V}} P_{j}^{1}(C_{V}) \right\}^{2} \right] + (\overline{h}_{2})^{2} \left[j P_{j}^{1}(C_{V}) \right]^{2} \right] x$$

$$x d \cos \Theta_{B} d \phi_{B} \left[\frac{\Gamma_{V}(2-3,4)}{\Gamma_{V}} \left[(\overline{h}_{1})^{2}(j+1) + (\overline{h}_{2})^{2} j \right]^{-1} x$$

$$x \left(\frac{2j+1}{2j^{2}(j+1)} \right)^{2} d C_{V} 2 \frac{1}{\pi} d \phi_{3V}$$

$$(8.62)$$

As for (8.39) and (8.51) this result is independent of the decay mode of the vector meson and thus applies to both (8.7) and (8.8) provided the boson resonance of spin j has abnormal parity and the production processes are mediated by pseudovector particle exchange.

The spin averaged differential cross section for the general process (7.7) mediated by pseudovector particle exchange is found by putting $\Gamma_V(2-3,4) = \Gamma_V$ in (8.62) and intergrating over C_V and ϕ_{3V} . The result is of course given by (7.18).

9. FERMION RESONANCES DECAYING INTO A SPIN-HALF PARTICLE AND A PSEUDOSCALAR PARTICLE.

In the peripheral production of a fermion resonance and a pseudoscalar particle the exchanged particle must have normal parity as can be seen from the discussion of section 5. For each of the two allowed possibilities, that is scalar and vector particle exchange the differential cross section is calculated for the process described by Fig. 1(c) in which the resonance has spin J. The various parity cases for the fermion fields are treated simultaneously by making use of the factors \mathbf{X}_{e} and \mathbf{X}_{f} defined in section 5. The invariant matrix element is in each case constructed from the vertex functions of Table 1. and the propagators of section 4. In particular for the spin J resonance the propagator used is given by (4.28). The resulting expression for the matrix element is then substituted in the formula (3.34) for d (c)

(i) Scalar particle exchange.

The invariant matrix element is given by:

$$\langle p_{3}p_{4}q_{2} | T | p_{1}q_{1} \rangle = \overline{u}(p_{3}) \overset{*}{\partial}_{e} \frac{eE(w,p_{2})(p_{4}p)^{n} (-1)^{n} \Theta}{(m_{e})^{n}} (p_{2},n) \times$$

$$\frac{1}{\left[\binom{w}{2}+m_{2}}{(w-m_{2}^{2})+im_{2}}\prod_{W}^{(k)}\right]^{(k)}}\frac{fF(t,w,t)}{(m_{1})^{n}}\int_{f}^{u(p_{1})}x\frac{1}{(t-p^{2})(m_{2})^{-1}}\frac{gG(t)}{(m_{2})^{-1}}$$

where $J=(n+\frac{1}{2})$ (9.1)

In order to deal with all parity cases simultaneously it is convenient to define m_1 and m_3 such that

$$m_1 = + m_1 \text{ if } \mathbf{X}_f = I$$
 (9.2a)

$$m_1 = -m_1 \text{ if } \mathbf{X}_f = \mathbf{X}_5$$
 (9.2b)

$$m_3 = + m_3 \text{ if } X_e = I$$
 (9.2c)

$$m_3 = -m_3 \text{ if } \aleph_e = \aleph_5$$
 (9.2d)

Assuming that the resonance has a narrow width i.e. $\Gamma_W \ll m_2$ then

$$\left[\frac{1}{(w-m_2^2)^2 + (m_2^2 \Gamma_W^2)} \approx \frac{\pi}{m_2 \Gamma_W} \delta(w-m_2^2) \quad (9.3)\right]$$

Substituting (9.1) in (3.34), averaging over initial spin states, summing over final spin states and integrating over dw gives, with the notation of (9.2) and the approximation of (9.3) the result:

$$d\sigma(c) = \frac{\overline{f}^{2}}{4\pi} \frac{\overline{g}^{2}}{4\pi} \frac{q_{B}}{4E_{B}^{2} p_{B}} \left[\frac{-t + (m_{1} + m_{2})^{2}}{(t - p^{2})^{2}} \right] x$$

$$x \frac{1}{4} \operatorname{Tr} \left\{ \delta_{\beta_{1}} \delta_{\delta_{1}} \delta_{\delta_{1}} \delta_{\beta_{1}} \delta_{$$

$$x \int_{W} \frac{(2-3,4)}{V_{W}} \left[\frac{2^{n} n! n!}{(2n)!} \frac{(2n+1)^{2}}{n3} p_{W}^{2n-2} \right]^{-1}$$

$$x \left[(-1)^{n+1} (p_{4}p)^{n-1} \frac{(p_{2},n)}{p_{N}} (p_{2},n) (k_{\lambda})^{n-1} \right] \left[(-1)^{n+1} (k_{p})^{n-1} \frac{(p_{2},n)}{p_{X}} x \right]^{-1}$$

$$x \frac{(p_{4}y)^{n-1}}{4N} d \cos \Theta_{B} d \cos \Theta_{4W} d \Phi_{W}$$

$$(9.4)$$

where now $J = (n-\frac{1}{2})$. Use has been made of the fact that p_2 commutes with $\Theta(p_2,n)$ and (4.25) has been used in order to facilitate the evaluation of the trace. In addition (6.18) has been used to separate out the factor $\prod_{W} (2-3,4) / \prod_{W}$ where $\prod_{W} (2-3,4)$ is the partial width and \prod_{W} is the total width of the resonance. This factor is thus the branding ratio of the decay process (1.1) relative to all other possible decay modes of F.

Using (A.21), (A.24) and (A.26) this expression may

be rewritten as:

$$d\mathbf{G}(\mathbf{c}) = \frac{f^2}{4\pi} \frac{g^2}{4\pi} \left| \frac{F(t) G(t)}{(m_{L})^{n-1} (m_{L})^{-1}} \right|^2 \frac{q_B}{4E_B^2 p_B}$$

$$x \left[\frac{-t + (m_1^{i} + m_2)^2}{(t - \mu^2)^2} \right] \frac{2^n n! n!}{(2n)!} \qquad k_{U}^{2n-2} d \cos \Theta_B d \Theta_B$$

$$\frac{\int_{W}(2-3,4)}{\int_{W}} \frac{1}{4\pi n} \left[\left\{ n \mathbb{P}_{n}^{0}(\cos \Theta_{4W}) \right\}^{2} \cdot \left\{ \mathbb{P}_{n}^{1}(\cos \Theta_{4W}) \right\}^{2} \right] d\cos \Theta_{4W} d\phi_{4W} d\phi_{$$

The three factors in the above expression are completely analogous to those appearing in (7.5). The first factor is independent of ϕ_B of course and is in fact the spin averaged differential cross section for the production of a spin J (J=n- $\frac{1}{2}$) resonance in the quasi $\frac{1}{2}$ wo body process (1.8) assuming that the resonance does not decay or equivalently summing over all possible decay modes.

The final factor in (9.5) gives the distribution of the decay products and is normalised so that integration over $\cos \phi_{4,4}$ and $\phi_{4,4}$ gives unity. The distribution is independent of $\phi_{4,4}$ in agreement with the Trieman-Yang test⁽¹³⁾ and the distribution of the decay products as a function of $\cos \phi_{4,4}$ is independent of the production process variables and of the arbitrary form factors F(t) and G(t). This distribution is of course the Adair distribution⁽³⁶⁾ for the decay of a spin J resonance produced in the forward direction of a quasi two body production process. The Adair distribution is independent of the production mechanism and the distribution when events in the forward or backward directions are considered.

(ii) Vector particle exchange

The invariant matrix element is given by:

$$\langle p_{3}p_{4}q_{2}|T|p_{1}q_{1} \rangle = \overline{u}(p_{3}) \forall_{c} e^{E(W_{p} 2)} (p_{4} p)^{n} (-1)^{n} \bigoplus_{p \lambda} (p_{2}, n) (\not q_{2}+m_{2}) \\ \times \frac{1}{\left[\left(\sqrt{m_{2}^{2}}\right)^{n} + im_{2} \int_{W}\right]} (k_{\lambda})^{n-1} \left[f_{q} F_{4}(t, w, p_{2})g_{p} \lambda_{1} + f_{2} F_{2}(t, w, p_{2}) \partial_{p} k \lambda_{1} \\ + \frac{f_{3}F_{3}(t, w, p_{2})}{(m_{f} 2)^{n+1}} p_{2} k_{\lambda} + \frac{f_{4}F_{4}(t, w, p_{2})}{(m_{f} 4)^{n+1}} k_{\mu} k_{\lambda} + \frac{f_{5}F_{5}(t, w, p_{2})}{(m_{f} 2)^{n+1}} x \\ + \frac{f_{3}F_{3}(t, w, p_{2})}{(m_{f} 3)^{n+1}} p_{2} k_{\lambda} + \frac{f_{4}F_{4}(t, w, p_{2})}{(m_{f} 4)^{n+1}} k_{\mu} k_{\lambda} + \frac{f_{5}F_{5}(t, w, p_{2})}{(m_{f} 2)^{n+1}} x \\ = \mu \lambda_{10} - k_{0}p_{2} + \delta_{5} \int_{W} f u(p_{1}) (-1) \left[g_{\mu\nu} - \frac{k_{\mu}k_{\nu}}{p^{2}}\right] - \frac{1}{(t-p^{2})} \\ \times \left[g_{2}g_{2}(t)q_{2}\nu + g_{3}g_{3}(t)k_{\nu}\right]$$

$$(9.6)$$

where J = (n + 1/2)

Substituting (9.6) in (3.34), averaging over initial spin states, summing over final spin states and integrating over dw gives, with the notation of (9.2) and the approximation (9.3), the result:

$$d\mathbf{\sigma}(c) = \frac{1}{(4\pi)^{3}} \frac{q_{B}}{4E_{B}^{2}p_{B}} \frac{1}{(t-\mu^{2})^{2}} \frac{\sqrt{(2-3,4)}}{\sqrt{W}} \left[\frac{2^{n} \ln 1}{(2n)!} \frac{(2n+1)^{2} p_{M}^{2n-2}}{n^{3}} \right]_{x}$$

$$x T (r) d \cos \Theta_{B} d \Phi_{B} d \cos \Theta_{4W} d \Phi_{4W}$$
(9.7)

where now J = (n-1/2) and

$$\begin{split} \mathbf{T}(\mathbf{r}) &= \left[\left\{ \mathbf{M}_{\mathbf{k}\mathbf{k}^{\mathbf{k}}} \mathbf{\beta}_{2}^{\mathbf{k}} \mathbf{\lambda}_{2} + \mathbf{M}_{\mathbf{k}\mathbf{r}^{\mathbf{k}}} \mathbf{\beta}_{2}^{\mathbf{k}} \mathbf{\lambda}_{2} + \mathbf{M}_{\mathbf{r}\mathbf{r}^{\mathbf{r}}} \mathbf{\beta}_{2}^{\mathbf{k}} \mathbf{\lambda}_{2} + \mathbf{M}_{\mathbf{r}\mathbf{r}^{\mathbf{r}}} \mathbf{\beta}_{2}^{\mathbf{k}} \mathbf{\lambda}_{2} + \mathbf{M}_{\mathbf{r}\mathbf{r}^{\mathbf{r}}} \mathbf{\beta}_{2}^{\mathbf{k}} \mathbf{\lambda}_{2} + \mathbf{M}_{\mathbf{r}\mathbf{r}^{\mathbf{r}}} \mathbf{\beta}_{2}^{\mathbf{k}} \mathbf{\lambda}_{2} \right] \mathbf{1}^{\mathbf{T}} \mathbf{T} \left\{ \mathbf{\lambda} \mathbf{\beta}_{1} \mathbf{\lambda} \mathbf{\lambda}_{1} \mathbf{\beta}_{1} \mathbf{T} \left\{ (\mathbf{\mu}_{1} \mathbf{x}^{\mathbf{t}} - \mathbf{x}^{\mathbf{t}} \mathbf{\mu}_{1}) \mathbf{\lambda}_{\mathbf{\beta}_{1}} \mathbf{\lambda} \mathbf{\lambda}_{1} \mathbf{\lambda}_{\mathbf{\beta}_{1}} \mathbf{\lambda} \mathbf{\lambda}_{1} \right\} + \\ &+ \left\{ \mathbf{N}_{\mathbf{k}\mathbf{k}^{\mathbf{k}}} \mathbf{\beta}_{2}^{\mathbf{k}} \mathbf{\lambda}_{2} + \mathbf{N}_{\mathbf{k}\mathbf{r}^{\mathbf{r}}} \mathbf{\beta}_{2}^{\mathbf{r}} \mathbf{\lambda}_{2} \right\} \mathbf{1}^{\mathbf{T}} \mathbf{T} \left\{ (\mathbf{\mu}_{1} \mathbf{x}^{\mathbf{t}} - \mathbf{x}^{\mathbf{t}} \mathbf{\mu}_{1}) \mathbf{\lambda}_{\mathbf{\beta}_{1}} \mathbf{\lambda} \mathbf{\lambda}_{1} \mathbf{\lambda}_{\mathbf{\beta}_{1}} \mathbf{\lambda}_{\mathbf{\beta}_{1}} \mathbf{\lambda}_{\mathbf{\beta}_{1}} \mathbf{\lambda}_{\mathbf{\beta}_{1}} \mathbf{\lambda}_{\mathbf{\beta}_{1}} \mathbf{\lambda}_{\mathbf{\beta}_{1}} \right\} \\ &+ \left\{ \mathbf{N}_{\mathbf{k}\mathbf{k}^{\mathbf{k}}} \mathbf{\beta}_{2}^{\mathbf{k}} \mathbf{\lambda}_{2} \right\} \mathbf{1}^{\mathbf{T}} \mathbf{T} \left\{ (\mathbf{x}^{\mathbf{x}^{\mathbf{t}} - \mathbf{x}^{\mathbf{t}} \mathbf{x}_{2}) \mathbf{\lambda}_{\mathbf{\beta}_{1}} \mathbf{\lambda}_{1} \mathbf{\lambda}_{\mathbf{\beta}_{1}} \mathbf{\lambda}_{\mathbf{\beta}_{1}} \mathbf{\lambda}_{\mathbf{\beta}_{1}} \mathbf{\lambda}_{\mathbf{\beta}_{1}} \mathbf{\lambda}_{\mathbf{\beta}_{1}} \mathbf{\lambda}_{\mathbf{\beta}_{1}} \right\} \\ &+ \left\{ \mathbf{N}_{\mathbf{k}\mathbf{k}^{\mathbf{k}}} \mathbf{\beta}_{2}^{\mathbf{k}} \mathbf{\lambda}_{2} \right\} \mathbf{1}^{\mathbf{T}} \mathbf{T} \left\{ (\mathbf{x}^{\mathbf{x}^{\mathbf{t}} - \mathbf{x}^{\mathbf{t}} \mathbf{x}_{2}) \mathbf{\lambda}_{\mathbf{\beta}_{1}} \mathbf{\lambda}_{\mathbf{\beta}_{1}} \mathbf{\lambda}_{\mathbf{\beta}_{1}} \mathbf{\lambda}_{\mathbf{\beta}_{1}} \mathbf{\lambda}_{\mathbf{\beta}_{1}} \mathbf{\lambda}_{\mathbf{\beta}_{1}} \right\} \\ &+ \left\{ \mathbf{N}_{\mathbf{k}\mathbf{k}^{\mathbf{k}}} \mathbf{\beta}_{2}^{\mathbf{k}} \mathbf{\lambda}_{2} \right\} \mathbf{1}^{\mathbf{T}} \mathbf{T} \left\{ (\mathbf{x}^{\mathbf{x}^{\mathbf{t}} - \mathbf{x}^{\mathbf{t}} \mathbf{x}_{2}) \mathbf{\lambda}_{\mathbf{\beta}_{1}} \mathbf{\lambda}_{\mathbf{\beta}_{$$

$$+ \left\{ S_{ks}^{k} \beta_{2} S_{\lambda_{2}} \right\} \frac{1}{4} \operatorname{Tr} \left\{ 8_{5} (\not{x}^{+} \not{p}_{2} - \not{p}_{2} \not{x}^{+}) 8_{\beta_{1}} 8_{\lambda_{1}} 8_{\beta_{1}} 8_{\lambda_{1}} \right\} \\ + \left\{ S_{ks}^{+} S_{\beta_{2}}^{+} \lambda_{2} \right\} \frac{1}{4} \operatorname{Tr} \left\{ 8_{5} (\not{p}_{2} \not{x} - \not{x} \not{p}_{2}) 8_{\beta_{1}} 8_{\lambda_{1}} 8_{\beta_{1}} 8_{\beta_{1}} 8_{\lambda_{1}} \right\} \\ \times \left[(-1)^{n+1} (k_{\beta_{1}})^{n-2} \phi_{\beta_{3}} (p_{2}, n) (p_{4} \not{x})^{n-1} \right] \times \\ \times \left[(-1)^{n+1} (p_{4} \rho_{1})^{n-1} \phi_{\rho_{3}} (p_{2}, n) (k_{\lambda_{1}})^{n-2} \right]$$
(9.8)

in which

$$\mathbf{r}_{\mu} = (-1) \left[\mathbf{g}_{\mu\nu} - \frac{\mathbf{k}_{\mu} \mathbf{k}_{\nu}}{\sqrt{2}} \right] \left[\overline{\mathbf{g}}_{2} \mathbf{q}_{2\nu} + \overline{\mathbf{g}}_{3} \mathbf{k}_{\nu} \right] (9.9)$$

and

$$s_{\mu} = \epsilon_{\mu\nu\sigma\tau} p_{2\mu} k_{\sigma} r_{\tau} \qquad (9.10)$$

The notation used is such that:

$$\begin{split} \mathbf{M}_{\mathbf{kk}} &= \left\{ \left| \overline{\mathbf{f}}_{2} \right|^{2} 4 + 2 \operatorname{Re} \left(\overline{\mathbf{f}}_{2} \overline{\mathbf{f}}_{3}^{+} \right) 2 \left(\mathbf{m}_{1}^{'} + \mathbf{m}_{2} \right) \right\} \\ &+ \left| \overline{\mathbf{f}}_{3} \right|^{2} \left[-\mathbf{t} + \left(\mathbf{m}_{1}^{'} + \mathbf{m}_{2} \right)^{2} \right] \right\} \left(\mathbf{p}_{2} \cdot \mathbf{r} \right) \left(\mathbf{p}_{2} \cdot \mathbf{r}^{+} \right) \\ &+ \left\{ \left| \overline{\mathbf{f}}_{2} \right|^{2} 2 + \left(\overline{\mathbf{f}}_{2} \overline{\mathbf{r}}^{+}_{3} \right) 2 \mathbf{m}_{2} + \left(\overline{\mathbf{f}}_{2} \overline{\mathbf{r}}^{+}_{4} \right) 2 \left(\mathbf{m}_{1}^{'} + \mathbf{m}_{2} \right) \\ &+ \left(\overline{\mathbf{f}}_{3} \overline{\mathbf{r}}_{4}^{+} \right) \left[-\mathbf{t} + \left(\mathbf{m}_{1}^{'} + \mathbf{m}_{2} \right)^{2} \right] \right\} \left(\mathbf{p}_{2} \cdot \mathbf{r} \right) \left(\mathbf{k} \cdot \mathbf{r}^{+} \right) \\ &+ \left\{ \left| \overline{\mathbf{f}}_{2} \right|^{2} 2 + \left(\overline{\mathbf{f}}_{3} \overline{\mathbf{r}}^{+}_{2} \right) 2 \mathbf{m}_{2} + \left(\overline{\mathbf{f}}_{4} \overline{\mathbf{r}}^{+}_{2} \right) 2 \left(\mathbf{m}_{1}^{'} + \mathbf{m}_{2} \right) \\ &+ \left(\overline{\mathbf{f}}_{4} \overline{\mathbf{f}}_{3}^{+} \right) \left[-\mathbf{t} + \left(\mathbf{m}_{1}^{'} + \mathbf{m}_{2} \right)^{2} \right] \right\} \left(\mathbf{k} \cdot \mathbf{r} \right) \left(\mathbf{p}_{2} \cdot \mathbf{r}^{+} \right) \end{split}$$

$$+ \left\{ 2 \operatorname{Re} \left(\overline{r}_{2} \overline{r}_{4}^{+} \right) 2m_{2} + \left| \overline{r}_{4} \right|^{2} \left[-t + \left(m_{1}^{'} + m_{2} \right)^{2} \right] \right\} (k.r) (k.r^{+}) - \left\{ |\overline{r}_{2}|^{2} \left[-t + \left(m_{1}^{'} + m_{2} \right)^{2} \right] \right\} (r.r^{+})$$
(9.11a)
$$M_{kr} = \left\{ (\overline{r}_{1} \overline{r}_{2}^{+}) 2(m_{1}^{'} + m_{2}) + (\overline{r}_{1} \overline{r}_{3}^{+}) \left[-t + \left(m_{1}^{'} + m_{2} \right)^{2} \right] \right\} (p_{2} \cdot r^{+}) + \left\{ (\overline{r}_{1} \overline{r}_{2}^{+}) 2 m_{2} + (\overline{r}_{1} \overline{r}_{4}^{+}) \left[-t + \left(m_{1}^{'} + m_{2} \right)^{2} \right] \right\} (k.r^{+}) (9.11b)$$

$$M_{rk} = M_{kr}^{+}$$
(9.11c)

$$M_{rr} = \left\{ I_{1} I_{1}^{2} [-t + (m_{1} + m_{2})^{2}] \right\}$$
(9.11d)

$$M_{ss} = \left\{ |\mathbf{F}_{5}|^{2} \left[-t + (m_{1} + m_{2})^{2} \right] \right\}$$
(9.11e)

$$N_{kk} = \left\{ |\overline{f}_2|^2 + (\overline{f}_3 \overline{f}_2^+)^m_2 \right\} (p_2 \cdot r) + \left\{ (\overline{f}_4 \overline{f}_2^+)^m_2 \right\} (k \cdot r)$$
(9.11f)

$$N_{kr} = \left\{ (\vec{r}_{1}, \vec{r}_{2}, m_{2}) \right\}$$
 (9.11g)

$$O_{kk} = \left\{ | \mathbf{F}_2 |^2 [-t + (m_1' + m_2)^2] \right\}$$
(9.11h)

$$P_{ks} = \left\{ (\overline{f}_{5}\overline{f}_{2}^{+})^{2}(m_{1}^{'} + m_{2}^{'}) + (\overline{f}_{5}\overline{f}_{3}^{+})(-t + (m_{1}^{'} + m_{2}^{'})^{2})(p_{2}\cdot r^{+}) \right. \\ + \left. \left\{ (\overline{f}_{5}\overline{f}_{2}^{+})^{2}m_{2} + (\overline{f}_{5}\overline{f}_{4}^{+})(-t + (m_{1}^{'} + m_{2}^{'})^{2}) \right\} (k \cdot r^{+}) \right.$$

$$(9.11i)$$

$$P_{sk} = \left\{ (\overline{r}_{2}\overline{r}_{5}^{+})^{2}(-m_{1}^{'} + m_{2}) + (\overline{r}_{3}\overline{r}_{5}^{+})\left[t - (m_{1}^{'} - m_{2})^{2}\right] (p_{2}.r) + \left\{ (\overline{r}_{2}\overline{r}_{5}^{+})^{2}m_{2} + (\overline{r}_{4}\overline{r}_{5}^{+})\left[t - (m_{1}^{'} - m_{2})^{2}\right] (k.r) \quad (9.11j) + \left[(\overline{r}_{2}\overline{r}_{5}^{+})^{2}m_{2} + (\overline{r}_{4}\overline{r}_{5}^{+})\left[t - (m_{1}^{'} - m_{2})^{2}\right] (k.r) \quad (9.11j) + \left[(\overline{r}_{2}\overline{r}_{5}^{+})^{2}m_{2} + (\overline{r}_{4}\overline{r}_{5}^{+})\left[t - (m_{1}^{'} - m_{2})^{2}\right] (k.r) + \left[(\overline{r}_{2}\overline{r}_{5}^{+})^{2}m_{2} + (\overline{r}_{4}\overline{r}_{5}^{+})\left[t - (m_{1}^{'} - m_{2})^{2}\right] (k.r) + \left[(\overline{r}_{2}\overline{r}_{5}^{+})^{2}m_{2} + (\overline{r}_{4}\overline{r}_{5}^{+})\left[t - (m_{1}^{'} - m_{2})^{2}\right] (k.r) + \left[(\overline{r}_{2}\overline{r}_{5}^{+})^{2}m_{2} + (\overline{r}_{4}\overline{r}_{5}^{+})\left[t - (m_{1}^{'} - m_{2})^{2}\right] (k.r) + \left[(\overline{r}_{2}\overline{r}_{5}^{+})^{2}m_{2} + (\overline{r}_{4}\overline{r}_{5}^{+})\left[t - (m_{1}^{'} - m_{2})^{2}\right] (k.r) + \left[(\overline{r}_{2}\overline{r}_{5}^{+})^{2}m_{2} + (\overline{r}_{4}\overline{r}_{5}^{+})\left[t - (m_{1}^{'} - m_{2})^{2}\right] (k.r) + \left[(\overline{r}_{2}\overline{r}_{5}^{+})^{2}m_{2} + (\overline{r}_{4}\overline{r}_{5}^{+})\left[t - (m_{1}^{'} - m_{2})^{2}\right] (k.r) + \left[(\overline{r}_{2}\overline{r}_{5}^{+})^{2}m_{2} + (\overline{r}_{4}\overline{r}_{5}^{+})\left[t - (m_{1}^{'} - m_{2})^{2}\right] (k.r) + \left[(\overline{r}_{2}\overline{r}_{5}^{+})^{2}m_{2} + (\overline{r}_{4}\overline{r}_{5}^{+})\left[t - (m_{1}^{'} - m_{2})^{2}\right] (k.r) + \left[(\overline{r}_{2}\overline{r}_{5}^{+})^{2}m_{2} + (\overline{r}_{4}\overline{r}_{5}^{+})\left[t - (m_{1}^{'} - m_{2})^{2}\right] (k.r) + \left[(\overline{r}_{2}\overline{r}_{5}^{+})^{2}m_{2} + (\overline{r}_{4}\overline{r}_{5}^{+})\left[t - (m_{1}^{'} - m_{2})^{2}\right] (k.r) + \left[(\overline{r}_{2}\overline{r}_{5}^{+})^{2}m_{2} + (\overline{r}_{4}\overline{r}_{5}^{+})\left[t - (m_{1}^{'} - m_{2})^{2}\right] (k.r) + \left[(\overline{r}_{2}\overline{r}_{5}^{+})^{2}m_{2} + (\overline{r}_{4}\overline{r}_{5}^{+})\left[t - (m_{1}^{'} - m_{2})^{2}\right] (k.r) + \left[(\overline{r}_{4}\overline{r}_{5}^{+})^{2}m_{2} + (\overline{r}_{4}\overline{r}_{5}^{+})\right] (k.r) + \left[(\overline{r}_{4}\overline$$

$$P_{rs} = (\bar{f}_{5}\bar{f}_{1}^{+}) \left[-t + (m_{1} + m_{2})^{2} \right]$$
(9.11k)

$$P_{sr} = \left\{ (\bar{r}_1 \bar{r}_5^+) \left[t - (m_1' + m_2)^2 \right] \right\}$$
(9.111)

$$Q_{ks} = \left\{ (\bar{r}_5 \bar{r}_5^{\dagger}) (p_2 \cdot r^{\dagger}) + (\bar{r}_5 \bar{r}_4^{\dagger}) (k \cdot r^{\dagger}) \right\}$$
(9.11m)

$$Q_{sk} = -Q_{ks}^{+}$$
(9.11n)

$$Q_{rs} = \left\{ (\overline{f}_{5} \overline{f}_{1}^{+}) \right\}$$
(9.110)

$$Q_{sr} = -Q_{rs}^{\dagger}$$
(9.11p)

$$\mathbb{R}_{ks} = \left\{ \left(\overline{f}_{5} \overline{f}_{2}^{+} \right) \mathbb{M}_{2} \right\}$$
(9.11q)

$$S_{ks} = \left\{ (\overline{f}_{5}\overline{f}_{2}^{\dagger}) m_{1} \right\}$$
(9.11r)

Using the definition (9.9) the following functions of the 4-momentum r_{μ} which appear in the expression T(r) may be readily evaluated:

$$k.r = -\left[\overline{g}_{2} (k.q_{2}) + \overline{g}_{3}k^{2}\right]\left(1 - \frac{k^{2}}{\mu^{2}}\right)$$
(9.12)

$$p_{2} \cdot r = -\left[\overline{g}_{2}\left(p_{2} \cdot q_{2} - \frac{p_{2} \cdot k \cdot k \cdot q_{2}}{\mu^{2}}\right) + \overline{g}_{3}p_{2} \cdot k\left(1 - \frac{k^{2}}{\mu^{2}}\right)\right] (9.13)$$

$$\mathbf{r} \cdot \mathbf{r}^{+} = \left[\overline{g}_{2} \right]^{2} \left[q_{2}^{2} - \frac{(\mathbf{k} \cdot q_{2})^{2}}{\mu^{2}} - \frac{(\mathbf{k} \cdot q_{2})^{2}}{\mu^{2}} \left(1 - \frac{\mathbf{k}^{2}}{\mu^{2}} \right) \right] \\ + \left[2 \operatorname{Re} \left(\overline{g}_{2} \overline{g}_{3}^{+} \right) \left(\mathbf{k} \cdot q_{2} \right) + \left[\overline{g}_{3} \right]^{2} \mathbf{k}^{2} \right] \left(1 - \frac{\mathbf{k}^{2}}{\mu^{2}} \right)^{2}$$
(9.14)

It is convenient to denote the angle in the frame W between \underline{q}_{2W} and \underline{k}_W by $\boldsymbol{\xi}_W$ as shown in Fig 2c. This angle satisfies the relationships:

$${}^{\mathrm{m}}{}_{2}{}^{\mathrm{q}}{}_{2}{}^{\mathrm{k}}{}^{\mathrm{k}}{}^{\mathrm{sin}}\boldsymbol{\epsilon}_{\mathrm{W}} = {}^{\mathrm{E}}{}_{\mathrm{B}}{}^{\mathrm{p}}{}_{\mathrm{B}}{}^{\mathrm{q}}{}_{\mathrm{B}}{}^{\mathrm{sin}}\boldsymbol{\Theta}_{\mathrm{B}}$$
(9.15)

and

$$q_{2W}k_W \cos \epsilon_W = \left[(s - m_2^2 - \mu_2^2) (-t + m_1^2 - m_2^2) + 2m_2^2 (-t + \mu_1^2 - \mu_2^2) \right]$$

$$4m_2^2 \qquad (9.16)$$

Using this notation the following relationships may be derived:

$$\underline{\mathbf{r}}_{W} \underline{\mathbf{k}}_{W} = -\overline{\mathbf{g}}_{2} q_{2W} k_{W} \cos \boldsymbol{\epsilon}_{W} + \left(\overline{\mathbf{g}}_{2} (\underline{\mathbf{k}} \cdot q_{2}) - \overline{\mathbf{g}}_{3} (\underline{\mathbf{1}} - \underline{\mathbf{k}}^{2}) \right) k_{W}^{2} (9.17)$$

$$(\underline{\mathbf{r}}_{W} \underline{\mathbf{k}}_{W}) \cdot (\underline{\mathbf{p}}_{4W} \underline{\mathbf{k}}_{W}) = -\overline{\mathbf{g}}_{2} (q_{2W} k_{W} \sin \boldsymbol{\epsilon}_{W}) \sin \Theta_{4W} \sin \boldsymbol{\phi}_{4W} (9.18)$$

$$(\underline{\mathbf{r}}_{W} \underline{\mathbf{k}}_{W} \underline{\mathbf{k}}_{W}) \cdot (\underline{\mathbf{p}}_{4W} \underline{\mathbf{k}}_{W}) = -\overline{\mathbf{g}}_{2} (q_{2W} k_{W} \sin \boldsymbol{\epsilon}_{W}) \sin \Theta_{4W} \sin \boldsymbol{\phi}_{4W} (9.18)$$

$$(\underline{\mathbf{r}}_{W} \wedge \underline{\mathbf{k}}_{W}) \cdot (\underline{\mathbf{r}}_{W}^{+} \wedge \underline{\mathbf{k}}_{W}) = |\overline{\mathbf{g}}_{2}|^{2} (\underline{\mathbf{q}}_{2W}^{k} \underline{\mathbf{w}}^{sin} \boldsymbol{\epsilon}_{W})^{2}$$
(9.19)

$$\frac{\underline{p}_{4W} \cdot (\underline{r}_W \wedge \underline{k}_W)}{\underline{p}_W} = -\overline{g}_2(\underline{q}_{2W} k_W \sin \boldsymbol{\epsilon}_W) \sin \boldsymbol{\Theta}_{4W} \cos \boldsymbol{\phi}_{4W} \quad (9.20)$$

$$\frac{1}{p_{W}} (\underline{\mathbf{r}}_{W} \wedge \underline{\mathbf{k}}_{W}) \cdot (\underline{\mathbf{r}}_{W}^{+} \wedge \underline{\mathbf{\mu}}_{W}) | \mathbf{k}_{W} = |\overline{\mathbf{g}}_{2}|^{2} (q_{2W}k_{W}\sin\mathbf{\epsilon}_{W})^{2}\cos\Theta_{4W} + \overline{\mathbf{g}}_{2}(q_{2W}k_{W}\sin\mathbf{\epsilon}_{W}) \left\{ -\overline{\mathbf{g}}_{2}^{+} q_{2W}k_{W}\cos\mathbf{\epsilon}_{W} + \left[\overline{\mathbf{g}}_{2}^{+}(\underline{\mathbf{k}}, \underline{q}_{2}) - \overline{\mathbf{g}}_{2}^{+} \left(1 - \underline{\mathbf{k}}_{2}^{2} \right) \right] | \mathbf{k}_{W}^{2} \right\} \sin\Theta_{4W}\sin\Phi_{4W}$$

$$(9.21)$$

and

$$\frac{(\underline{\mathbf{r}}_{W} \wedge \underline{\mathbf{k}}_{W}) \cdot (\underline{\mathbf{p}}_{4W} \wedge \underline{\mathbf{k}}_{W})}{p_{W}} \mathbf{k}_{W}(\underline{\mathbf{p}}_{2} \cdot \underline{\mathbf{r}}^{+}) + (\underline{\mathbf{r}}_{W} \wedge \underline{\mathbf{k}}_{W}) \cdot (\underline{\mathbf{r}}_{W}^{+} \wedge \underline{\mathbf{p}}_{4W})}{p_{W}} \mathbf{x}$$

$$\mathbf{x} \quad \mathbf{k}_{W} \quad (\mathbf{p}_{2} \cdot \mathbf{k}) = |\overline{\mathbf{g}}_{2}|^{2} \left[(\mathbf{q}_{2W} \mathbf{k}_{W} \sin \mathbf{\epsilon}_{W})^{2} (\mathbf{p}_{2} \cdot \mathbf{k}) \cos \mathbf{\Theta}_{4W} \right]$$

-
$$(q_{2W}k_W \sin \epsilon_W)(p_2 k k.q_2 - k^2 p_2.q_2) \sin \Theta_{4W} \sin \phi_{4W}$$
 (9.22)

Using the results (A.33)-(A.42) which give the various factors appearing in T(r) it follows from (9.7) that:

$$d\boldsymbol{\sigma}(c) = \frac{1}{(4\pi)^2} \frac{q_B}{4E_B^2 p_B} \frac{1}{(t-p^2)^2} \frac{2^n n! n!}{(2n)!} k_W^{2n-6} \times \left[A \left\{ \left[n P_n^o(c_W) \right]^2 + \left[P_n^1(c_W) \right]^2 \right\} \right\}$$
$$+ B \sin \phi_{4W} \frac{(-1)}{(n-1)} P_n^1(c_W) \left\{ n P_n^o(c_W) - \frac{c_W}{s_W} P_n^1(c_W) \right\}$$

125.

· · .

$$+ \cos \phi_{4W} \frac{(-1)}{(n-1)} P_{n}^{1}(c_{W}) \left\{ nP_{n}^{0}(c_{W}) - \frac{c_{W}}{s_{W}} P_{n}^{1}(c_{W}) \right\}$$

$$+ D\left\{ \frac{1}{(n-1)^{2}} \left[nP_{n}^{0}(c_{W}) - \frac{c_{W}}{s_{W}} P_{n}^{1}(c_{W}) \right]^{2}$$

$$+ \sin^{2} \phi_{4W} \left[\left\{ P_{n}^{1}(c_{W}) \right\}^{2} - \frac{nP_{n}^{0}(c_{W})P_{n}^{2}(c_{W})}{(n-1)} \right] \right\}$$

$$+ E\left\{ \frac{1}{(n-1)^{2}} \left[nP_{n}^{0}(c_{W}) - \frac{c_{W}}{s_{W}} P_{n}^{1}(c_{W}) \right]^{2}$$

$$+ \cos^{2} \phi_{4W} \left[\left\{ P_{n}^{1}(c_{W}) \right\}^{2} - \frac{nP_{n}^{0}(c_{W})P_{n}^{2}(c_{W})}{(n-1)} \right] \right\}$$

$$+ F\left\{ \frac{-1}{(n-1)} nP_{n}^{0} \left[nP_{n}^{0}(c_{W}) - \frac{c_{W}}{s_{W}} P_{n}^{1}(c_{W}) \right]$$

$$+ \sin^{2} \phi_{4W} \left[\left\{ P_{n}^{1}(c_{W}) \right\}^{2} - \frac{nP_{n}^{0}(c_{W})P_{n}^{2}(c_{W})}{(n-1)} \right] \right\}$$

$$+ \sin^{2} \phi_{4W} \left[\left\{ P_{n}^{1}(c_{W}) \right\}^{2} - \frac{nP_{n}^{0}(c_{W})P_{n}^{2}(c_{W})}{(n-1)} \right] \right\}$$

$$+ \cos^{2} \phi_{4W} \left[\left\{ P_{n}^{1}(c_{W}) \right\}^{2} - \frac{nP_{n}^{0}(c_{W})P_{n}^{2}(c_{W})}{s_{W}} \right]$$

$$+ \cos^{2} \phi_{4W} \left[\left\{ P_{n}^{1}(c_{W}) \right\}^{2} - \frac{nP_{n}^{0}(c_{W})P_{n}^{2}(c_{W})}{(n-1)} \right] \right\}$$

$$x$$

$$x d \cos \Theta_{B} d \phi_{B} \propto \frac{\Gamma_{W}(2-3,4)}{\Gamma_{W}} \propto \frac{1}{4\pi_{n}} d c_{W} d \phi_{4W}$$
 (9.23)

where

$$A = M_{kk}k_W^4 + 2Re \left\{ h_{kr} \left(\frac{\mathbf{r} \cdot \mathbf{p}_2 \cdot \mathbf{k} \cdot \mathbf{p}_2}{\mathbf{p}_2^2} - \mathbf{r} \cdot \mathbf{k} \right) \right\} k_W^2 +$$

+
$$M_{rr} \left| \left(\frac{r \cdot p_2 k \cdot p_2}{p_2^2} - m \cdot k \right) \right|^2$$
 (9.24)

$$B = -2Re \left\{ \overline{g}_2(q_{2W}k_W \sin \epsilon_W) \left[\frac{M_{kr}k_W^2 + M_{rr}\left(\frac{r^*p_2 k \cdot p_2}{p_2^2} - r^*k\right) \right] \right\}$$

+
$$Q_{rs} 2m_2^2 k_W^2 \left(\frac{r_{\cdot p_2}^+ k_{\cdot p_2}^- r_{\cdot k}^+}{p_2^2} \right) + S_{ks}^2 2m_2^2 \left(\frac{r_{\cdot p_2}^+ k_{\cdot p_2}^- r_{\cdot k}^+}{p_2^2} - r_{\cdot k}^+ \right)$$

+
$$R_{ks} 2(p_2 \cdot k \cdot q_2 - k^2 p_2 q_2) \overline{g}_2^+ (q_2 W k_W \sin \epsilon_W) \right\} (9.25)$$

$$C = -2Re \left\{ \overline{g}_{2}(q_{2W}k_{W}\sin \epsilon_{W}) q_{ks} 2m_{2}^{2}k_{W}^{2} \right\}$$
(9.26)

$$D = |\bar{g}_{2}|^{2} (q_{2W}^{k} \sin \epsilon_{W})^{2} | H_{rr} + Q_{rs} 2m_{2}^{2}k_{W}^{2} \}$$
(9.27)
$$E = |\bar{g}_{2}|^{2} (q_{2W}^{k} \sin \epsilon_{W})^{2} | H_{ss} m_{2}^{2}k_{W}^{2} \}$$
(9.28)

$$\mathbf{F} = -|\overline{\mathbf{g}}_2|^2 \left(q_{2W} k_W \sin \boldsymbol{\epsilon}_W \right)^2 2 \operatorname{Re} \left\{ N_{kr}^2 k_W^2 + Q_{rs}^2 2 m_2^2 k_W^2 \right\} (9.29)$$

$$G = -|\overline{g}_2|^2 (q_{2W}^k \sin \epsilon_W)^2 2\text{Re} \left\{ R_{ks}(-2p_2 \cdot k) + S_{ks}^2 2m_2^2 \right\}$$
(9.30)

The factor $\Gamma_W(2-3,4)/\Gamma_W$ is the branching ratio of the decay process (1.1) relative to all other possible decay modes of F.

The decay differibution is chearly a very complicated function of the coupling converts and their associated form factors. Integration over ψ_{4W} gives the decay distribution as a function of $c_W = \cos \Theta_{4W}$.

$$\frac{1}{2n} = \overline{A} \left\{ \frac{\left[nP_{n}^{0}(\cos\Theta_{4W})\right]^{2} + \left[P_{n}^{1}(\cos\Theta_{4W})\right]^{2}}{\left[\frac{1}{(n-1)^{2}}\left[nP_{n}^{0}(\cos\Theta_{4W}) - \frac{\cos\Theta_{4W}}{\sin\Theta_{4W}}P_{n}^{1}(\cos\Theta_{4W})\right]^{2} + \frac{1}{2} \left[\left\{P_{n}^{1}(\cos\Theta_{4W})\right\}^{2} - \frac{nP_{n}^{0}(\cos\Theta_{4W})P_{n}^{2}(\cos\Theta_{4W})}{(n-1)}\right] \right] d\cos\Theta_{4W}}$$

$$(9.31)$$

and integration over c_W gives the decay distribution as a function of ϕ_{4W} .

$$\frac{1}{2\pi} \left[\vec{c} + \vec{L} \sin^2 \phi_{4W} \right] d\phi_{4W} \qquad (9.32)$$

where $\overline{A}, \overline{B}, \overline{C}$ and \overline{D} depend on the production process. variables s and t in a very complicated way.

It is to be noted that for the production of the resonance F in the forward or backward direction for which $\sin \Theta_{\rm B} = 0$, the decay distribution is uniquely defined as:

$$\frac{1}{4\pi n} = A \left\{ \left[n \mathbb{P}_n^0 (\cos \Theta_{4W}) \right]^2 + \left[\mathbb{P}_n^1 (\cos \Theta_{4W}) \right]^2 \right\} d \cos \Theta_{4W} d \phi_{4W}$$
(9.33)

This distribution is of course the Adair distribution for the decay of a spin $(n-\frac{1}{2})$ resonance produced in the forward direction.

The spin averaged differential cross section for the production of a spin J (J = n - $\frac{1}{2}$) resonance in the quasi two body process (1.3) assuming that the resonance does not decay or equivalently ,summing over all possible decay modes is obtained from (9.23) by putting $\Gamma_{\rm W}(2-3,4) = \Gamma_{\rm W}$ and integrating over $c_{\rm W}$ and $\phi_{4\rm W}$.

The result is:

 $d\sigma(c) = \frac{1}{(4\pi)^2} \frac{q_B}{4E_B^2 p_B} \frac{1}{(t-p^2)^2} \frac{2^n n! n! \cdot k_W^{2n-6}}{(2n)!}$

$$\left[\left\{ A + \frac{1}{2} \left(F + G \right) \right\} + \frac{n}{(n-1)} \frac{1}{2} \left(D + E \right) \right] d \cos \Theta_{B} d \phi_{B}$$

$$(9.34)$$

where A,D,E, F and G are given above.

10. SIMULTANEOUS PRODUCTION OF A BOSON RESONANCE AND A FERMION RESONANCE.

In this eection a boson resonance decaying into two pseudoscalar particles and a fermion resonance decaying into a pseudoscalar particle and a spin half particle are considered. The beson resonance must necessarily have normal parity and in the peripheral production process the exchanged particle may be a pseudoscalar, a vector or a pseudovector particle but not a For each of the three allowed possibilities scalar particle. the differential cross section is calculated for the process described by Fig. 1 (d) in which the boson resonance has spin j, and the fermion resonance has spin J. As in section 9 the various parity cases for the fermion fields are treated by making use of the factors \mathcal{X}_{ϕ} and \mathcal{X}_{f} defined in section 5. The invariant matrix element in each case is constructed from the vertex functions of Table 1. and the propagators of section 4. The resulting expression is then substituted in the formula (3.38) for d $\sigma(d)$.

(i) Pseudoscalar particle exchange.

The invariant matrix element is given by:

$$< p_3 p_4 q_3 q_4 | T | p_1 q_1 > = \overline{u} (p_3) \frac{\aleph_e^{eE}(w, p_2)}{(m_e)^n} (p_4)^n (-1)^n$$

$$\begin{array}{c} \Theta_{\mathbf{p},\mathbf{n}}(\mathbf{p}_{2},\mathbf{n}) \quad (\not p_{2} + m_{2}) \quad \mathbf{x} \quad \frac{1}{(\mathbf{w} - m_{2}^{2}) + \mathbf{i} m_{2} \Gamma_{W}} \quad (\mathbf{k}_{\lambda})^{\mathbf{n}} \qquad \mathbf{x} \end{array}$$

$$\frac{f F(t, w, p_2)}{(m_f)^n} \, \bigvee_{f} \, u(p_1) \, \frac{1}{(t-p^2)} \, \frac{g G(t, v)}{(m_g)^{j-1}} \, (-1)^j \, (k_p)^j \, x$$

$$\phi_{(q_2,j)} = \frac{1}{(v-p_2^2) + ip_2 \Gamma_V} (q_4)^j = \frac{1}{(m_h)^{j-1}}$$
(10.1)

where $J = (n + \frac{1}{2})$.

The matrix element clearly consists of two separate parts: one involving the boson resonance and one involving the fermion resonance. Thus using the results of sections 7 and 9 substituting (10.1) in (3.38), averaging over initial spin states, summing over final spin states and integrating over dv and dw gives, with the notation of (9.2) and the approximations (7.4) and (9.3), the result:

$$d\sigma(d) = \frac{f^2}{4\pi} \frac{g^2}{4\pi} \left| \frac{F(t) G(t)}{(m_f)^{n-1} (m_g)^{j-1}} \right|^2 \frac{q_B}{4E_B^2 p_B} \frac{\left(\frac{-t+(m_1^2 + m_2)^2}{(t-p^2)^2}\right)}{(t-p^2)^2}$$

$$x \frac{2^{n} n! n!}{(2n)!} k_{W}^{2n-2} \frac{2^{j} j! j!}{(2j)!} k_{V}^{2j} d \cos \theta_{B} d \phi_{B}$$

$$x \frac{\Gamma_{W}(2-3,4)}{\Gamma_{W}} = \frac{1}{4\pi n} \left[\left\{ n P_{n}^{0} \left(\cos \Theta_{4W} \right) \right\}^{2} + \left\{ P_{n}^{1} \left(\cos \Theta_{4W} \right) \right\}^{2} \right] x$$

x d cos
$$\Theta_{4W}$$
 d Φ_{4W} $\frac{V^{(2-5,4)}}{V_V}$ $\frac{(2j+1)}{4\pi}$ $P_j^o(\cos\Theta_{3V})$ x

$$d \cos \theta_{3V} d \phi_{3V}$$
 (10.2)

where now $J = (n-\frac{1}{2})$ and where (6.5) and (6.18) have been used to separate out the two branching ratio factors $\Gamma_V(2-3,4)/\Gamma_V$ and $\Gamma_W(2-3,4)/\Gamma_W$ respectively. The first factor gives the spin averaged differential cross section for the two body production process (1.9) since the decay distribution factors are normalised so that integration over the distribution variables gives unity. The distribution of the decay products of the boson and fermion resonances are independent of each other and of the production process variables and the form factors F(t) and G(t). As expected there is no dependence on either ϕ_{3V} or ϕ_{4W} in accordance with the Trieman-Yang test.

(ii) Vector particle exchange.

The invariant matrix element is given by:

$$\langle p_3 p_4 q_3 q_4 | T | p_1 q_1 \rangle = \overline{u} (p_2) \mathcal{X}_e \frac{e E(w_1 p_2)}{(m_e)^n} (p_4)^n (-1)^n x$$

$$\Theta_{\lambda \rho}^{(p_2,n) (p_2+m_2)} \xrightarrow{1}_{(w-m_2^2) + i m_2 \Gamma_W}^{(k_2,n-1)} (k_{\lambda})^{n-1}$$

$$\frac{\left[\frac{\mathbf{f}_{1} \mathbf{F}_{1}(\mathbf{t}, \mathbf{w}, \mathbf{z}_{2})}{\left(\mathbf{m}_{\mathbf{f}_{1}}\right)^{n-1}} \right] \mathbf{g}_{\mathbf{x}, \mathbf{y}_{1}} + \frac{\mathbf{f}_{2} \mathbf{F}_{2}(\mathbf{t}, \mathbf{w}, \mathbf{z}_{2})}{\left(\mathbf{m}_{\mathbf{f}_{2}}\right)^{n}} \mathbf{x}_{\mathbf{x}} \mathbf{x}_{1} +$$

$$+ \frac{f_{3}F_{3}(t,w,p_{2})}{(m_{f_{3}})^{n+1}} p_{2} \lambda_{1} + \frac{f_{4}F_{4}(t,w,p_{2})}{(m_{f_{4}})^{n+1}} k_{\alpha} \lambda_{1} +$$

$$+ \frac{f_5 F_5(t, w, p_2)}{(m_f_5)^{n+1}} \left\{ \alpha \lambda_1 \sigma \tau^k \sigma^{p_2} \tau^{k_5} \right\} \left\{ x_f u(p_1) \frac{1}{(t-p^2)} \right\} (-1) x$$

$$\begin{bmatrix} g_{\alpha\beta} - \frac{k_{\alpha}k_{\beta}}{\mu^{2}} \end{bmatrix} \frac{g_{o} G_{o}(t,v)}{(m_{g_{o}})^{j}} \in \beta \chi \delta \mu^{-k} \chi^{q_{2}} \delta^{(k)} \mu^{j-1} \qquad x$$

$$x (-1)^{j} \phi_{\mu\nu}^{(q_{2},j)} \frac{1}{(v-\mu_{2}^{2}) + i \gamma_{2} \Gamma_{\nu}} (q_{4})^{j} \frac{h H (\gamma)}{(m_{h})^{j-1}}$$
(10.3)

where $J = (n + \frac{1}{2})$.

Substituting (10.3) in (3.38), averaging over initial spin states, summing over final spin states and integrating over dv and dw gives, with the notation of (9.2) and the approximations (7.4) and (9.3), the result:

$$d\sigma'(d) = \frac{1}{(4\pi)^4} \frac{q_B}{4E_B^2} \frac{1}{p_B} \frac{1}{(t-\gamma^2)^2} \frac{\Gamma_V(2-3,4)}{\Gamma_V} \frac{\Gamma_W(2-3,4)}{\Gamma_W}$$
$$\times \left[\frac{2^j j j j j}{(2j) j} \frac{1}{(2j+1)} q_V^{2j}\right]^{-1} \left[\frac{2^n n j n j}{(2n) j} \frac{(2n+1)^2}{n^3} p_W^{2n-2}\right]^{-1}$$

x
$$T(\mathbf{r}) d \cos \Theta_{B} d \phi_{B} d \cos \Theta_{3V} d \phi_{3V} d \cos \Theta_{4W} d \phi_{4W}$$
 (10.4)

where now $J = (n-\frac{1}{2})$ and T(r) is given by (9.8) with r_{μ} given by (7.10) and s_{μ} by (9.10). The various coefficients M_{kk} , M_{kr} ... etc. appearing in (9.8) are given by (9.11) and the factors multiplying each of these coefficients are given by (A.33) - (A.34).

Using the definition (7.10) it follows that k.r is zero and p_2 .r and r.r⁺ are given by (7.12) and (7.14) respectively. Using the notation $C_V = \cos\Theta_{3V}$, $S_V = \sin\Theta_{3V}$, $C_W = \cos\Theta_{4W}$ and $S_W = \sin\Theta_{4W}$ the following relationships may be derived:

$$\underline{\mathbf{r}}_{W} \cdot \underline{\mathbf{k}}_{W} = \overline{\mathbf{g}}_{0} \left[\frac{2^{\mathbf{j}} \mathbf{j} \mathbf{i} \mathbf{j} \mathbf{j}}{(2\mathbf{j}) \mathbf{i}} \frac{1}{\mathbf{j}} \mathbf{k}_{V}^{\mathbf{j}-1} \mathbf{q}_{V}^{\mathbf{j}} \right] \mathbf{P}_{\mathbf{j}}^{1} (\mathbf{C}_{V}) \frac{\mathbf{k} \cdot \mathbf{p}_{2}}{\frac{\mathbf{p}_{2}^{2}}{\mathbf{p}_{2}^{2}}} \mathbf{x}$$

$$x (\mu_2 p_{2V} k_V \sin \mathbf{k}_V) \cos \mathbf{\phi}_{3V}$$
 (10.5)

$$\frac{(\underline{\mathbf{r}}_{W} \wedge \underline{\mathbf{k}}_{W}) \cdot (\underline{\mathbf{p}}_{4W} \wedge \underline{\mathbf{k}}_{W})}{\underline{\mathbf{p}}_{W} \cdot \underline{\mathbf{k}}_{W}} = \overline{\mathbf{g}}_{0} \left[\frac{2^{j} j! j!}{(2j)!} \frac{1}{j} \cdot \mathbf{k}_{V}^{j-1} q_{V}^{j} \right] \mathbf{p}_{j}^{1} (\mathbf{C}_{V}) \times \mathbf{k}_{V}^{j}$$

$$x \left\{ (p_{2} k_{V} k_{W}) \sin \phi_{3V} s_{W} \cos \phi_{4W} + \frac{(k \cdot p_{2} k \cdot q_{2} - k^{2} q_{2} \cdot p_{2})}{m_{2}} \right\} x$$

$$\cos \phi_{3V} s_{W} \sin \phi_{4W}$$
 (10.6)

$$(\underline{\mathbf{r}}_{W} \wedge \underline{\mathbf{k}}_{W}) \cdot (\underline{\mathbf{r}}_{W}^{+} \wedge \underline{\mathbf{k}}_{W}) = |\overline{\mathbf{g}}_{0}^{2} \left[\frac{2^{j} j j j j}{(2j) j} \frac{1}{j} \mathbf{k}_{V}^{j-1} \mathbf{q}_{V}^{j} \right]^{2} \mathbf{x}$$

$$\begin{bmatrix} P_{j}^{1}(C_{V}) \end{bmatrix}^{2} \times \left\{ \left(p_{2} k_{V} k_{W} \right)^{2} \sin^{2} \phi_{3V} + \frac{\left(k_{*} p_{2} k_{*} q_{2} - k^{2} p_{2} q_{2} \right)^{2}}{m_{2}^{2}} \times \cos^{2} \phi_{3V} \right\}$$
(10.7)

$$\frac{p_{4W} \cdot (\underline{\mathbf{r}}_{W} \wedge \underline{\mathbf{k}}_{W})}{p_{W}} = -\overline{g}_{0} \left[\frac{2^{j} j! j!}{(2j)!} \frac{1}{j} \mathbf{k}_{V}^{j-1} \mathbf{q}_{V}^{j} \right] \mathbf{P}_{j}^{1} (\mathbf{C}_{V}) \times$$

$$x \left\{ (p_{2} k_{V} k_{W}) \sin \phi_{3V} s_{W} \sin \phi_{4W} - \frac{(k \cdot p_{2} k \cdot q_{2} - k^{2} q_{2} \cdot p_{2})}{m_{2}} \right\}$$

$$\cos \phi_{3V} s_W \cos \phi_{4W}$$
 (10.8)

$$\frac{(\underline{\mathbf{r}}_{W} \wedge \underline{\mathbf{k}}_{W}) \cdot (\underline{\mathbf{r}}_{W}^{+} \wedge \underline{\mathbf{p}}_{4W}) \mathbf{k}_{W}}{\mathbf{p}_{W}} = |\overline{\mathbf{g}}_{0}|^{2} \left[\frac{2^{j} j! j!}{(2j)!} \frac{1}{j} \mathbf{k}_{V}^{j-1} \mathbf{q}_{V}^{j}\right]^{2} \mathbf{x}$$

$$x \left[P_{j}^{1}(C_{V}) \right] \left\{ \left[(P_{2} k_{V} k_{V})^{2} \sin^{2} \phi_{3V} + \frac{(k \cdot P_{2} k \cdot q_{2} - k^{2} P_{2} q_{2})^{2}}{m_{2}^{2}} x \right] \right\}$$

$$\mathbf{x} \cos^2 \phi_{3V} \left[C_{W} - \frac{\mathbf{k} \cdot \mathbf{p}_2}{\mathbf{p}_2^2} \left(\mu_2 \, \mathbf{p}_{2V} \, \mathbf{k}_V \, \sin \mathbf{e}_V \right) \right] \mathbf{x}$$

$$\left[(\mu_{2} k_{V} k_{W}) \cos \phi_{3V} \sin \phi_{3V} s_{W} \cos \phi_{4W} + \frac{(k \cdot p_{2} k \cdot q_{2} - k^{2} p_{2} \cdot q_{2})}{m_{2}} \right] \times$$

$$x \cos^2 \phi_{3V} S_W \sin \phi_{4W}$$
 (10.9)

and

$$\frac{(\underline{\mathbf{r}}_{W} \wedge \underline{\mathbf{k}}_{W}) \cdot (\underline{\mathbf{p}}_{W} \wedge \underline{\mathbf{k}}_{W})}{\underline{\mathbf{p}}_{W}} \qquad k_{W} \quad (\underline{\mathbf{p}}_{2} \cdot \mathbf{r}_{T}^{+}) + \frac{(\underline{\mathbf{r}}_{W} \wedge \underline{\mathbf{k}}_{W}) \cdot (\underline{\mathbf{r}}_{W}^{+} \wedge \underline{\mathbf{p}}_{W})}{\underline{\mathbf{p}}_{W}} \quad k_{W}(\underline{\mathbf{p}}_{2} \cdot \mathbf{k})$$

$$= \left| \overline{g}_{0} \right|^{2} \left[\frac{2^{j} j j j j}{(2j) j} \frac{1}{j} k_{V}^{j-1} q_{V}^{j} \right]^{2} \left[p_{j}^{1} (C_{V}) \right]^{2} x$$

$$x \left\{ (p_2 \cdot k) \left[(p_2 \cdot k_V \cdot k_W)^2 \sin^2 \phi_{3V} + \frac{(k \cdot p_2 \cdot k \cdot q_2 - k^2 \cdot q_2 \cdot p_2)^2}{m_2^2} \right] x \right\}$$

$$x \cos^2 \phi_{3V} \left[C_{W} - k^2 \left(\frac{y_2}{2} p_{2V} k_V \sin \epsilon_V \right) \right] \left(\frac{y_2}{2} k_V k_W \right) \qquad x$$

$$x \cos \phi_{3V} \sin \phi_{3V} S_W \cos \phi_{4W} + \frac{(k \cdot p_2 k \cdot q_2 - k^2 q_2 \cdot p_2)}{m_2} x$$

$$x \cos^2 \phi_{3V} s_W \sin \phi_{4W}]$$
 (10.10)

Using these results it may be shown that:

$$d\mathbf{G}(d) = \left(\frac{1}{4\pi}\right)^{2} \left| \overline{g}_{0} \right|^{2} \frac{q_{B}}{4E_{B}^{2} p_{B}} \frac{1}{(t-y^{2})^{2}} \times$$

$$x \frac{2^{j}}{(2j)^{j}} \frac{1}{(2j)^{j}} \frac{(j+1)}{j} k_{V}^{2j-2} \frac{2^{n}}{(2n)^{j}} \frac{n!}{k_{V}^{2n-6}} k_{V}^{2n-6} x$$

$$x \left[A \left\{ \left[nP_{n}^{0} (C_{W}) \right]^{2} + \left[P_{n}^{1} (C_{W}) \right]^{2} \right\} \right]$$

$$+ B (E_{B} P_{B} q_{B} \sin \Theta_{B})^{2} \cos^{2} \phi_{3V} \left\{ \left[nP_{n}^{0} (C_{W}) \right]^{2} + \left[P_{n}^{1} (C_{W}) \right]^{2} \right\}$$

$$+ C (E_{B} P_{B} q_{B} \sin \Theta_{B}) \cos \phi_{3V} \left\{ a \sin \phi_{3V} \cos \phi_{4W} + \right\}$$

$$+ b \cos \phi_{3V} \sin \phi_{4W} x \left(\frac{(-1)}{n-1} \right) P_{n}^{1} (C_{W}) \left\{ nP_{n}^{0} (C_{W}) - \frac{C_{W}}{S_{W}} P_{n}^{1} (C_{W}) \right\}$$

$$+ D \left\{ \left[a^{2} \sin^{2} \phi_{3V} + b^{2} \cos^{2} \phi_{3V} \right] - \frac{1}{(n-1)^{2}} \left[nP_{n}^{0} (C_{W}) - \frac{C_{W}}{S_{W}} P_{n}^{1} (C_{W}) \right]^{2} \right\}$$

$$+ \left[a \sin \phi_{3V} \cos \phi_{4W} + b \cos \phi_{3V} \sin \phi_{4W} \right]^{2} \left[\left\{ P_{n}^{1} (C_{W}) \right\}^{2} - \right]$$

 $- \frac{n P_n^0 (C_W) P_n^2(C_W)}{(n-1)} \right\} +$

$$139.$$

$$+ E \left\{ \left[a^{2} \sin^{2} \phi_{3V} + b^{2} \cos^{2} \phi_{3V} \right] \frac{1}{(n-1)^{2}} \left[nP_{n}^{o} (C_{W}) - \frac{C_{W}}{S_{W}} P_{n}^{1} (C_{W}) \right]^{2} \right.$$

$$+ \left[a \sin \phi_{3V} \sin \phi_{4W} - b \cos \phi_{3V} \cos \phi_{4W} \right]^{2} \left[\left\{ P_{n}^{1} (C_{W}) \right\}^{2} - \frac{nP_{n}^{o} (C_{W}) P_{n}^{2} (C_{W})}{(n-1)} \right] \right\} +$$

$$+ F \left\{ \left[a^{2} \sin^{2} \phi_{3V} + b^{2} \cos^{2} \phi_{3V} \right] \frac{nP_{n}^{o} (C_{W})}{(n-1)} \right] \right\} +$$

$$+ b \cos \phi_{3V} \sin \phi_{4W} \right]^{2} \left[\left\{ P_{n}^{1} (C_{W}) \right\}^{2} - \frac{nP_{n}^{o} (C_{W}) P_{n}^{2} (C_{W})}{(n-1)} \right] \right\} +$$

$$+ c \left\{ \left[a^{2} \sin^{2} \phi_{3V} + b^{2} \cos^{2} \phi_{3V} \right] \frac{nP_{n}^{o} (C_{W}) P_{n}^{2} (C_{W})}{(n-1)} \right] \right\} +$$

$$+ c \left\{ \left[a^{2} \sin^{2} \phi_{3V} + b^{2} \cos^{2} \phi_{3V} \right] \frac{nP_{n}^{o} (C_{W}) P_{n}^{2} (C_{W})}{(n-1)} \right] \right\} +$$

$$- \frac{C_{W}}{S_{W}} P_{n}^{1} (C_{W}) \right\} (-1) + \left[a \sin \phi_{3V} \sin \phi_{4W} - b \cos \phi_{3V} \cos \phi_{4W} \right]^{2}$$

$$x \left[\left\{ P_n^1 (C_W) \right\}^2 - \frac{n P_n^0 (C_W) P_n^2 (C_W)}{(n-1)} \right] \right\} x d \cos \Theta_B d \phi_B x$$

$$\frac{\Gamma_{v}(2-3,4)}{\Gamma_{v}} \qquad \frac{(2j+1)}{4\pi j(j+1)} \left[P_{j}^{1}(C_{v}) \right]^{2} d C_{v} d \phi_{3v} \qquad x$$

$$x \frac{\Gamma_{W}(2-3,4)}{\Gamma_{W}} \frac{1}{4\pi n} = a c_{W} = a \phi_{4W}$$
 (10.11)

where
$$a = (p_2 k_V k_W)$$
 (10.12)
 $b = \frac{(k \cdot p_2 k \cdot q_2 - k^2 p_2 \cdot q_2)}{m_2}$ (10.13)

and

$$A = |\vec{f}_{2}|^{2} [-t + (m_{1}^{i} - m_{2})^{2}] (p_{2} k_{V})^{2}$$
(10.14)

$$B = \left\{ |\vec{f}_{2}|^{2} + 2 \operatorname{Re} (\vec{f}_{2} \vec{f}_{3}^{+}) + 2 \operatorname{Re} (m_{1}^{i} + m_{2}) + \vec{f}_{3}^{2} \right\}$$
$$\times \left[-t + (m_{1}^{i} + m_{2})^{2} \right] \left\{ k_{W}^{4} + \left\{ 2 \operatorname{Re} (\vec{f}_{1} \vec{f}_{2}^{+}) + 2 \operatorname{Re} (\vec{f}_{1} \vec{f}_{3}^{+}) + 2 \operatorname{Re} (\vec{f}_{1} \vec{f}_{3}^{+}) \right\}$$
$$\times \left[-t + (m_{1}^{i} + m_{2})^{2} \right] \left\{ k_{W}^{2} - \frac{k \cdot p_{2}}{p_{2}^{2}} \right\}$$

$$+ \left\{ \left| \overline{f}_{1} \right|^{2} \left[-t + \left(m_{1}^{*} + m_{2}^{*} \right)^{2} \right] \right\} \left(\frac{k \cdot p_{2}}{p_{2}^{2}} \right)^{2}$$
(10.15)

$$C = \left\{ 2 \operatorname{Re} \left(\overline{f}_{1} \overline{f}_{2}^{*} \right)^{2} \left(m_{1}^{*} + m_{2}^{*} \right)^{2} + 2 \operatorname{Re} \left(\overline{f}_{1} \overline{f}_{3}^{*} \right) \left[-t + \left(m_{1}^{*} + m_{2}^{*} \right)^{2} \right] \right\} k_{W}^{2}$$

$$+ \left\{ \left| \overline{f}_{1} \right|^{2} \left[-t + \left(m_{1}^{*} + m_{2}^{*} \right)^{2} \right] \right\} 2 \frac{k \cdot p_{2}}{p_{2}^{2}}$$

$$+ \left\{ 2 \operatorname{Re} \left(\overline{f}_{5} \overline{f}_{3}^{*} \right) \right\} 2 m_{2}^{2} k_{W}^{2} + \left\{ 2 \operatorname{Re} \left(\overline{f}_{5} \overline{f}_{1}^{*} \right) \right\} 2 m_{2}^{2} k_{W}^{2} \frac{k \cdot p_{2}}{p_{2}^{2}}$$

$$- \left\{ 2 \operatorname{Re} \left(\overline{f}_{5} \overline{f}_{2}^{*} \right) \right\} 2 k_{M}^{2} \frac{k^{2}}{m_{2}^{*}} + \left\{ 2 \operatorname{Re} \left(\overline{f}_{5} \overline{f}_{2}^{*} \right) \right\} 2 m_{2}^{2} m_{1}^{*} \frac{k \cdot p_{2}}{p_{2}^{2}}$$

$$(10.15)$$

$$(10.16)$$

$$D = \left\{ \left[\overline{f}_{1} \right]^{2} \left[-t + \left(m_{1}^{\prime} + m_{2}^{\prime} \right)^{2} \right] \right\} - \left\{ 2 \operatorname{Re} \left(\overline{f}_{5} \overline{f}_{1}^{+} \right) 2 m_{2}^{2} k_{W}^{2} \right\} (10.17)$$

$$E = \left\{ \left| f_{5} \right|^{2} \left[-t + \left(m_{1}^{\prime} - m_{2}^{\prime} \right)^{2} \right] \right\} m_{2}^{2} k_{W}^{2}$$
(10.18)

$$F = -\left\{2 \operatorname{Re}\left(\overline{f}_{1}\overline{f}_{2}^{+}\right)\right\} 2 \operatorname{m}_{2} \operatorname{k}_{J}^{2} + \left\{2 \operatorname{Re}\left(\overline{f}_{5}\overline{f}_{1}^{+}\right)\right\} 2 \operatorname{m}_{2}^{2} \operatorname{k}_{W}^{2} \qquad (10.19)$$

$$G = + \left\{ 2 \operatorname{Re}(\overline{f_5f_2}^+) \right\} 2 \operatorname{m}_2(p_2,k) - \left\{ 2 \operatorname{Re}(\overline{f_5f_2}^+) \right\} 2 \operatorname{m}_1^* \operatorname{m}_2^2 (10.20)$$

The factors $\Gamma_V(2-3,4) / \Gamma_V$ and $\Gamma_W(2-3,4) / \Gamma_W$ are the branching ratios of the decay processes (1.2) and (1.1) relative to all other possible decay modes of B_1 and F respectively.

The decay distribution of the boson resonance as a function of $\cos \Theta_{3V}$ is independent of all the other variables including the production process variables. This distribution is given by:

$$\frac{(2j+1)}{2j(j+1)} \left[\mathbb{P}_{j}^{1} \left(\cos \Theta_{3V} \right) \right]^{2} d \cos \Theta_{3V}$$
(10.21)

As is to be expected the decay distributions as a function of ϕ_{3V} and ϕ_{4W} are both of the same form

$$\frac{1}{2\pi} \left[\overline{A} + \overline{B} \sin^2 \phi_{3V} \right] d\phi_{3V} \qquad (10.22)$$

and

$$\frac{1}{2\pi} \left[\overline{C} + \overline{D} \sin^2 \phi_{4W} \right] d \phi_{4W}$$
(10.23)

The decay distribution of the fermion resonance as a function of $\cos \Theta_{4W}$ is obtained from (10.11) by integrating over C_V, ϕ_{3V} and ϕ_{4W} . The result is:

$$\frac{1}{2n} \left[\overline{E} \left\{ \left[nP_{n}^{o} \left(\cos \Theta_{4W} \right) \right]^{2} + \left[P_{n}^{1} \left(\cos \Theta_{4W} \right) \right]^{2} \right\} \right] + \overline{F} \left\{ \frac{1}{(n-1)^{2}} \left[nP_{n}^{o} \left(\cos \Theta_{4W} \right) - \frac{\cos \Theta_{4W}}{\sin \Theta_{4W}} P_{n}^{1} \left(\cos \Theta_{4W} \right) \right]^{2} + \frac{1}{2} \left[\left\{ P_{n}^{1} \left(\cos \Theta_{4W} \right) \right\}^{2} - \frac{nP_{n}^{o} \left(\cos \Theta_{4W} \right) P_{n}^{2} \left(\cos \Theta_{4W} \right)}{(n-1)} \right\} \right] \right\} x$$

$$d \cos \Theta_{4W}$$
 (10.24)

where \overline{A} , \overline{B} , \overline{F} depend in a complicated way on the various coupling constants and their associated form factors. They thus depend on the production process variables and are, in particular, arbitrary functions of t.

It should be noted that the distributions (10.21) and (10.22) are independent of the decay mode of the fermion resonance and the distributions (10.23) and (10.24) are independent of the decay mode of the boson resonance. Thus the first two results apply to the general two stage process:

$$P + N \rightarrow F + B_{1} \qquad (10.25a)$$
$$B_{1} \rightarrow P + P \qquad (10.25b)$$
where F is an arbitrary spin fermion state, B_{A} is a spin j boson resonance of normal parity and the production process is mediated by the exchange of a vector meson.

Similarly the last two results apply to the general two stage process:

$$P + N \rightarrow F + B \qquad (10.26a)$$

$$F \rightarrow N + P \qquad (10.26b)$$

where B is an arbitrary spin boson state of normal parity, F is a spin J, $(J = n - \frac{1}{2})$, fermion state of arbitrary parity and the production process is mediated by the exchange of a vector meson. The state B could be a stable particle or a resonance which might for instance decay into two or three pseudoscalar particles or into a vector particle and one pseudoscalar particle.

(iii) Pseudovector particle exchange.

The invariant matrix element is given by:

$$\langle p_{3}p_{4} q_{3}q_{4} | T | p_{1}q_{1} \rangle = \overline{u} (p_{3}) \bigvee_{e} \frac{eE(w, p_{2})}{(m_{e})^{n}} (p_{4}p)^{n} (-1)^{n} x$$

$$\Theta_{\lambda \rho}^{(p_2,n) (\not p_2 + m_2) \times \frac{1}{(w-m_2^2) + im_2 \Gamma_W}} (k_{\lambda})^{n-1} \times$$

$$\left[\frac{f_{1}F_{1}(t,w,p_{2})}{\binom{m}{f_{1}}^{n-1}}g_{\alpha}\lambda_{1}+\frac{f_{2}F_{2}(t,w,p_{2})}{\binom{m}{f_{2}}^{n}}\delta_{\alpha}k\lambda_{1}+\frac{f_{3}F_{3}(t,w,p_{2})}{\binom{m}{f_{3}}^{n+1}}x\right]$$

$$x p_{2} \propto k \lambda_{1} + \frac{f_{4}F_{4}(t, w, \not{p}_{2})}{(m_{f_{4}})^{n+1}} k \propto k \lambda_{1} + \frac{f_{5}F_{5}(t, w, \not{p}_{2})}{(m_{f_{5}})^{n+1}} x$$

$$\epsilon_{\alpha\lambda_{1}\sigma\tau} k_{\sigma} p_{2\tau} \delta_{5} \left[\chi_{f} u(p_{1}) \times \frac{1}{(t-p^{2})} (-1) \left[g_{\alpha\beta} - \frac{k_{\alpha}k_{\beta}}{p^{2}} \right] \right]$$

$$x \left[\frac{g_{1}^{G_{1}(t,v)}}{\binom{m}{g_{1}}^{j-2}} g_{1}^{g} + 1 + \frac{g_{2}^{G_{2}(t,v)}}{\binom{m}{g_{2}}^{j}} g_{2}^{g} + 1 + \frac{g_{3}^{G_{3}(t,v)}}{\binom{m}{g_{3}}^{j}} g_{3}^{g} + \frac{g_{3}^{G_{3}(t,v)}}{\binom{m}{g_{3}}} g_{3}^{g} + \frac{g_{3}^{G_{3}(t,v)}}{\binom{m}{g_$$

$$x (k_{p})^{j-1} (-1)^{j} \phi (q_{2}, j) \frac{1}{(v-\mu_{2}^{2}) + i \mu_{2} \Gamma_{V}} (q_{4})^{j} \frac{hH(v)}{(m_{h})^{j-1}} (10.27)$$

where $J = (n + \frac{1}{2})$.

Substituting (10.27) in (3.38), averaging over initial spin states, summing over final spin states and integrating over dv and dw gives, with the notation of (9.2) and the approximations (7.4) and (9.3) the result:

$$d\sigma(d) = \frac{1}{(4\pi)^4} \frac{q_B}{4E_B^2 p_B} \frac{1}{(t-\mu^2)^2} \frac{V(2-3,4)}{\Gamma_V} \frac{V(2-3,4)}{\Gamma_W} x$$

$$x \left[\frac{2^{j} j j j j}{(2j) j} \frac{1}{(2j+1)} q_{V}^{2j} \right]^{-1} \left[\frac{2^{n} n j n j}{(2n) j} \frac{(2n+1)^{2}}{n^{2}} p_{W}^{2n-2} \right]^{-1} x$$

146.

$$\mathbf{x} \ \mathbf{T}(\mathbf{r}) \ \mathbf{d} \ \cos \Theta_{\mathrm{B}} \ \mathbf{d} \ \phi_{\mathrm{B}} \ \mathbf{d} \ \cos \Theta_{\mathrm{3V}} \ \mathbf{d} \ \phi_{\mathrm{3V}} \ \mathbf{d} \ \cos \Theta_{\mathrm{4W}} \ \mathbf{d} \ \phi_{\mathrm{4W}} \tag{10.28}$$

where now $J = (n-\frac{1}{2})$ and T(r) is given by (9.8) with r_{μ} given by (7.21) and s_{μ} by (9.10). The various coefficients M_{kk} , K_{kr} ... etc. appearing in (9.8) are given by (9.11) and the factors multiplying each of these coefficients are given by (A.33) - (A.34).

Using the definition (7.21) it follows that k.r, $p_2 r$ and r.r⁺ are given by (7.23), (7.24) and (7.25) respectively. Using the notation $C_V = \cos\Theta_{3V}$, $S_V = \sin\Theta_{3V}$, $C_W = \cos\Theta_{4W}$ and $S_W = \sin\Theta_{4W}$ the following relationships may be derived:

$$\underline{\mathbf{r}}_{W} \cdot \underline{\mathbf{k}}_{W} = \mathbf{r}_{I} \mathbf{k}_{W}$$
(10.29)

$$\frac{(\underline{\mathbf{r}}_{W} \wedge \underline{\mathbf{k}}_{W}) \cdot (\underline{\mathbf{p}}_{4W} \wedge \underline{\mathbf{k}}_{W})}{\underline{\mathbf{p}}_{W} \mathbf{k}_{W}} = \left[\underline{\mathbf{r}}_{T} \cos \psi_{4W} + \underline{\mathbf{r}}_{T} \sin \phi_{4W}\right] \mathbf{k}_{W} \mathbf{S}_{W} \quad (10.30)$$

$$(\underline{\mathbf{r}}_{W} \wedge \underline{\mathbf{k}}_{W}) \cdot (\underline{\mathbf{r}}_{W}^{+} \wedge \underline{\mathbf{k}}_{W}) = \left[|\mathbf{r}_{W}|^{2} + |\mathbf{r}_{P}|^{2} \right] k_{W}^{2}$$
(10.31)

$$\frac{\mathbf{p}_{4W} \cdot (\mathbf{r}_{W} \wedge \mathbf{k}_{W})}{\mathbf{p}_{W}} = -\left[\mathbf{r}_{N} \sin \phi_{4W} - \mathbf{r}_{P} \cos \phi_{4W}\right] \mathbf{k}_{W} \mathbf{s}_{W}$$
(10.32)

$$\frac{(\mathbf{r}_{W} \wedge \underline{\mathbf{k}}_{W}) \cdot (\mathbf{r}_{W}^{+} \wedge \underline{\mathbf{p}}_{4W}) \mathbf{k}_{W}}{\mathbf{p}_{W}} = \left\{ (\mathbf{l}_{T} \mathbf{l}^{2} + \mathbf{l}_{T} \mathbf{l}^{2}) \mathbf{k}_{W}^{2} \mathbf{C}_{W} - (\mathbf{r}_{W} \cos \phi_{4W} + \mathbf{r}_{P} \sin \phi_{4W}) \mathbf{r}_{I}^{+} \mathbf{k}_{W}^{2} \mathbf{S}_{W} \right\}$$
(10.33)

and

•

$$(\underline{\mathbf{r}}_{W} \wedge \underline{\mathbf{k}}_{W}) \cdot (\underline{\mathbf{p}}_{4W} \wedge \underline{\mathbf{k}}_{W}) \frac{\underline{\mathbf{k}}_{W}}{\underline{\mathbf{p}}_{W}} (\underline{\mathbf{p}}_{2} \cdot \mathbf{r}^{+}) + (\underline{\mathbf{r}}_{W} \wedge \underline{\mathbf{k}}_{W}) (\underline{\mathbf{r}}_{W}^{+} \wedge \underline{\mathbf{p}}_{4W}) \frac{\underline{\mathbf{k}}_{W}}{\underline{\mathbf{p}}_{W}} (\underline{\mathbf{p}}_{2} \cdot \mathbf{k})$$

$$= \left[(\underline{\mathbf{p}}_{2} \cdot \mathbf{k}) (|\mathbf{r}_{W}|^{2} + |\underline{\mathbf{r}}_{W}|^{2}) \underline{\mathbf{k}}_{W}^{2} \underline{\mathbf{c}}_{W} + (\mathbf{r}_{N} \cos \phi_{4W} + \mathbf{r}_{P} \sin \phi_{4W}) (\underline{\mathbf{p}}_{2} \cdot \mathbf{k} \cdot \mathbf{r}^{+} \cdot \mathbf{k} - \mathbf{k}^{2} \underline{\mathbf{p}}_{2} \cdot \mathbf{r}^{+}) \underline{\mathbf{k}}_{W}^{S} \underline{\mathbf{k}}_{W} \right]$$

$$(10.34)$$

where

$$\begin{aligned} \mathbf{r}_{\mathrm{I}} &= \left[\frac{2^{\mathrm{j}} \mathbf{j} \mathbf{j} \mathbf{j} \mathbf{j}}{(2 \mathbf{j}) \mathbf{i}} - \frac{1}{\mathbf{j}} \mathbf{k}_{\mathrm{V}}^{\mathrm{j}-2} \mathbf{q}_{\mathrm{V}}^{\mathrm{j}} \right] \mathbf{x} \mathbf{k}_{\mathrm{W}} \\ \mathbf{x} \left[\left\{ \overline{\mathbf{g}}_{\mathrm{k}} \mathbf{k}_{\mathrm{V}}^{2} - \overline{\mathbf{g}}_{\mathrm{p}_{2}} - \frac{\mathbf{k} \cdot \mathbf{p}_{2}}{\mathbf{p}_{2}} - \frac{\mathbf{k} \cdot \mathbf{p}_{2}}{\mathbf{p}_{2}} \mathbf{k}_{\mathrm{V}}^{2} + \overline{\mathbf{g}}_{1} - \frac{\mathbf{k} \cdot \mathbf{p}_{2}}{\mathbf{p}_{2}^{2}} - \mathbf{p}_{2\mathrm{V}} \mathbf{k}_{\mathrm{V}} \cos \mathbf{\epsilon}_{\mathrm{V}} \right\} \mathbf{j} \mathbf{P}_{\mathrm{j}}^{\mathrm{o}} (\mathbf{C}_{\mathrm{V}}) \\ &+ \left\{ \overline{\mathbf{g}}_{1} - \frac{\mathbf{k} \cdot \mathbf{p}_{2}}{\mathbf{p}_{2}^{2}} - \mathbf{p}_{2\mathrm{V}} \mathbf{k}_{\mathrm{V}} \sin \mathbf{\epsilon}_{\mathrm{V}} \right\} \sin \mathbf{\phi}_{3\mathrm{V}} \mathbf{P}_{\mathrm{j}}^{1} (\mathbf{C}_{\mathrm{V}}) \right] \end{aligned}$$
(10.35)
$$\mathbf{r}_{\mathrm{N}} = -\left[\frac{2^{\mathrm{j}} \mathbf{j} \mathbf{j} \mathbf{j} \mathbf{j}}{(2 \mathbf{j}) \mathbf{i}} - \frac{1}{\mathbf{j}} \mathbf{k}_{\mathrm{V}}^{\mathrm{j}-2} - \mathbf{q}_{\mathrm{V}}^{\mathrm{j}} \right] \left[\overline{\mathbf{g}}_{1} \mathbf{k}_{\mathrm{V}} \cos \mathbf{\phi}_{3\mathrm{V}} \mathbf{P}_{\mathrm{j}}^{1} (\mathbf{C}_{\mathrm{V}}) \right] \end{aligned}$$
(10.36)

$$r_{D} = -\left[\frac{2^{j}}{(2j)!}\frac{j!}{j!}\frac{j!}{j!}\frac{j!}{j!}k_{V}^{j-2} q_{V}^{j}\right]\frac{1}{k_{W}}$$

$$\times\left[\left\{\overline{g}_{1} \frac{k \cdot q_{2}}{p_{2}^{2}} + \overline{g}_{2}k_{V}^{2}\right\} q_{W}k_{W}\sin\epsilon_{W} j P_{j}^{0}(C_{V})$$

$$-\left\{\overline{g}_{1} \frac{(k \cdot p_{2} k \cdot q_{2} - k^{2} p_{2} \cdot q_{2})}{m_{2}}\frac{1}{p_{2}^{2}}\right\} \sin\phi_{3V} P_{j}^{1}(C_{V})\right] (10.37)$$

Using these results it may be shown that:

$$d\sigma'(d) = \frac{1}{(4\pi)^2} \frac{q_B}{4E_B p_B^2} \frac{1}{(t-\mu^2)^2} \frac{2^j j j j}{(2j) j} k_V^{2j-4} \frac{2^n n j n j}{(2n) j} k_W^{2n-6} x$$

$$x \left[A \left\{ \left[n P_n^o(C_W) \right]^2 + \left[P_n^1(C_W) \right]^2 \right\} \right\}$$

$$+ B \cos \phi_{4W} \frac{(-1)}{(n-1)} \int_n^1 (C_W) \left\{ n P_n^o(C_W) - \frac{C_W}{S_W} P_n^1(C_W) \right\}$$

$$+ C \sin \phi_{4W} \frac{(-1)}{(n-1)} P_n^1(C_W) \left\{ n P_n^o(C_W) - \frac{C_W}{S_W} P_n^1(C_W) \right\}$$

$$+ D \left\{ \left[V_N V^2 + V_F V^2 \right] \frac{1}{(n-1)^2} \left[n P_n^o(C_W) - \frac{C_W}{S_W} P_n^1(C_W) \right]^2 \right\}$$

$$+ \left[V_N \cos \phi_{4W} + r_P \sin \phi_{4W} \right]^2 \left[\left\{ P_n^1(C_W) \right\}^2 - \frac{n P_n^o(C_W) P_n^2(C_W)}{(n-1)} \right] \right\}$$

$$149.$$

$$+ E\left\{\left[\left|\mathbf{r}_{N}\right|^{2} + \left|\mathbf{r}_{P}\right|^{2}\right] \frac{A}{(n-1)^{2}}\left[nP_{n}^{0}(C_{W}) - \frac{C_{W}}{S_{W}}P_{n}^{1}(C_{W})\right]^{2} + \left|\mathbf{r}_{N}\sin\phi_{4W} - \mathbf{r}_{P}\cos\phi_{4W}\right|^{2}\left[\left\{P_{n}^{1}(C_{W})\right\}^{2} - \frac{nP_{n}^{0}(C_{W})P_{n}^{2}(C_{W})}{(n-1)}\right]\right\}$$

$$+ F\left\{\left[\left|\mathbf{r}_{N}\right|^{2} + \left|\mathbf{r}_{P}\right|^{2}\right] \frac{nP_{n}^{0}(C_{W})}{(n-1)}\left[nP_{n}^{0}(C_{W}) - \frac{C_{W}}{S_{W}}P_{n}^{1}(C_{W})\right](-1)\right]$$

$$+ \left|\mathbf{r}_{N}\cos\phi_{4W} + \mathbf{r}_{P}\sin\phi_{4W}\right|^{2}\left[\left\{P_{n}^{1}(C_{W})\right\}^{2} - \frac{nP_{n}^{0}(C_{W})P_{n}^{2}(C_{W})}{(n-1)}\right]\right\}$$

$$+ G\left\{\left[\left|\mathbf{r}_{N}\right|^{2} + \left|\mathbf{r}_{P}\right|^{2}\right] \frac{nP_{n}^{0}(C_{W})}{(n-1)}\left[nP_{n}^{0}(C_{W}) - \frac{C_{W}}{S_{W}}P_{n}^{1}(C_{W})\right](-1)\right]$$

+
$$G \left\{ \left[\left| \mathbf{r}_{N} \right|^{2} + \left| \mathbf{r}_{N} \right|^{2} \right] \frac{n P_{n}^{\prime} \left(\mathbf{C}_{W} \right)}{(n-1)} \left[n P_{n}^{\circ} \left(\mathbf{C}_{W} \right) - \frac{\mathbf{C}_{W}}{\mathbf{s}_{W}} P_{n}^{1} \left(\mathbf{C}_{W} \right) \right] (-1) \right\}$$

+ $\left| \mathbf{r}_{N} \sin \phi_{4W} - \mathbf{r}_{P} \cos \phi_{4W} \right|^{2} \left[\left\{ P_{n}^{1} \left(\mathbf{C}_{W} \right) \right\}^{2} - \frac{n P_{n}^{\circ} \left(\mathbf{C}_{W} \right) E_{n}^{2} \left(\mathbf{C}_{W} \right)}{(n-1)} \right] \right\} \right] x$

$$x \left[\frac{2^{j} j! j!}{(2j)!} \frac{1}{j} k_{V}^{j-2} q_{V}^{j} \right]^{-2} d \cos \Theta_{B} d \phi_{B}$$

+

+

$$x \frac{\Gamma_{\rm V}^{(2-3,4)}}{\Gamma_{\rm V}} \frac{(2j+1)}{4\pi_{\rm j}^2} \ {\rm d} \ {\rm C}_{\rm V} \ {\rm d} \phi_{\rm 3V} \ {\rm x} \frac{\Gamma_{\rm W}^{(2-3,4)}}{\Gamma_{\rm W}} \frac{1}{4\pi_{\rm n}} \ {\rm d} \ {\rm C}_{\rm W} \ {\rm d} \phi_{\rm 4W} \ (10.38)$$

$$A = M_{kk} k_{W}^{4} + 2 \operatorname{Re} (M_{kr} r_{I}) k_{W}^{3} + M_{I'r} |r_{I}|^{2} k_{W}^{2}$$
(10.39)

$$B = + 2 \operatorname{Re} \left\{ M_{kr} r_{N} k_{W}^{3} + M_{rr} r_{N} r_{I}^{+} k_{W}^{2} + Q_{ks} r_{N} 2m_{2}^{2} k_{W}^{4} - Q_{rs} r_{N} r_{I}^{+} 2m_{2}^{2} k_{W}^{4} + R_{ks} r_{N} k_{W} (p_{2} \cdot k) (p_{2} \cdot k r^{+} \cdot k - k^{2} r^{+} \cdot p_{2}) + S_{rs} r_{N} r_{I}^{+} 2m_{2}^{2} k_{W}^{2} \right\}$$
(10.40)

$$C = + 2 \operatorname{Re} \left\{ M_{kr} r_{P} k_{W}^{3} + M_{rr} r_{P} r_{I}^{+} k_{W}^{2} + Q_{ks} r_{P} 2m_{2}^{2} k_{W}^{4} - Q_{rs} r_{P} r_{I}^{+} 2m_{2}^{2} k_{W}^{4} + R_{ks} r_{I} k_{W} (p_{2} \cdot k) (p_{2} \cdot k r^{+} \cdot k - k^{2} r^{+} \cdot p_{2}) + S_{rs} r_{P} r_{I}^{+} 2m_{2}^{2} k_{W}^{4} + R_{ks} r_{I} k_{W} (p_{2} \cdot k) (p_{2} \cdot k r^{+} \cdot k - k^{2} r^{+} \cdot p_{2}) + S_{rs} r_{P} r_{I}^{+} 2m_{2}^{2} k_{W}^{2} \right\}$$
(10.41)

$$D = M_{rr} k_{W}^{2} + Q_{rs} 2m_{2}^{2} k_{W}^{4}$$
(10.42)

$$E = M_{ss} m_{2}^{2} k_{W}^{4}$$
(10.43)

$$F = - 2 \operatorname{Re} \left\{ N_{kr} 2k_{W}^{4} + Q_{rs} 2m_{2}^{2} k_{W}^{4} \right\}$$
(10.44)

$$G = - 2 \operatorname{Re} \left\{ R_{ks} (-2) (p_{2} \cdot k) k_{W}^{2} + S_{ks} 2m_{2}^{2} k_{W}^{2} \right\}$$
(10.45)

The factors $V_V(2-3,4)/V_V$ and $V_W(2-3,4)/V_W$ are the branching ratios of the decay processes (1.2) and (1.1) relative to all other possible decay modes of B_1 and F respectively. The decay distribution as a function of any one of the variables C_V , ϕ_{3V} , C_W , and ϕ_{4W} is obtained from(10.38) by integrating over the other three variables. These distributions are of the form:

$$\frac{(2j+1)}{2j^{2}} \left[\overline{\mathbb{A}} \left\{ j \mathbb{P}_{j}^{0}(\cos\Theta_{3V}) \right\}^{2} + \overline{\mathbb{B}} \left\{ \mathbb{P}_{j}^{1}(\cos\Theta_{3V}) \right\}^{2} \right] d\cos\Theta_{3V} \qquad (10.46)$$

$$\frac{1}{2n} \left[\overline{\mathbb{C}} + \overline{\mathbb{D}} \sin^{2}\phi_{3V} \right] d\phi_{3V} \qquad (10.47)$$

$$\frac{1}{2n} \left[\overline{\mathbb{E}} \left\{ \left[n \mathbb{P}_{n}^{0}(\cos\Theta_{4W}) \right]^{2} + \left[\mathbb{P}_{n}^{1}(\cos\Theta_{4W}) \right]^{2} \right\} + \left[\overline{\mathbb{P}}_{n}^{1}(\cos\Theta_{4W}) \right]^{2} \right] + \left[\overline{\mathbb{P}}_{n}^{1}(\cos\Theta_{4W}) - \frac{\cos\Theta_{4W}}{\sin\Theta_{4W}} - \frac{\mathbb{P}_{n}^{1}(\cos\Theta_{4W})}{\mathbb{P}_{n}^{2}(\cos\Theta_{4W})} \right]^{2} + \frac{1}{2} \left[\left\{ \mathbb{P}_{n}^{1}(\cos\Theta_{4W}) \right\}^{2} - \frac{n \mathbb{P}_{n}^{0}(\cos\Theta_{4W}) - \mathbb{P}_{n}^{2}(\cos\Theta_{4W})}{(n-1)} \right\} \right] x$$

$$x d \cos\Theta_{4W} \qquad (10.48)$$

$$\frac{1}{2\pi} \left[\overline{G} + \overline{H} \sin^2 \phi_{4W} \right] d \phi_{4W}$$
(10.49)

where $\overline{A}, \overline{B}, \ldots, \overline{H}$ depend in a very complicated way on the various coupling constants and their associated form factors. They thus depend on the production process variables and are, in particular, arbitrary functions of t.

As before the distributions (10.46) and (10.47) apply to the general process (10.25) provided that the production process is mediated by the exchange of a pseudovector meson.Similarly (10.48) and (10.49) apply to the general processes (10.26) provided once again that the production process is mediated by the exchange of a pseudovector meson. 11. RESULTS FOR SPECIFIC SPIN AND PARITY RESONANCES.

In this section the general results of the previous sections are applied to processes in which resonances of specific spin and parity are produced by a peripheral mechanism and subsequently decay freely. The results are tabulated as follows.

TABLE 2

The decay angular distribution of a normal parity boson resonance B_1 produced by pseudoscalar particle exchange in the process (1.6) or (1.9).

154.

SPIN PARITY DECAY DISTRIBUTION B, -> P+P

0 <u>π</u> τ τ <u>1</u> <u>3</u> 2π 2 $\frac{1}{2\pi} \frac{5}{8} (3c_V^2 - 1)^2$ 2 $\frac{7}{8}$ $c_{V}^{2} (5c_{V}^{2}-3)^{2}$ <u>_</u> 2π

 $(-1)^{\frac{1}{2}} \xrightarrow{1} (2j+1) \left[P_{j}(c_{v}) \right]^{2}$

TABLE 3

0

The decay angular distribution of a normal parity boson resonance B_1 produced by vector particle exchange in the process (1.6) or (1.9).

SPIN PARITY DECAY DISTRIBUTION 8,-> ?+?

PRODUCTION

 $1 - \frac{1}{2\pi} (A \cos^{2} \phi_{3V} + B) \frac{3}{4} S_{V}^{2}$ $2 + \frac{1}{2\pi} (A \cos^{2} \phi_{3V} + B) \frac{15}{4} S_{V}^{2} C_{V}^{2}$ $3 - \frac{1}{2\pi} (A \cos^{2} \phi_{3V} + B) \frac{21}{32} S_{V}^{2} (S c_{V}^{2} - 1)^{2}$

(-1)⁸ $\frac{1}{2\pi} \left(A \cos^{2} \phi_{SV} + B \right) (2j+1) \left[P_{j}^{*} (c_{V}) \right]^{2}$

FORBIDDEN

TABLE 4,

The decay angular distribution of a normal parity boson resonance B_1 produced by pseudovector particle exchange in the process (1.6) or (1.9).

SPIN PARITY DECAY DISTRIBUTION $\mathfrak{B} \to \mathfrak{P} \to \mathfrak{P}$

1 1 2m 2 $\frac{1}{2\pi} = \begin{cases} A c_v^2 + B \sin \phi_{3v} s_v c_v \\ 2\pi 2 \end{cases}$ + ($C \sin^2 \phi_{3v} + D$) s_v^2 $\begin{array}{c} \bot & \Xi \\ 2\pi & 8 \end{array} \left\{ \begin{array}{c} A \left(3c_{v}^{2} - 1 \right)^{2} + B \sin \phi_{3v} s_{v} 3c_{v} \left(3c_{v}^{2} - 1 \right) \right. \end{array} \right.$ 2 + (c sin \$ \$ 30 + D) st 9 ct $\frac{1}{2\pi} \frac{7}{8} \begin{cases} A c_v^2 (5c_v^2 - 3)^2 \end{cases}$ + $B sin \phi_{3V} s_V c_V (5c_V^2 - 3) (5c_V^2 - 1)$ + ($c \sin^2 \phi_{1V} + D$) $s_v^2 (5c_v^2 - 1)^2$

TABLE 4 (Contd.)

 $\frac{(2j+1)}{2y^2} \left\{ A \left[j P_j^* (c_v) \right]^2 \right\}$ (- 1)^j <u>し</u> 271 5 + B sin \$ 30 [j Pj (cv)] [Pj (cv)] + $(c + c + b) [P_{s}^{*}(c + b)]^{2}$

TABLE 5(a)

The decay angular distribution of a normal parity boson resonance B_3 produced by pseudoscalar particle exchange in the process (1.7).

SPIN PARITY DECAY DISTRIBUTION $\mathfrak{B}_{3} \longrightarrow \mathcal{V}_{4} + \mathfrak{P}_{1}$

0	+	DECRY PROCESS FORBIDDEN
١	_	1 3 5 ² 211 4
2	+	<u>L 15</u> 5 ² c ² 2π 4
3	- · · ·	$\frac{1}{2\pi} \frac{21}{32} s_{v}^{2} (5c_{v}^{2}-1)^{2}$
⊱ . د	(-1)	$\frac{1}{2\pi} \frac{(2j+1)}{2j(j+1)} \left[P_{j}^{*}(c_{v}) \right]^{2}$

TABLE 5(b)

Ô

ż

The decay distribution with respect to the variables ψ_{3v} and ω_{sv} of a normal parity boson resonance B_3 produced by pseudoscalar particle exchange in the process (1.7).

SPIN PARITY DECAY DISTRIBUTION $\mathfrak{B}_{3} \rightarrow \mathfrak{R} \rightarrow \mathfrak{R} \rightarrow \mathfrak{R}$

+ DECAY PROCESS FORDIDDEN

 $\sin^2 \Theta_{35V} \cos^2 \psi_{3V}$

TABLE 6(a)

The decay angular distribution of a normal parity boson resonance B_3 produced by vector particle exchange in the process (1.7).

SPIN PARITY DECAY DISTRIBUTION B, ->V, +P

0

 $\frac{1}{2\pi} = \frac{1}{8} \begin{cases} A \left[\cos^{2} \phi_{3v} c_{v}^{2} + \sin^{2} \phi_{3v} \right] + B \left[c_{v}^{2} + 1 \right] \end{cases}$ $\frac{1}{2\pi} = \frac{5}{8} \begin{cases} A \left[\cos^{2} \phi_{3v} (2c_{v}^{2} - 1)^{2} + \sin^{2} \phi_{3v} c_{v}^{2} \right] \\+ B \left[4 c_{v}^{2} - 3c_{v}^{2} + 1 \right] \end{cases}$ $\frac{1}{2\pi} = \frac{1}{2\pi} = \frac{1}{2\pi} \begin{cases} A \left[\cos^{2} \phi_{3v} c_{v}^{2} (15c_{v}^{2} - 1)^{2} \\+ 5ia^{2} \phi_{3v} (5c_{v}^{2} - 1)^{2} \right] \\+ B \left[225 c_{v}^{6} - 305 c_{v}^{6} + iii c_{v}^{2} + 1 \right] \end{cases}$

FORBIDDEN

TABLE 6(a) (Contd.)

(-1)5

 $\frac{1}{2\pi} \frac{(2j+1)}{2j^{2}(j+1)^{2}} \left\{ \left[A_{sl} \pi^{2} \phi_{2v} + B \right] \left[\frac{1}{s_{v}} P_{j}^{1}(cv) \right]^{2} \right\}$

161

+ $\left[A\cos^{2}\phi_{3v}+B\right]\left[j(y+i)P_{j}^{*}(c_{v})-c_{v}P_{j}^{*}(c_{v})\right]^{2}$

TABLE 6(b)

The decay distribution with respect to the variables ψ_{3V} and ω_{3V} of a normal parity boson resonance B_3 produced by vector particle exchange in the process (1.7).

SPIN PARITY DECAY DISTRIBUTION 3, -> P+P+P

0 + PRODUCTION FORBIDDEN

 $\frac{1}{\pi} \frac{3\mu_{\psi}}{4q_{sv}^{3}q_{sv}^{3}} \left[Q_{1}(w_{sv}) \right]^{2} \frac{1}{4} \left(3 - 2\cos^{2}\psi_{sv} \right)$ $\frac{1}{\pi} \frac{\Im \mu_{4}}{4 q_{5x}^{3} q_{3y}^{3}} \left[Q_{1} (\psi_{5y}) \right]^{2} \frac{1}{12} \left(5 + 2 \cos^{2} \psi_{3y} \right)$ 2 $\frac{1}{\pi} \frac{3}{4} \frac{3}{9} \frac{1}{5} \left[Q_{1} \left(\frac{1}{5} \right)^{2} \right]^{2} \left[(7 + 10 \cos^{2} \frac{1}{5} \right]^{2} \left[24 \right]^{2} \left[\frac{1}{5} \left(\frac{1}{5} \right)^{2} \right]^{2} \left[\frac{1}{5} \left[\frac{1}{5} \right]^{2} \left[\frac{1}{5} \left[\frac{1}{5} \right]^{2} \left[\frac{1}{5} \right]^{2} \left[\frac{1}{5} \left[\frac{1}{5}$ 3

 $(-1)^{2} \frac{1}{\pi} \frac{3\mu_{4}}{4q^{2}c_{x}q^{3}} \left[Q_{1}(\omega_{x}v)\right]^{2} x$ 5 $\frac{1}{2j(j+1)} \left[(2j+1) + (j^2-j-1) 2 \cos^2 \psi_{3V} \right]$

 $Q_1(\omega_{sv}) = q_{3v} q_{sv} sin \Theta_{2sv}$

TABLE 7(a)

The decay angular distribution of a normal parity boson resonance B_3 produced by pseudovector particle exchange in the process (1.7).

163,

SPIN PARITY DECAY DISTRIBUTION $\mathfrak{B}_{3} \longrightarrow \vee, +\mathfrak{P}$

PROCESS FORBIDDEN DECAY $\frac{1}{2} = \frac{3}{4} A s_v^2 + B sin \phi_{3v} s_v c_v$ + $C[sin^2\phi_{3v}c_v^2 + cos^2\phi_{3v}] + D[c_v^2 + 1]$ $\frac{1}{2\pi} \frac{15}{16} \int As_{v}^{2} 4c_{v}^{2} + Bsin \phi_{3v} s_{v} 2c_{v} (2c_{v}^{2}-1)$ + $C \left[si \sqrt{2} \phi_{3v} \left(2 c_v^2 - 1 \right)^2 + cos^2 \phi_{3v} c_v^2 \right]$ $+ \mathcal{D} \left[4c_{v}^{4} - 3c_{v}^{2} + 1 \right]$

TABLE 7(a) (Contd.) $\frac{1}{2\pi} \frac{7}{96} \begin{cases} A s_{v}^{2} 9 (s_{v}^{2} - 1)^{2} \\ \end{cases}$ +Bring 5, 3cy (5c2 -1) (15 c2 - 11) + $c \left[sin^{2} \phi_{3V} c_{V}^{2} \left(1 s c_{V}^{2} - 11 \right)^{2} + coc^{2} \phi_{3V} \left(5 c_{V}^{2} - 1 \right)^{2} \right]$ + D [225 (- 305 (+ 111 (+ 1] } $\frac{1}{2\pi} \frac{(2j+1)}{2j^{3}(j+1)} \begin{cases} A [j P_{j}^{*}(c_{v})]^{2} \end{cases}$ (-1)3 + B = in $\phi_{3v} \left[\frac{1}{2} P_{\frac{1}{2}}^{2} (cv) \right] \left[\frac{1}{2} (\frac{1}{2}+1) P_{\frac{1}{2}}^{2} (cv) - \frac{cv}{2} P_{\frac{1}{2}}^{2} (cv) \right]$ +[c sin d +][i (i+1) Pi (cv) - cv Pi (cv)]2 + $\left[c \cos^2 \phi_{yy} + D \right] \left[\frac{1}{s_y} P_{j}^{\prime} (c_y) \right]^2$

TABLE 7(b)

The decay distribution with respect to the variables $\Psi_{\mathbf{N}}$ and $\boldsymbol{\omega}_{\mathbf{S}\mathbf{V}}$ of a normal partity boson resonance B₃ produced by pseudovector particle exchange in the process (1.7).

SPIN PARITY DECAY DISTRIBUTION 3, -> ? + ? + ?

ELAY PROCESS FORBIDDEN

 $\frac{1}{\pi} \frac{3\mu_{4}}{4q_{5x}^{3}q_{2y}^{3}} \left[Q_{1}(w_{5v}) \right]^{2} \left\{ R \cos^{2}\psi_{3v} + B_{1}(3-2\cos^{2}\psi_{3v}) \right\}$ $\frac{1}{\pi} \frac{3 \mu_{4}}{4 q_{5x}^{3} q_{3y}^{3}} \left[Q_{1} (\omega_{5y}) \right]^{2} \left\{ A \cos^{2} \psi_{3y} \right\}$ + B 1 (5+2 cos 4 3v) $\frac{1}{\pi} \frac{3m_{4}}{4q_{5x}^{2}q_{W}^{3}} \left[\Theta_{1}(\omega_{5v})^{2} \right] \left\{ A \cos^{2} \psi_{3v} \right\}$ + B 1 (7+ 10 cos 434)}

 $\frac{(-1)^{3}}{\pi} \frac{1}{4} \frac{3}{9} \frac{3}{9} \frac{1}{9} \left[\Theta_{1} \left(W_{SV} \right) \right]^{2} d \operatorname{Acoc}^{2} \Psi_{SV}$ $+B \perp \left[(2j+1) + (j^{2}-j-1)2 \cos^{2} \psi_{3V} \right]$

 $Q_1(\omega_{5V}) = q_{3V} q_{5V} sin \Theta_{35V}$

ż

TABLE 8(a)

 \bigcirc

The decay angular distribution of an abnormal parity boson resonance B3 produced by scalar particle exchange in the process (1.7).

SPIN PARITY DECAY DISTRIBUTION $\mathcal{B}_2 \longrightarrow \mathcal{V}_1 + \mathcal{R}$

0 1 2 1 2 $\frac{1}{2\pi} = \frac{3}{2} \frac{\left\{ (\bar{h}_{1})^{2} s_{v}^{2} + (\bar{h}_{2})^{2} c_{v}^{2} \right\}}{\left\{ (\bar{h}_{1})^{2} 2 + (\bar{h}_{2})^{2} \right\}}$ $\frac{1}{2\pi} \frac{5}{4} \frac{\left(\frac{1}{h_{1}}\right)^{2} s_{v}^{2} q c_{v}^{2} + \left(\frac{1}{h_{2}}\right)^{2} (3 c_{v}^{2} - 1)^{2} \frac{1}{2}}{4 (\frac{1}{h_{1}}\right)^{2} 3 + (\frac{1}{h_{2}}\right)^{2} 2^{2} \frac{1}{2}}$ $\frac{21}{8} \frac{\left((\overline{n}_{1})^{2} s_{v}^{2} (5 c_{v}^{2} - 1)^{2} + (\overline{n}_{1})^{2} c_{v}^{2} (5 c_{v}^{2} - 3)^{2} \right)}{\left\{ (\overline{n}_{1})^{2} 4 + (\overline{n}_{1})^{2} \right\}}$ <u>|</u> 2117

 $\frac{1}{2\pi} \frac{(2j+1) \left\{ (\bar{h}_{i})^{2} \left[\bar{r}_{j}^{*} (c_{v}) \right]^{2} + (\bar{h}_{z})^{2} \left[j \bar{r}_{j}^{*} (c_{v}) \right]^{2} \right\}}{\left\{ (\bar{h}_{i})^{2} (j+1) + (\bar{h}_{z})^{2} j \right\}}$

TABLE 8(b)

The decay distribution with respect to the variables $\mathcal{Y}_{\mathcal{N}}$ and $\hat{\omega}_{\mathcal{S}\mathcal{N}}$ of an abnormal parity boson resonance B_3 produced by scalar particle exchange in the process (1.7).

SPIN PARITY DECAY DISTRIBUTION 33-> 8-8-8-8.

$$\frac{(-1)^{1+1}}{\pi} \frac{3}{4} \frac{(\pi_{1})^{2}(j+1)}{(j+1)} \frac{(\pi_{2})^{2}(\omega_{5}v)}{(j+1)} \frac{(\pi_{2})^{2}(\omega_{5}v)}{(j+1)}$$

$$Q_{1}(\omega_{5v}) = \gamma_{3v} \gamma_{5v} \sin \Theta_{3sv}$$

$$Q_2(\omega_{5V}) = (\omega_{5X}\omega_{4V} - \mu_{4}\omega_{5V})$$

TABLE 9(a)

The decay angular distribution of an abnormal parity boson resonance B_3 produced by vector particle exchange in the process (1.7).

$$\frac{1}{2\pi} \frac{1}{2}$$

$$\frac{1}{2\pi} \left\{ \frac{1}{(\bar{n}_{1})^{2} 2 + (\bar{n}_{2})^{2}} \frac{3}{2} \right\} A \left[(\bar{n}_{1})^{2} s_{v}^{2} + (\bar{n}_{2})^{2} c_{v}^{2} \right]$$

$$+ B \left[(\bar{n}_{1})^{2} sin \phi_{3v} s_{v} c_{v} + (\bar{n}_{2})^{2} sin \phi_{3v} s_{v} c_{v} \right]$$

$$+ C \left[(\bar{n}_{1})^{2} \left\{ sin^{2} \phi_{3v} c_{v}^{2} + \cos^{2} \phi_{3v} \right\} + (\bar{n}_{2})^{2} sin^{2} \phi_{3v} s_{v}^{2} \right]$$

$$+ D \left[(\bar{n}_{1})^{2} \left\{ c_{v}^{2} + 1 \right\} + (\bar{n}_{2})^{2} s_{v}^{2} \right] \right\}$$

2

0

$$\frac{1}{2\pi} \frac{1}{(1\pi_{1})^{2}3 + (1\pi_{2})^{2}2} \frac{5}{4} \times \frac{1}{2} \left[(1\pi_{1})^{2}3 + (1\pi_{2})^{2}2 + (1\pi_{2})^{2}(3c^{2}v - 1)^{2} \right] \\ + B \sin \phi_{3V} \sin^{3}c_{V} \left[(1\pi_{1})^{2}\frac{3}{2}(2c^{2}v - 1) + (1\pi_{2})^{2}(3c^{2}v - 1) \right] \\ + C \left[(1\pi_{1})^{2}\frac{9}{4} \left\{ \sin^{3}\phi_{3V} (2c^{2}v - 1)^{2} + \cos^{2}\phi_{2V} c^{2}\right\} \\ + (1\pi_{2})^{2} \sin^{2}\phi_{3V} \sin^{2}\theta + c^{2}v \right] \\ + D \left[(1\pi_{1})^{2}\frac{9}{4} \left\{ 4c^{4}v - 3c^{2}v + 1\right\} + (1\pi_{2})^{2}\sin^{2}\theta + c^{2}v \right] \right\}$$

TABLE 9(a) (Contd.)

 $\frac{1}{2\pi} \frac{1}{(1\pi_{1})^{2}4 + (1\pi_{2})^{2}3} \frac{21}{8} \times \left\{ A \left[(1\pi_{1})^{2}5_{v}^{2}(5c_{v}^{2}-1) + (1\pi_{2})^{2}c_{v}^{2}(5c_{v}^{2}-3) \right] \right. \\ \left. + B \sin \phi_{3v} s_{v} c_{v} (5c_{v}^{2}-1) \left[(1\pi_{1})^{2} \frac{1}{3} (15c_{v}^{2}-11) + (1\pi_{2})^{2} (5c_{v}^{2}-3) \right] \right. \\ \left. + C \left[(1\pi_{1})^{2} \frac{1}{3} \sin^{2} \phi_{3v} \frac{1}{3} c_{v}^{2} (15c_{v}^{2}-11)^{2} + \cos^{2} \phi_{3v} \frac{1}{3} (5c_{v}^{2}-1)^{2} \right] \right. \\ \left. + (1\pi_{2})^{2} \sin^{2} \phi_{3v} s_{v}^{2} (5c_{v}^{2}-1)^{2} \right] \\ \left. + (1\pi_{2})^{2} \sin^{2} \phi_{3v} s_{v}^{2} (5c_{v}^{2}-1)^{2} \right] \right. \\ \left. + D \left[(1\pi_{1})^{2} \frac{1}{3} \frac{1}{3} 225c_{v}^{6} - 305c_{v}^{6} + 111c_{v}^{2} + 1 \frac{1}{3} + (1\pi_{2})^{5} s_{v}^{2} (5c_{v}^{2}-1)^{2} \right] \right\}$

169.

 $(-1)^{j+1} = \frac{1}{2\pi} \left\{ \frac{1}{(\pi_{1})^{2}(j+1) + (\pi_{2})^{2}} j_{j}^{2} \frac{(2j+1)}{2j} \right\}$ $\times \left\{ A \left[(\pi_{1})^{2} \left\{ P_{j}^{1}(c_{v}) \right\}^{2} + (\pi_{2})^{2} \left\{ j_{v}^{1} P_{j}^{2}(c_{v}) \right\}^{2} \right] \right\}$ $+ B s c n \phi_{3v} P_{j}^{1}(c_{v}) \left[(\pi_{1})^{2} \frac{1}{2} \left\{ j_{v}^{1} \left\{ j_{v}^{1} + 1 \right\} P_{j}^{2}(c_{v}) - \frac{c_{v}}{s_{v}} P_{j}^{1}(c_{v}) \right\} \right\}$ $+ \left((\pi_{2})^{2} \frac{1}{2} P_{j}^{2}(c_{v}) \right]$ $+ \left[C s i n^{2} \phi_{3v} + D \right] \left[(\pi_{1})^{2} \frac{1}{2} \left\{ j_{v}^{1} \left\{ j_{v}^{1} + 1 \right\} P_{j}^{2}(c_{v}) - \frac{c_{v}}{s_{v}} P_{j}^{1}(c_{v}) \right\}^{2} \right]$ $+ \left((\pi_{2})^{2} \frac{1}{2} \left\{ P_{j}^{1} \left(c_{v} \right) \right\}^{2} \right]$

TABLE 9 (b)

0

The decay distribution with respect to the variables ψ_{3v} and ω_{5v} of an abnormal parity boson B₃ produced by vector particle exchange in the process (1.7).

SPIN PARITY DECAY DISTRIBUTION 3, --> 8+8+8

 $Q_2^2(\omega_{\rm SV})$ 1 3µ4 TT 49,5×9,3V $\frac{1}{\pi} \frac{3\mu_{4}}{4a_{1}^{5}a_{2}^{3}} \frac{1}{5(h_{1})^{2}2 + (h_{1})^{2}}$ $\times \int A \left[(h_{1})^{2} 2 Q_{1}^{2} (w_{5v}) \sin^{2} \psi_{3v} + (h_{2})^{2} Q_{2}^{2} (w_{5v}) \right]$ +B [$(\bar{n}_{1})^{2} Q_{1}^{2} (\omega_{sv}) (3 - 2 sin^{2} \psi_{sv}) + (\bar{n}_{2})^{2} Q_{2}^{2} (\omega_{sv}) 2]^{2}$

 $\frac{1}{\pi} \frac{3\mu_{4}}{4q_{5x}^{2}q_{3y}^{2}} \frac{1}{\{(\bar{n}_{1})^{2}3 + (\bar{n}_{2})^{2}2\}}$ * $A[(\bar{h}_{1})^{2}3Q_{1}^{2}(\omega_{sv})sin^{2}\psi_{sv} + (\bar{h}_{1})^{2}2Q_{2}^{2}(\omega_{sv})]$ + B [(h_{1})² Q²₁ (w_{sv}) = ($s+2sin^{2}\psi_{3v}$) + (h_{2})² Q²₂(w_{sv}) =]

 $\frac{1}{\pi} \frac{3}{4} \frac{3}{9} \frac{3}{2} \sqrt{(\bar{h}_{1})^{2} 3 + (\bar{h}_{2})^{2} 2}$ * $\int A \left[(h_{1})^{2} 4 Q_{1}^{2} (\omega_{sv}) \sin^{2} \psi_{sv} + (h_{2})^{2} 3 Q_{2}^{2} (\omega_{sv}) \right]$ +B[(1,) Q; (wsv)= (7+10 sin 4,v)+(1,2) Q2(wsv)4]}

TABLE 9(b) (Contd.)

(-1)^{j+} $\frac{1}{11} \frac{3}{4} \frac{3}{9} \frac{1}{5} \frac{1}{4} \frac{1}{9} \frac{1}{5} \frac{1}{1} \frac{1$ $* \int A \left[(\bar{n}_{1})^{2} (j+1) Q_{1}^{2} (\omega_{sv}) \sin^{2} \psi_{sv} + (\bar{n}_{2})^{2} j Q_{2}^{2} (\omega_{sv}) \right]$ + B [(15,)2 Q2 (W5V) (j+1) { (2 j+1)+ (j2-j-1) 2 sin 4/3V } + $(\bar{n}_{2})^{2} Q_{2}^{2}(\omega_{5V})(j+1)]$

TABLE 10 (a)

The decay angular distribution of an abnormal parity boson resonance B3 produced by pseudovector particle exchange in the process (1.7).

SPIN PARUTY DECAY DISTRIBUTION $\mathfrak{B}_{\to} \vee \mathcal{V}_{\bullet} + \mathfrak{P}$

PRODUCTION FORBIDDEN

0

2

 $\frac{1}{2\pi} \frac{1}{5(\pi)^2 2 + (\pi)^2 2} \frac{3}{4} +$ $x \int A [(h_{1})^{2} \{ \cos^{2} \phi_{3} v \ c_{v}^{2} + \sin^{2} \phi_{3} v \}$ $+(h_{1})^{2}(\cos^{2}\phi_{1})(s_{1}^{2})$ $+B\left[(h_{1})^{2}(c_{v}^{2}+1)+(h_{1})^{2}s_{v}^{2}\right]\right\}$

 $\frac{1}{2\pi} \frac{1}{\{(5,)^2 3 + (5,)^2 2\}} \frac{15}{8} \times$ * $\left\{ A \left[(h_{1})^{2} \left\{ \cos^{2} \phi_{3v} \left(2c_{v}^{2} - 1 \right)^{2} + \sin^{2} \phi_{3v} c_{v}^{2} \right\} \right\}$ + (Thay } cos \$ \$ 2 4 2] $+ B \left[(h_{1})^{2} (4c_{v}^{4} - 3c_{v}^{2} + 1) + (h_{2})^{2} s_{v}^{2} 4 c_{v}^{2} \right] \right\}$

TABLE 10 (a) (Contd.)

 $\frac{1}{2\pi} \frac{1}{\left\{ (\pi_{1})^{2} 4 + (\pi_{1})^{2} 3 \right\}} \frac{7}{32}$ $= \left\{ P \left[(\pi_{1})^{2} \left\{ \cos^{2} \phi_{3v} c_{v}^{2} (15c_{v}^{2} - 11)^{2} + \sin^{2} \phi_{3v} (5c_{v}^{2} - 1)^{2} \right\} + (\pi_{2})^{2} \cos^{2} \phi_{3v} s_{v}^{2} 9 (5c_{v}^{2} - 1)^{2} \right]$ $+ B \left[(\pi_{1})^{2} (225c_{v}^{6} - 305c_{v}^{4} + 111c_{v}^{2} + 1) + (\pi_{2})^{2} s_{v}^{2} 9 (5c_{v}^{2} - 1)^{2} \right] \right\}$

(-1) $\frac{1}{2\pi} \frac{1}{\{(\bar{h}_{1})^{2}(j+1)+(\bar{h}_{2})^{2}j\}} \frac{(2j+1)}{2j^{2}(j+1)} *$ $= \left\{ \left[P \cos^{2} \phi_{3v} + B \right] \left[(In_{i})^{2} \left\{ j_{i}(j+1) P_{j}^{*}(c_{v}) - \frac{c_{v}}{s_{v}} P_{j}^{*}(c_{v}) \right\}^{2} \right\}$ +(1,) { ; ? ; (c v) }] +[Asin \$ \$ + B][(T,) { } { } { } { } P; (~) }] }

173

<u>TABLE 10(</u>b)

2

The decay distribution with respect to the variables ψ_{3N} and ω_{5N} of an abnormal parity boson resonance B_3 produced by pseudovector particle exchange in the modess (1.7)

SPIN PARITY DECAY DISTRIBUTION $B_3 \rightarrow P+P+P$ O - Production Forbidden.

 $\frac{1}{\pi} \frac{3\mu_{4}}{4q_{5x}^{3}q_{3v}^{3}} \frac{1}{\{(\bar{n}_{1})^{2}2 + (\bar{n}_{2})^{2}\}} \\ * \left[(\bar{n}_{1})^{2}Q_{1}^{2}(\omega_{5v})\frac{1}{2}(3-2\sin^{2}\psi_{3v}) + (\bar{n}_{2})^{2}Q_{2}^{2}(\omega_{5v})\right]$

 $\frac{1}{\pi} \frac{3\mu_{\psi}}{4q_{5x}^{3}q_{3v}^{2}} \frac{1}{\{(\bar{n}_{1})^{2}3 + (\bar{n}_{2})^{2}2\}} \times \left[(\bar{n}_{1})^{2}Q_{1}^{2}(\omega_{5v})\frac{1}{2}(5+2\sin^{2}\mu_{3v}) + (\bar{n}_{2})^{2}2Q_{2}^{2}(\omega_{5v})\right]$

+ $\frac{1}{\pi} \frac{3 \mu_{4}}{4 q_{5x}^{3} q_{3v}^{2}} \frac{1}{\{(\bar{n}_{1})^{2} 4 + (\bar{n}_{2})^{2} 3\}}$ $\times \left[(\bar{n}_{1})^{2} Q_{1}^{2} (\omega_{5v}) \frac{1}{6} (7 + 10 \sin^{2} \gamma_{5v}) + (\bar{n}_{2})^{2} 3 Q_{2}^{2} (\omega_{5v}) \right]$

TABLE 10(b) (Contd.)

(-1)^{j+1} $\frac{\pi}{7}$ $\frac{3}{4q_{5x}^{3}q_{3v}^{3}} \left\{ (\pi_{i})^{2} (j+i) + (\pi_{2})^{2} j \right\}$ * $\left[(h_{1})^{2} Q_{1}^{2} (\omega_{sv}) \pm \{ (2j+1) + (j^{2}-j-1) \geq s \ln^{2} \psi_{sv} \} \right]$ + (h2) 2 2 Q2 (wEV)]

TABLE 11

The decay angular distribution of a fermion resonance F produced by spin zero exchange in the process $(1.8) \circ r(1.9)$. SPIN DECAY DISTRIBUTION F->N+P

 $\frac{1}{2} \qquad \frac{1}{2\pi} \qquad \frac{1}{2}$ $\frac{3}{2} \qquad \frac{1}{2\pi} \qquad \frac{1}{4} (3c_w^2 + 1)$ $\frac{3}{2} \qquad \frac{1}{2\pi} \qquad \frac{3}{4} (5c_w^4 - 2c_w^2 + 1)$ $\frac{5}{2} \qquad \frac{1}{2\pi} \qquad \frac{3}{8} (5c_w^4 - 165c_w^4 + 45c_w^2 + 9)$ $\frac{7}{2} \qquad \frac{1}{2\pi} \qquad \frac{1}{32} (175c_w^4 - 165c_w^4 + 45c_w^2 + 9)$

 $J=(n-\frac{1}{2}) \frac{1}{2\pi} \frac{1}{2n} \left[\left\{ n P_n^{\circ}(c_m) \right\}^2 + \left\{ P_n^{\circ}(c_m) \right\}^2 \right]$

TABLE 12

The decay angular distribution of a fermion resonance F produced by spin one exchange in the process (1.8)or(1.9).

177.

SPIN DECAY DISTRIBUTION F -> N+P

- $\frac{1}{2\pi}$ $\frac{1}{2}$
 - $\frac{1}{2\pi} \quad \frac{1}{4} \left\{ P(3cw^{2}+1) + \left[Bsin \phi_{4w} sw^{2} C \cos \phi_{4w} sw \right] 3cw + D(3sin^{2} \phi_{4w} sw^{2}+1) + E(3cos^{2} \phi_{4w} sw^{2}+1) + F(3sin^{2} \phi_{4w} sw^{2}+3cw^{2}-1) + F(3sin^{2} \phi_{4w} sw^{2}+3cw^{2}-1) + F(3cos^{2} \phi_{4w} sw^{2}+3cw^{2}-1) \right\}$

$$\frac{1}{2\pi} = \frac{3}{4} \left\{ A \left(5c_{w}^{4} - 2c_{w}^{2} + i \right) + \left[B \sin \phi_{4w} \sin + C \cos \phi_{4w} \sin \right] \cos \left(5c_{w}^{2} - 1 \right) \right. \\ \left. + D \left[\sin \phi_{4w} \sin^{2} \left(5c_{w}^{2} + 1 \right) + c_{w}^{2} \right] \right. \\ \left. + E \left[\cos^{2} \phi_{4w} \sin^{2} \left(5c_{w}^{2} + 1 \right) + c_{w}^{2} \right] \right. \\ \left. + F \left[\sin^{2} \phi_{4w} \sin^{2} \left(5c_{w}^{2} + 1 \right) + c_{w}^{2} \left(5c_{w}^{2} - 3 \right) \right] \right. \\ \left. + G \left[\cos^{2} \phi_{4w} \sin^{2} \left(5c_{w}^{2} + 1 \right) + c_{w}^{2} \left(5c_{w}^{2} - 3 \right) \right] \right\}$$

 $\frac{1}{2\pi} \frac{1}{32} \left\{ A \left(175 c_{w}^{2} - 165 c_{w}^{2} + 45 c_{w}^{2} + 9 \right) \right\}$ + $\left[B_{s'n}\phi_{4w}s_w + C_{cos}\phi_{4w}s_w\right]s_{cw}(s_{cw}-i)(7c_w-3)$ $+D[sin^2\phi_{4w}s_{w}^{2} 5(35c_{w}^{4}-6c_{w}^{2}+3)+(5c_{w}^{2}-1)^{2}]$ + $E \left[cos^2 \phi_{aw} s_{w}^{2} = (35 c_{w}^{4} - 6c_{w}^{2} + 3) + (5 c_{w}^{2} - 1)^{2} \right]$ +F [sirt dun si 5 (35 cm - 6 cm + 3) + (5 cm - 1) (35 cm - 30 cm + 3)] + $\oint \left[c \circ s \phi_{4w} s \tilde{w} s (35 c (35 c (3 - 6 c \tilde{w} + 3)) + (5 c \tilde{w} - 1) (3 - 5 c (3 - 3 - 3 c \tilde{w} + 3)) \right]$

12

TABLE 12 (Contd.)

 $\frac{1}{2\pi} \frac{1}{2\pi} \left\{ \begin{array}{c} A \left[\left\{ \pi P_n^*(c_m) \right\}^2 + \left\{ P_n^*(c_m) \right\}^2 \right] \right\} \right\}$ $J=\left(n-\frac{1}{2}\right)$ + [Bsin ϕ_{aw} + Ccos ϕ_{aw}] $P'_{n}(c_{w}) (-1) \left[n P''_{n}(c_{w}) - c_{w} P'_{n}(c_{w}) \right]$ + $\left[D+E\right]\left[\frac{1}{(n-1)}\left\{nP_{n}^{\circ}(c_{w})-c_{w}P_{n}^{\circ}(c_{w})\right\}\right]^{2}$ + $\left[F+G\right]\left[nP_{n}^{\circ}(c_{w})\underbrace{(-1)}_{(n-1)}\left\{nP_{n}^{\circ}(c_{w})-c_{w}P_{n}^{\circ}(c_{w})\right\}\right]$ + $\left[(D+F) \sin^2 \phi_{4w} + (E+G) \cos^2 \phi_{4w} \right] \times$ $\times \left[\left\{ P_n'(c_w) \right\}^2 - \frac{N P_n'(c_w) P_n^2(c_w)}{(N-1)} \right] \left\{ \begin{array}{c} \\ \end{array} \right\}$

With regard to the above tables giving the distribution of the decay products of resonances produced peripherally it should be noted that the results in each table are obtained by integrating over all decay process variables except those explicitly given in that table. The quantities A,B,C....G depend only on the coupling constants involvedd in the production process, their associated form factors and the variables s and t.

179.

The cross section for the production of resonances of specific spin and parity are easy to write down from the results of section 7-10. These cross sections are tabulated as follows in a way which stresses the spin dependent factors.
The production cross-section for the processes (1.6)and(1.7) mediated by pseudoscalar or scalar particle exchange for the case of a normal or abnormal parity boson resonance respectively.

SPIN PRODUCTION CROSS SECTION

 $\frac{1}{2} \left(\frac{p^2}{4\pi}\right) \left(\frac{q^2}{4\pi}\right) \left|\frac{F(t)G(t)}{(m_q)^{-1}}\right|^2 \frac{q_B}{4E_B^2 q_B} \frac{\left[-t + (m_1 + m_2)^2\right]^2}{\left[-t + M_1^2\right]^2}$ * $\left[\frac{2^{2} \cdot 1}{(2 \cdot 1)!}\right] \left\{ \frac{[-t + (\mu_{1} + \mu_{2})^{2}][-t + (\mu_{1} - \mu_{2})^{2}]}{4 \mu_{2}^{2}} \right\}$

2

The production cross-section for the processes (1.6)end(1.7) mediated by vector or pseudovector particle exchange for the case of a normal or abnormal parity boson resonance respectively.

SPIN PRODUCTION CROSS SECTION

0

PRODUCTION FORBIDDEN

 $\frac{1}{4\pi} \left(\frac{q_o^2}{4\pi} \right) \left| \frac{G_o(t)}{m_{q_o}^2} \right|^2 \frac{q_{B}}{4E_B^2 p_B} \times$ 3 $\times \left\{ M_{\mu_{2}\mu_{2}} \frac{1}{2} \left(E_{B} \mu_{B} q_{B} \sin \theta_{B} \right)^{2} + M \left(\mu_{2} k_{v} \right)^{2} \right\} \times$ * $\left[\frac{2^{j}}{(2_{j})!}\right] \left(\frac{j+1}{j}\right) \left\{ \left[\frac{-t+(\mu_{1}+\mu_{2})^{2}}{4\mu_{2}^{2}}\right] \left[\frac{-t+(\mu_{1}-\mu_{2})^{2}}{m_{1}^{2}}\right] \frac{1}{m_{1}^{2}} \right\}^{j-1}$

The production cross section for the processes (1.6)and(1.7) mediated by pseudovector or vector particle exchange for the case of a normal or atnormal parity boson resonance respectively.

SPIN PRODUCTION CROSS SECTION

 $\left(\frac{1}{4\pi}\right)^2 \frac{q_{B}}{4 E_0^2 P_0} \frac{1}{\left[-t \star \mu^2\right]^2} \star$ 5 $\left[\frac{2^{\flat} j! j!}{(2i)!} \right] \left\{ \frac{\left[-\epsilon + (\mu_{i} + \mu_{i})^{\flat} \right] \left[-\epsilon + (\mu_{i} - \mu_{i})^{\flat} \right]}{4 \mu_{i}^{\flat}} \right\}^{*}$ * $\frac{1}{k_{v}^{4}} \left[\left\{ M_{p_{2}p_{2}}^{2} \left| -\overline{g}_{p_{2}}^{2} k_{v}^{2} + \overline{g}_{1}^{2} p_{2v} k_{v} \cos \varepsilon_{v} \right|^{2} + 2 \operatorname{Re}\left[M_{p_{2}k} \left(-\overline{g}_{p_{2}}^{2} k_{v}^{2} + \overline{g}_{1}^{2} p_{2v} k_{v} \cos \varepsilon_{v} \right) \left(-\overline{g}_{1k}^{\dagger} k_{v}^{2} \right) \right] \right]$ + Mkk 13k12k4 - M 13-12k4 + $(\underline{j+1})$ { $M_{p_2p_2} | \overline{g}, |^2 (p_2 \vee k_V \otimes in \in_V)^2$ } + (2j+1) { M 13,12 k2 } ۰۰۰ ر ۶ ر ۹ ر ۹ ر ۹

The production cross section for the process (1.8) mediated by the exchange of a scalar particle.

SPIN PRODUCTION CROSS SECTION

 $J=(n-\frac{1}{2}) \left(\begin{array}{c} p^{2} \\ 4\pi\end{array}\right)\left(\begin{array}{c} q^{2} \\ 4\pi\end{array}\right)\left(\begin{array}{c} F(t)G(t) \\ (m_{g})^{-1}\end{array}\right)^{2} \frac{q_{10}}{4E_{s}^{2}b_{0}} \left[-t+(m(+m_{s})^{2}\right]^{2} + \frac{1}{2}\left[-t+(m(+m_{s})^{2}\right]^{2}\right)$ $\times \left[\frac{2^{n} n!}{(2n)!}\right] \left\{ \frac{[-t+(m_{1}'+m_{2})^{2}][-t+(m_{1}'-m_{3})^{2}]}{4m_{2}^{2}} \frac{1}{m_{2}^{2}} \right\}^{n-1}$

/ = 1, 2, 3, 4... $J = \frac{1}{2}, \frac{3}{2}, \frac{5}{2}, \frac{7}{2}, ...$

The production cross section for the process (1.8) mediated by the exchange of a vector particle.

SPIN PRODUCTION CROSS SECTION

 $J=\left(n-\frac{1}{2}\right)$ $\left(\frac{1}{4\pi}\right)^2 \frac{q_{v_B}}{4 E_{s}^2 p_{s}} \frac{1}{\left[-t+\mu^2\right]^2}$ $\times \left[\frac{2^{n} n! n!}{(2n)!}\right] \left\{ \frac{\left[-t + (m_{1} + m_{2})^{2}\right] \left[-t + (m_{1} - m_{2})^{2}\right]}{4m_{2}^{2}} \right\}^{n} \times \right.$ * $\frac{1}{k_{W}^{4}} \left[A + \frac{1}{2} (F + G) + \frac{n}{2(n-1)} (D + E) \right]$

** \, 2, 3, 4 ... 5 * <u>\, 3, 5</u>, 7 ... 1 2 2 2 2

12. DISCUSSION AND CONCLUSIONS

One of the most striking discoveries in the realm of strong interaction physics has been that of the existence of a large number of resonant states. Quite apart from the problem of determining the dynamical origin of these states it isof great interest to solve the semi-phenomenological problems of determining the precise quantum numbers of these states, the nature and strength of their interactions with other states and the dynamics of their production processes.

The facts that the quantum numbers of the resonant states most copiously produced in quasi two body processes are those which are consistent with the exchange of a single particle or a known resonance and that the production of these resonant states is considerably enhanced for events with small 4-momentum transfer both suggest that a peripheral model might be a good approximation to the real mechanism of the production process. In the previous sections of this paper the full consequences of adopting such a single particle exchange model have been determined for the exchange of a spin zero or a spin one particle. It is clear from the results obtained that it is possible both to test the validity of the model and to gain some information relevant to the problems mentioned above.

A test of the spin of the exchanged particles is provided by the observation of the distribution of the decay products of resonances with respect to the asignithal angle associated with a polar axis in

the direction of the appropriate incoming particle as measured in the centre of mass system of the decaying resonance. For spin zero and spin one exchange these distributions are given by:

and
$$\theta_0 + \theta_1 \cos^2 \phi$$
 (12.2)

respectively. The former test distribution is just the well known Trieman-Yang⁽¹³⁾ isotropic distribution and the latter is a rather obvious generalisation of this result. In fact it is easy to see that the most general decay distribution with respect to the azimuthalangle ϕ corresponding to the exchange of a spin j particle is of the form

$$\sum_{n=0}^{\mathbf{j}} a_n \cos^{\mathbf{a}n} \phi \qquad (12.3)$$

for arbitrary spin and parity boson and fermion resonances.

From the results of section 5 as given in Table 1 it follows that if any of the processes (1.6) - (1.9) are mediated by the exchange of a spin zero particle then the parity of the outgoing boson state is normal or abnormal according as the exchanged particle is pseudoscalar or scalar respectively. The corresponding decay correlations of the final state particles are then given by the results expressed in Tables 2,5,8 and 11. These decay distributions are all independent of the production process variables and of the mass and coupling strengths of the exchanged particles T hus the same decay distributions are obtained even if any number of such spin zero particle exchanges contribute t_0 the scattering amplitude or if indeed there is an s-wave contribution to the exchange amplitude involving an integration over a cut in the variable t. Furthermore it is to be noted that there is no correlation between the boson resonance decay and the fermion resonance decay in the reaction (1.9) in the case of the exchange of a spin zero particle or any number of such exchanges.⁽¹⁵⁾

If any of the production processes $(1 \cdot 6) - (1 \cdot 9)$ are mediated by spin zero exchange it is straightforward to determine the spin of the resonant states by a comparison of the experimental data with the results of Tables 2,5,8 and 11. In the case of the resonance \mathbb{P}_{3} any evidence in the decay distribution with respect to ω_{3} of a term in $Q_{3}^{a}(\omega_{3}, v)$ indicates of course that the resonance has abnormal parity, but if the distribution is consistent with a pure $Q_{4}^{a}(\omega_{5}v)$ distribution then the parity of the state may best be found by examining the distribution with respect to ψ_{3V} which is necessarily pure $\cos^{2}\psi_{3V}$ for a normal parity resonance.

It should be stressed that these spin and parity tests also form a series of necessary tests of the validity of the hypothesised spin zero exchange model.

The production process (1.6) may be mediated by both vector and pseudovector particle exchange. In the case of vector particle exchange the decay distribution with respect to the variable $\cos \theta_{37}$ is a unique function of the resonance spin as given in Table 3. Thus the vector particle model may be readily tested and a resonance spin determination carried out.

Unfortunately the corresponding distributions for a pseudovector particle exchange model as given in Table 4 depend upon the production process variables. Moreover they include terms of the form corresponding to vector particle exchange and there is not even any special value of θ_{B} which gives a distribution independent of the relative magnitude of the various production process coupling constants. This means that the model may not be tested as rigorously as the pseudoscalar and vector particle exchange models and it may prove difficult to distinguish between vector and pseudovector particle exchange. In addition a spin determination may not be straightforward in as much as it is possible for a decay distribution to be obtained which corresponds to the resonance having either spin j or spin (j - 1). This possibility may arise for an arbitrary spin resonance because of the existence of the identity:

$$(jP_{j}^{0})^{2} + (P_{j-1}^{1})^{2} = (jP_{j-1}^{0})^{2} + (P_{j-1}^{1})$$
 (12.4)

The decay distributions of Tables 3 and 4 are also obtained if the production mechanism is generalised to include the exchange of any number of spin one particles all of the same parity but of differing masses and coupling strengths.

The possibility of interference between spin zero and spin one exchanges giving contributions to the scattering amplitude of opposite parity has in a sense been included in the calculations of section 7 by the admissions of the couplings associated with gs and f4 which only couple to the spin zero part of the propagator. From these results it follows that there can be no scalar particle exchange and that the interference between pseudoscalar and pseudovector particle exchanges gives a decay distribution of the general form:

$$\frac{1}{2\pi} \frac{(2\mathbf{j} + 1)}{2\mathbf{j}^{2}} \left\{ A \left[\mathbf{j} \mathbf{P}_{\mathbf{j}}^{\circ} \left(\mathbf{c}_{\mathbf{V}} \right) \right]^{2} + B \sin \phi_{\mathbf{J}\mathbf{V}} \left[\mathbf{j} \mathbf{P}_{\mathbf{j}}^{\circ} \left(\mathbf{c}_{\mathbf{V}} \right) \right] \left[\mathbf{P}_{\mathbf{j}}^{1} \left(\mathbf{c}_{\mathbf{V}} \right) \right] \right]$$

$$(12.5)$$

This form is already contained in Table 4.

It is easy to see that in the case of spin zero and spin one exchanges of the same parity contributing to the scattering amplitude no interference term arises⁽¹⁰⁾ This is because the fermion couplings of the pseudoscalar and vector exchange particles are of opposite parity and evaluation of the trace resulting from summation over the spin states of the fermions gives zero for the interference term since this term contains an overall factor of $Y_{\frac{5}{2}}$ which forms a product with no more than three y matrices. Thus the pseudoscalar and

vector exchange contributions to the process (1.6) add incoherently.

The remaining possibility of an interference term arising occurs when both vector and pseudovector particle exchanges contribute to the scattering amplitude. Such an interference term is only present if in each case the couplings associated with f2 are present. A calculation then shows that the decay distribution associated with this term is of the form

$$\frac{1}{q_{W}} \frac{(2j+1)}{2j^{2}} \left\{ B \sin \phi_{3V} \left[jPj^{o}\left(c_{V}\right) \right] \left[Pj\left(c_{V}\right) \right] + D \left[Pj^{1}\left(c_{V}\right) \right]^{2} \right\}$$
(12.6)

This form is also contained in Table 4 so that it is difficult to distinguish between pure pseudovector particle exchange and a combination of pseudovector and pseudoscalar and/or vector particle exchanges.

The production process (1.7) may be mediated by both vector and pseudovector particle exchanges and the corresponding decay distributions are given for a normal parity resonance in Tables 6 and 7, and for an abnormal parity resonance in Tables 9 and 10. As for spin zero exchange any evidence in the decay distribution with respect to ω_{5V} of a term in $Q_2^2(\omega_{5V})$ indicates that the resonance has abnormal parity but if the distribution is pure $Q_1^2(\omega_{5V})$ then the parity of the resonance may only be found by examining the decay distribution with respect to ψ_{5V} .

The decay distributions with respect to $\cos \theta_{3V}$ and ψ_{3V} are only independent of the production process variables if the boson coupling in the production process has abnormal parity. In such cases the spin one exchange model is therefore relatively easy to test and spin determinations may be carried out with some confidence. However if the boson coupling has normal parity as in the case of vector particle exchange leading to the production of an abnormal parity boson resonance these distributions depend on the production process variables in a way which makes spin and parity determinations rather The decay distributions with respect to $\cos \theta_{3V}$ and difficult. are of the same general form for vector and pseudovector particle \$ AV exchange production of an abnormal and a normal resonance respectively. Moreover a decay distribution may be obtained which corresponds to the resonance having either spin 1 or 2 since:

$$(4c_{V}^{4} - 3c_{V}^{2} + 1) + 4s_{V}^{2}c_{V}^{2} = c_{V}^{2} + 1.$$
 (12.7)

The remarks made concerning possible interference effect in the production process (1.6) apply equally well to the process(1.7). In particular there is no interference between pseudoscalar and vector particle exchanges or between scalar and pseudovector particle exchanges.

If the production process $(1 \cdot 8)$ is mediated by the exchange of a spin one particle such a particle must necessarily be a vector

particle. The corresponding decay correlations are given in Table 12. In the special case of events in the forward direction the decay distribution reduces to the Adair distribution⁽³⁶⁾:

$$\frac{1}{2n} \left[\left\{ nFh^{\circ} \left(c_{V} \right) \right\}^{2} + \left\{ Ph^{1} \left(c_{V} \right) \right\}^{2} \right]$$
(12.8)

In the past it has proved difficult to determine the spins of fermion resonances by means of the Adair test. This may be because the production mechanism is such that the cross section falls off quite rapidly in the immediate neighbourhood of the forward direction. However if the vector particle exchange model is valid the decay distribution as a function of $\cos \theta_{4W}$ is the sum of only two independent terms so that it should prove possible to test the model and carry out spin determinations.

Since the production process $(1\cdot8)$ can only be mediated by the exchange of normal parity particles no difficulties are introduced by including in the scattering amplitude the contributions of any number of scalar and vector particle exchanges. In fact by the admission of the couplings associated with g_3 and f_4 the scalar particle exchange and interference terms have effectively been included in the vector particle exchange calculations.

The production process (1.9) may be mediated by vector or pseudovector particle exchanges. The decay distributions are given for the boson resonance in Tables 3 and 4 and for the fermion resonance in Table 12. In the case of vector particle exchange the model may be relatively easily tested since the boson decay distribution with respect to $\cos \theta_{3V}$ is independent of all the other variables in the problem.

It should be noted that for fermon resonances of spin greater than one half the interference between pseudoscalar and vector particle exchanges is non zero. The contribution of such a term to the decay distribution is of the form:

$$\begin{bmatrix} A \sin \phi_{3V} \sin \phi_{4W} + B \cos \phi_{3V} \cos \phi_{4W} \end{bmatrix} \begin{bmatrix} jPj^{o}(c_{V})Pj^{1}(c_{V}) \end{bmatrix}$$

$$\frac{(-1)}{(n-1)} P_{n}^{1}(c_{W}) \begin{bmatrix} nPn^{o}(c_{V}) - \frac{cW}{SW} Pn^{1}(c_{V}) \end{bmatrix}$$
(12.9)

Clearly such a term makes no contribution to the decay distribution of Tables 3 and 12.

In order to gain the maximum confidence in any test of the peripheral model and in any spin determinations carried out on the basis of that model it is necessary to examine the decay distribution with respect to the variables $\cos \alpha$, $\cos \beta$, $\cos \gamma$ and the corresponding azimuthalangle variables ϕ_{α} , ϕ_{β} , ϕ_{γ} . These variables are, for boson and fermion resonances the direction cosines of g_{3V} and p_{4W} with respect to the systems of axes \pm , N and \pm . N in the frames V and W respectively. The azimuthal angles are defined in the usual way so that the relationships between these variables and those variables used in this paper are for boson resonances

$$\cos \alpha = \cos \theta_{3V} \quad \phi_{\alpha} = \phi_{3V} \quad (12.10)$$

and for fermion resonances:

 $\cos \alpha = \cos \theta_{\mu\nu} \qquad \phi_{\alpha} = \phi_{\mu\nu} \qquad (12.11)$

There are only two independent variables and the relationships between the three pairs of variables are given by:

$$\cos \alpha = \sin \beta \sin \phi_{\beta} = \sin \gamma \cos \phi_{\gamma} \qquad (12.12a)$$

$$\sin \alpha \cos \phi_{\alpha} = \cos \beta = \sin \gamma \sin \phi_{\gamma} \qquad (12.12b)$$
$$\sin \alpha \sin \phi_{\alpha} = \sin \beta \cos \phi_{\beta} = \cos \gamma \qquad (12.12c)$$

For any particular event all these variables are well defined but in measuring a decay distribution with respect to one variable in each pair an integration is effectively carried out over the other variable. In general this results in a loss of information which can only be made up by examining the decay distributions with respect to each of the variable defined above. If this is done it may be possible to distinguish in a quantitative manner between the contributions of individual couplings to a production cross section^(7,87)

To date the peripheral model has only been examined in detail for processes in which spin one and/or spin 3/2 resonances are produced. In the case of spin one production^(7,10,37,38) it has been possible to fit the decay distributions by assuming some combination of pseudoscalar and vector particle exchanges. The model used with considerable success to describe the production of spin 3/2 resonances in a number of

processes⁽³⁹⁻⁴²⁾ has been that of Stodolsky and Sakurai^{6,8)} which uses a ρ -photon analogy to predict a decay distribution of the form

$$(1 + 3 \sin^2 \theta_{4\overline{W}} \cos^2 \phi_{4\overline{W}}) \qquad (12.13)$$

As can be seen from Table 12 this suggests that the dominant coupling of the exchanged vector particle with the isobar is that associated with the coupling constant f_{5} . Since such a coupling gives rise to a production cross section which goes to zero in the forward direction, this provides a natural explanation for the failure of the Adair test.

Processes in which simultaneous production of spin 1 and spin 3/2 resonances takes place have also been considered and the decay distributions have been found to be consistent with pseudoscalar particle exchange.⁽⁴³⁾

If the spin of resonant state can be established from the decay distribution together with a knowledge of the dominant production mechanism then the model may be compared with experimentin a quantitative manner to obtain some information on the coupling strengths of the resonant state. It should be pointed out that before carrying out such an investigation the isotopic spin factors which have been

omitted from the results of this paper should be inserted. The total width of a resonance, as measured experimentally, will, on comparison with the results of section 6, yield information on the decay process coupling constants and the production process cross section will give information on the production process coupling constants and their associated form factors. The production cross sections corresponding to the single particle exchange model are given in Tables 13-17. The main feature of these results are the factors $(k_{V}^{2})^{j}$ and $(k_{V}^{2})^{n-1}$ which appear in the cross sections for the production of bosons of spin j and fermions of spin $(n - \frac{1}{2})$ respectively. These factors are the generalisations of the off-mass-shell correction of Selleri⁽¹¹⁾ which are necessary when determining the partial wave amplitudes of $\pi\pi$ -scattering from a one pion exchange model. In fact his results correspond exactly to the results of section 7 for pseudoscalar particle exchange since $P_{j}^{\circ}(c_{v})$ is the projection operator for the j-th partial wave.

These factors work in opposition to the pole term in the scattering amplitude in that, with constant form factors, the single particle exchange model results in production cross sections which are not peripheral in appearance. That is to say there is no pronounced forward peaking of the cross section. This becomes more apparent the higher the spin of the resonant state and the only means of compensating

for this effect is to assume that the form factors have a very strong dependence on the variable t. Various attempts have been made to fit the production cross section behaviour using one parameter f_{OIIII} factors. At present this has reduced a dynamical analysis of such production processes to a purely phenomenological level since no really satisfactory explanation has as yet been given as to why these form factors are so strongly dependent on t. However the peripheral model may still prove useful as long as the form factors exhibit no energy dependence and there is no violation of the decay distribution predictions of the model. It would be particularly interesting to confront the experimental data on the production and decay properties of the B_0 , (pseudoscalar-vector) resonances and the higher mass isobars with the predictions of the model.

Although as has been pointed out the decay distributions provide a \cdot test of the validity of the peripheral model some of these decay distributions can be associated with other models. That they are not all exclusive to the spin z ero and spin one exchange models has been pointed out by Gottfried and Jackson⁽⁴⁴⁾ in an analysis of vector meson production. It can also be shown that the results for the boson resonance production processes (1.6) and (1.7) contain terms which correspond to a coherent, no-spin-flip model of the production process. Some of the results of Berman and Drell⁽⁴⁵⁾ for coherent production are generalised to the production of arbitrary spin resonances as follows.

A no-spin-flip amplitude for the production of boson resonances may be obtained by considering scalar particle exchange or the f_3 coupling in vector particle exchange for the situations in which the boson coupling allows scalar or vector particle exchanges to take place. Thus the decay angular distribution of a normal parity boson resonance, produced by coherent scattering of pseudoscalar, esons on nucleons, decaying into two spin zero particles of the same parity is obtained from Table 3 by putting B = 0. The distribution is of the form:

$$\frac{1}{2\pi} \quad \frac{(2j+1)}{2j(j+1)} \cos^2 \phi_{3V} \left[Pj^1(c_V) \right]^2$$
(12.14)

The corresponding result for an abnormal parity resonance decaying into two spin zero particles of opposite parity is given in Table 2. The distribution is of the form:

$$\frac{1}{2\pi} \frac{(2j+1)}{2} \left[P_{J}^{\rho} \left(\mathbf{o}_{V} \right) \right]^{2}$$
(12.15)

Similarly the result for a normal parity resonance decaying into **a** spin zero and a spin one particle of the same parity is obtained from Table 6 by putting B = 0. The distribution is of the form:

$$\frac{1}{2\pi} \frac{(2j+1)}{2j^{2} (j+1)^{2}} \left\{ \cos^{2} \phi_{3V} \left[j(j+1) P_{J}^{\circ} \left(c_{V} \right) - \frac{c_{V}}{s_{V}} P_{J}^{1} \left(c_{V} \right) \right]^{2} + \sin^{2} \phi_{3V} \left[\frac{1}{s_{V}} P_{I}^{1} \left(c_{V} \right) \right]^{2} \right\}$$

$$(12.16)$$

The result for an abnormal parity resonance decaying into a spin zero and a spin one particle of the same parity is given in Table 8(a). The distribution is of the form:

$$\frac{1}{2\pi} \frac{1}{\left[\left(\overline{h}_{1}\right)^{2}\left(j+1\right)+\left(\overline{h}_{2}\right)^{2}j\right]} \frac{(2j+1)}{2j} \left\{\left(\overline{h}_{1}\right)^{2}\left[P_{j}^{1}\left(c_{V}\right)\right]^{2}+\left(\overline{h}_{2}\right)^{2}\left[jP_{j}^{0}\left(c_{V}\right)\right]^{2}\right\}}$$

$$(12\cdot17)$$

Clearly none of the above distributions may be associated exclusively with the peripheral model.

Although there has been some success in comparing the angular correlations of the decay products of resonances with the predictions of the peripheral model it may be possible that a completely different production mechanism is responsible for these distributions. The peripheral model can only be an approximation to the production mechanism since it does not incorporate unitarity inany way and leads to production cross sections which increase with the incident particle energy unless once again very drastic form factors are incorporated in the model. One attempt to insert unitarity into the model has been to make use of the distorted-wave Born approximation⁽⁴⁶⁻⁴⁸⁾. This approach to the problem may be more realistic.

A. APPENDIX

To evaluate the differential cross sections for the production and subsequent decay of arbitrary spin resonances it is necessary to consider in some detail the quantities constructed by contraction of some of the indices of the projection operator $(4\cdot11)$ with various 4-momentum indices. One set of indices is contracted with the indices of the 4-momentum k and the other set with the indices of the 4-momentum q_4 or p_4 for boson or fermion resonances respectively.

For boson resonances the following expressions evaluated in the frame V are useful:

$$k_{\lambda_1} k_{\lambda_2} \phi_{\lambda_1 \lambda_2}(q_2) = -k_V^2 \qquad (A.1)$$

$$\phi_{\rho_{1} \rho_{2}}(q_{2})q_{\mu\rho_{1}}q_{\mu\rho_{2}} = -q_{V}^{2} \qquad (A^{2})$$

$$k_{\lambda_{1}}\phi_{\lambda_{1} \rho_{1}}(q_{2})q_{\mu\rho_{1}} = -k_{V}q_{V}\cos\theta_{3V} \qquad (A^{3})$$

and for fermion resonances the corresponding terms evaluated in the frame W are:

$$p_{4\rho_{1}} p_{4\rho_{2}} \phi_{\rho_{1} \rho_{2}} (p_{2}) = - p_{W}^{2} \qquad (A^{*}4)$$

$$\phi_{\lambda_1 \lambda_2}(\mathbf{p}_2) \mathbf{k}_{\lambda_1} \mathbf{k}_{\lambda_2} = - \mathbf{k}_{W}^2 \qquad (A \cdot 5)$$

$$p_{4\rho_{1}}\phi_{\rho_{1}\lambda_{1}}(p_{2})k_{\lambda_{1}} = -p_{W}k_{W}\cos\theta_{4W} \qquad (A-6)$$

It should be noted that the coefficients a_r^n given by (4.12) are such that the Legendre polynomial $P_n(\cos \theta)$ may be written as:~

$$P_{n}(\cos \theta) = \left[\frac{(2n)!}{2^{n}n!n!}\right] \sum_{r=0}^{n} ar^{n}(\cos \theta)^{n-2r} \qquad (A*7)$$

where n' = n/2 for n even and n' = (n - 1)/2 for n odd.

Making use of $(A \cdot 1)$, $(A \cdot 2)$ and $(A \cdot 3)$ it follows from $(4 \cdot 11)$ and $(A \cdot 7)$ that:

$$(\mathbf{k}_{\lambda})^{n} \phi_{\lambda\rho}(\mathbf{q}_{2},\mathbf{n})(\mathbf{q}_{4\rho})^{n} = \left[\frac{2^{n} \mathbf{n}! \mathbf{n}!}{(2\mathbf{n})!}\right] \mathbf{k}_{V}^{n} \mathbf{q}_{V}^{n} \mathbf{P}_{\mathbf{n}}(\cos\theta_{3V}) (A*8)$$

Summing over all terms in (4.11) and using both (A.7) and its first derivative which defines the associated Legendre polynomial $P_n^1(\cos \theta)$ it can be shown that:

$$(-1)^{n+1} (k_{\lambda})^{n-1} \phi_{\lambda \rho} (q_{2}, n) (q_{\mu \rho})^{n} = \begin{bmatrix} \frac{2^{n} n! n!}{(2n)!} & \frac{1}{n} & k_{V}^{n-1} q_{V}^{n} \end{bmatrix} x$$

$$x \begin{bmatrix} \frac{i\phi(q_{2})q_{4}}{q_{V}} & \lambda_{1} & \frac{1}{B_{V}} P_{n}^{1}(c_{V}) + \frac{ik\phi(q_{2})}{k_{V}} & \lambda_{1} & \left[n P_{n}^{0}(c_{V}) - \frac{c_{V}}{s_{V}} P_{n}^{1}(c_{V}) \right] \end{bmatrix}$$

$$(A \cdot 9)$$

and

$$(-1)^{n+1} (k_{\lambda})^{n} \phi_{\lambda\rho} (q_{2}, n) (q_{\mu\rho})^{n-1} = \begin{bmatrix} \frac{2^{n} n! n!}{(2n)!} & \frac{1}{n} k_{V}^{n} q_{V}^{n-1} \end{bmatrix} x$$

$$x \begin{bmatrix} \frac{j k \phi(q_{2})}{k_{V}} \rho_{1} & \frac{1}{s_{V}} P_{n}^{1}(c_{V}) + \frac{j \phi(q_{2}) q_{4}}{q_{V}} \rho_{1} \left\{ n P_{n}^{0}(c_{V}) - \frac{c_{V}}{s_{V}} P_{n}^{1}(c_{V}) \right\} \end{bmatrix}$$

$$(A*10)$$

(A·11)

where $c_V = \cos \theta_{3V}$ and $s_V = \sin \theta_{3V}$.

Similarly using (A·7) and its first and second derivatives it can be shown that:

$$(-1)^{n+1} (k_{\lambda})^{n-1} \phi_{\lambda\rho} (q_{2}, n) (q_{\lambda\rho})^{n-1} = \left[\frac{2^{n} n! n!}{(2n)!} \frac{1}{n^{2}} k_{V}^{n-1} q_{V}^{n-1} \right] x$$

$$x \left[\phi_{\lambda_{1}, \rho_{1}} (q_{2}) \frac{1}{s_{V}} P_{n}^{4} (c_{V}) - \left\{ \frac{\left[\phi(q_{2}) q_{4} \right]}{q_{V}} \lambda_{1} \frac{\left[k\phi(q_{2}) \right]}{k_{V}} \rho_{1} \right. \\ \left. + \frac{\left[k\phi(q_{2}) \right]}{k_{V}} \lambda_{1} \frac{\left[\phi(q_{2}) q_{4} \right]}{q_{V}} \rho_{1} \right\} \frac{P_{n}^{2} ({}^{0} \nabla)}{s_{V}^{2}}$$

$$- \left\{ \frac{\left[k\phi(q_{2}) \right]}{k_{V}} \lambda_{1} \frac{\left[k\phi(q_{2}) \right]}{k_{V}} \rho_{1} + \frac{\left[\phi(q_{2}) q_{4} \right]}{q_{V}} \lambda_{1} \frac{\left[\phi(q_{2}) q_{4} \right]}{q_{V}} \rho_{1} \right\}$$

$$\left[\left(n - 1 \right) \frac{P_{n}^{2} (c_{V})}{s_{V}} - \frac{c_{V}}{s_{V}^{2}} P_{n}^{2} (c_{V}) \right]$$

$$- \left\{ \frac{\left[k\phi(q_{2}) \right]}{k_{V}} \lambda_{4} \frac{\left[\phi(q_{2}) q_{4} \right]}{q_{V}} \rho_{2} \right\} \left\{ n^{9} P_{n}^{0} (c_{V}) - (2n - 1) \frac{c_{V}}{s_{V}} P_{n}^{4} (c_{V}) - P_{n}^{2} (c_{V}) \right\}$$

The notation used is such that

$$[k\phi(q_2)]_{\mu} = k_{\nu}\phi_{\nu\mu}(q_2)$$
 (A·12)

and

$$[\phi(q_2)q_4]_{\nu} = \phi_{\nu\mu}(q_2)q_{\mu\mu}$$
 (A.13)

In section 6 it is necessary to consider the special cases of (A.8) and (A.11) in which a single 4-momentum is used to contract both sets of indices of the projection operator. It is easy to show that:

$$\begin{bmatrix} P_{n} (\cos \theta) \end{bmatrix}_{\cos \theta} = 1 = 1$$

$$\begin{bmatrix} \frac{1}{\sin \theta} P_{n}^{1} (\cos \theta) \\ \frac{1}{\sin^{2} \theta} P_{n}^{2} (\cos \theta) \end{bmatrix}_{\cos \theta} = 1 = \frac{n(n+1)}{2}$$

$$\begin{bmatrix} \frac{1}{\sin^{2} \theta} P_{n}^{2} (\cos \theta) \\ \frac{1}{\cos \theta} = 1 \end{bmatrix} = \frac{3(n+2)!}{4!(n-2)!}$$

Using these relationships it follows from (A.8) that:

$$(-1)^{n} (q_{4\lambda})^{n} \phi_{\lambda\rho}(q_{2}, n) (q_{4\rho})^{n} = \left[\frac{2^{n} n! n!}{(2n)!}\right] q_{V}^{2n} \qquad (A \cdot 14)$$

and if follows from (A.9) that:

$$(-1)^{n} (q_{4\lambda})^{n-1} \phi_{\lambda\rho} (q_{2}, n) (q_{4\rho})^{n-1} = \begin{bmatrix} \frac{2^{n} n! n!}{(2n)!} & \frac{1}{n^{2}} q_{V}^{2n-2} \end{bmatrix} x$$

$$\mathbf{x} \begin{bmatrix} \phi_{\lambda_{1} \rho_{1}} (q_{2}) & \frac{n(n+1)}{2} & -\frac{\{q_{4} \phi(q_{2})\}}{2} & \lambda_{1} & \frac{\{q_{4} \phi(q_{2})\}}{q_{V}} & \rho_{1} & \frac{n(n-1)}{2} \end{bmatrix}$$
(A·15)

In sections 9 and 10 in which fermion resonances are discessed it is necessary to evaluate four traces. It is possible to write these as follows:

$$\frac{1}{4} \operatorname{Tr} \left\{ \begin{array}{l} \gamma_{\beta_{1}} \gamma_{\gamma_{1}} \gamma_{\rho_{1}} \gamma_{\lambda_{1}} \end{array} \right\} = \mathcal{E}_{\beta_{1} \gamma_{1}} \mathcal{E}_{\rho_{1} \lambda_{1}} + \left[\mathcal{E}_{\beta_{1} \lambda_{1}} \mathcal{E}_{\gamma_{1} \rho_{1}} - \mathcal{E}_{\beta_{1} \rho_{1}} \mathcal{E}_{\gamma_{1} \lambda_{1}} \right] \quad (A \cdot 16)$$

$$\frac{1}{4} \operatorname{Tr} \left\{ \left(\mathcal{A} \not b - \not b \mathcal{A} \right) \gamma_{\beta_{1}} \gamma_{\gamma_{1}} \gamma_{\rho_{1}} \gamma_{\lambda_{1}} \right\} = 2 \mathcal{E}_{\beta_{1} \gamma_{1}} \left(a_{\lambda_{1}} b_{\rho_{1}} - b_{\lambda_{1}} a_{\rho_{1}} \right)$$

$$+ 2 \mathcal{E}_{\rho_{1} \lambda_{1}} \left(a_{\gamma_{1}} b_{\beta_{1}} - b_{\gamma_{1}} a_{\beta_{1}} \right) + \frac{1}{16} \operatorname{Tr} \left\{ \left(\mathcal{A} \not b - \not b \mathcal{A} \right) \left(\gamma_{\beta_{1}} \gamma_{\gamma_{1}} - \gamma_{\gamma_{1}} \gamma_{\beta_{1}} \right) \right\} \quad (A \cdot 17)$$

$$\frac{1}{4} \operatorname{Tr} \left\{ Y_{5} Y_{\beta_{1}} Y_{\tau_{1}} Y_{\rho_{1}} Y_{\lambda_{1}} \right\} = -\epsilon_{\beta_{1}} Y_{1} \rho_{1} \lambda_{1}$$
(A.18)

$$\frac{1}{4} \operatorname{Tr} \left\{ \gamma_{5} (\not h \not h - \not h h) \gamma_{\beta_{1}} \gamma_{\gamma_{1}} \gamma_{\rho_{1}} \gamma_{\lambda_{1}} \right\} = -2g_{\beta_{1}}\gamma_{1} \epsilon_{\mu\nu\rho_{1}\lambda_{1}} a_{\mu}^{b}\nu$$

$$-2g_{\rho_{1}\lambda_{1}} \epsilon_{\mu\nu\beta_{1}}\gamma_{1} a_{\mu}^{b}\nu + \frac{1}{16} \operatorname{Tr} \left\{ \gamma_{5} (\not h \not h - \not h \not h) \left(\gamma_{\beta_{1}}\gamma_{\gamma_{1}} - \gamma_{\gamma_{1}}\gamma_{\beta_{1}} \right) \left(\gamma_{\rho_{1}}\gamma_{\lambda_{1}} - \gamma_{\lambda_{1}}\gamma_{\rho_{1}} \right) \right\}$$

$$(A \cdot 19)$$

where each expression has been written as a sum of terms which are either proportional to $g_{\beta_1\gamma_1}$ or antisymmetric under the interchange of β_1 and γ_1 and are also either proportional to $g_{\rho_1\lambda_1}$ or antisymmetric under the interchange of ρ_1 and λ_1 . These forms are particularly useful in the following calculations.

The expression analogous to (A·11) which is of use when dealing with fermion resonances may be written as:

$$(-1)^{n+1} (k_{\beta})^{n-1} \phi_{\beta\gamma}(p_{2}, n) (p_{4\gamma})^{n-1} = \left[\frac{2^{n} n! n!}{(2n)!} \frac{(2n+1)}{n^{2}} k_{W}^{n-1} p_{W}^{n-1} \right] \left(A_{\beta_{1}} \gamma_{1} + B_{\beta_{1}} \gamma_{1} \right)$$
(A·20)

where $A_{\beta_1 \gamma_1}$ is symmetric under the interchange of β_1 and γ_1 . It may easily be shown that, with the notation $\cos \theta_{4W} = c_W$ and $\sin \theta_{4W} = s_W$,

$$g_{\beta_{1}\gamma_{1}}\left(A_{\beta_{1}\gamma_{1}}+B_{\beta_{1}\gamma_{1}}\right) = \left[c_{W} n P_{n}^{\circ}(c_{W})+s_{W} P_{n}^{1}(c_{W})\right] \quad (A\cdot 21)$$

and

$$B_{\beta_{1}\gamma_{1}} = -\left\{ \frac{\left[k\phi(p_{2})\right]}{k_{W}}\beta_{1} \frac{\left[\phi(p_{3})p_{4}\right]}{p_{W}}\gamma_{1} \right\} \left[n P_{n}^{\circ}(c_{W}) - \frac{c_{W}}{s_{W}} P_{n}^{1}(c_{W})\right]$$
(A·22)

Similarly:

$$(-1)^{n+1} (p_{4\rho})^{n-1} \phi_{\rho\lambda}(p_{2,n})(k_{\lambda})^{n-1} = \left[\frac{2^{n} n! n!}{(2n)!} \frac{(2n+1)}{n^{2}} k_{W}^{n-1} p_{W}^{n-1}\right] (A_{\rho_{1}\lambda_{1}} + C_{\rho_{1}\lambda_{1}}) \quad (A-23)$$

where as before $A_{\rho_1 \lambda_1}$ is symmetric under the interchange of ρ_1 and λ_1 . As before

$$g_{\rho_{1}\lambda_{1}}(A_{\rho_{1}\lambda_{1}} + C_{\rho_{1}\lambda_{1}}) = \left[c_{W} n \operatorname{Ph}^{\circ}(c_{W}) + s_{W} \operatorname{Ph}^{1}(c_{W})\right] \quad (A \cdot 2l_{+})$$

and

$$C_{\rho_{1}\lambda_{1}} = -\left\{ \frac{\left[P_{4}\phi(P_{2})\right]}{P_{W}} \rho_{1} \frac{\left[\phi(P_{2})k\right]}{k_{W}} \lambda_{1} \right\} \left[n P_{n}^{\circ}(c_{W}) - \frac{c_{W}}{s_{W}} P_{n}^{1}(c_{W}) \right]$$
(A-25)

The terms in $B_{\beta_1\gamma_1}$ and $C_{\beta_1\lambda_1}$ are the only parts of (A·20) and (A·23) which give any contribution when contracted with the antisymmetric parts of (A·16). It is clear that:

$$\begin{bmatrix} g_{\beta_1\lambda_1}g_{\gamma_1\rho_1} - g_{\beta_1\rho_1}g_{\gamma_1\lambda_1} \end{bmatrix} B_{\beta_1\gamma_1} C_{\rho_1\lambda_1} = \begin{bmatrix} s_W & n & P_n^{\circ}(c_W) - c_W & P_n^{-1}(c_W) \end{bmatrix}^2$$
(A.26)

۰...

Summing over all the terms in (4.11) and using (A.7) and its derivatives it may be shown that:

$$(-1)^{n+1} e_{\beta_{2}}(k_{\beta})^{n-2} \phi_{\beta y}(p_{3}, n)(p_{4y})^{n-1} = \begin{bmatrix} \frac{2^{n} n! n!}{(2n)!} & \frac{(2n+1)}{n^{2}} e_{W} k_{W}^{n-2} p_{W}^{n-1} \end{bmatrix}$$
$$\begin{bmatrix} D_{\beta_{1} \gamma_{1}}(e) & + E_{\beta_{1} \gamma_{1}}(e) \end{bmatrix}$$
(A·27)

where $D_{\beta_1 \gamma_1}(e)$ is symmetric under the interchange of β_1 and γ_1 and $g_{\beta_1 \gamma_1}\left[D_{\beta_1 \gamma_1}(e) + E_{\beta_1 \gamma_1}(e)\right] = \left\{\cos \theta_{ekW}\left[nc_W P_n^{\circ}(c_W) + s_W P_n^{1}(c_W)\right]\right\}$ $-\left[\cos \theta_{epW} - c_W \cos \theta_{ekW}\right] \frac{n}{(n-1)}\left[nP_n^{\circ}(c_W) - \frac{c_W}{s_W}P_n^{1}(c_W)\right]\right\}$ (A·29)

and

$$\begin{split} E_{\beta_{1}\gamma_{1}}(e) &= \left[-\frac{\left\{ k\phi(\phi_{2}) \right\}}{k_{W}} \beta_{1} \left\{ \cos \theta_{ekW} \frac{(n-2)}{(n-1)} \left[nF_{n}^{\circ}(e_{W}) - \frac{e_{W}}{a_{W}} F_{n}^{1}(e_{W}) \right] \right. \\ &+ \left[\cos \theta_{epW} - e_{W} \cos \theta_{ekW} \right] \frac{1}{(n-1)} \left[(n-1) \frac{F_{n}^{1}(e_{W})}{s_{W}} - \frac{e_{W}}{a_{W}^{2}} F_{n}^{2}(a_{W}) \right] \right] \\ &\frac{\left\{ e\phi(p_{2}) \right\}}{e_{W}} \beta_{1} \left\{ \frac{1}{(n-1)} \left[nF_{n}^{\circ}(e_{W}) - \frac{e_{W}}{a_{W}} F_{n}^{\circ}(e_{W}) \right] \right\} \frac{\left\{ \phi(p_{2}) p_{1} \right\}}{p_{W}} \gamma_{1} \end{split}$$

where e_{μ} is an arbitrary 4-momentum such that θ_{ekW} and θ_{epW} are the angle in the frame W between \underline{e}_{W} and \underline{k}_{W} and between \underline{e}_{W} and \underline{p}_{4W} respectively.

Similarly:

$$(-1)^{n+1} (p_{4\rho})^{n-1} \phi_{\rho\lambda}(p_{2},n)(k_{\lambda})^{n-2} f_{\lambda_{2}} = \left[\frac{2^{n} n! n!}{(2n)!} \frac{(2n+1)}{n^{2}} f_{W} k_{W}^{n-2} p_{W}^{n-1} \right] \\ \left[D_{\rho_{1} \lambda_{1}}(f) + F_{\rho_{1} \lambda_{1}}(f) \right] \quad (A \cdot 30)$$

where once again $D_{\rho_1\lambda_1}(f)$ is symmetric under the interchange of ρ_1 and λ_1 and

$$\mathbf{g}_{\rho_{1}\lambda_{1}}\left[\mathbf{D}_{\rho_{1}\lambda_{1}}(\mathbf{f}) + \mathbf{F}_{\rho_{1}\lambda_{1}}(\mathbf{f})\right] = \left\{\cos \theta_{\mathbf{f}\mathbf{k}\mathbf{W}}\left[\operatorname{nc}_{\mathbf{W}}\mathbf{h}^{\circ}\left(\mathbf{c}_{\mathbf{W}}\right) + \mathbf{a}_{\mathbf{W}}\mathbf{h}^{1}\left(\mathbf{c}_{\mathbf{W}}\right)\right]\right\}$$
$$- \left[\cos \theta_{\mathbf{f}\mathbf{p}\mathbf{W}} - \mathbf{c}_{\mathbf{W}}^{\cos}\theta_{\mathbf{f}\mathbf{k}\mathbf{W}}\right] \frac{n}{(n-1)}\left[\operatorname{nPh}^{\circ}\left(\mathbf{c}_{\mathbf{W}}\right) - \frac{\mathbf{c}_{\mathbf{W}}}{\mathbf{a}_{\mathbf{W}}}\mathbf{P}_{n}^{1}\left(\mathbf{c}_{\mathbf{W}}\right)\right]\right\}$$
$$(A\cdot 31)$$

and

$$F_{\rho_{1}\lambda_{1}}(\mathbf{f}) = \frac{\left\{\mathbf{p}_{1}\phi(\mathbf{p}_{2})\right\}}{\mathbf{p}_{W}} \rho_{1} \left[-\frac{\left[\phi(\mathbf{p}_{2})\mathbf{k}\right]}{\mathbf{k}_{W}}\lambda_{1} \left\{\cos \theta_{\mathbf{f}\mathbf{k}W}(\mathbf{n-1})\right] \left[\mathbf{n}\mathbf{P}_{n}^{\circ}\left(\mathbf{c}_{W}\right) - \frac{\mathbf{c}_{W}}{\mathbf{s}_{W}} \mathbf{P}_{n}^{1}\left(\mathbf{c}_{W}\right)\right] + \left[\cos \theta_{\mathbf{f}\mathbf{p}W} - \mathbf{c}_{W}\cos \theta_{\mathbf{f}\mathbf{k}W}(\mathbf{n-1})\right] \left[\mathbf{n}\mathbf{P}_{n}^{\circ}\left(\mathbf{c}_{W}\right) - \frac{\mathbf{c}_{W}}{\mathbf{s}_{W}} \mathbf{P}_{n}^{1}\left(\mathbf{c}_{W}\right)\right] + \left[\cos \theta_{\mathbf{f}\mathbf{p}W} - \mathbf{c}_{W}\cos \theta_{\mathbf{f}\mathbf{k}W}(\mathbf{n-1})\right] \left[\mathbf{n}\mathbf{P}_{n}^{\circ}\left(\mathbf{c}_{W}\right) - \frac{\mathbf{c}_{W}}{\mathbf{s}_{W}} \mathbf{P}_{n}^{2}\left(\mathbf{c}_{W}\right)\right] \right] - \frac{\left[\phi(\mathbf{p}_{2})\mathbf{f}\right]}{\mathbf{f}_{W}}\lambda_{1} \left\{\frac{1}{(\mathbf{n-1})}\left[\mathbf{n}\mathbf{P}_{n}^{\circ}\left(\mathbf{c}_{W}\right) - \frac{\mathbf{c}_{W}}{\mathbf{s}_{W}} \mathbf{P}_{n}^{2}\left(\mathbf{c}_{W}\right)\right]\right\} \right] \quad (A \cdot 32)$$

where f_{μ} is an arbitrary 4-momentum such that θ_{fkW} and θ_{fpW} are the angles in the frame W between \underline{f}_{W} and \underline{k}_{W} and between \underline{f}_{W} and \underline{P}_{LW} respectively.

The term in $E_{\beta_1\gamma_1}(e)$ is the only part of (A·27) which gives a non-zero contribution when contracted with the terms in (A·16) -(A·19) which are antisymmetric under the interchange of β_1 and γ_1 . Similarly the term in $F_{\rho_1\lambda_1}(f)$ is the only part of (A·30) which gives a non-zero contribution when contracted with the terms in (A·16) -(A·19) which are antisymmetric under the interchange of ρ_1 and λ_1 . Thus the expression T(r) given by (9·8) may be evaluated using the results (A·16) - (A·19), (A·28), (A·29), (A·31) and (A·32).

It is convenient to separate out from each term in the expression T(r) the factor:

$$\begin{bmatrix} \frac{2^{n} n! n!}{(2n)!} & \frac{(2n+1)}{n^{2}} & k_{W}^{n-3} & p_{W}^{n-1} \end{bmatrix}^{2}$$
(A·37)

The remaining factors in each term are as follows:

$$M_{kk} k_{W}^{4} \left[\left\{ n P_{n}^{o} (c_{W}) \right\}^{2} + \left\{ P_{n}^{1} (c_{W}) \right\}^{2} \right]$$

$$M_{kr} k_{W}^{2} \left[\left(\underline{r}_{W} \cdot \underline{k}_{W} \right) \left\{ \left[n P_{n}^{o} (c_{W}) \right]^{2} + \left[P_{n}^{1} (c_{W}) \right]^{2} \right\}$$

$$(A \cdot 34)$$

$$-\frac{1}{k_{W}P_{W}}\left(\underline{r_{W}},\underline{k_{W}}\right)\cdot\left(\underline{p_{kW}},\underline{k_{W}}\right)\frac{1}{(n-1)}\frac{1}{s_{W}}P_{n}^{1}\left(c_{W}\right)\left\{nP_{n}^{\circ}\left(c_{W}\right)-\frac{c_{W}}{s_{W}}P_{n}^{1}\left(c_{W}\right)\right\}\right]$$
(A.35)

The term in M_{rk} is the hermitian conjugate of that in M_{kr}

$$\mathbb{M}_{rr}\left[\left|\left(\underline{r}_{W},\underline{k}_{W}\right)\right|^{2}\left(\left[n \operatorname{Ph}^{o}\left(c_{W}\right)\right]^{2} + \left[\operatorname{Ph}^{1}\left(c_{W}\right)\right]^{2}\right]\right]$$

$$-2 \operatorname{Re}\left[\left(\underline{\mathbf{r}}_{W},\underline{\mathbf{k}}_{W}\right)\frac{\left[\left(\underline{\mathbf{r}}_{W}^{*},\underline{\mathbf{k}}\right),\left(\underline{\mathbf{p}}_{4W},\underline{\mathbf{k}}_{W}\right)\right]}{\underline{\mathbf{k}}_{W}}\right] \frac{1}{(n-1)} \frac{1}{s_{W}} \operatorname{Pn}^{1}\left(\underline{\mathbf{c}}_{W}\right)\left[n \operatorname{Pn}^{0}\left(\underline{\mathbf{c}}_{W}\right) - \frac{\underline{\mathbf{c}}_{W}}{\underline{s}_{W}} \operatorname{Pn}^{1}\left(\underline{\mathbf{c}}_{W}\right)\right]$$

$$+ \left| \frac{\left(\underline{\mathbf{r}}_{W},\underline{\mathbf{k}}_{W}\right) \cdot \left(\underline{\mathbf{p}}_{W},\underline{\mathbf{k}}_{W}\right)}{\underline{\mathbf{k}}_{W}} \right|^{2} \left\{ \left[\frac{\mathbf{P}_{n}^{1}\left(\mathbf{c}_{W}\right)}{\underline{\mathbf{s}}_{W}} \right]^{2} - \frac{n \mathbf{P}_{n}^{0}\left(\mathbf{c}_{W}\right) \mathbf{P}_{n}^{2}\left(\mathbf{c}_{W}\right)}{\left(n-1\right) \underline{\mathbf{s}}_{W}^{2}} \right\}$$

+
$$(\underline{\mathbf{r}}_{W^{A}}\underline{\mathbf{k}}_{W}) \cdot (\underline{\mathbf{r}}^{\diamond}\underline{\mathbf{k}}_{W}) \frac{1}{(n-1)^{2}} \left\{ n P_{n}^{\circ}(\mathbf{c}_{W}) - \frac{\mathbf{c}_{W}}{\mathbf{s}_{W}} P_{n}^{1}(\mathbf{c}_{W}) \right\}^{2} \right]$$
 (A.36)

$$\frac{M_{SS} m_{s}^{2} k_{W}^{2}}{P_{W}} \left[\frac{(\mathbf{r}_{W} \mathbf{k}_{W}) \cdot (\mathbf{r}_{W}^{*} \mathbf{k}_{W})}{s_{W}} \frac{1}{(n-1)^{2}} \left\{ n P_{h}^{\circ} (\mathbf{a}_{W}) - \frac{c_{W}}{s_{W}} P_{h}^{1} (\mathbf{a}_{W}) \right\}^{2} + \left| \frac{P_{4W} \cdot (\mathbf{r}_{W} \mathbf{k}_{W})}{P_{W}} \right|^{2} \left\{ \left[\frac{P_{h}^{1} (\mathbf{a}_{W})}{s_{W}} \right]^{2} - \frac{n P_{h}^{\circ} (\mathbf{a}_{W})}{(n-1) s_{W}^{2}} \right\} \right]^{W}$$

$$(A*37)$$

The terms in N_{kk} and N_{kk}^{*} are both zero.

$$2 N_{kr} k_{W}^{2} \left[(\underline{r}_{W} \underline{k}_{W}) \cdot (\underline{r}_{W}^{*} \underline{k}_{W}) n P_{n}^{\circ} (c_{W}) \frac{1}{(n-1)} \left\{ n P_{n}^{\circ} (c_{W}) - \frac{c_{W}}{s_{W}} P_{n}^{1} (c_{W}) \right\}$$

$$-\left|\frac{\left(\underline{\mathbf{r}}_{W},\underline{\mathbf{k}}_{W}\right)\cdot\left(\underline{\mathbf{p}}_{U},\underline{\mathbf{w}},\underline{\mathbf{k}}_{W}\right)}{\underline{\mathbf{p}}_{W}\underline{\mathbf{k}}_{W}}\right|^{2}\left\{\left[\frac{\mathbf{P}_{n}^{1}\left(\mathbf{c}_{W}\right)}{\underline{\mathbf{s}}_{W}}\right]^{2}-\frac{n \ \mathbf{P}_{n}^{\circ}\left(\mathbf{c}_{W}\right) \ \mathbf{P}_{n}^{2}\left(\mathbf{c}_{W}\right)}{\left(n-1\right) \mathbf{s}_{W}^{2}}\right\}\right]$$
(A·38)

The term in N_{kr}^* is the hermitian conjugate of that in N_{kr} .

The term in O_{kk} is zero. The terms in P_{ks} , P_{sk} , P_{rs} and P_{sr} are all zero.

$$2 Q_{ks} m_{b}^{2} k_{W}^{2} \left[- \frac{(\underline{\mathbf{r}}_{W} \wedge \underline{\mathbf{k}}_{W}) \cdot (\underline{\mathbf{p}}_{UW} \wedge \underline{\mathbf{k}}_{W})}{\underline{\mathbf{p}}_{W}} \frac{1}{(n-1)} \frac{\underline{\mathbf{P}}_{n}^{1} (\underline{\mathbf{c}}_{W})}{\underline{\mathbf{s}}_{W}} \left[n \underline{\mathbf{P}}_{n}^{\circ} (\underline{\mathbf{c}}_{W}) - \frac{\underline{\mathbf{c}}_{W}}{\underline{\mathbf{s}}_{W}} \underline{\mathbf{P}}_{n}^{1} (\underline{\mathbf{c}}_{W}) \right] \right]$$

$$(A \cdot 39)$$

The term in Q_{sk} is the hermitian conjugate of that in Q_{ks} .

$$- 2 Q_{rs} n_{2}^{2} k_{W}^{2} \left[(\underline{r}_{W} \underline{k}_{W}) \cdot (\underline{r}_{W}^{*} \underline{k}_{W}) \frac{1}{(n-1)^{2}} \left\{ n P_{n}^{\circ} (c_{W}) - \frac{c_{W}}{s_{W}} P_{n}^{1} (c_{W}) \right\}^{2} \right. \\ \left. + \frac{\left[(\underline{r}_{W} \underline{k}_{W}) \cdot (\underline{p}_{\mu W} \underline{k}_{W}) \right]}{p_{W} k_{W}} (\underline{r}_{W}^{*} \underline{k}_{W}) \frac{1}{(n-1)} \frac{P_{n}^{1} (c_{W})}{s_{W}} \left\{ n P_{n}^{\circ} (c_{W}) - \frac{c_{W}}{s_{W}} P_{n}^{1} (c_{W}) \right\} \\ \left. + \left| \frac{(\underline{r}_{W} \underline{k}_{W}) \cdot (\underline{p}_{\mu W} \underline{k}_{W})}{p_{W} k_{W}} \right|^{2} \frac{1}{(n-1)^{2}} \frac{P_{n}^{2} (c_{W})}{s_{W}} \left\{ n P_{n}^{\circ} (c_{W}) - \frac{c_{W}}{s_{W}} P_{n}^{1} (c_{W}) \right\} \\ \left. + \left| \frac{\underline{p}_{\mu W} \cdot (\underline{r}_{W} \underline{k}_{W})}{p_{W} k_{W}} \right|^{2} \frac{1}{(n-1)^{2}} \frac{P_{n}^{2} (c_{W})}{s_{W}} \left\{ n P_{n}^{\circ} (c_{W}) - \frac{c_{W}}{s_{W}} P_{n}^{1} (c_{W}) \right\} \right]$$
 (A*40)

The term in
$$Q_{sr}$$
 is the hermitian conjugate of that in Q_{rs} .

$$-2 R_{ks} \left[(P_{2} \cdot k)(\underline{r}_{W^{A}}\underline{k}_{W}) \cdot (\underline{r}_{W^{A}}\underline{k}_{W}) \frac{1}{(n-1)} \left\{ n P_{n}^{\circ}(c_{W}) - \frac{c_{W}}{s_{W}} P_{n}^{1}(c_{W}) \right\}^{2} + \frac{(\underline{r}_{W^{A}}\underline{k}_{W}) \cdot (\underline{p}_{4W^{A}}\underline{k}_{W})}{P_{W}} k_{W}(p_{2} \cdot r^{+}) \frac{1}{(n-1)} \left\{ n P_{n}^{\circ}(c_{W}) - \frac{c_{W}}{s_{W}} P_{n}^{1}(c_{W}) \right\} \frac{P_{n}^{1}(c_{W})}{s_{W}} + \frac{(\underline{r}_{W^{A}}\underline{k}_{W}) \cdot (\underline{r}_{W^{A}}\underline{k}_{W})}{P_{W}} k_{W}(p_{2} \cdot k) \frac{1}{(n-1)} \frac{P_{n}^{1}(c_{W})}{s_{W}} \left\{ n P_{n}^{\circ}(c_{W}) - \frac{c_{W}}{s_{W}} P_{n}^{1}(c_{W}) \right\}$$

$$- (p_{2} \cdot k) \left| \frac{\underline{p}_{4W} \cdot (\underline{r}_{W^{A}}\underline{k}_{W})}{P_{W}} \right|^{2} \left\{ \left[\frac{P_{n}^{1}(c_{W})}{s_{W}} \right]^{2} - \frac{n P_{n}^{\circ}(c_{W}) P_{n}^{2}(c_{W})}{(n-1) s_{W}^{2}} \right\} \right]$$

$$(A \cdot 41)$$

•

The term in
$$\mathbb{R}_{ks}^{+}$$
 is the hermitian conjugate of that in \mathbb{R}_{ks} .
+ 2 $S_{ks} \mathbb{m}_{a}^{2} \left| (\underline{\mathbf{r}}_{W^{A}} \underline{\mathbf{k}}_{W}) \cdot (\underline{\mathbf{r}}_{W^{A}}^{+} \underline{\mathbf{k}}_{W}) \frac{1}{(n-1)} \left\{ n \mathbb{P}_{n}^{\circ} (\mathbf{c}_{W}) - \frac{\mathbf{c}_{W}}{\mathbf{s}_{W}} \mathbb{P}_{n}^{1} (\mathbf{c}_{W}) \right\}^{2}$
+ $k_{W} \frac{(\underline{\mathbf{r}}_{W^{A}} \underline{\mathbf{k}}_{W}) \cdot (\underline{\mathbf{r}}_{W^{A}}^{+} \mathbb{P}_{4W})}{\mathbb{P}_{W}} \frac{1}{(n-1)} \frac{\mathbb{P}_{n}^{1} (\mathbf{c}_{W})}{\mathbf{s}_{W}} \left\{ n \mathbb{P}_{n}^{\circ} (\mathbf{c}_{W}) - \frac{\mathbf{c}_{W}}{\mathbf{s}_{W}} \mathbb{P}_{n}^{1} (\mathbf{c}_{W}) \right\}$
- $\left| \frac{\mathbb{P}_{4W} \cdot (\underline{\mathbf{r}}_{W^{A}} \underline{\mathbf{k}}_{W})}{\mathbb{P}_{W}} \right|^{2} \left\{ \left[\frac{\mathbb{P}_{n}^{1} (\mathbf{c}_{W})}{\mathbf{s}_{W}} \right]^{2} - \frac{n \mathbb{P}_{n}^{\circ} (\mathbf{c}_{W}) \mathbb{P}_{n}^{2} (\mathbf{c}_{W})}{(n-1) \mathbb{a}_{W}^{2}} \right\} \right]$

The term in S_{ks}^{+} is the hermitian conjugate of that in S_{ks}^{+}

t

.

REFERENCES

1

1.	C. Goebel	Phys.Rev.Lett. <u>1</u> 337 (1958)
2.	G.F. Chew and F. Low	Phys.Rev. <u>113</u> 1640 (1959)
3.	F. Bonsignori and F. Selleri	Nuowo Cimento <u>15</u> 465 (1960
4.	F.Salzman and G. Salzman	Phys.Rev. 120 599 (1961)
5.	S.D. Drell	Rev.Mod.Fhys. <u>33</u> 458 (1961)
6.	J.J. Sakurai and L. Stodolsky	Phys.Rev.Lett. <u>11</u> 90 (1963)
7.	R.W. Huff	Phys.Rev. <u>133</u> B 1078 (1964)
8.	L. Stodolsky	Phys.Rev. <u>134</u> B 1099 (1964)
9.	Y. Li and N.B. Martin	Phys.Rev. <u>135</u> B 561 (1964)
1 0.	J.D. Jackson and H. Pilkuhn	Nuovo Cimento <u>33</u> 906 (1964)
11.	F. Selleri	Phys.Lett. <u>3</u> 76 (1962)
12.	E. Ferrari and F. Selleri	Suppl.Nuovo Cimento 24 453 (1962)
13.	S.B. Trieman and C.N. Yang	Phys.Rev.Lett. 8 140 (1962)
14.	A.S. Goldhaber	Phys.Rev. <u>134</u> B 600 (1964)
15.	A.S. Goldhaber	Phys.Rev. <u>135</u> B 508 (1964)
16.	T.D. Lee and C.N. Yang	Phys.Rev. 109 1755 (1958)
17.	W.B. Teutsch, S. Okubo and E.C.G. Sudarshan	Phys.Rev. <u>114</u> 1148, (1959)
18.	R. Gatto and H.P. Stapp	Phys.Rev. <u>121</u> 1553 (1961)
19.	R.H. Capps	Phys.Rev. <u>122</u> 929 (1961)
20.	G.F. Wolters	Phys.Lett. <u>3</u> 41 (1962)
21	G.F. Wolters	Nuovo Cimento 28 843 (1963)
22.	N. Byers and S. Fenster	Phys.Rev.Lett. 11 52 (1963)

23.	M. Ademollo and R. Gatto	Nuovo Cimento <u>30</u> 429 (1963)
24.	M. Ademollo and R. Gatto	Phys.Rev. 133 B 531 (1964)
2 5.	M. Ademollo, R. Gatto and	Phys.Rev. Lett. <u>12</u> 462 (1964)
26.	G. Shapiro	Phys.Rev. <u>134</u> B 1393 (1964)
27.	N. Byers and C.N. Yang	Phys. Rev. <u>135</u> B 796 (1964)
28.	W. Rarita and J. Schwinger	Phys.Rev. <u>60</u> 61 (1941)
29.	H. Umezawa North Holland Pa	Quantum Field Theory ublishing Co. (Amsterdam, 1956)

30. The convention $\not = c = 1$ is used and the metric adopted is $g_{\mu\nu} = (1,-1,-1,-1)$ so that $a.b = a_0b_0 - \underline{a.b}$. Also $(\gamma_{\mu}\gamma_{\nu} - \gamma_{\nu}\gamma_{\mu}) = 2g_{\mu\nu}$, $\not = a.\gamma$ and $\gamma_5 = \gamma_0\gamma_1\gamma_2\gamma_3$. Finally $\epsilon_{\mu\nu\lambda\rho}$ is a completely antisymmetric pseudotensor which is +1 when $(\mu \nu \lambda \rho)$ is an even permutation of $(0 \ 1 \ 2 \ 3)$, -1 when it is an odd permutation and zero otherwise.

- 31. See for example H. Goldstein Classical Mechanics Addison Wesley Publishing Co.Inc. (Reading, Massachusetts, 1950)
- 32. This result corresponds to a particular choice of Euler angles in the phase space factor (4.21) of C. Zemach Phys.Rev. 133 B 1201 (1964)
- 33. The phase space factor is thus proportional to q_B q_V p_W dV dW as given in G. Goldhater, N. Chinowsky, S. Goldha^ber, W. Lee and T. O'Halloran. Phys. Lett. <u>6</u> 62 (1963)
- 34
 R. Behrends and C. Fronsdal
 Phys.Rev. <u>106</u> 345 (1957)

 35.
 C. Fronsdal
 Suppl.Nuovo Cimento <u>9</u> 416 (1958)

 36.
 R.K. Adair
 Phys.Rev. <u>100</u> 1540 (1955)

37. G.A. Smith, J. Schwartz, D.H. Miller, G.R. albfleisch, R.W. Huff, O.I. Dahl and G. Alexander Phys.Rev.Lett. 10 138 (1963) 38. G.R. Lynch, M. Ferro-Luzzi, R. George, Y. Goldschmidt-Clermont,, V.P. Henri, B. Jongejans, D.W.G. Leith, F. Muller and I.M. Perreau, Phys.Lett. 9 359 (1964) Phys.Rev.Lett. 11 93 (1963) 39. B. Kehoe 40. A. Daudin, M.A. Jabiol, C. Kochowski, C. Lewin, F. Selleri, S. Mongelli, A. Romans and P. Waloschek Phys. Lett. 7 125 (1963) Phys.Lett. 9 191 (1964) 41. V. Barger and E. Macliment 42. Aachen-Berlin-Birmingham-Bonn-Hamburg-London (I.C.)-München collaboration Phys.Lett. 10 229 (1964) 43. W. Chinowsky, G. Goldhaber, S. Goldhaber, W. Lee and T. O'Halloran Phys.Rev.Lett. 9 330 (1962) Nuovo Cimento 33 309 (1964) 44. K Gottfried and J.D. Jackson 45. S.M. Berman and S.D. Drell Phys.Rev.Lett. 11 220 (1963) Phys.Rev.Lett. 12 399 (1964) 46. L. Durand and Y.T. Chiu 47. A. Dar and W. Tobocman Phys.Rev.Lett 12 511 (1964) Phys.Rev.Lett. 12 627 (1964) 48. M.H. Ross and G.L. Shaw

.

PART II

۴.

Production of Cascade Particles.
R. C. KING 1º Dicembre 1963 Il Nuovo Cimento Serie X, Vol. 80, pag. 1220-1244

Production of Cascade Particles.

R. C. KING (*)

Imperial College - London

(ricevuto il 19 Giugno 1963)

Summary. — A model to describe the production of cascade particles in Kp collisions is set up in which the pole contribution of the A and Σ particles and the contributions of two-particle intermediate states are considered. These latter states are approximated by Y* resonances in the s and u channels and by a D-particle or resonance, a boson of strangeness 2, in the t channel. The two alternatives of spin $\frac{1}{2}$ and spin $\frac{3}{2}$ Ξ are considered. A field-theoretical technique is used in which all spin ³/₄ states are described by the Rarita-Schwinger formalism. The differential and total cross-sections for the production process are calculated at various energies for all possible parity combinations. A comparison with the experimental data indicates that the spin of the caseade particle is not 3. The production process is anti-peripheral in the sense that the dominant mechanism is fermion exchange in the u channel. The data can best be fitted by the parity combinations $\mathcal{P}(\Lambda\Sigma)$ even, $P(K\Lambda N)$ odd and $P(K\Lambda \Xi)$ odd. In this case it is also required that $g_{K\Lambda N}g_{K\Lambda\Xi} \approx g_{K\Sigma N}g_{K\Sigma\Xi}$. There is also some evidence for a peripheral process mediated by a D-particle or KK resonance. The analysis indicates that such a state, with isospin 1, should have spin 0 and even parity. The mass cannot be established but a mass of 1000 MeV and a width of 130 MeV is consistent with cascade production in both Kp and pp collisions.

1. – Introduction.

Recently a large number of cascade particles have been produced in Kp collisions and both the total cross-section and angular distribution for this

^(*) The research reported in this document has been sponsored in part by the Air Force Office of Scientific Research, OAR, through the European Office, Acrospace Research, United States Air Force.

PRODUCTION OF CASCADE PARTICLES

production process have been measured at several energies (^{1.5}). The threshold lies at $P_{\rm L} = 1.06$ GéV/c ($P_{\rm L}$ is the laboratory momentum of the incident K⁻-meson). The total cross-section for the process

(1)
$$K^- + p^- \rightarrow \Xi^- + K^+$$

rises from a value of 18 µb at $P_{\rm L} = 1.17 \text{ GeV/c}$ to a value of 200 µb at $P_{\rm L} = = 1.6 \text{ GeV/c}$. Above this energy the cross-section decreases to about 100 µb at $P_{\rm L} = 2.2 \text{ GeV/c}$. The main feature of the observed angular distribution is that the cascade particles are produced predominantly in the forward direction with respect to the incident K⁻-meson in the centre-of-mass system of the initial particles. However, production outside this forward peak is not negligible and indeed at $P_{\rm L} = 1.81 \text{ GeV/c}$ there is evidence of an additional small backward peak.

We set up a model to describe the production process (1) in which we consider the pole contributions of the Λ and Σ particles in the direct and one of the crossed channels. In addition we calculate the contributions of twoparticle intermediate states in the direct and both crossed channels. In order to do this we make the simplifying assumptions that the $\pi\Lambda$, $\pi\Sigma$ and $\overline{K}N$ intermediate states can be approximated by the Y* resonances and the KK intermediate states by a boson of strangeness 2 which we shall denote by D (*).

(1) W. B. FOWLER, R. W. BIRGE, P. EBERHARD, R. ELY, M. L. GOOD, W. M. POWELL and H. K. TICHO: *Phys. Rev. Lett.*, 6, 134 (1961).

(2) W. A. COOPER, H. COURANT, H. FILTHUTH, E. I. MALAMUD, A. MINGUZZI-RANZI, H. SCHNEIDER, A. M. SEGAR, G. A. SNOW, W. WILLIS, E. S. GELSEMA, J. C. KLUYVER, A. G. TENNER, K. BROWNING, I. S. HUGHES and R. TURNBULL: Proceedings of the 1962 International Conference on High-Energy Physics at CERN p. 198.

(3) G. M. PJERROU, D. J. PROWSE, P. SCHLEIN, W. E. SLATER, D. H. STORK and H. K. TICHO: Phys. Rev. Lett., 9, 114 (1962) and H. K. TICHO: Proceedings of the 1962 International Conference on High Energy Physics at CERN, p. 436.

(4) L. W. ALVAREZ, J. P. BURGE, R. KALBFLEISCH, J. BUTTON-SHAFER, F. T. SOLMITZ and M. L. STEVENSON: Proceedings of the 1962 International Conference on High Energy Physics at CERN, p. 433.

(⁵) L. BERTANZA, V. BRISSON, P. L. CONNOLY, E. C. HART, I. S. MITTRA, G. C. MONETI, R. R. RAU, N. P. SAMIOS, I. O. SKILLICORN, S. S. YAMAMOTO, M. GOLDBERG, L. GRAY, J. LEITNER, S. LICHTMAN and J. WESTGARD: Proceedings of the 1962 International Conference on High Energy Physics at CERN, p. 284, 437.

(⁶) The existence of such a particle has been proposed by a number of theorists and T. YAMANOUCHI (*Phys. Rev. Lett.*, **3**, 480 (1959)) presented experimental evidence for a D-particle of mass 720 MeV. Further search by Y. EISENBERG, M. FRIEDMANN, G. ALEXANDER and D. KESSLER: *Phys. Rev.*, **120**, 1021 (1960); V. COOK, D. KEEFE, L. T. KERTH, P. G. MURPHY, W. A. WENZEL and T. F. ZIPF: *Phys. Rev.*, **123**, 655 (1961) and B. A. NIKOL'SKH, V. L. SURKOVA, A. A. VARFOLOMEEV and M. M. SULKOVSKAYA: *Soviet Physics JEPT*, **15**, 631 (1962) has produced no evidence in support of such a particle. However, these experiments could only detect a D-particle of mass less than 780 MeV and any KK resonance would have been undetected.

[1222]

R. C. KING

The necessity of introducing such a particle must stand or fall by the requirement that our model should fit the experimental data.

In Section 2 the notation for the kinematics is established.

Since the spin of the Ξ -particle is not well determined we consider the two alternatives of spin $\frac{1}{2}$ and spin $\frac{3}{2}$ in Sections 3 and 4, respectively. We use a field-theoretical technique to describe the interactions of the particles and resonances with which we are concerned, making use of the Barita-Schwinger formalism (7.8) to describe particles of spin $\frac{3}{2}$. We consider all possible parity combinations. We calculate both the differential and the total cross-sections for process (1) at various energies and make a comparison with experimental data in Section 6 after inserting isotopic spin factors which are discussed in Section 5.

In Section 7 we discuss the consequence of our analysis as applied to the production of cascade particles in high-energy pion-proton and anti-protonproton collisions.

In Section 8 a summary of our conclusions is given.

2. – Kinematics.

Consider the production process

$$\overline{\mathbf{K}} + \mathcal{N} \to \Xi + \mathbf{K} \, .$$

Let q_1 and p_1 denote the 4-momenta of the incident \overline{K} and \mathcal{N} and q_2 and p_2 those of the outgoing K and Ξ , respectively. We define the invariants

$$s = (p_1 + q_1)^2 = (p_2 + q_2)^2,$$

$$t = (p_1 - p_2)^2 = (q_1 - q_2)^2,$$

$$u = (p_1 - q_2)^2 = (p_2 - q_1)^2.$$

In the centre-of-mass system of the s-channel, that is the channel in which s represents the total energy squared, we shall define our 4-momenta as follows

$$p_{1} = (\varepsilon_{1}, p), \qquad p_{2} = (\varepsilon_{2}, q),$$
$$q_{1} = (\omega_{1}, -p), \qquad q_{2} = (\omega_{2}, -q)$$

"(')"W. RARITA and J. SCHWINGER, Phys. Rev., 60, 61-(1941).

(8) H. UMEZAWA: Quantum Field Theory (Amsterdam, 1956).

 \mathbf{thus}

$$\begin{split} s &= (\varepsilon_1 + \omega_1)^2 = E^2 , \\ t &= m_N^2 + m_\Xi^2 - 2\varepsilon_1 \varepsilon_2 - 2pq \cos \vartheta , \\ u &= m_N + m_K^2 - 2\varepsilon_1 \omega_2 + 2pq \cos \vartheta , \end{split}$$

where we have defined the scattering angle ϑ to be the angle between the incident \overline{K} and the outgoing Ξ in the centre-of-mass system.

The centre-of-mass momenta and energies are given in terms of the invariants by

$$\begin{split} p^2 &= [(s - (m_{\mathcal{N}} + m_{\mathbf{k}})^2][s - (m_{\mathcal{N}} - m_{\mathbf{k}})^2] \frac{1}{4s} \,, \\ q^2 &= [s - (m_{\Xi} + m_{\mathbf{k}})^2][s - (m_{\Xi} - m_{\mathbf{k}})^2] \frac{1}{4s} \,, \\ \varepsilon_1 &= \frac{s + (m_{\mathcal{N}}^2 - m_{\mathbf{k}}^2)}{2\sqrt{s}} \,, \qquad \varepsilon_2 = \frac{s + (m_{\Xi}^2 - m_{\mathbf{k}}^2)}{2\sqrt{s}} \,, \\ \omega_1 &= \frac{s - (m_{\mathcal{N}}^2 - m_{\mathbf{k}}^2)}{2\sqrt{s}} \,, \qquad \omega_2 = \frac{s - (m_{\Xi}^2 - m_{\mathbf{k}}^2)}{2\sqrt{s}} \,. \end{split}$$

The quantum numbers associated with single-particle exchange in each of the channels are for the *s* channel B=1, S=-1, for the *u* channel B=1, S=-1, and for the *t* channel B=0, S=-2, where *B* and *S* are baryon number and strangeness respectively.

an di Kulono Ali sente sente s

3. – Formalism for Ξ spin $\frac{1}{2}$.

, and i

5781

Assuming that the cascade-particle, like the nucleon, has spin $\frac{1}{2}$ and the K-meson has spin zero we can write an effective Lagrangian describing our system of particles as follows:

$$\mathscr{L} = \mathscr{L}_{\mathbf{r}} + \mathscr{L}_{\mathbf{r}}.$$

 \mathscr{L}_{r} is the free Lagrangian of each particle and if the form factors at all vertices are approximated by constants we have an effective-interaction Lagrangian (°),

^(°) The form of the interaction Lagrangian we have adopted for coupling a spin $\frac{3}{2}$ field to a spin $\frac{1}{2}$ and a boson field is not the most general. This is because the subsidiary conditions on spin $\frac{3}{2}$ field *i.e.*, $\gamma_{\mu}\psi_{\mu}=0$, $\partial_{\mu}\psi_{\mu}=0$ do not apply to an intermediate state. For a discussion of this see Y. FUJH: Prog. Theor. Phys., 24, 1013 (1960). Our Lagrangian corresponds to the case when the spin $\frac{3}{2}$ state may be an external particle field.

R. C. KING

 \mathscr{L}_{I} , given by

 $\mathscr{L}_{I} = [g_{\mathcal{N}YK} \bar{\psi}_{\mathcal{N}} \Gamma_{1} \psi_{Y} \varphi_{K} + g_{\XiYK} \bar{\psi}_{\Xi} \Gamma_{2} \psi_{Y} \varphi_{\overline{K}} + g_{\mathcal{N}\XiD} \bar{\psi}_{\mathcal{N}} \Gamma_{3} \psi_{\Xi} \varphi_{D} + m_{K} g_{DKK} \varphi_{D} \varphi_{K} \varphi_{K} +$

$$+ g_{\mathcal{N} \equiv \mathbf{D}} \bar{\psi}_{\mathcal{N}} \gamma_{\mu} \Gamma_{\mathfrak{s}} \psi_{\Xi} \varphi_{\mathbf{D} \bullet \mu} + g_{\mathbf{D} \bullet \mathbf{K} \mathbf{K}} \varphi_{\mathbf{D} \bullet \mu} (\varphi_{\mathbf{K}} \partial_{\mu} \varphi_{\mathbf{K}} - \partial_{\mu} \varphi_{\mathbf{K}} \varphi_{\mathbf{K}}) + \\ + \frac{g_{\mathcal{N} \Upsilon \bullet \mathbf{K}}}{m_{\mathcal{N}}} \bar{\psi}_{\Upsilon \bullet \mu} \Gamma_{\mathfrak{s}} \psi_{\mathcal{N}} \partial_{\mu} \varphi_{\mathbf{K}} + \frac{g_{\Xi \Upsilon \bullet \mathbf{K}}}{m_{\Xi}} \bar{\psi}_{\Upsilon \bullet \mu} \Gamma_{\mathfrak{s}} \psi_{\Xi} \partial_{\mu} \varphi_{\mathbf{K}}] + \text{h.c.}$$

The fields $\psi_{\mathbf{Y}}$, $\psi_{\mathbf{Y}^*\mu}$, $\varphi_{\mathbf{D}}$ and $\varphi_{\mathbf{D}^*\mu}$ correspond to any particles having the following quantum numbers: $\mathbf{Y}: B = 1, S = 1, J = \frac{1}{2}; \mathbf{Y}^*: B = 1, S = -1, J = \frac{3}{2};$ D: $B = 0, S = -2, J = 0; D^*: B = 0, S = -2, J = 1$, where B, S, J are baryon number, strangeness and spin, respectively,

The Γ_j (j=1, 2, ..., 6) are I or γ_5 according to the parity of the particles involved.

With this interaction Lagrangian we have six pole terms to evaluate corresponding to Y exchange in the s and u channels, D and D* exchange in the t channel and Y* exchange in the s and u channels.

In general we may write our S-matrix as

(3.1)
$$S = I - i(2\pi)^4 \delta(p_1 + q_1 - p_2 - q_2)T.$$

Using this definition of the *T*-matrix, the differential cross-section in the centre-of-mass system for the production of Ξ in $\overline{K}\mathcal{N}$ collisions is given by

(3.2)
$$\frac{\mathrm{d}\sigma}{\mathrm{d}\Omega} = \frac{1}{(4\pi)^2} \frac{q}{4E^2 p} |T_{qp}|^2,$$

where the *T*-matrix element may quite generally be written in the form

(3.3)
$$T_{qp} = \overline{u}_{\Xi}(p_2) \Gamma^{\Xi}[-A + \frac{1}{2}(\gamma \cdot q_1 + \gamma \cdot q_2)B] \Gamma^{\mathcal{N}} u_{\mathcal{N}}(p_1)$$

Our normalization is such that

(3.4a) $\sum_{\text{spin}} u_{\mathcal{N}}(p_1) \overline{u}_{\mathcal{N}}(p_1) = (\gamma \cdot p_1 + m_{\mathcal{N}}),$ (3.4b) $\sum_{\text{spin}} u_{\Xi}(p_2) \overline{u}_{\Xi}(p_2) = (\gamma \cdot p_2 + m_{\Xi}).$

Averaging over initial spin states of nucleon and summing over the final spin states of the cascade we have

(3.5)
$$\frac{\mathrm{d}\sigma}{\mathrm{d}\Omega} = \frac{1}{(4\pi)^2} \frac{q}{4E^2 p} F,$$

[1224]

ايدين محمد م م اين محمد م

where

6

$$F = rac{1}{2} \sum_{\mathrm{spin}\,\mathcal{N}^{+}} \sum_{\mathrm{spin}\,\Xi} |T_{\mathrm{gp}}|^2$$
 .

Writing $T_{qp} = \overline{u}_{\Xi}(p_2) T \overline{u}_{\mathcal{N}}(p_1)$ we can split T up into contributions from each of the six pole terms we are considering $T = \sum_{j=1}^{6} T_j$. Now F is a sum of 6 terms corresponding to the pole terms taken separately and 15 terms corresponding to interference between different pole terms. In an obvious notation $F = \sum_{i=1}^{6} F_{ij}$, where

(3.6)
$$F_{ij} = \frac{1}{2} \sum \sum \overline{u}_{\Xi}(p_2) T_i u_{\mathcal{N}}(p_1) \overline{u}_{\mathcal{N}}(p_1) \overline{T}_j u_{\Xi}(p_2) .$$

Assuming $\Gamma_{i,i}^{\mathcal{N}} = I$ we can express F_{ii} in terms of our invariants s, t and u as follows:

$$(3.7) F_{ij} = A_i A_j^+ [-t + (m_N + m_{\Xi})^2] + B_i B_j^+ \{ \frac{1}{4} (s - u)^2 - \frac{1}{4} [-t + (m_N - m_{\Xi})^2] \cdot [-t + 4m_{\mathbb{K}}^2] \} - (A_i B_j^+ + A_j^+ B_i) \frac{1}{2} (s - u) (m_N + m_{\Xi}) .$$

The six terms F_{ii} can be readily evaluated for all parity combinations by making use of the following observations (10). The general form of T_{qp} as given by eq. (3.3) is arrived at by making use of the fact that the nucleon and cascade particle wave-functions satisfy the Dirac equations $(\gamma \cdot p_1 - m_N) \cdot u_N(p_1) = 0$, $(\gamma \cdot p_2 - m_{\Xi}) u_{\Xi}(p_2) = 0$. In evaluating A_i and B_i between spinors we make the identifications $\gamma \cdot p_1 = \pm m_N$, $\gamma \cdot p_2 = \pm m_{\Xi}$ according as $\Gamma^N = \frac{I}{\gamma_5}$, $\Gamma^{\Xi} = \frac{I}{\gamma_5}$ respectively. Writing $P_i = -A_i + \frac{1}{2}(\gamma; q_1 + \gamma \cdot q_2)B_i$, and $P'_i = -A'_i + \frac{1}{2}(\gamma \cdot q_1 + \gamma \cdot q_2)B'_i$ and $P'_i = -A'_i + \frac{1}{2}(\gamma \cdot q_1 + \gamma \cdot q_2)B'_i$ we have

(3.8)
$$F'_{ii} = \frac{1}{2} \operatorname{Tr} \left\{ P_i \Gamma_i^{\mathcal{N}} (\gamma \cdot p_1 + m_{\mathcal{N}}) \Gamma_i^{\mathcal{N}} P'_i \Gamma_i^{\Xi} (\gamma \cdot p_2 + m_{\Xi}) \Gamma_i^{\Xi} \right\}.$$

Since $m_{\mathcal{N}}$ and m_{Ξ} only enter the expressions for A_i and B_i through the above identifications, it is clear from eq. (3.8) that changing $\Gamma_i^{\mathcal{N},\Xi}$ from I to γ_5 is equivalent to replacing $m_{\mathcal{N},\Xi}$ by $-m_{\mathcal{N},\Xi}$ throughout F_{ii} . We make use of this in evaluating the various contributions to the differential cross-section of each of the pole terms taken separately for all possible parity combinations of the particles involved. For the interference terms no such simple rule is valid.

For the pole terms 1, 2, ..., 6 the propagator functions $T_i(k)$, i = 1, 2, ..., 6

(10) A. SALAM: Nucl. Phys., 5, 687 (1958).

5783

[1225],

[1226]

apart from coupling constants are given by

$$\begin{array}{ll} (3.9a) \quad T_{1}(k) = \frac{\gamma \cdot k + m_{\mathrm{Y}}}{k^{2} - m_{\mathrm{Y}}^{2}} & \text{where } k = (p_{1} + q_{1}), \ k^{2} = s, \\ (3.9b) \quad T_{2}(k) = T_{1}(k) & \text{where } k = (p_{1} - q_{2}), \ k^{2} = u, \\ (3.9c) \quad T_{3}(k) = \frac{m_{\mathrm{K}}}{k^{2} - m_{\mathrm{D}}^{2}}, & \text{where } k = (p_{1} - p_{2}), \ k^{2} = t, \\ (3.9d) \quad T_{4}(k) = \gamma_{\mu} \left(g_{\mu\nu} - \frac{k_{\mu}k_{x}}{m_{\mathrm{D}}^{2}} \right) (q_{1\nu} + q_{2\nu}) \frac{1}{k^{2} - m_{\mathrm{D}}^{2}}, & \text{where } k = (p_{1} - p_{2}), \ k^{2} = t, \\ (3.9e) \quad T_{5}(k) = \left\{ \frac{\gamma \cdot k + m_{\mathrm{Y}}}{k^{2} - m_{\mathrm{Y}}^{2}} \left[q_{2} \cdot q_{1} - \frac{1}{3} \gamma \cdot q_{2} k \cdot q_{1} - \frac{1}{3m_{\mathrm{Y}}} \left(\gamma \cdot q_{2} k \cdot q_{1} - k \cdot q_{2} \gamma \cdot q_{1} \right) - \right. \\ \left. - \frac{2}{3m_{\mathrm{Y}}^{2}} k \cdot q_{2} k \cdot q_{1} \right] - \frac{1}{3m_{\mathrm{Y}}^{2}} \left[(\gamma \cdot q_{2} k \cdot q_{1} - k \cdot q_{2} \gamma \cdot q_{1}) + (\gamma \cdot k + m_{\mathrm{Y}}) \gamma \cdot q_{2} \gamma \cdot q_{1} \right] \right\} \frac{1}{(m_{\mathrm{N}} m_{\mathrm{E}})}, \\ \left. \text{where } k = (p_{1} - q_{2}), \ k^{2} = s. \\ (3.9f) \quad T_{4}(k) = T_{5}(k) & \text{where } k = (p_{1} - p_{2}), \ k^{2} = u. \end{array} \right\}$$

It is interesting to note that we have a crossing symmetry (11) whereby,

$$(3.10a) A_{1,5}(s, t, u) = A_{2,6}(u, t, s),$$

$$(3.10b) B_{15}(s, t, u) = -B_{25}(u, t, s) .$$

In terms of invariants

$$(3.11a) \quad A_{1} = -g_{\mathcal{N}YK}g_{\XiYK}[\frac{1}{2}(m_{\mathcal{N}} + m_{\Xi}) + m_{Y}]\frac{1}{s - m_{Y}^{2}}, \quad B_{1} = g_{\mathcal{N}YK}g_{\XiYK}\frac{1}{s - m_{Y}^{2}},$$

$$(3.11b \quad A_{3} = -g_{\mathcal{N}\Xi D}g_{DKK}\frac{m_{K}}{t - m_{D}^{2}}, \qquad B_{3} = 0,$$

(3.11c) $A_4 = 0$, $B_4 = -g_{\mathcal{N} \equiv D} g_{DKK} \frac{2}{t - m_{D^*}^2}$

(3.11d)
$$\begin{cases} A_5 = g_{\mathcal{N} \mathbf{Y}^* \mathbf{K}} g_{\Xi \mathbf{Y}^* \mathbf{K}} \frac{a_5(s, t, u)}{m_{\mathcal{N}} m_{\Xi}} \frac{1}{(s - m_{\mathbf{Y}^*}^s)}, \\ B_5 = g_{\mathcal{N} \mathbf{Y}^* \mathbf{K}} g_{\Xi \mathbf{Y}^* \mathbf{K}} \frac{b_5(s, t, u)}{m_{\mathcal{N}} m_{\Xi}} \frac{1}{(u - m_{\mathbf{Y}^*}^2)}, \end{cases}$$

(11) A. RAMAKRISHNAN, R. THUNGA, T. V. RADHA, G. BHANATHI and S. INDU-MATHI: Nucl. Phys., 37, 585 (1962).

PRODUCTION OF CASCADE PARTICLES

[1227]

where

$$\begin{aligned} (3.11e) & a_{5}(s,t,u) = -\frac{1}{2}(m_{\Xi} - m_{\mathcal{N}}) \cdot \\ & \cdot \left\{ \frac{s + m_{\Xi}m_{Y^{*}}}{3m_{Y^{*}}^{2}} \left[s + m_{\mathbb{K}}^{2} - \frac{1}{2}(m_{\Xi}^{2} + m_{\mathcal{N}}^{2}) \right] - \frac{sm_{\mathbb{K}}^{2}}{3m_{Y^{*}}^{2}} \right\} - \left[\frac{1}{2}(m_{\Xi} + m_{\mathcal{N}}) + m_{Y^{*}} \right] \cdot \\ & \cdot \left\{ \frac{1}{2}(-t + 2m_{\mathbb{K}}^{2}) - \frac{2}{3m_{Y^{*}}^{2}} \frac{1}{4} \left(s - m_{\Xi}^{2} + m_{\mathbb{K}}^{2} \right) (s - m_{\mathcal{N}}^{2} + m_{\mathbb{K}}^{2}) \right\} - \left[s - \frac{1}{2}(m_{\mathcal{N}}^{2} + m_{\Xi}^{2}) \right] \cdot \\ & \cdot \left\{ \frac{1}{3m_{Y^{*}}} \frac{1}{2} (s - m_{\Xi}^{2} + m_{\mathbb{K}}^{2}) - \frac{s(m_{\Xi} + m_{Y^{*}})}{3m_{Y^{*}}^{2}} \right\} + \frac{m_{\Xi}m_{\mathbb{K}}^{2}}{3m_{Y^{*}}^{2}} \frac{1}{2} \left(s - m_{\mathcal{N}}^{2} + m_{\mathbb{K}}^{2} \right) , \end{aligned}$$

and

5785

$$(3.11f) \qquad b_{5}(s, t, u) = \frac{1}{2}(-t + 2m_{K}^{2}) - \frac{2}{3m_{Y^{*}}^{2}} \frac{1}{4}(s - m_{\Xi}^{2} + m_{K}^{2})(s - m_{N}^{2} + m_{K}^{2}) - \frac{1}{2}(m_{\Xi}^{2} - m_{N}^{2})\frac{1}{3m_{Y^{*}}^{2}}(s + m_{\Xi}m_{Y^{*}}) - \frac{sm_{K}^{2}}{3m_{Y^{*}}^{2}} - \frac{1}{2}(m_{\Xi} + m_{N})\frac{1}{3m_{Y^{*}}}(s - m_{\Xi}^{2} + m_{K}^{2}) - (m_{\Xi} + m_{N})(m_{\Xi} + m_{Y^{*}})\frac{s}{3m_{Y^{*}}^{2}}.$$

Making use of eqs. (3.5), (3.7) and the above expressions for A_i and B_i , we can calculate the differential cross-section for cascade particle production.

4. – Formalism for Ξ spin $\frac{3}{2}$.

We make use of the Rarita-Schwinger formalism for a particle of spin $\frac{3}{2}$ and represent such a particle by a wave function $\psi_{\mu}(x)$ which satisfies the wave equations

$$(-i\gamma\cdot\partial+m)\psi_{\mu}(x)=0$$
 $\gamma_{\mu}\psi_{\mu}(x)=0$

and the subsidiary condition $\partial_{\mu}\psi_{\mu}(x) = 0$.

. The wave function $\psi_{\mu}(x)$ is a 4-vector each component of which is a spinor with 4 components.

The effective Lagrangian is given by

$$\begin{split} \mathscr{L}_{I} &= \left[g_{\mathcal{N}\,\mathbf{Y}\,\mathbf{K}}\,\bar{\psi}_{\mathcal{N}}\,\Gamma_{1}\psi_{\mathbf{Y}}\varphi_{\mathbf{K}} + \frac{g_{\Xi\,\mathbf{Y}\,\mathbf{K}}}{m_{\Xi}}\,\bar{\psi}_{\Xi\mu}\Gamma_{2}\psi_{\mathcal{N}}\,\partial_{\mu}\varphi_{\mathbf{K}} + \frac{g_{\mathcal{N}\Xi\mathrm{D}}}{m_{\Xi}}\,\bar{\psi}_{\Xi\mu}\Gamma_{3}\psi_{\mathcal{N}}\,\partial_{\mu}\varphi_{\mathbf{D}} + \right. \\ &+ m_{\mathbf{K}}g_{\mathbf{D}\mathbf{K}\mathbf{K}}\varphi_{\mathbf{R}}\varphi_{\mathbf{D}}\varphi_{\mathbf{K}} + g_{\mathcal{N}\Xi\mathrm{D}^{*}}\bar{\psi}_{\Xi\mu}\Gamma_{4}\psi_{\mathcal{N}}\varphi_{\mathbf{D}^{*}\mu} + g_{\mathbf{D}^{*}\mathbf{K}\mathbf{K}}\varphi_{\mathbf{D}^{\bullet}\mu}(\varphi_{\mathbf{K}}\,\partial_{\mu}\varphi_{\mathbf{K}} - \partial_{\mu}\varphi_{\mathbf{K}}\varphi_{\mathbf{K}}) + \\ &+ \frac{g_{\mathcal{N}\,\mathbf{Y}^{*}\mathbf{K}}}{m_{\mathcal{N}}}\,\bar{\psi}_{\mathbf{Y}^{*}\mu}\Gamma_{5}\psi_{\mathcal{N}}\,\partial_{\mu}\varphi_{\mathbf{K}} + g_{\Xi\mathbf{Y}^{*}\mathbf{K}}\,\bar{\psi}_{\Xi\mu}\Gamma_{6}\psi_{\mathbf{Y}^{*}\mu}\varphi_{\mathbf{K}} \right] + \,\mathbf{h.~c.} \end{split}$$

As before Γ_i (j = 1, ..., 6) are I or γ_5 according to the parity of the particles involved. We use this Lagrangian to evaluate the six pole terms.

Once again we have

(4.1)
$$\frac{\mathrm{d}\sigma}{\mathrm{d}\Omega} = \frac{1}{(4\pi)^2} \frac{q}{4E^2 p} |T_{qp}|^2,$$

where we can now write the T matrix element in the general form

(4.2)
$$T_{qp} = q_{1\mu} \overline{U}_{\Xi\mu}(p_2) \Gamma^{\Xi} \left[-A + \frac{1}{2} (\gamma \cdot q_1 + \gamma \cdot q_2) B \right] \Gamma^{\mathcal{N}} u_{\mathcal{N}}(p_1) + q_{2\mu} \overline{U}_{\Xi\mu}(p_2) \Gamma^{\Xi} \left[-C + \frac{1}{2} (\gamma \cdot q_1 + \gamma \cdot q_2) D \right] \Gamma^{\mathcal{N}} u_{\mathcal{N}}(p_1) .$$

Our normalization is such that

(4.3a)
$$\sum_{s \neq in} u_{\mathcal{N}}(p_1) \overline{u}_{\mathcal{N}}(p_1) = (\gamma \cdot p_1 + m_{\mathcal{N}})$$

(4.3b)
$$\sum_{\text{spin}} U_{\Xi\mu}(p_2) \overline{U}_{\Xi\nu}(p_2) = \theta_{\mu\nu}(\gamma \cdot p_2 + m_{\Xi}) = (\gamma \cdot p_2 + m_{\Xi})\theta_{\mu\nu},$$

where (12.13)

$$\theta_{\mu\nu} = g_{\mu\nu} - \frac{1}{3} \gamma_{\mu} \gamma_{\nu} - \frac{1}{3p_2^2} (\gamma \cdot p_2 \gamma_{\mu} p_{2\nu} + p_{2\mu} \gamma_{\nu} \gamma \cdot p_2) .$$

Writing $T_{ap} = \overline{U}_{\Xi\mu}(p_2)T_{\mu}u_{\mathcal{N}}(p_1)$ we can split T up into contributions from each of the six pole terms we are considering $T_{\mu} = \sum_{i=1}^{6} T_{\mu i}$.

As in Section 3 we have

(4.4)
$$\frac{\mathrm{d}\sigma}{\mathrm{d}\Omega} = \frac{1}{(4\pi)^2} \frac{q}{4E^2 p} F,$$

where

$$F = rac{1}{2} \sum_{ ext{spin}\mathcal{N}} \sum_{ ext{spin}\Xi} |T_{qp}|^2 = \sum_{i,j} F_{ij}$$

and

(4.5)
$$F_{ij} = \frac{1}{2} \sum \sum \left\{ \overline{U}_{\Xi\mu}(p_2) T_{i\mu} \, u_{\mathcal{N}}(p_1) \, \overline{u}_{\mathcal{N}}(p_1) \overline{T}_{j\nu} \, U_{\Xi\nu}(p_2) \right\} \,.$$

Assuming $\Gamma_{i,j}^{\mathcal{N},\Xi} = I$ we can express F_{ij} as follows

$$(4.6) F_{ij} = \frac{1}{2} \operatorname{Tr} \left\{ (-a_{i\mu} + \gamma \cdot Q \, b_{i\mu}) (\gamma \cdot p_1 + m_{\mathcal{N}}) (-a_{j\nu}^+ + \gamma \cdot Q b_{j\nu}^+) (\gamma \cdot p_2 + m_{\Xi}) \theta_{\nu\mu} \right\},$$

where $Q = \frac{1}{2} (q_1 + q_2), \ a_i = q_1 A_i + q_2 C_i,$ and $b_i = q_1 B_i + q_2 D_i.$

[1228]

⁽¹²⁾ R. BEHRENDS and C. FRONSDAL: Phys. Rev., 106, 345 (1957).

⁽¹³⁾ C. FRONSDAL: Suppl. Nuovo Cimento, 9, 416 (1958).

For the pole terms taken separately we have the same rule as in Section **3** by which we relate the sign of the mass of the external spinor particle in the expression for F_{ii} to the relative parity of the particles coupled at the vertices of the corresponding Feynman diagram.

If we now consider the case i = j, $\Gamma_i^{\mathcal{N},\Xi} = I$ it can be shown that

$$\begin{aligned} (4.7) \qquad F_{ii} &= (p_1 \cdot p_2 + m_{\mathcal{N}} m_{\Xi}) \left[\frac{4}{3} a_i^2 - \frac{4}{3m_{\Xi}^2} (a_i \cdot p_2)^2 \right] + \\ &+ \left[2p_1 \cdot Qp_2 \cdot Q - Q^2 \left(p_1 \cdot p_2 - m_{\mathcal{N}} m_{\Xi} \right) \right] \left[\frac{4}{3} b_i^2 - \frac{3}{4m_{\Xi}^2} (b_i \cdot p_2)^2 \right] - \\ &- \left[m_{\Xi} p_1 \cdot Q + m_{\mathcal{N}} \cdot p_2 \cdot Q \right] \left[\frac{2}{3} a_i b_i - \frac{2}{3m_{\Xi}^2} a_i \cdot p_2 b_i \cdot p_2 \right] + \\ &+ \frac{1}{3m_{\Xi}} p_2 \cdot p_2 (a_i \cdot p_1 b_i \cdot Q - a_i \cdot Q b_i \cdot p_1) + \frac{1}{3m_{\Xi}} p_2 \cdot p_1 (a_i \cdot Q b_i \cdot p_2 - a_i \cdot p_2 b_i \cdot Q) + \\ &+ \frac{1}{3m_{\Xi}} p_2 \cdot Q (a_i \cdot p_2 b_i \cdot p_1 - a_i \cdot p_1 b_i \cdot p_2) \,. \end{aligned}$$

Apart from coupling constants the propagator functions $T_{i\mu}$ (i=1, 2, ..., 6) for each of our pole terms are given by

(4.8a) $T_{1\mu} = \frac{q_{2\mu}}{m_{\Xi}} \frac{\gamma \cdot k + m_{Y}}{k^{2} - m_{Y}^{2}},$ where $k = (p_{1} + q_{1}), k^{2} = s,$

(4.8b)
$$T_{2\mu} = \frac{q_{1\mu}}{m_{\Xi}} \frac{\gamma \cdot k + m_{Y}}{k^2 - m_{Y}^2},$$
 where $k = (p_1 - q_2), \ k^2 = u,$

(4.8c)
$$T_{3\mu} = \frac{m_{\rm E}}{m_{\Xi}} \frac{k_{\mu}}{k^2 - m_D^2}$$
, where $k = (p_1 - p_2), \ k^2 = t$,

(4.8d)
$$T_{4\mu} = \left(g_{\mu\nu} - \frac{k_{\mu}k_{\nu}}{m_{D^*}^2}\right) \frac{q_{1\nu} + q_{2\nu}}{(k^2 - m_{D^*}^2)}, \quad \text{where } k = (p_1 - p_2), \ k^2 = t,$$

(4.8e)
$$T_{5\mu} = \left\{ \begin{pmatrix} \gamma \cdot k + m_{\Upsilon^{\bullet}} \\ k^2 - m_{\Upsilon^{\bullet}} \end{pmatrix} \left[q_{1\mu} - \frac{1}{3} \gamma_{\mu} \gamma \cdot q_1 - \frac{1}{3m_{\Upsilon^{\bullet}}} (\gamma_{\mu} k \cdot q_1 - k_{\mu} \gamma \cdot q_1) - \frac{2}{3m_{\Upsilon^{\bullet}}^2} k_{\mu} k \cdot q_1 \right] - \frac{1}{3m_{\Upsilon^{\bullet}}^2} \left[(\gamma_{\mu} k \cdot q_1 - k_{\mu} \gamma \cdot q_1) + (\gamma \cdot k + m_{\Upsilon^{\bullet}}) \gamma_{\mu} \gamma \cdot q_1 \right] \right\} \frac{1}{m_{\mathcal{N}}},$$

where $k = (p_1 + q_1), k^2 = s$,

(4.8f)
$$T_{6\mu}(k, q_1, q_2) = T_{5\mu}(k, -q_2, -q_1)$$
, where $k = (p_1 - q_2), k^2 = u$.

We now have the following crossing symmetry relations

$$(4.9a) A_{1,2,5,6}(s, t, u) = -C_{2,1,6,5}(u, t, s),$$

$$(4.9b) B_{1,2,5,6}(s, t, u) = + D_{2,1,6,5}(u, t, s).$$

R. C. KING

In terms of invariants

[1230]

$$\begin{array}{ll} (4.10a) & A_{1} = B_{1} = 0 , & C_{1} = - g_{\mathcal{N}\Upsilon K} g_{\Xi\Upsilon K} \frac{\left[\frac{1}{2}(m_{\mathcal{N}} + m_{\Xi}) + m_{\Upsilon}\right]}{m_{\Xi}} \frac{1}{(s - m_{\Upsilon}^{2})} \\ & D_{1} = g_{\mathcal{N}\Upsilon K} g_{\Xi\Upsilon K} \frac{1}{m_{\Xi}} \frac{1}{(s - m_{\Upsilon}^{2})} , \\ (4.10b) & B_{3} = D_{3} = 0 , & A_{3} = g_{\mathcal{N}\Xi D} g_{DKK} \frac{m_{K}}{m_{\Xi}} \frac{1}{(t - m_{D}^{2})} , & C_{3} = -A_{3} , \\ (4.10c) & B_{4} = D_{4} = 0 , & A_{4} = -g_{\mathcal{N}\Xi D} g_{DKK} \frac{1}{(t - m_{D}^{2})} , & C_{4} = A_{4} , \\ (4.10c) & B_{4} = D_{4} = 0 , & A_{4} = -g_{\mathcal{N}\Xi D} g_{DKK} \frac{1}{(t - m_{D}^{2})} , & C_{4} = A_{4} , \\ B_{5} = -g_{\mathcal{N}\Upsilon * K} g_{\Xi\Upsilon * K} \frac{1}{m_{\mathcal{N}}} \frac{1}{(s - m_{Z}^{2})} , & C_{4} = A_{4} , \\ B_{5} = g_{\mathcal{N}\Upsilon * K} g_{\Xi\Upsilon * K} \frac{1}{m_{\mathcal{N}}} \frac{1}{(s - m_{Z}^{2})} , & C_{5} = g_{\mathcal{N}\Upsilon * K} g_{\Xi\Upsilon * K} \left\{ -\frac{2}{3m_{X}^{2}} \frac{1}{2} (s - m_{\mathcal{N}}^{2} + m_{K}^{2}) \left[\frac{1}{2} (m_{\Xi} + m_{\mathcal{N}}) + 2m_{X^{2}} \right] - \frac{1}{2} (m_{\Xi} - m_{\mathcal{N}}) \frac{(s - m_{X} * m_{\Xi})}{3m_{X^{2}}^{2}} + \frac{1}{3m_{Y^{2}}} [s - \frac{1}{2} (m_{\mathcal{N}}^{2} + m_{\Xi}^{2})] \right\} \frac{1}{m_{\mathcal{N}}} \frac{1}{(s - m_{X}^{2})} , \\ D_{5} = g_{\mathcal{N}\Upsilon * K} g_{\Xi\Upsilon * K} \left\{ -\frac{(s + m_{\mathcal{N}} m_{Y^{*}})}{3m_{X^{*}}^{2}} - \frac{2}{3m_{X}^{2}} \frac{1}{2} (s - m_{\mathcal{N}}^{2} + m_{K}^{2}) \right\} \frac{1}{m_{\mathcal{N}}} \frac{1}{(s - m_{Y^{*}}^{2})} . \end{array}$$

In terms of the above variables

$$\begin{array}{ll} (4.11) \quad F_{ii} = \left[-t + (m_{\mathcal{N}} + m_{\Xi})^{2}\right] \cdot \\ \cdot \frac{2}{3} \left\{ (A_{i} - C_{i})^{2} m_{\mathbb{K}}^{2} + A_{i} C_{i} (-t + 4 m_{\mathbb{K}}^{2}) - \frac{1}{m_{\Xi}^{2}} \left[\frac{1}{2} (m_{\Xi}^{2} + m_{\mathbb{K}}^{2}) (A_{i} - C_{i}) - \frac{1}{2} (A_{i} u - C_{i} s) \right]^{2} \right\} + \\ + \left\{ \frac{1}{4} (s - u)^{2} - \frac{1}{4} (-t + 4 m_{\mathbb{K}}^{2}) [-t + (m_{\mathcal{N}} - m_{\Xi})^{2}] \right\} \frac{2}{3} \left\{ (B_{i} - D_{i})^{2} m_{\mathbb{K}}^{2} + B_{i} D_{i} (-t + 4 m_{\mathbb{K}}^{2}) - \\ - \frac{1}{m_{\Xi}^{2}} \left[\frac{1}{2} (m_{\Xi}^{2} + m_{\mathbb{K}}^{2}) (B_{i} - D_{i}) - \frac{1}{2} (B_{i} u - D_{i} s) \right]^{2} \right\} - \\ - (m_{\Xi} + m_{\mathcal{N}}) (s - u) \frac{2}{3} \left\{ (A_{i} - C_{i}) (B_{i} - D_{i}) m_{\mathbb{K}}^{2} + (A_{i} D_{i} + B_{i} C_{i}) \frac{1}{2} (-t + 4 m_{\mathbb{K}}^{2}) - \\ - \frac{1}{m_{\Xi}^{2}} \left[\frac{1}{2} (m_{\Xi}^{2} + m_{\mathbb{K}}^{2}) (A_{i} - C_{i}) - \frac{1}{2} (A_{i} u - C_{i} s) \right] \left[\frac{1}{2} (m_{\Xi}^{2} + m_{\mathbb{K}}^{2}) (B_{i} - D_{i}) - \frac{1}{2} (B_{i} u - D_{i} s) \right] \right\} - \\ - \frac{4}{3m_{\Xi}} (B_{i} C_{i} - A_{i} D_{i}) \left\{ \frac{1}{16} (s - u)^{2} t + \frac{1}{16} (-t + 4 m_{\mathbb{K}}^{2}) \cdot \\ \cdot [-t + (m_{\mathcal{N}} + m_{\Xi})^{2}] [-t + (m_{\mathcal{N}} - m_{\Xi})^{2}] \right\} . \end{array}$$

Using this expression and eq. (4.6) we can calculate the differential crosssection due to the pole terms taken separately.

5. – Isotopic spin analysis.

To complete our analysis of the single-particle-exchange terms that we have discussed in Sections 3 and 4 we must insert the appropriate isotopic-spin factors at each vertex.

For the process

$$K^- + p \rightarrow K^+ + \Xi^-$$

the minimum values of isospin for particles exchanged in the s, u and t channels are 0, 0 and 1, respectively. Hence our comparison with experimental data for the reaction (1) will only yield information about a boson of strangeness 2 and isospin 1. We can make no inferences about a possible D-boson with zero isospin until experimental data for the processes

$$egin{array}{lll} \mathrm{K}^- + \mathrm{p} &
ightarrow \mathrm{K}^0 + \Xi^0 \,, \ \mathrm{K}^- + \mathrm{n} &
ightarrow \mathrm{K}^0 + \Xi^- \,, \end{array}$$

become available.

5789

The definition of the coupling constants is to a certain extent arbitrary but we have taken them so that in isospin space we can write our rotationally invariant Lagrangian in the following form

$$\begin{split} \mathscr{L} &= \{g_{\mathcal{N} \Xi D_{0}}(\bar{p} \, \bar{\Xi}^{0} D_{0}^{+} + \bar{n} \, \bar{\Xi}^{-} D_{0}^{+}) + \\ &+ g_{\mathcal{N} \Xi D_{1}}(\sqrt{2} \, \bar{p} \, \bar{\Xi}^{-} D_{1}^{++} + \sqrt{2} \bar{n} \, \bar{\Xi}^{0} D_{1}^{0} + \bar{p} \, \bar{\Xi}^{0} D_{1}^{+} - \bar{n} \, \bar{\Xi}^{-} D_{1}^{+}) + \\ &+ g_{\bar{\kappa} \kappa D_{0}}(\bar{K}^{0} K^{+} D_{0}^{-} + \bar{K}^{-} K^{0} D_{0}^{-}) + \\ &+ g_{\bar{\kappa} \kappa D_{1}}(\sqrt{2} \, \bar{K}^{0} K^{0} D_{1}^{0} + \sqrt{2} \, \bar{K}^{-} K^{+} D_{1}^{--} + \bar{K}^{-} K^{+} D^{-} - \bar{K}^{-} K^{0} D^{-}) + \\ &+ g_{\mathcal{N} Y_{0} \kappa}(\bar{p} K^{+} Y_{0}^{0} + \bar{n} K^{0} Y_{0}^{0}) + \\ &+ g_{\mathcal{N} Y_{0} \kappa}(\sqrt{2} \, \bar{p} K^{0} Y_{1}^{+} + \sqrt{2} \, \bar{n} K^{+} Y_{1}^{-} + \bar{p} K^{+} Y_{1}^{0} - \bar{n} K^{0} Y_{1}^{0}) + \\ &+ g_{\Xi Y_{0} \kappa}(\bar{Z}^{0} K^{0} Y_{0}^{0} + \bar{\Xi}^{-} K^{-} Y_{0}^{0}) + \\ &+ g_{\Xi Y_{1} \kappa}(\sqrt{2} \, \bar{\Xi}^{0} K^{-} Y_{1}^{+} + \sqrt{2} \, \bar{\Xi}^{-} K^{0} Y_{1}^{-} + \bar{\Xi}^{0} K^{0} Y_{1}^{0} - \bar{\Xi}^{-} K^{-} Y_{1}^{0})\} + \mathrm{h.~c.} \end{split}$$

where D_0 , D_1 (Y_0 , Y_1) denote bosons (fermions) of strangeness -2 (-1) and isotopic spin 0, 1 (0, 1), respectively.

The fermion particles and resonances having the appropriate quantum numbers can be listed as

$$I = 0 \quad \Lambda \quad (\text{mass } 1.115 \text{ GeV}) \quad \Upsilon_0^* \ (1.405, \ 1.520, \ 1.815),$$
$$I = 1 \quad \Sigma \quad (\text{mass } 1.189 \text{ GeV}) \quad \Upsilon_1^* \ (1.385, \ 1.685).$$

If we invoke group theory and assume that the strong interactions are invariant under SU_3 then the D₀ meson belongs to the representation 10 and the D₁ meson to the representation 27. In the octet (¹⁴⁻¹⁶) model of SU_3 the pseudoscalar K-meson can be coupled to the baryons by D or F type couplings or an arbitrary mixing of the two.

For D type couplings

$$-\frac{1}{\sqrt{3}}g_{\mathrm{NAK}} = g_{\mathrm{NEK}} = -\frac{1}{\sqrt{3}}g_{\mathrm{EAK}} = -g_{\mathrm{EEK}} \,.$$

For F type couplings

$$-\sqrt{3}g_{_{\mathcal{N}\Lambda\mathbf{K}}}=-g_{_{\mathcal{N}\Sigma\mathbf{K}}}=\sqrt{3}g_{_{\Xi\Lambda\mathbf{K}}}=-g_{_{\Xi\Sigma\mathbf{K}}}\,.$$

The Sakata model gives no relations similar to the above since the Λ , Σ and Ξ particles belong to different representations of the unitary group.

Without any group-theoretic model all the coupling constants are independent of each other.

6. - Results and comparison with experiment.

Using the formalism of Sections 3 and 4 we have calculated the contribution to both the total and differential cross-sections of each of our 6 pole terms taken separately. We have used the mass values $m_N = 0.938$, $m_{\Xi} = 1.320$, $m_{K} = 0.494$ GeV and considered the case $m_{D} = m_{D^*} = 0.720$, 1.000, 1.440; $m_{Y} = 1.115$, 1.189; $m_{Y^*} = 1.385$ GeV. Calculations have been carried out for $P_{L} = 1.2$, 1.4, 1.6, ..., 3.0 GeV/c for all possible parity combinations.

We consider the two cases of Ξ having a) spin $\frac{3}{2}$, b) spin $\frac{1}{2}$ and in the latter case we discuss an interference effect between Λ and Σ pole terms.

a) Our results indicate that the data cannot be fitted in any way under the assumption of spin $\frac{3}{2}$ for the cascade particle since none of the terms we have calculated gives a large forward peak. Typical angular distributions are

(14) Y. NE'EMAN: Nucl. Phys., 26, 222 (1961).

(¹⁵) M. GELL-MANN: The eight-fold way: a theory of strong interaction symmetry, California Institute of Technology Synchroton Laboratory Report CSTL-20 (1961) and Phys. Rev., **125**, 1067 (1962).

(16) J. J. SAKURAI: New mesons and resonances in strong interaction physicstheoretical. To be published in the Proceedings of the International School of Physics « Enrico Fermi » (Villa Monastero, Varenna, Como).

PRODUCTION 'OF CASCADE PARTICLES

shown in Fig. 1 for exchange of a Λ particle in the *u* channel at $P_{\rm L}=1.8$ GeV/c. The rather obvious fact that kinematic factors in our spin $\frac{3}{2}$ projection operator give total cross-sections which increase rapidly and continuously with energy is additional evidence for the conclusion that the cascade particle is not a



Fig. 1. – Contribution to the differential cross-section for process (1) due to exchange of a Y-particle (mass 1115 MeV, spin $\frac{1}{2}$) in the *u* channel at $P_{\rm L} = 1.8$ GeV/c, assuming the Ξ -particle has spin $\frac{3}{2}$. Curves *a*), *b*), *c*) and *d*) correspond to the parity combinations even even, odd even, even odd and odd odd for P(KYN) and $P(KY\Xi)$, respectively. The normalization is arbitrary. The histogram gives the experimental data of ref. (³).

spin $\frac{3}{2}$ particle satisfying the Rarita-Schwinger formalism. The total crosssection for cascade particle production is found experimentally to decrease with energy above $P_{\rm L} = 1.6 \ {\rm GeV/c}$ as shown in Fig. 2.

N.





Fig. 2. – Variation of the total cross-section for process (1) with $P_{\rm L}$ due to exchange of a D-particle (mass 1000 MeV) in the *t* channel and of a Y-particle (mass 1115 MeV) in the *u* channel assuming the Ξ -particle has spin $\frac{1}{2}$. Curves *a*), *b*), *c*) and *d*) correspond to the similarly labelled curves of Fig. 5 and 6. Curves *e*) and *f*) correspond to the cases of D spin 0, $P(\mathcal{N}\Xi D)$ even and D spin 1, $P(\mathcal{N}\Xi D)$ odd, respectively. Curve *g*) gives the result of combining the curves *d*) and *e*). The experimental data are that given in ref. (1-5).

b) Since we define the scattering angle to be the angle between the incident K⁻-meson and the outgoing Ξ^- -particle we can make the general comment that poles in the *u* and *t* channels lead to forward and backward peaking, respectively. We find that exchange of a spin 1 D-particle in the *t* channel gives a very sharp backward peak for both parity cases whilst exchange of a spin 0 D-particle gives a smaller backward peak for even $P(DN\Xi)$ and a fairly uniform angular distribution for odd $P(DN\Xi)$. Decreasing the mass of

15

the exchanged particle gives sharper peaking in all cases. Typical angular distributions are shown in Figs. 3 and 4 for $m_{\rm D} = 1.000$ at $P_{\rm L} = 1.8$ GeV/c and 2.2 GeV/c, respectively.



Fig. 3. – Contribution to the differential cross-section for process (1) due to exchange of a D-particle (mass 1000 MeV) in the t channel at $P_{\rm L}$ =1.8 GeV/c assuming the Ξ-particle has spin $\frac{1}{2}$. Curves a) and b) correspond to D spin 0 with $P(\mathcal{N} \equiv D)$ even and odd, curves c) and d) correspond to D spin 1 with $P(\mathcal{N} \equiv D)$ even and odd. The normalization is such that $g_{\mathcal{N}} \equiv Dg_{\rm DKK}/4\pi = 0.37, 0.94, 0.074$ and 0.086 for the curves a), b), c) and d), respectively. The histogram gives the experimental data of ref. (³).

This mechanism might be responsible for the backward production of easeades observed at $P_{\rm L} = 1.8 \text{ GeV/c}$ and at lower energies. The fact that this backward peak is not observed at $P_{\rm L} = 2.2 \text{ GeV/c}$ suggests that the D-particle has spin zero for only in this case does the cross-section due to the exchange of such a particle decrease with energy. For a spin 1 D-particle the peak increases with energy. We have normalized the theoretical cross-section

5793

[1235]

to the data at $P_{\rm L} = 1.8 \text{ GeV/c}$ assuming that this exchange process provides the mechanism for all the backward scattering. In this way we can set an upper limit to the coupling strength of the D-particle. For a D-particle of mass 1000 MeV, spin 0 and for $P(D\mathcal{N}\Xi)$ even we find



Fig. 4. – As in Fig. 3 except that $P_{\rm L}$ =2.2 GeV/c. The histogram gives the experimental data of ref. (⁵).

Increasing the mass of the D-particle merely makes the backward peak somewhat broader and the decrease with energy of the cross-section becomes slower. For $m_{\rm D} = 720$ MeV and 1440 MeV we find that the upper limits on the coupling constant are 0.25 and 0.62, respectively.

The angular distributions given by poles in the *s* channel do not exhibit any forward peaking for fermions of spin $\frac{1}{2}$ or spin $\frac{3}{2}$. The distribution is fairly uniform for most spin and parity cases although for a fermion of spin $\frac{3}{2}$ a small backward peak is given if $P(KY^*\mathcal{N})$ and $P(KY^*\Xi)$ are either even and odd respectively or both odd. Clearly therefore, the poles in the *s* channel do not provide the dominant mechanism for the production process although they may be responsible for a roughly uniform background term in the angular distribution upon which the peaks are super-posed. It is possible that the Y^* pole term is responsible for the observed small backward peak but we find that kinematic factors in the propagator of such a pole term result in the backward peak increasing rapidly with energy in contrast to the experimental data.

PRODUCTION OF CASCADE PARTICLES

As is to be expected the exchange of a fermion in the *u* channel gives rise to a forward peak in the production of cascade particles. The size and shape of this peak depends on the spin of the exchanged particle and on the relative parity of the particles involved. The angular distribution for exchange of spin $\frac{1}{2}$ and spin $\frac{3}{2}$ particles are shown in Fig. 5 and 6 for $m_{\rm r} = 1.115$ and



Fig. 5. – Contribution to the differential cross-section for process (1) due to exchange of a Y particle (mass 1115 MeV spin $\frac{1}{2}$) in the *u* channel at $P_{\rm L} = 1.8$ GeV/c assuming the Ξ particle has spin $\frac{1}{2}$. Curves (*a*), (*b*), (*c*) and (*d*) correspond to the parity combinations even even, odd even, even odd, and odd odd for P(KYN) and $P(KY\Xi)$, respectively. The normalization is such that $g_{KYN}g_{KY\Xi}/4\pi = 0.40, 0.72, 0.49$ and 0.54 for the curves (*a*), (*b*), (*c*) and (*d*), respectively. The histogram gives the data of ref. (³).

 $m_{Y^*} = 1.385 \text{ GeV}$ at $P_L = 1.8 \text{ GeV/c}$. Once again kinematic factors in the propagator of a spin $\frac{3}{2}$ particle give rise to cross-sections which increase rapidly with energy, a result which is incompatible with the experimental data. For the exchange of spin $\frac{1}{2}$ particles there is no such effect and the total cross-section varies with energy as shown in Fig. 2. The angular distribution for exchange of spin $\frac{1}{2}$ particles at $P_L = 2.2 \text{ GeV/c}$ is shown in Fig. 7. Normalizing our results to the data we find $(g_{KYN}g_{K\XiY})/4\pi = 0.40$ and 0.54 for P(KYN) and $P(KY\Xi)$ both even and both odd, respectively. Our results indicate that the best fit to the data is given by exchange of a Y particle such that P(KYN)

18

5795

[1237]







Fig. 7. – As in Fig. 5 except that $P_{\rm L}=2.2$ GeV/c. The histogram gives the experimental data of ref. (⁵).

5796

PRODUCTION OF CASCADE PARTICLES

and $P(KY\Xi)$ are both even. For all other parity combinations the forward peak given by our theory is insufficiently large and narrow. This parity fit also gives the best fit to the energy-dependence of the production cross-section as shown in Fig. 2. However it is well established that $P(K\Lambda\mathcal{N})$ is odd (¹⁷) and if we just consider the Λ pole we clearly obtain a forward peak which is too broad to fit the data. If we also assume $P(K\Sigma\mathcal{N})$ is odd (^{18,19}) and calculate the Σ -pole term we obtain a similar angular distribution but



Fig. 8. – Contribution to the differential cross-section for process (1) due to exchange of Λ (mass 1115 MeV) and Σ (mass 1189 MeV) particles in the *u* channel at $P_{\rm L}$ =1.8 GeV/c assuming the Ξ -particle has spin $\frac{1}{2}$. $P(\Lambda\Sigma)$ is even and curves *a*), *b*), *c*), *d*) correspond to the parity combinations even even, odd even, even odd, odd odd for $P(K\Lambda\Lambda)$ and $P(K\Lambda\Xi)$, respectively. The normalization is such that $g_{K\Lambda\Lambda}g_{K\Lambda\Xi}/4\pi = g_{K\Sigma\Lambda}g_{K\Sigma\Sigma}/4\pi = 5.3$, 10.6, 8.2 and 16.8 for the curves *a*), *b*), *c*), and *d*), respectively. The histogram gives the experimental data of ref. (³).

(17) M. M. BLOCK, C. LENDINARA and L. MONARI: Proceedings of the 1962 International Conference on High Energy Physics at CERN, p. 371.

(18) R. D. TRIPP, M. B. WATSON and M. FERRO-LUZZI: Phys. Rev. Lett., 8, 175 (1962).
 (19) H. D. D. WATSON: Hyperon Pair Production. Preprint.

 $\mathbf{20}$

5797

[1239]

[1240]

R. C. KING

because of the slightly larger mass of the exchanged particle the peak is smaller and broader. From the isotopic spin analysis of Section 5 we see that the contribution to the scattering amplitudes of the A- and Σ -pole terms taken together depends upon the relative signs and magnitudes of the four coupling constants $g_{K\Lambda,N}$, $g_{K\Sigma,N}$, $g_{K\Sigma,N}$, $g_{K\Sigma = 1}$. In the octet model of SU_{3} the Λ and Σ amplitudes have the same sign and their relative magnitude varies from 3:1 to 1:3 depending upon the mixing of F and D type couplings. Whatever this relative magnitude might be, the inclusion of both pole terms does not lead to any narrowing of the forward peak. However, provided $P(\Lambda \Sigma)$ is even, we can obtain a narrowing of the forward peak, for instance $(g_{K\Lambda N}g_{K\Lambda \Xi}) = (g_{K\Sigma N}g_{K\Sigma\Xi})$. In this case the isotopic spin factors lead to a cancellation of the A and Σ contributions to the scattering amplitude which is most complete in the nonforward direction leaving a sharp forward peak. This interference effect is such that at higher energies the cancellation is even more complete and the theoretical cross-section decreases with increasing energy in agreement with the experimental data. We have calculated this effect for all the parity com-





binations at $P_{\rm L} = 1.8$ and 2.2 GeV/c and the angular distributions we obtain are given in Fig. 8 and 9, respectively. Normalizing the results at $P_{\rm L} = 1.8$ GeV/c in the case of $P(\Lambda\Sigma)$ even, $P(K\Lambda\Lambda)$ odd and $P(K\Lambda\Xi)$ odd we find $(g_{K\Lambda\Lambda}g_{K\Lambda\Xi})/4\pi =$ $=(g_{K\Sigma\Lambda}g_{K\Sigma\Xi})/4\pi = 17$. The only other parity combination which will fit the data is $P(\Lambda\Sigma)$, $P(K\Lambda\Lambda)$, $P(K\Lambda\Xi)$ all even.

If we now turn our attention to the *s* channel and examine the consequence of inserting both the Λ and Σ poles in the amplitude we again obtain some cancellation. For $P(K\Lambda\Xi)$ even the angular distribution is roughly uniform and the contribution to the cross-section is of the same magnitude as that due to poles in the *u* channel. However, for $P(K\Lambda\Xi)$ odd the *s* channel contribution is an order of magnitude smaller than that of the *u* channel and moreover in the case of $P(K\Lambda\mathcal{N})$ and $P(K\Lambda\Xi)$ both odd the *s* channel terms give rise to a large forward peak. This indicates that although interference between the *s* and *u* channels pole terms might give a significant contribution to the differential cross-section in most parity cases it is unlikely to alter the angular distribution given by the dominant *u* channel poles in the case of $P(\Lambda\Sigma)$ even and $P(K\Lambda\mathcal{N})$, $P(K\Lambda\Xi)$ both odd.

7. – Alternative production processes.

We now turn our attention to the production of cascade particles in πp and $\overline{p}p$ collisions and examine the consequences of our analysis as applied to the reactions

(2) $\overline{\mathbf{p}} + \mathbf{p} \to \overline{\Xi}^- + \Xi^-$,

(3) $\pi^- + p \rightarrow \Xi^- + K^+ + K^{\circ}.$

The total cross-section (²⁰) for process (2) is found to be 4 (± 2.5) µb at $P_{\rm L} = 3.0 \text{ GeV/c}$. This is an order of magnitude smaller than the cross-section for the production of baryons of strangeness one in $\overline{p}p$ collisions. No conclusions can be drawn about the angular distribution from the four events reported at $P_{\rm L} = 3.0 \text{ GeV/c}$ but at higher energies there is some evidence that the process is peripheral (²¹). We set up a model to describe process (2) in which we consider only the peripheral diagram involving exchange of a D-

^{(&}lt;sup>20</sup>) R. ARMENTEROS, E. FETT, B. FRENCH, C. MONTANET, V. NIKUTIN, M. SZEP-TYCKA, CH. PEYROU, R. BOCK, A. SHIPIRA, J. BODIER, L. BLASKOVICZ, B. EEQUER, B. GREGORY, F. MULLER, S. J. GOLDSACK, D. H. MILLER, C. C. BUTLER, B. TALLINI, J. KINSON, L. RIDDIFORD, A. LEVÈQUE, J. MEYER, A. VERGLAS and S. ZYLBERACH: Proceedings of the 1962 International Conference on High Energy Physics at CERN, p. 236.

⁽²¹⁾ H. GOLDBERG, S. NUSSINOV and G. YEKUTIELI: Nuovo Cimento, 28, 446 (1963).

R. C. KING

meson. From the value of the total cross-section we can determine $g_{\mathcal{N}\equiv D}$ for a given spin and parity case. For a D-particle of mass 1000 MeV, spin 0 with $P(\mathcal{N}\equiv D)$ even we find $(g^2_{\mathcal{N}\equiv D}/4\pi) = 0.04$. Using the results of Section 6 we then find $(g^2_{KKD}/4\pi) = 3.4$. This large value of the coupling of the D-meson with two K-mesons indicates that the D-meson has a large width. With our definition of the coupling constant g_{KKD} the width of the D resonance as observed in KK scattering is given by

$$\Gamma_{\rm D} = \frac{g_{\rm KKD}}{4\pi} \frac{m_{\rm K}^2}{m_{\rm D}^2} (m_{\rm D}^2 - 4m_{\rm K}^2)^{\frac{1}{2}}.$$

Using this relationship and the above value for $g_{\rm DKK}$ we find $\Gamma_{\rm D} = 130$ MeV. Clearly more experimental data at high energies are needed to examine the validity of a peripheral model describing process (2).

The total cross-section (^{22·24}) for process (3) rises with energy to a value of $10.4(^{+4.2}_{-3.2}) \mu b$ at $P_{\rm L} = 8.0 {\rm ~GeV/c}$ and at this energy 7 of the total of 8 events observed are such that $\cos \theta_{\pi \Xi} > 137^{\circ}$ in the centre-of-mass system. This indicates that the process is peripheral and suggests that the mechanism for



Fig. 10. – Feynman diagrams appropriate to the production process (3) corresponding to K* and D exchange. the reaction might involve the exchange of a D-meson. However, an alternative mechanism might be the exchange of a K^* -meson.

The appropriate Feynman diagrams are shown in Fig. 10. To differentiate between these two models it will be necessary to observe the correlation of the associated K-mesons. It should also be stressed that the observation of these K-mesons offers the best possibility of examining the KK interaction for at suf-

ficiently high energies the correlation in kinetic energies of the K-mesons would give direct evidence for or against the existence of a D « particle ».

(22) W. B. FOWLER, W. M. POWELL and J. I. SHANLE: Nuovo Cimento, 11, 428 (1959).
(23) WANG KANG-CH'ANG, WANG TSU-TSENG, N. M. VIRYASOV, TING TA-TS'AO KIN HI IM, E. N. KLADNITSKAYA, A. A. KUZNETSOV, A. MIKHUL, NGUYEN DINH TU, A. V. NIKITIN and M. I. SOLOV'EV: Zurn. Eksp. Teor. Fiz., 40, 734 (1961); Soviet Physics JEPT, 13, 512 (1961).

(24) A. BIGI, S. BRANDT, R. CARRERA, W. A. COOPER, A. DE MARCO, G. R. MACLEOD, CH. PEYROU, R. SOSNOWSKI and A. WROBLEWSKI: Proceedings of the 1962 International Conference on High Energy Physics at CERN, p. 247.

[1242]

23

8. - Conclusions.

Within the limitations of our model our calculations strongly suggest that the cascade particle is not a spin $\frac{3}{2}$ particle satisfying the Rarita-Schwinger formalism. This supports the tentative conclusion of ref. (⁵) in favour of spin $\frac{1}{2}$ for the cascade particle.

From our results it is clear that the mechanism dominating the production of cascade particles in Kp collisions is anti-peripheral in the sense that the exchange process involves fermions. The experimental fact that the production cross-section exhibits such a large forward peak can be accounted for by assuming some cancellation between the Λ - and Σ -pole contributions to the scattering amplitude. In the case of $P(\Lambda \Sigma)$ odd the interference effect is complicated and we do not have any obvious cancellation mechanism. For $P(\Lambda \Sigma)$ even and $P(K\Lambda \mathcal{N})$ odd all the available data can be fitted provided $P(K\Lambda \Xi)$ is also odd. It should be pointed out that the values of the coupling constants we obtain are very sensitive to the degree of cancellation we assume in order to fit the shape of the angular distribution. Thus the quantitative results are not to be taken too seriously.

The influence of the Y* resonances as approximations to two particle states appears to be masked by the Λ - and Σ -pole terms. However we have used an unrenormalizable field theory to describe the interactions of the spin $\frac{3}{2}$ particles and an alternative theory such as that of a Regge pole model would alleviate the difficulties our model meets at high energies.

In addition to the anti-peripheral process there is some evidence for a peripheral process mediated by a D-particle or KK resonance. Our analysis indicates that such a particle with isotopic spin 1 should be a spin-zero state of even parity. The mass cannot be established but a mass of 1 GeV with a width of 130 MeV is consistent with all the data for cascade particle production. Further evidence for this particle should be sought in high-energy production of cascade particles in πp collisions.

The author wishes to express his gratitude to Professor P. T. MATTHEWS for the suggestion of this work and for helpful discussions.

R. C. KING

RIASSUNTO (*)

Per descrivere la produzione di particelle in cascata nelle collisioni Kp si costruisce un modello in cui si prendono in considerazione i contributi del polo delle particelle Λ e Σ ed i contributi degli stati intermedi di due particelle. Questi ultimi stati sono approssimati con risonanze Y^* nei canali s ed u e con una particella o risonanza D, un bosone di stranezza 2, nel canale t. Si prendono in considerazione le due alternative di un Ξ di spin ½ o di spin ½. Si usa una tecnica di teoria dei campi in cui tutti gli stati di spin 3 sono descritti dal formalismo di Rarita-Schwinger. Si calcolano le sezioni di urto totali e differenziali per il processo di produzione a varie energie per tutte le possibili combinazioni di parità. Un confronto con i dati sperimentali indica che lo spin della particella della cascata non è 3. Il processo di produzione è anti-periferico nel senso che il meccanismo predominante è uno scambio di fermioni nel canale u. Si possono approssimare meglio i dati con le combinazioni di parità $P(\Lambda \Sigma)$ pari, $P(K\Lambda \mathcal{N})$ dispari e $P(K\Lambda \Xi)$ dispari. In questo caso si richiede anche che $q_{K\Lambda \mathcal{N}} q_{K\Lambda \Xi} \approx$ $\approx g_{K\Sigma\mathcal{N}}g_{K\Sigma\Xi}$. Si ha anche qualche prova di un processo mediato da una particella D ossia risonanza KK. L'analisi indica che tale stato, di isospin 1, deve avere spin zero e parità pari. Non se ne può stabilire la massa ma una massa di 1000 MeV ed una ampiezza di 130 MeV concordano con la produzione in cascata nelle collisioni Kp e pp.

(*) Traduzione a cura della Redazione.

DEPARTMENT OF MATHEMATICS



THE UNIVERSITY

SOUTHAMPTON

TEL. 56331

16 th Terby 1965.

hofessor P.T. Matthews, Department of Plugaico, Imperial callege. London 5. W. M.

H. A. JAHN B. THWAITES

H. B. GRIFFITHS

PROFESSORS: E. T. DAVIES

Dear Professor Matthews, Juante you for your letter of the 13th July. The suggested date and time for my Ph.D. viva - Thes. 24 the July 11 a.m - is quite converient. tows sincerely, R.C. King-

UNIVERSITY OF LONDON

SENATE HOUSE, WC1

TELEPHONE: MUSEUM 8000



TELEGRAMS: UNIVERSITY, LONDON

20 May 1965

MAW

Physics 888

Dear Sir.

I am directed to inform you that you have been appointed as Examiner in conjunction with J. C. Polkinghorne, Esq., M.A., Ph.D., Trinity College, Cambridge.

for the thesis, a copy of which is enclosed, submitted by the following candidate for Science as an Internal Student: the Ph.D. Degree in the Faculty of

> Name: R. C. King (I.C.) Thesis: 'Particle production in strong interactions'.

I enclose the Instructions to Examiners for the Ph.D. Degree and would draw your attention to Sections 12 to 14, from which you will see that an oral examination should be held, unless the candidate is rejected without further test. I shall be glad if the Examiners will suggest a suitable time and place for the oral examination so that I may summon the candidate to attend.

The joint report of the Examiners should be written on the candidate's entry form which has been sent to your co-examiner.

Will you please return the thesis with the Examiners' report. I regret that I am no longer in a position to give permission to any Examiner to retain a copy of the thesis, in view of a scheme approved by the Senate with regard to the disposal of copies of theses after examination. This scheme makes no provision for the retention of theses by Examiners. Fewer copies are now submitted by candidates for the examination, and two of these copies must be bound, in accordance with the approved specification, before the conferment of the degree.

I enclose a copy of the Scheme of Payment to Examiners for Internal Students.

Yours faithfully,

James Herdersa,

Prof. P. T. Matthews, M.A., Ph.D., Imperial College, Prince Consort Road, South Kensington, S.W.7.

UNIVERSITY OF LONDON

INSTRUCTIONS TO EXAMINERS FOR PH.D. DEGREE FOR INTERNAL STUDENTS IN THE FACULTIES OF THEOLOGY, ARTS, LAWS, MUSIC, MEDICINE, SCIENCE, ENGINEERING AND ECONOMICS

1. Boards of Studies shall recommend the names of two Examiners for each candidate but in the case of the Ph.D. Degree in the Faculties of Arts and Economics Boards of Studies are empowered whenever they consider it desirable to recommend the appointment of three Examiners, such Examiners to take equal parts in the examination.

2. At least one of the Examiners shall, whenever practicable, have had experience in examining for the Ph.D. Degree of the University, and one Examiner shall, if possible, be the Teacher, or one of the Teachers, under whose supervision the research of which the results are embodied in the thesis has been carried out.

3. Boards of Studies may, if they so desire, recommend the names of two of the candidate's Teachers instead of the one Teacher mentioned above.

4. In cases where only two Examiners are recommended to act in the first instance, Boards of Studies shall also recommend the name of an additional Examiner to act only if called upon by the Principal after the Examiners who have acted in the first instance shall have reported to him formally that they are unable to arrive at an agreement; and the additional Examiner shall act jointly with the other Examiners and not as a Referee. Whenever practicable this additional Examiner shall have had experience in examining for the Ph.D. of the University.

5. When theses are sent to the Examiners, the Academic Registrar shall request them to acquaint themselves with the standard of the University, and inform them that copies of the theses submitted by candidates who have presented themselves for the examination previously are available for this purpose.

6. The standard of the Ph.D. Degree is definitely higher than that of the M.A. and M.Sc. Degrees in the same subject.

7. The thesis must form a distinct contribution to the knowledge of the subject and afford evidence of originality, shown either by the discovery of new facts or by the exercise of independent critical power.

8. The thesis must be satisfactory as regards literary presentation, and if not already published in an approved form, must be suitable for publication, either as submitted or in an abridged form.

9. The candidate must indicate how far the thesis embodies the result of his own research or observation, and in what respects his investigations appear to him to advance the study of his subject.

10. The Degree of Ph.D. will not be conferred upon a candidate unless the Examiners certify that the thesis is worthy of publication as a 'Work approved for the Degree of Doctor of Philosophy in the University of London'.

11. A candidate will not be permitted to submit as his thesis a thesis for which a Degree has been conferred on him in this or in any other University, but a candidate shall not be precluded from incorporating work which he has already submitted for a Degree in this or in any other University in a thesis covering a wider field, provided that he shall indicate on his entry form and also on his thesis any work which has been so incorporated.

12. After the Examiners have read the thesis, they may, if they think fit, and without further test, recommend that the candidate be rejected.

13. Except as provided in paragraph 12 the Examiners after reading the thesis shall examine the candidate orally and at their discretion by printed papers or practical examinations or by both methods on the subject of the thesis, and, if they see fit, on subjects relevant thereto; provided that a candidate for the Ph.D. Degree in the Faculty of Arts who has obtained the Degree of M.A. in the same subject in this University shall in any case be exempted from a written examination.

14. If the thesis is adequate but the candidate fails to satisfy the Examiners at the oral, practical or written examination held in connection therewith, the Examiners may recommend the Senate to permit the candidate to re-present the same thesis and submit to a further oral, practical or written examination within a period not exceeding 18 months specified by them, and the fee on re-entry, if the Senate adopt such recommendation, shall be half the normal fee.

15. If the thesis though inadequate, shall seem of sufficient merit to justify such action the Examiners may recommend the Senate to permit the candidate to re-present his thesis in a revised form within 18 months from the decision of the Senate with regard thereto; and the fee on reentry, if the Senate adopt such recommendation, shall be half the normal fee. Examiners shall not, however, refer any thesis without submitting the candidate to an oral examination.

16. When a candidate for Ph.D. Degree in the field of Statistics has not a preliminary Degree in Statistics the Examiners are recommended to test the candidate's general knowledge of statistical method and theory outside the special field covered by his thesis.

17. Examiners are informed that it is not within their power to recommend the conferment of a Degree other than that for which the candidate has entered.

18. Copies of all successful theses, whether published or not, will be deposited for reference in the University Library.

UNIVERSITY OF LONDON

PAYMENTS TO EXAMINERS

8.—HIGHER DEGREE EXAMINATIONS

(1) Masters' Degrees (excluding M.S. and M.D.S.), Ph.D., D.Mus.

[Note:-Payments to Examiners for the 'one-year' M.Sc. (Econ.) Examination by written papers (under new Regulations) have not yet been prescribed, and the following fees are not at present applicable]

£ s. d' Setting Papers For each paper set (fee divisible between the Examiners taking part) 10 0 0 [M.Sc. History and Philosophy of Science-Part I: A fixed fee of £45 is divisible between the External Examiners for their work in setting papers] Mathematics (including Mathematical Statistics) and Statistics papers, each 12 0 0 . . For transcribing the whole or the major part of a paper into an Oriental script for 1 10 0 reproduction by photography .. • • For modification of a paper for Overseas •• .. ۰. • • 15 0 . . Papers in connection with Practical Examinations: see Practical Examinations below. Marking Scripts 7 6 For each of two markings or readings, for each script At the D.Mus. Examination payment for three markings is allowed. Oral Examinations (and Practical Tests at M.A.)[†] Masters' Degree Examinations: Per candidate (fee payable for up to four orals on any one day) to each of two 3 10 0 Examiners if required If more than one Internal Examiner acts in addition to the External Examiner, £3 10s. 0d. per candidate is divisible among the Internal Examiners. The above fees are not payable in respect of orals given during practical examinations, if the Examiner(s) concerned receives fees for attendance at the practical examination. Ph.D. Degree Examinations: To each of two Examiners and to a third if called upon by the Principal, or to each of three Examiners appointed from more than one Faculty, per candidate 3 10 0 (fee payable for up to four orals on any one day) ••• If three Examiners are appointed from the same Faculty to act in the first instance, the following fees will be payable:-Internal Examinations.—A fee of $\pounds 7$ per candidate shared equally between three teachers, or a fee of $\pounds 3$ 10s. Od. per candidate to the Examiner external to the University and a fee of £3 10s. 0d. per candidate shared equally between two teachers. External Examinations.—A fee of £3 10s. 0d. per candidate to each Examiner, provided that the appointment of the three Examiners has been specifically approved by the External Council after consideration of a special report of the appropriate Board of Studies. Practical Examinations (and Oral Examinations at D.Mus.) 10 0 0 For each practical paper set (fee divisible between the Examiners taking part) ... For a practical paper set to cover more than one day's practical at M.Sc. Examinations in Biochemistry (fee divisible between the Examiners taking part) ... 20 0 0 For attendance (including marking of candidates' work):-7 0 0 Whole day . . •• •• ••• • • 0 0 4 Half-day If oral examinations for the Intermediate Examination in Music, B.Mus. and D.Mus. Examinations are held consecutively on the same day, payment will be made for the whole time for which Examiners are present, and not for separate periods for each examination.

If an External or Staff Examiner resides outside the University radius of 30 miles his attendance, if required for a single examination period only on any day, is to be reckoned as attendance for a day.

[†] For conducting oral examinations at Part I of the M.Sc. Examination in Agriculture (selected subject Poultry Science) for candidates registering in and after October 1961, a fee of 10s. per candidate (minimum fee £4 per day) will be payable to each of two Examiners for each subject.

Masters' Degree Examinations:

Theses and Dissertations, etc.,

- - The fee for reading a thesis at the following examinations is £5 to each of two Examiners:---

Internal M.A. Philosophy

Internal M.A. and M.Sc. Psychology (if candidate is examined by thesis, oral, three papers and a practical)

- The fee for reading a dissertation at the following examinations is £5 to each of two Examiners:—
 - M.A. Education examinations consisting of four papers, dissertation and oral
 - M.Vet.Med. [the fee for a thesis is £7 to each of two Examiners]
- The fee for reading a Report at the Internal M.Sc. (Eng.) Examination, for candidates proceeding to the Degree by method of written papers and submission of Report, is £4 to each of two Examiners.
- At the M.Sc. Examination in Geophysics, without thesis, a fee of £5 per candidate is payable to each of two Examiners to cover reading the dissertation, examination of course-work and attendance at oral examination.
- If three Examiners read a thesis or dissertation, etc., in the first instance, the fee for two Examiners is divisible between them if they are all teachers of the University, or the full fee is payable to the Examiner external to the University and half the prescribed fee to each of the two teachers.

Ph.D. Degree Examinations:

For	exami	natio	n of a	thesis,	to	eac	h of	two	Exam	iners and to	o a th	ni rd if e	called
	upon	by th	he Pri	ncipal,	or	to	eacl	ı of	three	Examiners	appe	ointed	from
	more	than	one l	Faculty	••		••	••	•		••	••	••

10 0 0 7 0 0

+ 2

Internal Examinations.—A fee of £6 13s. 4d. to each of three teachers, including the Supervisor, or a fee of £10 to the Examiner external to the University and half the prescribed fee to each of two teachers [£3 10s. 0d. to the Supervisor and £5 to the other teacher].

External Examinations.—A fee of £10 to each Examiner, provided that the appointment of the three Examiners has been specifically approved by the External Council after consideration of a special report of the appropriate Board of Studies.

- No fee shall be payable to a Teacher of the University for reading and reporting on a Thesis or Dissertation submitted in the joint names of the candidate and himself.
- For re-reading a thesis or dissertation submitted for a Ph.D. Examination and resubmitted for a Master's Examination or for re-reading a thesis or dissertation re-presented in connection with further tests in oral, written or practical examinations, the fees payable are half the fees prescribed for the first reading.

For re-reading a thesis or dissertation submitted in a revised form, the fees payable are as for the first reading.

Design at M.A. (Architecture) under old Regulations—For assessing material submitted by a candidate, to each of two Examiners and to a third if called upon by the Principal	7	0	0
If three Examiners act in the first instance, the fee for two Examiners is divisible between them.			
Portfolio of Drawings at Internal M.A. or M.Sc. Architecture under new Regulations, per candidate, to each of two Examiners	5	0	0
Problem (at Mathematics) (fee divisible between the Examiners taking part)	12	0	0
Musical Exercise (D.Mus.) (fee divisible between the Examiners taking part)	21	0	0
Special ad hoc Qualifying Examination—fee per candidate (fee divisible between the Examiners taking part)	10	0	0
For a qualifying examination, for the M.Sc. Examination in Botany, consisting of an oral examination only or of an oral examination together with one or more			
papers of an existing examination, fee divisible among the Examiners taking part in the oral examination	5	0	0

*To include 'an approved piece of textual and editorial work' at M.A. Examination in English and Education.

Chairmen's Fees							£	s.	đ.	
M.Th. (old Regulations) (Common)	••	••		••	••	••	15	0	0	
M.A.:										
Classics (Internal and External)	••	••	••	••	••	••	15	0	0	
Classical Chinese (Internal and Ex	ternal)		• •	••	••	••	12	0	0	
English—December (Common)	••		••	••	••	••	9	0	0	
May (Common)	••	••	••	••	••	••	15	0	0	
French (Internal and External)	••	••	••		••	••	18	0	0	
Indo-Aryan (External)	••		••	••	••	••	15	0	0	
LL.M. (Common)	••	••	••	••	••	••	25	0	0	
M.Sc.:										
Agriculture (Poultry Science) (Inter	rnal)*	••		••	••	••	9	0	0	
Biochemistry, to the Chairman of a Board of more than two Examiners*										
Crystallography (Internal)*				••	••	••	9	0	0	
Geophysics (Internal)*	• •			••		••	12	0	0	
History and Philosophy of Science	(Com	non)	••	••		••	15	0	0	
Microbiology (Internal)*	· ·	••	••		••		9	0	0	
Radiation Biology and Radiation I	Physics	(Interr	n al)	••	••	••	12	0	0	
Meetings	•		ŕ				_			
To each External or Staff Examiner, for	or atten	Idance	at each	Meeti	ng if su	immon	ed		-	
by the University (maximum fee £' No fee if held concurrently wi	7 10s. 0 th a Pr	d. per actical	day) Exami	 nation	••	••	2	10	0	
Minimum Fee to ad hoc, Staff or External E	xamine	r	••	••	••	••	8	0	0	

(2) D.D., D.Lit., LL.D., D.Sc., D.Sc.(Eng.), D.Sc.(Econ.)

To each Examiner who acts, inclusive fee, per candidate	••		••	15 15 0
---	----	--	----	---------

Travelling Expenses

For each occasion on which an Examiner is required by the University to travel a distance of more than 30 miles from his usual residence he may claim in connection with attendance at Practical Examinations, Oral Examinations, or Examiners' Meetings, first-class return railway fare and the cost of travel by underground and/or public road transport (bus or coach) for all necessary journeys actually performed from his usual residence, and for any other necessary journeys performed while engaged on examination work, together with the following allowances:—

For necessary absence from home not involving a night:

For a period of 5-10 consecutive hours, 15s. 0d.

For a period of more than 10 consecutive hours, £1 10s. 0d.

For each necessary period of absence up to 24 hours involving a night away from home. £3.

For journeys to or from Berwick or Carlisle or stations in Scotland or Northern Ireland, an allowance of £1 per journey, in addition to the subsistence allowance of £3.

An Examiner external to the University may claim fares and allowances as set out above for all necessary journeys actually performed from his usual residence (irrespective of the 30-mile limit), and for any other necessary journeys performed while engaged on examination work.

In the event of travel from a vacation address, travelling expenses claimed may not exceed those from usual residence unless the University's request for attendance is made at short notice.

J. HOOD PHILLIPS Secretary to the Senate

July 1964